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KLASS PACK LIMITED, a company incorporated under
the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate
Identity Number: U74999MH1991PLC061851 and
registered office at 1101, 11 Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block,
Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051, Maharashtra, India

To,

FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and Rule 6 and 7]
IN THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
CA (CAA) No. 259/MB/2022
IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232
AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND

IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AMONGST BOROSIL LIMITED AND KLASS PACK
LIMITED AND BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

—_— — — — — ~—

... Company / Resulting Company / Transferee Company

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF UNSECURED CREDITORS

The Unsecured Creditors of
Klass Pack Limited

1.

NOTICE is hereby given that, in accordance with the Order dated November 25, 2022, in the above mentioned
Company Application, passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Tribunal”) (“Tribunal
Order”), a Meeting of the unsecured creditors of the Company, will be held for the purpose of their considering, and
if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
Borosil Limited (“Demerged Company”) and Klass Pack Limited (“Company” or “Resulting Company” or “Transferee
Company”) and Borosil Technologies Limited (“Transferor Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors
(“Scheme”) on Monday, February 06, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. (IST).

Pursuant to the said Tribunal Order and as directed therein, the Meeting of the unsecured creditors of the Company
(“Meeting”) will be held through Video Conferencing (“VC")/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM"), in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) to consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution for approval of the Scheme by requisite majority as prescribed under Section
230(1) and (6) read with Section 232(1) of the Act, as amended:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, circulars and
notifications made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force) and subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the
approval of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Tribunal”) and subject to such other approvals,
permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and
modifications as may be deemed appropriate by the parties to the Scheme, at any time and for any reason whatsoever,
or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or as may be prescribed or imposed by the Tribunal or by
any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to
by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to mean
and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/ to be constituted by the Board or any other person authorised by it to
exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme
of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited and Klass Pack Limited and Borosil Technologies Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”), be and is hereby approved;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may,
in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this Resolution and effectively
implement the arrangement embodied in the Scheme and to make any modifications or amendments to the Scheme at any
time and for any reason whatsoever, and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any,
which may be required and/or imposed by the Tribunal while sanctioning the arrangement embodied in the Scheme or by
any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that may
arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered
necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”
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3.  TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the unsecured creditors shall have the facility and option of voting on the resolution
for approval of the Scheme by casting their votes: (a) by remote electronic voting during the period as stated below
(“remote e-Voting"); or (b) through e-voting system available at the Meeting to be held virtually (“e-Voting at the

Meeting”):
REMOTE E-VOTING PERIOD
Commencement of voting Monday, January 30, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. (IST)
End of voting Sunday, February 05, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. (IST)
4, An unsecured creditor, whose name appears in the list of unsecured creditors of the Company as on the cut-off date,

i.e. November 30, 2022, only shall be entitled to exercise his / her / its voting rights on the resolution proposed in
the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not an unsecured creditor as on the cut-off date, should treat
the Notice for information purpose only. The value and number of unsecured creditors shall be in accordance with
the books / records maintained by the Company. Voting rights of an unsecured creditor shall be in proportion to the
outstanding amount due by the Company as on the cut-off date.

5. A copy of the said Scheme, statement under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions
of the Act and Rule 6 of the CAA Rules along with all annexures to such statement are appended. A copy of this
Notice and the accompanying documents are also placed on the website of the Demerged Company and can be
accessed at www.borosil.com; the website of National Securities Depository Limited viz. (“NSDL") viz. www.evoting.
nsdl.com, being the agency appointed by the Company to provide the e-voting and other facilities for convening of
the Meeting and the website of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited (“BSE”) viz. www.bseindia.com and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) viz. www.nseindia.com.

6.  The Tribunal has appointed Mr. Raj Kumar Jain, Independent Director of the Company failing whom, Mr. Kewal
Handa, Independent Director of the Demerged Company, to be the Chairperson for the Meeting and Mr. Nilesh Shah,
Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.: FCS-4554 - C.P. 2631) and failing him, Mr. Mahesh Darji, Practicing
Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-7175 C.P. 7809) and failing him, Ms. Hetal Shah, Practicing Company
Secretary (Membership No. FCS- 8063 C.P. 8964) of M/s. Nilesh Shah & Associates, Company Secretaries, to be the
Scrutinizer for the Meeting.

7. The Scheme, if approved at the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent sanction of the Tribunal and such
other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory or other authorities, as may be necessary.

Sd/-
Raj Kumar Jain
Chairperson appointed by the Tribunal for the Meeting

Mumbai, Wednesday, January 4, 2023

Registered Office:

1101, 11t Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051, Maharashtra, India

CIN: U74999MH1991PLC061851

E-mail: kpl.secretarial@borosil.com

Tel.: 022-6740 6300

Fax: 022-6740 6514

Notes

1. Pursuant to the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Tribunal”) vide its order
dated November 25, 2022 (“Tribunal Order”), the Meeting of the unsecured creditors of the Company is being
conducted through video conferencing (“VC”) / other audio visual means (“OAVM") facility to transact the business
set out in the Notice convening this Meeting. The deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the Registered Office of the
Company situated at 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
(East), Mumbai — 400 051, Maharashtra, India.

2. TheStatement pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in
respect of the business set out in the Notice of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Pursuant to the directions of the Tribunal given under the Tribunal Order, the Company is providing to the unsecured
creditors the facility to exercise their right to vote at the Meeting by electronic means, i.e. remote e-voting and
e-voting at the Meeting, (hereinafter referred to as “e-voting”). An unsecured creditor, whose name appears in the
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10.

11.

12.

list of unsecured creditors of the Company as on the cut-off date, i.e. November 30, 2022, only shall be entitled to
exercise his / her / its voting rights on the resolution proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is
not an unsecured creditor as on the cut-off date, should treat the Notice for information purpose only. The value and
number of unsecured creditors shall be in accordance with the books / records maintained by the Company.

Quorum for the Meeting is 5 (five) unsecured creditors attending the Meeting. Unsecured creditors attending the
Meeting through VC / OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum.

Since this Meeting is being held through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of unsecured creditors has been dispensed
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the unsecured creditors will not be available for the
Meeting, and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed hereto. Body Corporates are
permitted to appoint authorised representative(s) to attend the Meeting through VC / OAVM and cast their votes by
electronic means. The voting by the said authorized representative(s) is permitted, provided that the authorisation,
duly signed, is lodged with the Company, in physical at its registered office or by electronic mode, at least 48 (Forty-
Eight) hours before the Meeting.

The Notice of the Meeting and the accompanying documents are being sent only through electronic mail to those
unsecured creditors (as on November 30, 2022) whose email addresses are available with the Company.

The unsecured creditors may note that the aforesaid documents are also available on the website of the Demerged
Company at: www.borosil.com and on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL") at www.evoting.
nsdl.com, being the agency appointed by the Company to provide VC/ OAVM and e-voting facility for the Meeting and
the website of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited (“BSE”) viz. www.bseindia.com and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (“NSE”) viz. www.nseindia.com.

Mr. Nilesh Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.: FCS - 4554 — C.P. 2631) and failing him, Mr. Mahesh
Darji, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS - 7175 C.P. 7809) and failing him, Ms. Hetal Shah, Practicing
Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS - 8063 C.P. 8964) of M/s. Nilesh Shah & Associates, Practising Company
Secretaries shall act as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer will, after the conclusion of e-voting at the Meeting, scrutinize the votes cast at the Meeting and votes
cast through remote e-voting, make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and submit the same to the Chairperson of
the Meeting. The result of e-voting will be declared within two working days of the conclusion of the Meeting and the
same, along with the consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report, will be placed on the website of the Demerged Company: www.
borosil.com and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. The result will simultaneously be communicated to
the Stock Exchanges. The result will also be displayed at the registered office of the Company.

Subject to receipt of requisite majority of votes in favour, i.e., majority in number representing three fourth in value (as
per Sections 230 and 232 of the Act), the Resolution proposed in the Notice shall be deemed to have been passed on
the date of the Meeting.

Documents for inspection as referred to in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection (without any fee)
by the unsecured creditors from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of Meeting. Unsecured creditors
seeking to inspect such documents can access the same on the website of the Demerged Company at: www.borosil.
com.

Unsecured Creditors are requested to carefully read all the Notes set out herein and in particular, instructions for
joining the Meeting and manner of casting vote through electronic means.

Remote E-voting; Meeting through VC / OAVM; E-voting at the Meeting

13.

14.

15.

16.

The facility of attending Meeting through VC / OAVM is being provided by NSDL. The facility of casting votes by an
unsecured creditor using electronic means, i.e. (i) remote e-voting and (ii) e-voting during the Meeting, (hereinafter
referred to as“e-voting”) is also being provided by NSDL. The procedure for attending the Meeting through VC/ OAVM
and for e-voting is given in the Notes below.

An unsecured creditor, whose name appears in the list of unsecured creditors of the Company as on the cut-
off date, i.e. November 30, 2022, only shall be entitled to exercise his / her / its voting rights on the resolution
proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not an unsecured creditor as on the cut-off
date, should treat the Notice for information purpose only. The value and number of unsecured creditors shall
be in accordance with the books / records maintained by the Company.

Voting rights of an unsecured creditor shall be in proportion to the outstanding amount due by the Company
as on the cut-off date.

The remote e-voting period will commence at 09:00 a.m. (IST) on Monday, January 30, 2023 and end at 05:00 p.m.
(IST) on Sunday, February 05, 2023. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for remote e-voting thereafter.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

During the remote e-voting period, unsecured creditors of the Company as on the cut-off date may cast their vote
electronically.

Unsecured creditors attending the Meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to
exercise their vote at the Meeting. The unsecured creditors who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the
Meeting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

Only those unsecured creditors, who are present in the Meeting through VC/OAVM and have not cast their vote
through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system
available at the Meeting.

If any votes are cast by the unsecured creditors through the e-voting available at the Meeting and if the same unsecured
creditors have not participated in the Meeting through VC/ OAVM, then the votes cast by such unsecured creditors shall
be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting at the Meeting is available only to the unsecured creditors attending
the Meeting.

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by an unsecured creditor, the unsecured creditor shall not be allowed to change
it subsequently.

Body Corporates (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, etc.) are requested to send a certified true copy of the Board
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority letter, etc. (PDF/ JPG Format) to Scrutinizer at nilesh@ngshah.com and / or
Company at kpl.secretarial@borosil.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Alternatively, they can also upload
the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter, etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority
Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login. Alternatively, they can also send a physical copy of the Board
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter, etc. at the registered office of the Company.

Unsecured creditors who would like to express their views / ask questions during the Meeting may register themselves
as speaker by sending their request on or before January 26, 2023, mentioning their name, address, Permanent Account
Number (PAN), mobile number and email address at kpl.secretarial@borosil.com. The unsecured creditors who do not
wish to speak during the Meeting but have queries, may send their queries on or before January 26, 2023 mentioning
their name, address, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mobile number and email address at kpl.secretarial@borosil.
com. These queries will be addressed by the Company suitably. The Company reserves the right to restrict number of
questions and number of speakers, as appropriate for smooth conduct of Meeting. Unsecured creditors are requested
to restrict their questions only to matters pertaining to the business set out in the Notice convening this Meeting.

Those unsecured creditors who have registered themselves as speaker will only be allowed to express their views / ask
questions during the Meeting.

Procedure for remote e-voting

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:
Step 1: Access to the NSDL e-voting system

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system.

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-voting system

1. Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.
com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile.

2. Oncethehome page of e-voting systemis launched, clickon the icon“Login”which is available under’Shareholder
/ Member / Creditor section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen.

i. The User ID and Password for joining the Meeting through VC / OAVM and casting votes through e-voting
are given in the e-mail communication.

ii. The User ID and Password are sent to all the unsecured creditors whose email addresses are available with
the Company.

iii.  Those unsecured creditors whose e-mail addresses are not available with the Company and as a result
have not received the e-mail communication, may obtain the User ID and Password by writing to NSDL as
given below.

iv.  An unsecured creditor who cannot retrieve or has not received the User ID and Password, may obtain the
same by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. Such unsecured creditor is requested to provide his /




4,
5.
6.

her / its name, address, PAN, mobile number and email address along with the request. The subject line
of the request should clearly mention: “Klass Pack Limited- Unsecured Creditors Meeting - EVEN no.
123081)

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on“Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, home page of e-voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system

1.

> W N

© N o u

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the EVEN no. of the Company.
Click on “EVEN" of the Company (i.e. 123081) to cast your vote.
Now you are ready for e-voting as the voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm”
when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.
Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Body corporates ((i.e. other than individuals, HUF, etc) can upload the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney /
Authority Letter, etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-voting” tab
in their login.

Procedure for e-voting at the Meeting

1.

The procedure for e-voting at the Meeting is same as the procedure outlined above for remote e-voting.

Procedure for attending the Meeting through VC / OAVM

1.

Unsecured creditors can attend the Meeting through VC / OAVM after following the steps for ‘Access to NSDL
e-voting system’as outlined above in the procedure for remote e-voting.

After successful login, unsecured creditors will be able to see the VC / OAVM link placed under ‘Join meeting’
menu against the Company’s name. Unsecured creditors are requested to click on the VC / OAVM link placed
under ‘Join meeting’ menu.

Facility to join the Meeting through VC/OAVM, will open 30 minutes before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting.

Unsecured creditors are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Unsecured creditors will be required to allow the camera and use internet with good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the Meeting.

Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

General Guidelines

1.

It is strongly recommended not to share User ID and Password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep them confidential.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) available at www.evoting.nsdl.
com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Mr. Anubhav Saxena at
evoting@nsdl.co.in

All grievances connected with the NSDL e-voting system may be addressed to Mr. Anubhav Saxena, Asst.
Manager, National Securities Depository Limited, Trade World, ‘A" Wing, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013 or send an email to evoting@nsdl.co.in or call on the toll free
no. 1800 1020 990 / 1800 22 44 30.




KLASS PACK LIMITED, a company incorporated under
the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate
Identity Number: U74999MH1991PLC061851 and
registered office at 1101, 11t Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block,
Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051, Maharashtra, India

INTHE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
CA (CAA) No. 259/MB/2022
IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232
AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND

IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AMONGST BOROSIL LIMITED AND KLASS PACK
LIMITED AND BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

—_— — — — — ~—

... Company / Resulting Company / Transferee Company

STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 102 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“ACT”) AND RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND

AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 (“CAA RULES"”) TO THE NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF UNSECURED CREDITORS OF
KLASS PACK LIMITED CONVENED PURSUANT TO ORDER OF THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL

MUMBAI BENCH (“TRIBUNAL") DATED NOVEMBER 25, 2022 (“TRIBUNAL ORDER”)

MEETING FOR THE SCHEME

This is a statement accompanying the Notice convening the Meeting of unsecured creditors of Klass Pack Limited
(“Company”), for the purpose of their considering and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s),
the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“Demerged Company”) and Klass
Pack Limited (“Company” or “Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company”) and Borosil Technologies Limited
(“Transferor Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”). The Scheme provides for: (i)
reduction and reorganisation of share capital of the Resulting Company; (ii) the demerger, transfer and vesting of the
Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on a
going concern basis; and (i) the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. The Scheme
also provides for various other matters consequent and incidental thereto.

The salient features of the Scheme are given in Paragraph V of this Statement. The detailed terms of the arrangement
may be referred in the Scheme, appended as‘Annexure I

Capital terms not defined herein and used in the Notice and this Statement shall have the same meaning as ascribed
to them in the Scheme.

DATE, TIME AND MODE OF MEETING

Pursuantto an order dated November 25,2022, passed by the Hon’ble Tribunal in Company Application viz. CA (CAA) No.
259/MB/2022, the Meeting of the unsecured creditors of the Company, will be held for the purpose of their considering
and, if thought fit approving, with or without modification(s), the said Scheme through Video Conferencing (“VC")/
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) on Monday, February 06, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. (IST). The Company is providing the
facility to vote at the Meeting by electronic means, i.e. remote e-voting and e-voting at the Meeting.

RATIONALE AND BENEFITS OF THE SCHEME

The circumstances which justify and/or have necessitated the said Scheme and the benefits of the same are, inter alia,
as follows:

1. Given its diversified business, it has become imperative for the Demerged Company to reorient and reorganize itself
in a manner that allows imparting greater focus on each of its businesses. With this repositioning, the Demerged
Company is desirous of enhancing its operational efficiency while it continues with its consumer products business.

2. The proposed demerger pursuant to this Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following benefits:

(i) value unlocking of scientific and industrial products business with ability to achieve valuation based on
respective-risk return profile and cash flows;

(i) attracting business specific investors and potential strategic partners and providing better flexibility in accessing
capital, focused strategy and specialisation for sustained growth and thereby enable de-leveraging of the
respective businesses in the longer-term;



(iii)

(iv)

segregation and unbundling of the scientific and industrial products business of the Demerged Company into
the Resulting Company, will enable enhanced focus on the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for
exploring opportunities in their respective business domains; and

focused management approach for pursuing the growth in the respective business’ verticals and de-risk the
businesses from each other.

3. Aspart of the restructuring exercise, it is proposed to consolidate the resources of the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company. The said amalgamation will result in the following benefits:

(i)

(ii)
(i)
(iv)

Streamline the corporate structure and consolidation of resources within the Transferee Company leading to
greater synergies and operational synergy;

Opportunities for employees of the Transferor Company to grow in a wider field of business;
Optimal utilisation of resources and better management and administration; and
Reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal and regulatory compliances.

4. In order to achieve an optimum equity share capital base which will commensurate with business activities of the
Resulting Company subsequent to the demerger and merger as stated above, it is proposed to reduce the face value
of the equity shares and reorganise the equity share capital of the Resulting Company prior to the said demerger and
merger.

5. The proposed restructuring is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees, and other stakeholders of the
Parties.”

IV. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES:
A.  Particulars of the Demerged Company (Borosil Limited)

(i)

Borosil Limited is a public company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The
registered office of the Demerged Company is situated at 1101, 11" Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No
C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India. The
Demerged Company is accordingly registered with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, having Corporate
Identity Number (CIN) L36100MH2010PLC292722. Its Permanent Account Number with the Income Tax
Department is AACCH5367G. The email address of the Demerged Company is investor.relations@borosil.
com and the website is www.borosil.com. The Demerged Company was incorporated on November 25,
2010, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 under the name ‘Hopewell Tableware Private
Limited’ pursuant to certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Jaipur. This name
‘Hopewell Tableware Private Limited'was changed to ‘Hopewell Tableware Limited’ pursuant to conversion
of the Demerged Company from private limited to public limited on July 19, 2018. A certificate of
incorporation consequent upon conversion from private company to public company was issued by the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The name of the Demerged Company ‘Hopewell Tableware Limited’ was
subsequently changed to’Borosil Limited’on November 20, 2018. A certificate of incorporation consequent
upon change of name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Originally the registered office
of the Demerged Company was situated at A-17, Manish Marg, Gandhi Path, Nemi Nagar, Jaipur, Rajasthan
-302 021 and thereafter it was shifted to D-10/50, Opposite Chitrakoot Stadium, Chitrakoot, Vaishali Nagar,
Jaipur, Rajasthan - 302 021 on March 4, 2013 and thereafter it was shifted to Village Balekhan, PS Anatpura,
Near Govindgarh, NH 52, Sikar Road, Chomu, Jaipur, Rajasthan — 303 807 with effect from July 1,2016 and
the same was again shifted to 1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
(East), Mumbai — 400 051 with effect from February 16, 2017. The equity shares of the Demerged Company
are listed on the BSE Limited (“BSE”) and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE") (“Stock
Exchanges”).

The main object clause of the Demerged Company was substituted pursuant to the Composite Scheme of
Amalgamation and Arrangement amongst Vyline Glass Works Limited and Fennel Investment and Finance
Private Limited and Gujarat Borosil Limited and Borosil Glass Works Limited and Borosil Limited, approved
by shareholders of the Demerged Company at their meeting held on May 15, 2019 and sanctioned by
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide its Order dated January 15, 2020. The
amendment to main object clause of the Demerged Company was registered by the Registrar of Companies,
Mumbai vide its certificate dated February 25, 2020. The main objects of the Demerged Company have
been reproduced below:

1) To do business as manufacturers and importers of, and wholesale dealers in, and retailers or dealers of,
scientific and laboratory glasswares, pharmaceutical glassware, industrial glassware, pressed glassware,
Oven glasswares, HPLC vials, Liquid Handling Systems, Bench Top Equipment of all varieties and
description, and any material or product which can or may be used as a substitute for glass and of all
varieties and descriptions of products, materials, instruments, apparatuses made from borosilicate glasses
and / or other varieties of glass or any material and product which can or may be used as a substitute for
glass, and all products of which glass forms a part.
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(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

2)  Tocarryonin India or elsewhere the business to manufacture, buy, sell, repair, alter, improve, exchange,
let out on hire, import, export and deal in all microwavable and flameproof kitchenware, glass tumblers,
storage, tableware and kitchen appliances, earthenware, terracotta, bottles, flasks, utensils, other
appliances, non-stick cookware with teflon coating , hard anodized and die cast, pressure cookers both
aluminium and stainless steel, and stainless steel pots and pans, articles and things capable of being used
in household, opal glass tableware, stainless steel server, ceramic tableware, brass & wooden accessories,
ceramic refractory, sanitary wares, garden wares, kitchen wares, crockeries, potteries, insulators,
terracotta, porcelainware, bathroom, accessories, pipes, wall tiles, floor tiles, roofing tiles, porcelain tiles.

Except as stated above, during the last five years, there has been no change in the main object clause of the
Demerged Company.

The Demerged Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of scientific and
industrial products and consumer products.

The share capital of the Demerged Company as on December 31, 2022 was as follows:

Particulars Amountin INR
Authorised Share Capital
27,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1 each 27,00,00,000
2,80,00,000 preference shares of INR 10 each 28,00,00,000
Total 55,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
11,43,79,297 Equity shares of INR 1 each, fully paid up
Total

11,43,79,297
11,43,79,297

The latest annual financial statements of the Demerged Company have been audited for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2022. The unaudited standalone and consolidated financial results (limited reviewed)
of the Demerged Company for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022 are appended as
‘Annexure II'.

The details of Promoters and Directors of the Demerged Company as on December 31, 2022 along with
their addresses are mentioned herein below:

Promoter / promoter group details

Name Category Address

Mr. P. K. Kheruka Promoter 410, Samudra Mahal, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018

Mr. Shreevar Kheruka Promoter 410, Samudra Mahal, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018

Mrs. Kiran Kheruka Promoter Group |410, Samudra Mahal, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018

Mrs. Rekha Kheruka Promoter Group | 410, Samudra Mahal, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,

Mumbai - 400018

Croton Trading Private
Limited

Promoter Group

B-3 / 3 Gillander House, 8, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata -
700001

Gujarat Fusion Glass LLP

Promoter Group

1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400051

Sonargaon
LLP

Properties

Promoter Group

B-3 / 3 Gillander Subhas Road,
Kolkata — 700001

House, 8, Netaji

Borosil Holdings LLP

Promoter Group

B-3 / 3 Gillander
Kolkata — 700001

House, 8, Netaji Subhas Road,

Spartan Trade Holdings
LLP

Promoter Group

B-3 / 3 Gillander House, 8, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata —
700001

Associated Fabricators
LLP

Promoter Group

B-3 / 3 Gillander House, 8, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata -
700001
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B.

Details of Directors

Name Category / Address
Designation

Mr. P. K. Kheruka Chairman 410, Samudra Mahal, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai
-400018

Mr. Shreevar Managing Director & | 410,Samudra Mahal, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai

Kheruka CEO -400018

Mr. Rajesh Kumar | Whole-time Director | C/1001, Ekta Meadows, BHD Siddharth Nagar, Borivali

Chaudhary (East), Mumbai - 400066

Mr. Naveen Kumar | Independent Director | 1101, B-Wing, 11th Floor, Lodha Bellissimo, Apollo Mills

Kshatriya Compound, N.M. Joshi Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400
011

Mrs. Anupa Sahney | Independent Director | 6, Manavi Apartment, 36, Ridge Road, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai - 400 006

Mr. Kewal Handa Independent Director | Flat no. 901, Nair House, 9th floor, 14th B. Road, Behind
Mahavir Hospital, Khar (West), Mumbai - 400 052

Mr. Kanwar Bir Independent Director | 3601, 36th Floor, Island City Center One, G.D. Ambekar

Singh Anand Marg, Dadar East, Mumbai - 400014

Particulars of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company/ Company (Klass Pack Limited)

(i)

(i)

Klass Pack Limited is a public company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.The
registered office of the Company is situated at 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp.
MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India. The Company
is accordingly registered with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, having Corporate Identity Number
(CIN) U74999MH1991PLC061851. Its Permanent Account Number with the Income Tax Department
is AAACK1797R. The email address of the Company is kpl.secretarial@borosil.com. The Company was
incorporated on May 29, 1991 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 under the name of ‘Klass
Pack Private Limited" A certificate of incorporation was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The
name of ‘Klass Pack Private Limited’ was changed to ‘Klass Pack Limited’ upon conversion of the company
from private limited to public limited on June 19, 2018. A certificate of incorporation upon conversion from
private company to public company was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The registered
office of the Company was shifted from H- 27, MIDC Area Ambad, Nasik, Maharashtra- 422 010 to 1101,
11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai
—400 051, Maharashtra with effect from February 07, 2022. The equity shares of the Company are not listed
on any Stock Exchanges.

The main objects of the Company was substituted pursuant to the Special Resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on February 07, 2022. The
said amendment to main objects clause was registered by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai vide its
certificate dated March 09, 2022. The main objects of the Company have been reproduced below :

1. To do business as manufacturers and importers of, and wholesale dealers in, and retailers or dealers of,
scientific and laboratory glasswares, pharmaceutical glassware, industrial glassware, pressed glassware,
Oven glasswares, HPLC vials, Liquid Handling Systems, Bench Top Equipment, pre-filled syringes, weighing
balance, filter paper, plasticware, molded glassware of all varieties and description, and any material
or product which can or may be used as a substitute for glass and of all varieties and descriptions of
products, materials, instruments, laboratory Instruments, apparatuses, laboratory furniture, equipment
solar collectors and other products made from borosilicate glasses and / or other varieties of glass used in
laboratories, industries, households, educational, research and healthcare institutes or any material and
product which can or may be used as a substitute for glass, and all products of which glass forms a part.

2. To carry on the business of manufacturing, processing, pressing, moulding, melting, assembling,
coating, printing, filling, exporting, importing, buying, selling, dealing as agents, distributors, dealers of
pharmaceutical primary tubular glass packaging ampoules and vials, injection vial seals, seals, droppers,
laboratory testing tubes, closures, cans, containers, packaging materials, pilfer proof caps, screw caps,
twist caps, crown caps, caps, plastic moulded items, rubber stoppers, rubber moulded items, glass tubes,
glass bottles, glass items, and every kind of sealing, closing, capping, packaging made of any material
such as glass, aluminium sheets, foils, tin coated sheets, metals, plastics, rubber, PVC sheets, synthetic
materials, chemicals, cork sheets, paper, board, gum, fiber, films, closures whether made from plastic or
Teflon or rubber or PTFE or any other material, wood and filling & packaging of pharmaceutical products.
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Except as stated above, during the last five years, there has been no change in the main object clause of the

Resulting Company.

The Company is engaged in the manufacture and supply of pharmaceutical vials and ampoules to the
pharmaceutical industry for over 15 years and has its manufacturing facilities at Nashik, Maharashtra.

The share capital of the Company as on December 31, 2022 was as follows:

Particulars Amountin INR
Authorised Share Capital
20,00,000 equity shares of INR 100 each 20,00,00,000
Total 20,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
16,32,949 equity shares of INR 100 each, fully paid up 16,32,94,900
Total 16,32,94,900

The latest annual financial statements of the Company have been audited for the financial year ended
on March 31, 2022. The Audited Condensed Financial Statements of the Company for the half year ended
September 30, 2022 is appended as ‘Annexure III’

The details of Promoters and Directors of the Company as on December 31,2022 along with their addresses
are mentioned herein below:

Promoter details
Name Category Address
Borosil Limited Promoter 1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051
Mr. Prashant Amin Promoter Durgaprasad Bunglow No. 6, Pumping Station Road,
Gangapur Road, Nashik — 422013
Mr. Gangadhar Amin Promoter Durgaprasad Bunglow No. 6, Pumping Station Road,
Gangapur Road, Nashik - 422013
Mrs. Pramila Amin Promoter Durgaprasad Bunglow No. 6, Pumping Station Road,
Gangapur Road, Nashik — 422013
Mrs. Shweta Amin Promoter Durgaprasad Bunglow No. 6, Pumping Station Road,
Gangapur Road, Nashik - 422013
Mr. Pravesh Amin Promoter Durgaprasad Bunglow No. 6, Pumping Station Road,
Gangapur Road, Nashik - 422013
Shiv Ganga Caterers | Promoter Hotel Shivsagar, Shree Mangal Aprt, Nr. Grand Ashwin
Private Limited Hotel, Agra road, Ashwin Nagar, Nashik - 422009
Details of Directors
Name Category / Address
Designation
Mr. Shreevar Kheruka Chairman 410, Samudra Mahal, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai
-400018
Mr. P. K. Kheruka Director 410, Samudra Mahal, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai
-400018
Mr. Vinayak Patankar Director C-1/403, Vedant Complex, Pokharan Road No. 1,
Vartaknagar, Jakegram, Thane — 400606
Mr. Prashant Amin Managing Durgaprasad Bunglow No. 6, Pumping Station Road,
Director Gangapur Road, Nashik - 422013
Mrs. Shweta Amin Whole Time Durgaprasad Bunglow No. 6, Pumping Station Road,
Director Gangapur Road, Nashik - 422013
Mr. Raj Kumar Jain Independent Abrol Vastu Park, Flat No. 1601, A-Wing, Off. Linking Road,
Director Uma Nagar, Malad (West), Mumbai - 400 064
Mr. Rahul Dev Independent F/702, Alder Wing B, Forest Castle, 81/1 Mundhawa Road,
Director Opp. Marriott Suites Mundhawa, Pune - 411 036
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C

Particulars of the Transferor Company (Borosil Technologies Limited)

(i)

(vi)

Borosil Technologies Limited is a public company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956.Theregistered office of the Transferor Company is situated at 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot
No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India. The
Transferor Company is accordingly registered with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, having Corporate
Identity Number (CIN) U36999MH2009PLC197226. Its Permanent Account Number with the Income Tax
Department is AADCB9364L. The email address of the Transferor Company is btl.secretarial@borosil.com.
The Transferor Company was incorporated on November 23, 2009, under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 under the name‘Borosil Glass Limited" A certificate of incorporation was issued by the Registrar of
Companies, Mumbai. This name ‘Borosil Glass Limited’ was subsequently changed to ‘Borosil Technologies
Limited’ on March 15, 2018. A certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name was issued
by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The registered office of the Transferor Company was shifted from
Khanna Construction House 44, Dr. R.G. Thadani Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400018, Maharashtra to 1101,
11" Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra with effect from April 30, 2018. The equity shares of the Transferor
Company are not listed on any Stock Exchanges.

During the last five years, there has been no change in the object clause of the Transferor Company. The
main objects of the Transferor Company are reproduced below:

To carry on business of manufacturers, producers, exporters, importers, traders, distributors, buyers, sellers,
agents, merchants, retailers and dealers of all types of glass and glassware, apparatus, equipment, instruments,
solar collectors, ware and other products used in the laboratories, industries, households, educational, research
and healthcare institutes.

The Transferor Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of scientific instruments.

The share capital of the Transferor Company as on December 31, 2022 was as follows:

Particulars Amountin INR
Authorised Share Capital
1,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 10,00,00,000
Total 10,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
95,84,043 equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 9,58,40,430
Total 9,58,40,430

The latest annual financial statements of the Transferor Company have been audited for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2022. The Audited Condensed Financial Statements of the Transferor Company for the
half year ended September 30, 2022 is appended as ‘Annexure IV,

The details of Promoters and Directors of the Transferor Company as on December 31, 2022 along with
their addresses are mentioned herein below:

Promoter details

Name Category Address

Borosil Limited Promoter 1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400051

Details of Directors

Name Category / Address
Designation

Mr.  Sreejith  Kumar | Whole Time | Palekudy House, Ambalanada Chengal, Kaladi .PO,

Palekudy Sukumaran Director Ernakulam, Kalady, Kalady, Ernakulam, Aluva, Kerala,
683574

Mr. Rajesh Kumar | Director C/1001, Ekta Meadows, BHD Siddharth Nagar, Borivali

Chaudhary (East), Mumbai - 400066

Mr. Vinayak Patankar Director C-1/403, Vedant Complex, Pokharan Road No. 1,

Vartaknagar, Jakegram, Thane — 400606
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VI.

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME

The salient features of the Scheme are, inter-alia, as stated below. The capitalized terms used herein shall have the
same meaning as ascribed to them in Clause B(1) of the Scheme:

A.

The Scheme provides for
(i) reduction and reorganisation of share capital of the Company;

(ii)  the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from the
Demerged Company into the Company on a going concern basis, the consequent issue of shares by the
Company and reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-up share capital of the Company held by the
Demerged Company; and

(iii) the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Company.

The ‘Appointed Date’ of the Scheme shall be April 1, 2022 or such other date as may be agreed by the Board
of the Parties and ‘Effective Date’is the date on which last of the conditions specified in Clause 28 (Conditions
Precedent) of the Scheme are complied with or waived, as applicable; and

The Scheme, as may be approved or imposed or directed by the Tribunal shall become effective from the
Appointed Date but shall be operative from the Effective Date.

Consideration/ share entitlement ratio for demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as
defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged Company into the Company:

The Company shall, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to the shareholders of the Demerged Company
whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of the depository as members of the Demerged
Company as on the Record Date, as under:

“3 (Three) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company (post proposed re-organisation of
share capital) credited as fully paid up, for every 4 (Four) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Demerged
Company”.

Consideration/ share entitlement ratio for amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Company:

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from the
Demerged Company into the Company, the Transferor Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and the entire paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company will be held by the Company.
Accordingly, upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Company, there shall be no issue of shares
as consideration for the said amalgamation and all equity shares of the Transferor Company held by the Company
along with its nominees, shall stand cancelled.

Listing of Equity Shares of the Company pursuant to the Scheme

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, pursuant to the Scheme and subject to the applicable laws and receipt
of requisite approvals, the equity shares of the Company will be listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Dissolution of the Transferor Company pursuant to the Scheme

Upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Company, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved
without winding up. On and from the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), the name of the Transferor
Company shall be struck off from the records of the concerned Registrar of Companies.

Note: The above details are the salient features of the Scheme. The unsecured creditors are requested to read
the entire text of the Scheme annexed hereto to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.

RELATIONSHIP SUBSISTING BETWEEN PARTIES TO THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company holds 82.49% of the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Company.The
Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.
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VIL.

VIII.

BOARD APPROVALS

A.

B.

C

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company at its Board Meeting held on February 07, 2022, by resolution
passed unanimously approved the Scheme, as detailed below:

Name of Director Voted in favour/ against/ did not participate or vote
Mr. P. K. Kheruka In favour
Mr. Shreevar Kheruka In favour
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary In favour
Mrs. Anupa Sahney In favour
Mr. Kanwar Bir Singh Anand In favour
Mr. Kewal Handa In favour
Mr. Naveen Kumar Kshatriya In favour

The Board of Directors of the Company at its Board Meeting held on February 07, 2022 by resolution passed
unanimously approved the Scheme, as detailed below:

Name of Director Voted in favour/ against/ did not participate or vote
Mr. P. K. Kheruka In favour
Mr. Shreevar Kheruka In favour
Mr. Vinayak Patankar In favour
Mr. Prashant Amin In favour
Mrs. Shweta Amin In favour
Mr. Raj Kumar Jain In favour

Leave of absence was granted to Mr. Rahul Dev for the above Board Meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at its Board Meeting held on February 07, 2022 by resolution
passed unanimously approved the Scheme, as detailed below:

Name of Director Voted in favour/ against/ did not participate or vote
Mr. Sreejith Kumar Palekudy Sukumaran In favour
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary In favour
Mr. Vinayak Patankar In favour

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs) AND THEIR RELATIVES

A.

None of the Directors, KMPs of the Demerged Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act
and rules framed thereunder) has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the
Demerged Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the KMPs or their respective relatives
has any material interest in the Scheme. The Demerged Company has not issued any debentures and hence,
does not have Debenture Trustee.

None of the Directors, KMPs of the Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules
framed thereunder) has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the Demerged
Company and / or Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the KMPs or their respective
relatives has any material interest in the Scheme. The Company has not issued any debentures and hence, does
not have Debenture Trustee.

None of the Directors, KMPs of the Transferor Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act
and rules framed thereunder) has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the
Demerged Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the KMPs or their respective relatives
has any material interest in the Scheme. The Transferor Company has not issued any debentures and hence, does
not have Debenture Trustee.

15



EFFECT OF SCHEME ON STAKEHOLDERS.

The effect of the Scheme on various stakeholders is summarised below:

A.

Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoter and Non-Promoter Shareholders

The effect of the Scheme on the shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoter and non-promoter
shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Company and the Transferor Company are appended in the
attached reports i.e. ‘"Annexure V, Annexure VI and Annexure VII', respectively, adopted by the respective
Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, the Company and the Transferor Company, respectively, at their
meeting held on February 07, 2022, pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

Directors

(i)  No change in the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Company is envisaged pursuant
to the Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Transferor Company will be dissolved without winding up.
Therefore, the office of the existing non-executive directors will cease on dissolution of the Transferor
Company and the existing executive director of the Transferor Company will become employee of the
Company.

(i) Itisclarified that the composition of the Board of Directors of the companies may change by appointments,
retirements or resignations or to ensure compliance of the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations
and Memorandum and Articles of Association of such companies but the Scheme itself does not affect the
office of Directors of such companies.

Employees

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company will engage, without any interruption in service, all employees engaged
in or in relation to the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company, on the terms and conditions not less
favourable than those on which they are engaged by the Demerged Company. Apart from the above, employees
engaged in the Demerged Company and the Company will continue to be employees of the Demerged
Company and the Company, respectively, on the same terms and conditions, as before. Further, all employees of
the Transferor Company shall become employees of the Company, without any interruption in service, on terms
and conditions no less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the Transferor Company.

Creditors

Pursuant to the Scheme, creditors of the Demerged Company forming part of the Demerged Undertaking will
become creditors of the Company. The Company undertakes to meet, discharge and satisfy the same in terms of
their respective terms and conditions, if any. Apart from the above, the creditors of the Demerged Company and
the Company will continue to be creditors of the Demerged Company and the Company, respectively.

Further, pursuant to the Scheme, all creditors of the Transferor Company will become creditors of the Company.

The rights of the respective creditors of the Demerged Company, Company and Transferor Company shall not
be impacted pursuant to the Scheme and there will be no reduction in their claims on account of the Scheme.
The creditors of the Demerged Company, the Company and Transferor Company would not be prejudiced in any
manner as a result of the Scheme being sanctioned.

Debenture holders and Debenture Trustees

The Demerged Company, the Company and the Transferor Company have not issued any debentures and
accordingly have not appointed any debenture trustee(s).

Depositors and Deposit Trustees

The Demerged Company, the Company and the Transferor Company have not taken any deposits within the
meaning of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and accordingly have not appointed any deposit trustee(s).

NO INVESTIGATION PROCEEDINGS

There are no proceedings pending under Sections 210 to 227 of the Act against the Demerged Company, the Company
and the Transferor Company.
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XI.

XIl.

XIIl.

XIV.

AMOUNTS DUE TO UNSECURED CREDITORS

The amount due to unsecured creditors by the respective companies, as on November 30, 2022 is as follows:

Sl. No. Particulars Amount in INR
1. Borosil Limited 60,49,22,918
2. Klass Pack Limited 12,39,11,218
3. Borosil Technologies Limited 6,33,23,500

DETAILS OF CAPITAL OR DEBT RESTRUCTURING, IF ANY

A.

With effect from the Effective Date, the face value of the equity shares of the Company shall be reduced from
INR 100 each to INR 10 each such that, the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Company is
reduced from the present sum of INR 16,32,94,900 divided into 16,32,949 equity shares of INR 100 each fully paid
to INR 1,63,29,490 divided into 16,32,949 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up.

Immediately, upon reduction of the face value of the equity shares of the Company as above, every 1 equity
share of the Company of face value of INR 10 each shall be further split into 10 equity shares of INR 1 each, such
that the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Company shall be INR 1,63,29,490 divided into
1,63,29,490 equity shares of INR 1 each fully paid up.

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company into the
Company, the Company shall, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of the depository as members of the
Demerged Company as on the Record Date, as under:

“3 (Three) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company (post proposed re-organisation of
share capital) credited as fully paid up, for every 4 (Four) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Demerged
Company”.

Upon demerger of the Demerged Undertaking and allotment of New Equity Shares by the Company, the entire
paid-up equity share capital of the Company held by the Demerged Company shall stand cancelled and the
issued, subscribed and paid up equity capital of the Company to that effect shall stand cancelled and reduced.

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company into
the Company, the Transferor Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the entire
paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company will be held by the Company. Accordingly, upon amalgamation
of the Transferor Company with the Company, there shall be no issue of shares as consideration for the said
amalgamation and all equity shares of the Transferor Company held by the Company along with its nominees,
shall stand cancelled.

The Scheme does not involve any debt restructuring and therefore the requirement to disclose details of debt
restructuring is not applicable.

VALUATION REPORT AND FAIRNESS OPINION

A.

A copy of the share entitlement ratio report dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 128851W) (Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126), Registered Valuer
(“Share Entitlement Ratio Report”), in connection with the Scheme is appended as‘Annexure VIII'.

A copy of the fairness opinion report dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. Keynote Financial Services Limited,
an Independent SEBI Registered Merchant Banker, confirming that the Share Entitlement Ratio is fair and proper
is appended as‘Annexure IX'.

INFORMATION PERTAINING TO UNLISTED COMPANIES INVOLVED IN THE SCHEME IN THE FORMAT SPECIFIED
FOR ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS

Information pertaining to the unlisted companies involved in the Scheme, i.e. the Company and the Transferor
Company in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/
CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 04, 2022 read with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 along with certificates issued by M/s. Keynote Financial Services
Limited, an Independent SEBI Registered Merchant Banker certifying the adequacy of disclosures are appended as
Annexure X and Annexure Xl respectively.
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XV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

A.  The pre/ post-scheme shareholding pattern of the parties to the Scheme:

(i)

(iii)

Demerged Company

data as on December 31, 2022):

The pre & post scheme shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company is as follows (based on shareholding

Category Pre Post (Indicative)*
No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
(Face value - shareholding (Face value - shareholding
INR 1 each) INR 1 each)
Promoter / promoter group 8,04,10,776 70.30 8,04,10,776 70.30
Public 3,39,68,521 29.70 3,39,68,521 29.70
Custodian - - - -
Total 11,43,79,297 100.00 11,43,79,297 100.00

*There will be no change in the post scheme shareholding pattern, pursuant to the Scheme

Company

The pre & post scheme shareholding pattern of the Company is as follows (based on shareholding data of

the Company and the Demerged Company as on December 31, 2022):

Category Pre Post (Indicative)
No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
(Face value - shareholding (Face value - shareholding
INR 100 each) INR 1 each)
Promoter / promoter group 16,32,949 100.00 6,03,08,078 68.03
Public - - 2,83,36,215 31.97
Custodian - - - -
Total 16,32,949 100.00 8,86,44,293 100.00
Transferor Company

The pre & post scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company is as follows (based on shareholding

data as on December 31, 2022):

Category Pre Post
No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
(Face value - shareholding shareholding
INR 10 each)
Promoter 95,84,043* 100.00* Not applicable
Public - - | Post Scheme, Transferor Company
Custodian - - | will be dissolved without winding
Total 95,84,043 100.00 up-

*Includes 6 nominee individual shareholders holding 1 equity share each on behalf of Borosil Limited.
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B.  Pre/ post Scheme capital structure of the Demerged Company, the Company and the Transferor Company.
(i) Demerged Company

The pre-scheme capital structure of the Demerged Company is given in Paragraph IV.A(v) above. The post
scheme indicative capital structure of the Demerged Company will be as follows:

Particulars Amount in Rs.

(Based on shareholding data as on December 31, 2022)

Authorised Share Capital

27,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1 each 27,00,00,000
2,80,00,000 preference shares of INR 10 each 28,00,00,000
Total 55,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

11,43,79,297 equity shares of INR 1 each, fully paid up 11,43,79,297
Total 11,43,79,297

Note - There will be no change in the post scheme capital structure, pursuant to the Scheme
(i) Company

The pre-scheme capital structure of the Company is given in Paragraph IV.B.(v) above. The post scheme
indicative capital structure of the Company will be as follows:

Particulars Amount in Rs.

(Based on shareholding data of the Company, Demerged Company and the Transferor
Company as on December 31, 2022)

Authorised Share Capital
30,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1 each 30,00,00,000
Total 30,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

8,86,44,293 equity shares of INR 1 each, fully paid up 8,86,44,293
Total 8,86,44,293

(iii) Transferor Company

The pre-scheme capital structure of the Transferor Company is given in Paragraph IV.C.(iv) above. Post-
scheme capital structure of the Transferor Company is not applicable as the Transferor Company will be
dissolved without winding up pursuant to the Scheme.

XVI. AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CONFORMITY OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE SCHEME WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The respective Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company and the Company have confirmed that the accounting
treatment in the Scheme s in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

XVII. APPROVALS AND INTIMATIONS IN RELATION TO THE SCHEME

A. Interms of Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/
CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 (“SEBI Master Circular”), BSE and NSE, by their respective
Observation Letters dated August 01, 2022, have conveyed “no adverse observations/ no-objection” on the
Scheme. Copies of the said letters issued by BSE and NSE are appended hereto as Annexure Xll and XIII
respectively. Further, in terms of the said SEBI Master Circular, the Demerged Company has not received any
complaint relating to the Scheme and “NIL" complaints reports were filed by the Demerged Company with BSE
and NSE, copies of which are appended hereto as‘Annexure XIV and Annexure XV. As per the requirements of
above Observation Letters, details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution initiated, and
all other enforcement action taken against the Demerged Company, its promoters and directors are appended
hereto as Annexure XVI.
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A copy of the Scheme has been filed by the Demerged Company, the Company and the Transferor Company
with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

The notice of the Meeting along with the copy of the Scheme in the prescribed form, will be served on all
concerned authorities in terms of the Tribunal Order.

All approvals as stated in Clause 28 (Conditions Precedent) of the Scheme, in order to give effect to the Scheme
will be obtained. Additionally, the Demerged Company, the Company and the Transferor Company will obtain
such approvals / sanctions / no objection(s) from the regulatory or other governmental authorities in respect of
the Scheme in accordance with law, as may be required.

XVIIl. INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

In addition to the documents appended hereto, the electronic copy of following documents will be available for
inspection in the investors section of the website of the Demerged Company at www.borosil.com:

A.
B.
C

Copy of the Tribunal Order
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Demerged Company, the Company and the Transferor Company

Audited Standalone and Consolidated financial statements of the Demerged Company for the year ended
March 31,2022

Standalone and Consolidated unaudited financial results (limited reviewed) of the Demerged Company for the
quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022

Audited financial statements of the Company and the Transferor Company for the year ended March 31, 2022

Audited Condensed Financial Statements of the Company and the Transferor Company for the half year ended
September 30, 2022

Copy of the Scheme

Certificate of the Statutory Auditor of the Demerged Company and the Company, confirming that the accounting
treatment prescribed under the Scheme is in compliance with Section 133 of the Act and other Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India

All other documents displayed on Demerged Company’s website i.e., www.borosil.com in terms of the SEBI
Master Circular.

Based on the above and considering the rationale and benefits, in the opinion of the Board, the Scheme will be of
advantage to, beneficial and in the interest of the Company, its shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders and the
terms thereof are fair and reasonable. The Board of Directors of the Company recommend the Scheme for approval of
the unsecured creditors.

sd/-
Raj Kumar Jain
Chairperson appointed by the Tribunal for the Meeting

Mumbai, Wednesday, January 4, 2023

Registered Office:

1101, 11* Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India

CIN: U74999MH1991PLC061851

E-mail: kpl.secretarial@borosil.com

Tel.: 022-6740 6300
Fax: 022-6740 6514
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ANNEXUREI

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AMONGST
BOROSIL LIMITED
AND
KLASS PACK LIMITED
AND
BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
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(ii)

(iii)

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

Borosil Limited (“Demerged Company”) is a public company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Demerged Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and trading of scientific and industrial products and consumer products. The
equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Klass Pack Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company”) is a public company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Resulting Company is
engaged in the manufacture and supply of pharmaceutical vials and ampoules to the
pharmaceutical industry for over 15 years and has its manufacturing facilities at Nashik,
Maharashtra. The Demerged Company holds 82.49% of the issued, subscribed and paid up
equity share capital of the Resulting Company.

Borosil Technologies Limited (“Transferor Company”) is a public company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Transferor Company is engaged in the
business of manufacturing of scientific instruments. The Transferor Company is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

PREMABLE

This Scheme (as defined hereinafter) is presented under Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act (as defined hereinafter) read with Section 2(1B), Section
2(19AA) and other applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act (as defined hereinafter) and
provides for the following:

(i) reduction and reorganisation of share capital of the Resulting Company;

(ii) the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined
hereinafter) from the Demerged Company (as defined hereinafter) into the Resulting
Company (as defined hereinafter) on a going concern basis, the consequent issue of
shares by the Resulting Company and reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-
up share capital of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company; and

(iii) the amalgamation of the Transferor Company (as defined hereinafter) with the
Transferee Company (as defined hereinafter).

This Scheme also provides for various other matters consequent and incidental thereto.
RATIONALE FOR THIS SCHEME

Given its diversified business, it has become imperative for the Demerged Company to
reorient and reorganize itself in a manner that allows imparting greater focus on each of its
businesses. With this repositioning, the Demerged Company is desirous of enhancing its

operational efficiency while it continues with its consumer products business.

The proposed demerger pursuant to this Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following
benefits:

(i) value unlocking of scientific and industrial products business with ability to achieve
valuation based on respective-risk return profile and cash flows;
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(ii) attracting business specific investors and potential strategic partners and providing
better flexibility in accessing capital, focused strategy and specialisation for sustained
growth and thereby enable de-leveraging of the respective businesses in the longer-
term;

(iii) segregation and unbundling of the scientific and industrial products business of the
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, will enable enhanced focus on the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for exploring opportunities in their
respective business domains; and

(iv) focused management approach for pursuing the growth in the respective business’
verticals and de-risk the businesses from each other.

As part of the restructuring exercise, it is proposed to consolidate the resources of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. The said amalgamation will result in the
following benefits:

(i) Streamline the corporate structure and consolidation of resources within the
Transferee Company leading to greater synergies and operational synergy;

(ii) Opportunities for employees of the Transferor Company to grow in a wider field of
business;

(iii) Optimal utilisation of resources and better management and administration; and

(iv) Reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal and

regulatory compliances.

In order to achieve an optimum equity share capital base which will commensurate with
business activities of the Resulting Company subsequent to the demerger and merger as
stated above, it is proposed to reduce the face value of the equity shares and reorganise the
equity share capital of the Resulting Company prior to the said demerger and merger.

The proposed restructuring is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees, and
other stakeholders of the Parties.

PARTS OF THIS SCHEME
This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

(i) PART | deals with the definitions, share capital and date of taking effect and
implementation of this Scheme;

(ii) Part Il deals with reduction and reorganisation of the equity share capital of the
Resulting Company;

(iii) PART lll deals with the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
(as defined hereinafter) from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on
a going concern basis, the consequent issue of shares by the Resulting Company and
reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-up equity share capital of the Resulting
Company held by the Demerged Company;

(iv) PART IV deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
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Company; and

(v) PART V deals with the general terms and conditions that would be applicable to this
Scheme.

PART |

DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context thereof: (i) capitalised terms
defined by inclusion in quotations and/ or parenthesis have the meanings so ascribed; (ii) all
terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall have the meaning ascribed to them under
the relevant Applicable Law (as defined hereinafter); and (iii) the following expressions shall
have the meanings ascribed hereunder:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder;

“Appointed Date” means the 1 April 2022 or such other date as may be decided by the Board
of the Parties;

“Applicable Law” means any applicable central, provincial, local or other law including all
applicable provisions of all: (a) constitutions, decrees, treaties, statutes, laws (including the
common law), codes, notifications, rules, regulations, policies, guidelines, circulars, directions,
directives, ordinances or orders of any Appropriate Authority, statutory authority, court,
tribunal having jurisdiction over the Parties; (b) Permits; and (c) orders, decisions, injunctions,
judgments, awards and decrees of or agreements with any Appropriate Authority having
jurisdiction over the Parties as may be in force from time to time;

“Appropriate Authority” means:

(i) the government of any jurisdiction (including any central, State, municipal or local
government or any political or administrative subdivision thereof) and any
department, ministry, agency, instrumentality, court, central bank, commission or
other authority thereof;

(i) any public international organisation or supranational body and its institutions,
departments, agencies and instrumentalities;

(iii) any governmental, quasi-governmental or private body or agency lawfully exercising,
or entitled to exercise, any administrative, executive, judicial, legislative, regulatory,
licensing, competition, tax, importing or other governmental or quasi-governmental
authority including (without limitation), SEBI, the Tribunal; and

(iv) Stock Exchanges.

“BL ESOP” means (i) Borosil Limited — Special Purpose Employee Stock Option Plan 2020; and
(ii) Borosil Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020, framed by the Demerged Company
under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and as amended from time
to time;
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“Board” in relation to each of the Parties, means the board of directors of such Party, and
shall include a committee of directors or any person authorized by the board of directors or
such committee of directors duly constituted and authorized for the purposes of matters
pertaining to this Scheme or any other matter relating thereto;

“Demerged Company” means Borosil Limited, a public company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its Corporate Identity Number
L36100MH2010PLC292722 and registered office at 1101, 11*" Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot
No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051,
Maharashtra;

“Demerged Undertaking” shall mean entire activities, business, operations and undertakings
of the Demerged Company forming part of the Scientific and Industrial Products Business
(including investments in the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company), as on the
Appointed Date, and shall include (without limitation):

(i) all the properties (whether movable or immovable) of the Scientific and Industrial
Products Business, wherever situated, including all computers and accessories,
software and related data, plant and machinery, capital work in progress, vehicles,
furniture, fixtures, office equipment, electricals, appliances, accessories, pertaining to
or relatable to the Scientific and Industrial Products Business;

(ii) all brands, trademarks, logos, trade and corporate name and intellectual property
rights exclusive to the Scientific and Industrial Products Business;

(iii) all rights (including management rights towards funds and carry rights) and licenses,
all assignments and grants thereof, all Permits, clearances and registrations whether
under central, state or other laws, rights (including rights/ obligations under
agreement(s) entered into with various persons including independent consultants,
subsidiaries/ associate companies and other shareholders of such subsidiary/
associate/ joint venture companies, contracts, applications, letters of intent,
memorandum of understandings or any other contracts), rights of commercial nature
including attached goodwill, non-disposal undertakings, certifications and approvals,
regulatory approvals, entitlements, other licenses, consents, investments (including
investments in the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company) and/ or interest
(whether vested, contingent or otherwise), taxes, share of tax deducted at source and
minimum alternate tax credits (including but not limited to credits in respect of sales
tax, value added tax, service tax, goods and services tax, and other indirect taxes),
deferred tax benefits and other benefits in respect of the Scientific and Industrial
Products Business, tax losses, if any, cash balances, bank accounts and bank balances,
deposits, advances, recoverables, receivables, easements, advantages, financial
assets, treasury investments, hire purchase and lease arrangement, funds belonging
to or proposed to be utilised for the Scientific and Industrial Products Business,
privileges, all other claims, rights and benefits, powers and facilities of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever, utilities, provisions, funds, benefits of all
agreements, contracts and arrangements and all other interests relating to the
Scientific and Industrial Products Business;

(iv) all books, records, files, papers, governance templates and process information,
records of standard operating procedures, computer programmes along with their
licenses, manuals and backup copies, advertising materials, and other data and
records whether in physical or electronic form, directly or indirectly in connection

25



with or relating to the Scientific and Industrial Products Business;

(v) all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements, distributor
agreements, sub advisory arrangements and other instruments, permits, rights,
entitlements, leases/ licenses, operation and maintenance contracts, memorandum
of understanding, memorandum of agreements, memorandum of agreed points,
letters of intent, hire and purchase agreements, tenancy rights, equipment purchase
agreement, POA (power of attorney) and other agreement and/or arrangement, as
amended and restated from time to time, whether executed with customers,
suppliers, contractors, lessors, licensors, consultants, advisors or otherwise, which
pertains to the Scientific and Industrial Products Business;

(vi) any and all earnest monies and/ or security deposits, or other entitlements in
connection with or relating to the Scientific and Industrial Products Business;

(vii) all employees of the Demerged Company that are determined by the Board of the
Demerged Company to be substantially engaged in, or in relation to, the Scientific and
Industrial Products Business, on the date immediately preceding the Effective Date;

(viii)  all liabilities present and future, corporate guarantees issued and the contingent
liabilities pertaining or relatable to the Scientific and Industrial Products Business,

namely:

(a) the debts of the Demerged Company which arises out of the activities or
operations of the Scientific and Industrial Products Business;

(b) specific loans and borrowings raised, incurred and utilised by the Demerged
Company for the activities or operations of or pertaining to the Scientific and
Industrial Products Business; and

(c) general or multipurpose borrowings, if any, of the Demerged Company will
be apportioned basis the proportion of the value of the assets transferred as
part of Scientific and Industrial Products Business to the total value of the
assets of the Demerged Company immediately prior to the Appointed Date.

(ix) funds required to incur capital expenditure in respect of tubing furnace as approved

by the Board of the Demerged Company;

(x) entire experience, credentials, past record and market share of the Demerged
Company pertaining to the Scientific and Industrial Products Business;

(xi) All reserves relating to the Scientific and Industrial Products Business as identified by
the Board of the Demerged Company; and

(xii) all legal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature, by or against the Demerged
Company pending as on the Effective Date and relating to the Scientific and Industrial
Products Business.

It is clarified that the question of whether a specified asset (including investments or surplus

funds) or liability pertains to or does not pertain to the Demerged Undertaking shall be
decided mutually by the Board of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

26



“Effective Date” means the date on which last of the conditions specified in Clause 28
(Conditions Precedent) of this Scheme are complied with or waived, as applicable;

“Encumbrance” means (i) any charge, lien (statutory or other), or mortgage, any easement,
encroachment, right of way, right of first refusal or other encumbrance or security interest
securing any obligation of any Person; (ii) pre-emption right, option, right to acquire, right to
set off or other third party right or claim of any kind, including any restriction on use, voting,
selling, assigning, pledging, hypothecating, or creating a security interest in, place in trust
(voting or otherwise), receipt of income or exercise; or (iii) any equity, assignments
hypothecation, title retention, restriction, power of sale or other type of preferential
arrangements; or (iv) any agreement to create any of the above; the term “Encumber” shall
be construed accordingly;

“INR” means Indian Rupee, the lawful currency of the Republic of India;

“Income Tax Act” means the Income-tax Act, 1961 as may be amended or supplemented from
time to time and shall include any statutory replacement or re-enactment thereof, read
together with all applicable bye-laws, rules, regulations, orders, ordinances, policies,
directions, supplements issued thereunder;

“Parties” shall mean collectively the Demerged Company, Resulting Company/ Transferee
Company and Transferor Company and “Party” shall mean each of them, individually;

"Permits" means all consents, licences, permits, certificates, permissions, authorisations,
rights, clarifications, approvals, clearances, confirmations, declarations, waivers, exemptions,
registrations, filings, whether governmental, statutory, regulatory or otherwise as required
under Applicable Law;

“Person” means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability partnership, a
limited liability company, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an
unincorporated organization or an Appropriate Authority;

“Record Date” means the date to be fixed by the Board of the Demerged Company, in
consultation with the Resulting Company for the purpose of determining the shareholders of
the Demerged Company for issue of the Resulting Company New Equity Shares, pursuant to
this Scheme;

“Remaining Business” means all of the businesses, units, divisions, undertakings, and assets
and liabilities of the Demerged Company, other than the Demerged Undertaking;

“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” means Klass Pack Limited, a public company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its corporate
identity number U74999MH1991PLC061851 and registered office at 1101, 11* Floor,
Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai — 400 051, Maharashtra;

"RoC" means the Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction over the Parties;
“Scheme” means this composite scheme of arrangement, with or without any modification(s);
“Scientific and Industrial Products Business” means the business of the Demerged Company

in relation to manufacturing and trading of scientific and industrial products such as laboratory
glassware, instruments, disposable plastics, liquid handling systems, vials and explosion proof
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1.2

2.1

lighting glassware and other bench top equipment used by the pharmaceutical industry,
research and development, education and healthcare segments of the market and the joint
and inseparable manufacturing facility located at Bharuch which produces scientific &
industrial and consumer products;

“SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India;

“SEBI Circular” means the circular issued by the SEBI, being SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO
/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021, and any amendments
thereof, modifications issued pursuant to regulations 11, 37 and 94 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

“SEBI LODR Regulations” means SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, and any amendments thereof;

“Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
collectively;

“Taxation” or “Tax” or “Taxes” includes all forms of taxes and statutory, governmental, state,
provincial, local governmental or municipal impositions, duties, contributions, taxes under the
Income Tax Act and levies and whether levied by reference to income, profits, book profits,
gains, net wealth, asset values, turnover, added value or otherwise and shall further include
payments in respect of or on account of tax, whether by way of deduction or collection at
source, advance tax, minimum alternate tax or otherwise or attributable directly or primarily
to the Parties or any other Person and all penalties, charges, costs and interest relating
thereto;

“Tax Laws” means all Applicable Laws, acts, rules and regulations dealing with Taxes including
but not limited to the income-tax, wealth tax, sales tax / value added tax, service tax, goods
and services tax, excise duty, customs duty or any other levy of similar nature;

“Transferor Company” means Borosil Technologies Limited a public company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its corporate identification
number U36999MH2009PLC197226 and registered office at 1101, 11 Floor, Crescenzo, G-

block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai —400 051,
Maharashtra; and

"Tribunal" means the Mumbai bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal having
jurisdiction over the Parties.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

1.2.1  words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

1.2.2 headings, sub-headings, titles, sub-titles to clauses, sub-clauses and paragraphs are
for information and convenience only and shall be ignored in construing the same;
and

1.2.3  the words “include” and “including” are to be construed without limitation.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Demerged Company as on 31 January 2022 is as follows:
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2.2

2.3

Particulars INR

Authorised share capital

27,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1 each 27,00,00,000
2,80,00,000 preference shares of INR 10 each 28,00,00,000
Total 55,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

11,41,54,667 equity shares of INR 1 each, fully paid up 11,41,54,667
Total 11,41,54,667

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed
and paid up share capital of the Demerged Company till the date of approval of the Scheme
by the Board of the Demerged Company.

The Demerged Company has outstanding employee stock options under its BL ESOP, the
exercise of which may result in an increase in the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
of the Demerged Company.

The share capital of the Resulting Company as on 31 January 2022 is as follows:

Particulars INR
Authorised share capital
20,00,000 equity shares of INR 100 each 20,00,00,000
Total 20,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
16,32,949 equity shares of INR 100 each, fully paid up 16,32,94,900
Total 16,32,94,900

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed
and paid up share capital of the Resulting Company till the date of approval of the Scheme by
the Board of the Resulting Company. The Demerged Company holds 82.49% of the issued,
subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Resulting Company.

The share capital of the Transferor Company as on 31 January 2022 is as follows:

Particulars INR
Authorised Share Capital
1,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 10,00,00,000
Total 10,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
95,84,043 equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 9,58,40,430
Total 9,58,40,430
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Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed
and paid up share capital of the Transferor Company till the date of approval of the Scheme
by the Board of the Transferor Company. The Transferor Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS SCHEME

This Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) made under Clause
27 of this Scheme, shall become operative from the Effective Date and effective from the
Appointed Date.

PART Il

REDUCTION AND REORGANIZATION OF EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

REDUCTION AND REORGANIZATION OF EQUITY SHARE OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

With effect from the Effective Date, the face value of the equity shares of the Resulting
Company shall be reduced from INR 100 each to INR 10 each such that, the issued, subscribed
and paid up equity share capital of the Resulting Company is reduced from the present sum
of INR 16,32,94,900 divided into 16,32,949 equity shares of INR 100 each fully paid to INR
1,63,29,490 divided into 16,32,949 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up.

Immediately, upon reduction of the face value of the equity shares of the Resulting Company
under Clause 4.1 above, every 1 equity share of the Resulting Company of face value of INR
10 each shall be further split into 10 equity of INR 1 each, such that the issued, subscribed and
paid up equity share capital of the Resulting Company shall be INR 1,63,29,490 divided into
1,63,29,490 equity shares of INR 1 each fully paid up.

The reduction and reorganisation of the share capital of the Resulting Company under
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act shall be effected as an integral part of this Scheme itself.

The reduction and reorganisation of the equity shares of the Resulting Company as stated in
Clause 4.1 and Clause 4.2 above, does not involve any diminution of liability in respect of any
unpaid share capital or payment to any shareholder of any paid-up share capital or payment
in any other form.

Notwithstanding the reduction in the equity share capital of the Resulting Company, the
Resulting Company shall not be required to add ‘And Reduced’ as suffix to its name.

It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resulting Company to the Scheme shall
be deemed to be their consent/ approval also to the alteration of the memorandum and
articles of association of the Resulting Company as may be required under the Act.

PART il
DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING
DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING

Immediately upon effectiveness of Part Il of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed
Date and in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme and pursuant to Sections 230 to
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232 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, the
Demerged Undertaking shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, stand transferred
to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company on a going concern basis, so as to become as an from the Appointed Date, the assets,
Permits, contracts, liabilities, loan, debentures, duties and obligations of the Resulting
Company by virtue of operation of law, and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

This Scheme complies with the definition of “demerger” as per Section 2(19AA) and other
applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act. Subject to approval by the Board of the Parties,
if any terms of this Scheme are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent with provisions
of the Income Tax Act, then this Scheme shall stand modified to be in accordance with
aforesaid provisions of the Income Tax Act.

Without prejudice to the generality of the provisions of Clause 5.1 above, the manner of
transfer and vesting of assets and liabilities forming part of the Demerged Undertaking under
this Scheme, is as follows:

5.2.1 In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking which are movable in nature (including but not limited to all intangible
assets, brands, trademarks of the Demerged Undertaking, whether registered or
unregistered trademarks along with all rights of commercial nature including attached
goodwill, title, interest, labels and brand registrations, domain names, copyrights,
trademarks and all such other industrial and intellectual property rights of whatsoever
nature) or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession or by
endorsement, shall stand transferred upon the Part Ill of the Scheme coming into
effect and shall, ipso facto and without any other order to this effect, become the
assets and properties of the Resulting Company without requiring any deed or
instrument of conveyance for transfer of the same. The vesting pursuant to this sub-
clause shall be deemed to have occurred by physical or constructive delivery or by
endorsement and delivery or by vesting and recordal, pursuant to this Scheme, as
appropriate to the property being vested, and title to the property shall be deemed
to have been transferred accordingly;

5.2.2 Subject to Clause 5.2.3 below, with respect to the assets forming part of the
Demerged Undertaking other than those referred to in Clause 5.2.1 above, including
all rights, title and interests in the agreements (including agreements for lease or
license of the properties), investments in shares, mutual funds, bonds and any other
securities, sundry debtors, claims from customers or otherwise, outstanding loans and
advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank
balances and deposits, if any, with any Appropriate Authority, customers and other
Persons, whether or not the same is held in the name of the Demerged Company, the
same shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested
in and/ or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company, with
effect from the Appointed Date by operation of law as transmission in favour of
Resulting Company. With regard to the licenses of the properties, the Resulting
Company will enter into novation agreements, if it is so required,;

5.2.3 In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking which are immovable in nature, whether or not included in the books of
the Demerged Company, including rights, interest and easements in relation thereto,
the same shall stand transferred to the Resulting Company with effect from the
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5.25

5.2.6

5.2.7

Appointed Date, without any act or deed or conveyance being required to be done or
executed by the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company;

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of Clause 5.2.3
above and Clause 5.2.5 below, it is clarified that, with respect to the immovable
properties forming part of the Demerged Undertaking in the nature of land and
buildings, the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company shall register the
true copy of the orders of the Tribunal approving the Scheme with the offices of the
relevant Sub-registrar of Assurances or similar registering authority having jurisdiction
over the location of such immovable property and shall also execute and register, as
required, such other documents as may be necessary in this regard. For the avoidance
of doubt, it is clarified that any document executed pursuant to this Clause 5.2.4 or
Clause 5.2.5 below will be for the limited purpose of meeting regulatory requirements
and shall not be deemed to be a document under which the transfer of any property
of the Demerged Company takes place and the assets and liabilities forming part of
the Demerged Undertaking shall be transferred solely pursuant to and in terms of this
Scheme and the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme;

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, with respect to the immovable
properties forming part of the Demerged Undertaking in the nature of land and
buildings situated in states other than the state of Maharashtra, whether owned or
leased, for the purpose of, inter alia, payment of stamp duty and vesting in the
Resulting Company, if the Resulting Company so decides, the Demerged Company
and/ or the Resulting Company, whether before or after the Effective Date, may
execute and register or cause to be executed and registered, separate deeds of
conveyance or deeds of assighment of lease, as the case may be, in favour of the
Resulting Company in respect of such immovable properties. Each of the immovable
properties, only for the purposes of the payment of stamp duty (if required under
Applicable Law), shall be deemed to be conveyed at a value determined by the
relevant authorities in accordance with the applicable circle rates. The transfer of such
immovable properties shall form an integral part of the Demerged Undertaking vested
in the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme;

Upon effectiveness of Part lll of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date,
all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, present or future, duties and obligations,
secured or unsecured, whether known or unknown, including contingent/ potential
Tax liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking shall pursuant to the applicable provisions
of the Act and the provisions of Part Il of this Scheme and without any further act or
deed become the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of the
Resulting Company and the Resulting Company shall undertake to meet, discharge
and satisfy the same in terms of their respective terms and conditions, if any. For the
avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent
of any third party or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by
virtue of which such debts, liabilities, duties and obligations have arisen in order to
give effect to the provisions of this Clause. The amounts of general or multipurpose
borrowings, if any, of the Demerged Company will be apportioned basis the
proportion of the value of the assets transferred as part of the Demerged Undertaking
to the total value of the assets of the Demerged Company immediately before
Appointed Date;

The Demerged Company may, at its sole discretion but without being obliged to, give
notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to such Persons, as the case may
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5.2.8

5.2.9

5.2.10

5.2.11

be, that any debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan, advance, debenture or deposit,
contracts or policies relating to the Demerged Undertaking stands transferred to and
vested in the Resulting Company and that appropriate modification should be made
in their respective books/ records to reflect the aforesaid changes;

Unless otherwise agreed to between the Board of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company, the vesting of all the assets of the Demerged Company forming
part of the Demerged Undertaking, as aforesaid, shall be subject to the
Encumbrances, if any, over or in respect of any of the assets or any part thereof,
provided however that such Encumbrances shall be confined only to the relevant
assets forming part of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company or part
thereof on or over which they are subsisting on and vesting of such assets in the
Resulting Company and no such Encumbrances shall extend over or apply to any other
asset(s) of Resulting Company. Any reference in any security documents or
arrangements (to which Demerged Company is a party) related to any assets of
Demerged Company shall be so construed to the end and intent that such security
shall not extend, nor be deemed to extend, to any of the other asset(s) of Resulting
Company. Similarly, Resulting Company shall not be required to create any additional
security over assets vested under this Scheme for any loans, deposits or other
financial assistance already availed of /to be availed of by it, and the Encumbrances
in respect of such indebtedness of the Demerged Company shall not extend or be
deemed to extend or apply to the assets so vested;

In so far as any Encumbrance in respect of liabilities pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking is concerned, such Encumbrance shall without any further act,
instrument or deed being required to be modified and, if so agreed, shall be extended
to and shall operate over the assets of the Resulting Company. For the avoidance of
doubt, it is hereby clarified that in so far as the assets comprising the Remaining
Business are concerned, the Encumbrance, if any, over such assets relating to the
liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking is concerned, without any further
act, instrument or deed being required, be released and discharged from the
obligations and Encumbrances relating to the same. Further, in so far as the assets
comprised in the Demerged Undertaking are concerned, the Encumbrance over such
assets relating to any loans, borrowings or other debts which are not transferred to
the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme and which shall continue with the
Demerged Company, shall without any further act or deed be released from such
Encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such liabilities;

Taxes, if any, paid or payable by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date
and specifically pertaining to Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as paid or
payable by the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company shall be entitled to
claim the credit, refund or adjustment for the same as may be applicable;

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting
Company shall have the right to revise their respective financial statements, income
tax returns, tax deducted at source (TDS) returns and other statutory returns along
with prescribed forms, filings and annexures under the Tax Laws and to claim refunds,
credit of tax deducted at source, credit of minimum alternate tax, credit of foreign
taxes paid / withheld, carry forward of tax losses, credits in respect of sales tax, value
added tax, service tax, goods and services tax (GST) and other indirect taxes etc., and
for matters incidental thereto, if required, to give effect to the provisions of the
Scheme. It is further clarified that the Resulting Company shall be entitled to claim
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5.2.12

5.2.13

5.2.14

5.2.15

deduction under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act in respect of unpaid liabilities
transferred to it as part of the Demerged Undertaking to the extent not claimed by
the Demerged Company;

Subject to Clause 5 and any other provisions of the Scheme, in respect of any refund,
benefit, incentive, grant or subsidy in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking, the Demerged Company shall, if so required by the Resulting Company,
issue notices in such form as the Resulting Company may deem fit and proper, stating
that pursuant to the Tribunal having sanctioned this Scheme, the relevant refund,
benefit, incentive, grant or subsidy be paid or made good to or held on account of the
Resulting Company, as the Person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right
of the Demerged Company to recover or realise the same stands transferred to the
Resulting Company and that appropriate entries should be passed in their respective
books to record the aforesaid changes;

On and from the Effective Date, all cheques and other negotiable instruments and
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Demerged Company and are in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking, shall be accepted by the bankers of the Resulting Company and credited
to the account of Resulting Company, if presented by Resulting Company;

Permits, including the benefits attached thereto of the Demerged Company, in
relation to the Demerged Undertaking, shall subject to Applicable Law be transferred
to the Resulting Company from the Appointed Date, without any further act,
instrument or deed and shall be appropriately mutated or endorsed by the
Appropriate Authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Resulting Company as
if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of Resulting
Company and the Resulting Company shall be bound by the terms, obligations and
duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to
the Resulting Company to carry on the operations of the Demerged Undertaking
without any hindrance, whatsoever; and

Contracts in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, where the Demerged Company is
a party, shall stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company pursuant to
the Scheme becoming effective. The absence of any formal amendment which may
be required by a third party to effect such transfer and vesting shall not affect the
operation of the foregoing sentence. The Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company shall, wherever necessary, enter into and/ or execute deeds, writings,
confirmations or novations to all such contracts, if necessary, in order to give formal
effect to the provisions of this Clause.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing sub-clauses of this Clause, the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company may execute any and all instruments or documents and
do all the acts, deeds and things as may be required, including executing necessary
confirmatory deeds for filing with the trademark registry and Appropriate Authorities, filing
of necessary particulars and/ or modification(s) of charge, necessary applications, notices,
intimations or letters with any Appropriate Authority or Person to give effect to the Scheme.

The Resulting Company shall take such actions as may be necessary and permissible to get the

assets, Permits and contracts forming part of the Demerged Undertaking transferred and/ or
registered in its name.
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

EMPLOYEES

With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company undertakes to engage, without
any interruption in service, all employees of the Demerged Company, engaged in or in relation
to the Demerged Undertaking, on the terms and conditions not less favourable than those on
which they are engaged by the Demerged Company. The Resulting Company undertakes to
continue to abide by any agreement/ settlement or arrangement, if any, entered into or
deemed to have been entered into by the Demerged Company with any of the aforesaid
employees or union representing them. The Resulting Company agrees that the services of all
such employees with the Demerged Company prior to the demerger shall be taken into
account for the purposes of all existing benefits to which the said employees may be eligible,
including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, leave balance,
gratuity, superannuation and other retiral/ terminal benefits. The decision on whether or not
an employee is part of the Demerged Undertaking, be decided by the Demerged Company,
and shall be final and binding on all concerned.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Appointed Date, employment
information, including personnel files (including hiring documents, existing employment
contracts, and documents reflecting changes in an employee’s position, compensation, or
benefits), payroll records, medical documents (including documents relating to past or on-
going leaves of absence, on the job injuries or illness, or fitness for work examinations),
disciplinary records, supervisory files relating to the employees of the Demerged Undertaking
and all forms, notifications, orders and contribution / identity cards issued by the concerned
authorities relating to benefits shall be deemed to have been transferred to the Resulting
Company.

The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the aforesaid employees in the
existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members,
as the case may be, will be transferred respectively to such provident fund, gratuity fund and
superannuation funds nominated by the Resulting Company and/or such new provident fund,
gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be established in accordance with Applicable Law
and caused to be recognized by the Appropriate Authorities, by the Resulting Company.
Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund
dues of the said employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing provident fund,
gratuity fund and superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged Company.

Employee stock options:

6.4.1 Upon the coming into effect of Part lll of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall
formulate new employee stock option scheme(s) by adopting the BL ESOP of the
Demerged Company, as modified in accordance with the variations mentioned in this
Clause 6.4;

6.4.2 With respect to the stock options granted by the Demerged Company to the
employees of the Demerged Company or its subsidiaries (irrespective of whether they
continue to be employees of the Demerged Company or its subsidiaries or become
employees of the Resulting Company or its subsidiaries pursuant to this Scheme)
under the BL ESOP and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the said employees shall
be granted 3 (Three) stock options by the Resulting Company under the new
scheme(s) for every 4 (Four) stock options held in the Demerged Company, whether
the same are vested or not on terms and conditions similar to the BL ESOP;
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7.1

6.4.3 The employee stock options granted by the Demerged Company under the BL ESOP,
would continue to be held by the employees concerned (irrespective of whether they
continue to be employees of the Demerged Company or its subsidiaries or become
employees of the Resulting Company or its subsidiaries). Upon coming into effect of
the Scheme, the Demerged Company shall take necessary steps to modify the BL ESOP
in a manner considered appropriate and in accordance with the Applicable Laws, in
order to enable the continuance of the same in the hands of the employees who
become employees of the Resulting Company or its subsidiaries, subject to the
approval of the Stock Exchanges and the relevant regulatory authorities, if any, under
Applicable Law;

6.4.4 The existing exercise price of the stock options granted by the Demerged Company
under the BL ESOP, shall be modified and the Board of the Demerged Company shall
determine the exercise price consequent to the demerger. The Board of the
Demerged Company and Resulting Company shall take such actions and execute such
further documents as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect
to the provisions of Clause 6.4. Approval granted to the Scheme by the shareholders
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall also be deemed to be the
approval granted to any modifications made to the BL ESOP of the Demerged
Company and approval granted to the new employee stock option scheme to be
adopted by the Resulting Company, respectively;

6.4.5 While granting stock options, the Resulting Company shall take into account the
period during which the employees held stock options granted by the Demerged
Company prior to the issuance of the stock options by the Resulting Company, for
determining of minimum vesting period required for stock options granted by the
Resulting Company, subject to Applicable Laws;

6.4.6 The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall reimburse each other for
cost debited to the profit & loss account or any suspense / subsidy account,
subsequent to the Appointed Date, in relation to stock options issued to employees
of the other company or its subsidiaries, if necessary and required; and

6.4.7 The Boards of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or any of the
committee(s) thereof, if any, shall take such actions and execute such further
documents as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to the
provisions of this Clause 6.4 of the Scheme.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

With effect from the Effective Date, all suits, actions, administrative proceedings, tribunals
proceedings, show cause notices, demands and legal proceedings of whatsoever nature
(except proceedings under Tax laws) by or against the Demerged Company pending and/ or
arising on or before the Appointed Date or which may be instituted any time thereafter and
in each case relating to the Demerged Undertaking shall not abate or be discontinued or be in
any way prejudicially affected by reason of this Scheme or by anything contained in this
Scheme but shall be continued and be enforced by or against the Resulting Company with
effect from the Appointed Date in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might
have been continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company. Except as otherwise
provided herein, the Demerged Company shall in no event be responsible or liable in relation
to any such legal or other proceedings that stand transferred to the Resulting Company. The
Resulting Company shall be substituted in place of the Demerged Company or added as party
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7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

to such proceedings and shall prosecute or defend such proceedings at its own cost, in
cooperation with the Demerged Company and the liability of the Demerged Company shall
consequently stand nullified. The Demerged Company shall in no event be responsible or
liable in relation to any such legal or other proceedings in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking.

The Resulting Company undertakes to have all legal and other proceedings (except
proceedings under Tax laws) initiated by or against the Demerged Company referred to in
Clause 7.1 above transferred to its name as soon as is reasonably practicable after the
Effective Date and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the
Resulting Company to the exclusion of the Demerged Company on priority. Both the
Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company shall make relevant applications and take
all steps as may be required in this regard. It is clarified that all Tax proceedings in relation to
the Demerged Undertaking for a period prior to the Appointed Date shall be enforced against
the Demerged Company and pertaining to the period after the Appointed Date shall be
enforced against the Resulting Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove, if at any time after the Effective Date, the
Demerged Company is in receipt of any demand, claim, notice and/ or is impleaded as a party
in any proceedings before any Appropriate Authority (except proceedings under Tax laws), in
each case in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, the Demerged Company shall, in view of
the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking pursuant to this Scheme, take all such
steps in the proceedings before the Appropriate Authority to replace the Demerged Company
with the Resulting Company. However, if the Demerged Company is unable to get the
Resulting Company replaced in such proceedings, the Demerged Company shall defend the
same or deal with such demand in accordance with the advice of the Resulting Company and
at the cost of the Resulting Company and the latter shall reimburse to the Demerged Company
all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Demerged Company in respect thereof.

CONSIDERATION

Immediately upon effectiveness of Part Il of this Scheme and upon Part Il of the Scheme
coming into effect and in consideration of and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the
Resulting Company shall, without any further application, act, deed, consent, acts, instrument
or deed, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of the depository
as members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date, as under:

3 (Three) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company (post proposed
re-organisation of share capital) credited as fully paid up, for every 4 (Four) fully paid up equity
share of INR 1/- each of the Demerged Company

The equity shares of the Resulting Company to be issued pursuant to Clause 8.1 shall be
referred to as “Resulting Company New Equity Shares”.

The Resulting Company New Equity Shares shall be subject to the provisions of the
memorandum of association and articles of association of the Resulting Company, as the case
may be, and shall rank pari passu in all respects with any existing equity shares of Resulting
Company, as the case may be, after the Effective Date including with respect to dividend,
bonus, right shares, voting rights and other corporate benefits attached to the equity shares
of the Resulting Company.
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8.4

8.5

8.6

The issue and allotment of Resulting Company New Equity Shares, is an integral part hereof
and shall be deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without
requiring any further act on the part of the Resulting Company or the Demerged Company or
their shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under the Act and such other Applicable
Laws as may be applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the
members and creditors of the Resulting Company and/ or the Demerged Company to this
Scheme, shall be deemed to be their consent/ approval for the issue and allotment of
Resulting Company New Equity Shares.

Subject to Applicable Laws, the Resulting Company New Equity Shares that are to be issued in
terms of this Scheme shall be issued in dematerialised form. The register of members
maintained by the Resulting Company and/ or, other relevant records, whether in physical or
electronic form, maintained by the Resulting Company, the relevant depository and registrar
and transfer agent in terms of Applicable Laws shall (as deemed necessary by the Board of the
Resulting Company) be updated to reflect the issue of Resulting Company New Equity Shares
in terms of this Scheme. The shareholders of the Demerged Company who hold shares in
physical form, should provide the requisite details relating to his/ her/ its account with a
depository participant or other confirmations as may be required, to the Resulting Company,
prior to the Record Date to enable it to issue the Resulting Company New Equity Shares.

However, if no such details have been provided to the Resulting Company by the shareholders
of the Demerged Company holding shares in physical form on or before the Record Date, the
Resulting Company shall deal with the relevant shares in such manner as may be permissible
under the Applicable Law, including by way of issuing the corresponding shares in
dematerialised form to a trustee nominated by the Board of Resulting Company (“Trustee of
Resulting Company”) who shall hold these shares in trust for the benefit of such shareholders.
The shares of Resulting Company held by the Trustee of Resulting Company for the benefit of
the shareholders shall be transferred to the respective shareholder once such shareholder
provides details of his/ her/ its demat account to the Trustee of Resulting Company, along
with such other documents as may be required by the Trustee of Resulting Company. The
respective shareholders shall have all the rights of the shareholders of the Resulting Company,
including the right to receive dividend, voting rights and other corporate benefits, pending the
transfer of shares from the Trustee of Resulting Company. All costs and expenses incurred in
this respect shall be borne by Resulting Company.

For the purpose of the allotment of the Resulting Company New Equity Shares pursuant to
this Scheme, in case any shareholder’s holding in any of the Demerged Company is such that
the shareholder becomes entitled to a fraction of a share of the Resulting Company, the
Resulting Company shall not issue fractional shares to such shareholder but shall consolidate
all such fractions and round up the aggregate of such fractions to the next whole number and
issue consolidated shares to a trustee (nominated by the Resulting Company in that behalf),
who shall hold such shares, with all additions or accretions thereto, in trust for the benefit of
the respective shareholders to whom they belong for the specific purpose of selling such
shares in the market at such price or prices at any time within a period of 90 days from the
date of allotment of Resulting Company New Equity Shares, as the trustee may, in its sole
discretion, decide and distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of the expenses
incurred and applicable income tax) to the respective shareholders in the same proportion of
their fractional entitlements. Any fractional entitlements from such net proceeds shall be
rounded off to the next Rupee. It is clarified that any such distribution shall take place only on
the sale of all the shares of the Resulting Company pertaining to the fractional entitlements.
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9.1

9.2

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of
any shareholder of the Demerged Company, the Board of the Demerged Company shall be
empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to
effectuate such a transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative as on the
Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor or transferee of
shares in the Demerged Company, after effectiveness of Part Il of this Scheme.

The Resulting Company New Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Scheme in respect of
any shares of the Demerged Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions of
Section 126 of the Act or otherwise shall pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order
of Court or otherwise, be held in abeyance by the Resulting Company.

The shares to be issued by the Resulting Company in lieu of the shares of the Demerged
Company held in the unclaimed suspense account shall be issued to a new unclaimed
suspense account created for shareholders of the Resulting Company.

In the event, the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company restructure their share
capital by way of share split / consolidation / issue of bonus shares during the pendency of
the Scheme, the share entitlement ratio, as per Clause 8.1 above shall be adjusted accordingly,
to consider the effect of any such corporate actions.

The Resulting Company shall apply for listing of its equity shares on the Stock Exchanges in
terms of and in compliance of SEBI Circular and other relevant provisions as may be applicable.
The equity shares of the Resulting Company shall remain frozen in the depository system till
listing/ trading permission is given by the Stock Exchanges. Further, there shall be no change
in the shareholding pattern of the Resulting Company between the Record Date and the listing
of its shares which may affect the status of approval of the Stock Exchanges.

Upon listing of equity shares of the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme, the
shareholders of the Resulting Company, except the Demerged Company, shall be categorised
as ‘public’ shareholders and the term 'public' shall carry the same meaning as defined under
Rule 2 of Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

The Resulting Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/
or undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with Applicable Law for complying with
the formalities of the Stock Exchanges.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
Accounting treatment in the books of the Demerged Company:

9.1.1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Demerged Company shall reduce the book value of all assets (including goodwill),
liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking and reserves related to the
Demerged Undertaking, as identified by the Board of the Demerged Company,
transferred to the Resulting Company from its books of accounts.

9.1.2 The difference between the book value of all assets (including goodwill), liabilities
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking and reserves related to the Demerged
Undertaking, as identified by the Board of Demerged Company, transferred to the
Resulting Company shall be adjusted in retained earnings of the Demerged Company.

Accounting treatment in the books of the Resulting Company:
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9.2.2

9.2.3

9.24

9.2.5

9.2.6

9.2.7

9.2.8

9.2.9

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Resulting Company shall account for the Demerged Undertaking in its books as per
the applicable accounting principles as laid down in Appendix C of the Indian
Accounting Standard 103 (Ind AS 103) (Business Combination of entities under
common control), notified under the Act and/ or any other applicable Indian
Accounting Standard as the case may be.

With respect to reduction of the equity share capital of the Resulting Company as
specified in Clause 4.1 above, the Resulting Company shall reduce its equity share
capital account in its books of account with corresponding increase in capital reserve
for an aggregate of INR 90 multiplied by the equity shares held by the members of the
Resulting Company.

The Resulting Company shall record the assets (including goodwill), liabilities and
reserves comprised in the Demerged Undertaking transferred to and vested in it
pursuant to this Scheme, at the same value as appearing in the books of the Demerged
Company.

The reserves related to the Demerged Undertaking and being transferred to the
Resulting Company as determined by the Board of the Demerged Company shall be
preserved and shall appear in the financial statements of the Resulting Company in
the same form and manner, in which they appeared in the financial statements of the
Demerged Company.

The shareholding of the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company as on the
Appointed Date will stand cancelled and the difference between the above and share
capital of Resulting Company shall be adjusted in capital reserve.

The Resulting Company shall credit its share capital account in its books of account
with the aggregate face value of the equity shares issued to shareholders of the
Demerged Company pursuant to Clause 8 of this Scheme.

The difference, being the excess of book value of the assets over the liabilities
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking and reserves relating to Demerged
Undertaking transferred from the Demerged Company and recorded by the Resulting
Company in accordance with Clause 9.2.3 above, over the amount credited as share
capital as per Clause 9.2.6 above, and after giving effect to Clause 9.2.5 above, shall
be adjusted in capital reserve.

Loans, advances, deposits, balances and other dues outstanding as on the Appointed
Date between the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking and
the Resulting Company will stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation/
outstanding in that behalf and there would be no accrual of interest or any other
charges in respect of such inter-company loans, deposits or balances, with effect from
the Appointed Date.

In case of any differences in accounting policy between the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company, the accounting policies followed by the Resulting Company
will prevail and the difference till the Appointed Date shall be adjusted in capital
reserves of the Resulting Company, to ensure that the financial statements of the
Resulting Company reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent accounting

policy.
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11.1
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12.1

REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF EXISTING EQUITY SHARES OF THE RESULTING
COMPANY HELD BY DEMERGED COMPANY

With effect from Part Ill of this Scheme becoming effective and upon allotment of Resulting
Company New Equity Shares by the Resulting Company, the entire paid-up equity share
capital, as on Effective Date, of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company
(“Resulting Company Cancelled Shares”) shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled on
and from the Effective Date and the issued, subscribed and paid up equity capital of the
Resulting Company to that effect shall stand cancelled and reduced.

The reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Act shall be effected as an integral part of this Scheme itself.

Notwithstanding the reduction in the equity share capital of the Resulting Company, the
Resulting Company shall not be required to add ‘And Reduced’ as suffix to its name.

The reduction and cancellation of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares, does not involve
any diminution of liability of in respect of any unpaid share capital or payment to any
shareholder of any paid-up share capital or payment in any other form.

CHANGE OF NAME OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the name of the Resulting Company shall stand
changed to ‘Borosil Scientific Limited’ or such other name which is available and approved by
the RoC, by simply filing the requisite forms with the Appropriate Authority, unless already
effected prior to the effectiveness of the Scheme, and no separate act, procedure, instrument,
or deed shall be required to be followed under the Act.

Consequently, subject to Clause 11.1 above:

11.2.1 Clause | of the memorandum of association of the Resulting Company shall without
any act, procedure, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended
pursuant to Sections 13, 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, and be
replaced by the following Clause:

“The name of the Company is Borosil Scientific Limited.”

11.2.2 ltis hereby clarified that, for the purposes of acts and events as mentioned in Clause
11.1 and 11.2, the consent of the shareholders of the Resulting Company to this
Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the
aforementioned amendment and that no further resolution under Section 13, Section
14 or any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be required to be separately
passed.

PART IV
AMALGAMATION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH TRANSFEREE COMPANY

AMALGAMATION AND VESTING OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND ENTIRE BUSINESS OF THE
TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Immediately upon effectiveness of Part Il and Part Ill of this Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date and in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme and pursuant to Sections
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230to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act,
the Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as
a going concern and accordingly, all assets, Permits, contracts, liabilities, loan, duties and
obligations of the Transferor Company shall, without any further act, instrument or deed,
stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in
the Transferee Company, so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the assets,
Permits, contracts, liabilities, loan, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company by virtue
of operation of law, and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

Without prejudice to the generality of the provisions of Clause 12.1 above, the manner of
transfer and vesting of assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company under this Scheme
immediately upon effectiveness of Part IV of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed
Date, is as follows:

12.2.1 Inrespect of such of the assets and properties of the Transferor Company which are
movable in nature (including but not limited to all intangible assets, brands,
trademarks of the Transferor Company, whether registered or unregistered
trademarks along with all rights of commercial nature including attached goodwill,
title, interest, labels and brand registrations, copyrights trademarks and all such other
industrial and intellectual property rights of whatsoever nature) or are otherwise
capable of transfer by delivery or possession or by endorsement, shall stand
transferred upon the Scheme coming into effect and shall, ipso facto and without any
other order to this effect, become the assets and properties of the Transferee
Company without requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance for transfer of the
same. The vesting pursuant to this sub-clause shall be deemed to have occurred by
physical or constructive delivery or by endorsement and delivery or by vesting and
recordal, pursuant to this Scheme, as appropriate to the property being vested and
title to the property shall be deemed to have been transferred accordingly.

12.2.2 Subject to Clause 12.2.3 below, with respect to the assets of the Transferor Company,
other than those referred to in Clause 12.2.1 above, including all rights, title and
interests in the agreements (including agreements for lease or license of the
properties), investments in shares, mutual funds, bonds and any other securities,
sundry debtors, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received, bank balances and deposits, if any, with Government,
semi-Government, local and other authorities and bodies, customers and other
persons, whether or not the same is held in the name of the Transferor Company shall,
without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and/ or
be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, with effect
from the Appointed Date, by operation of law as transmission or as the case may be,
in favour of Transferee Company.

12.2.3 In respect of such of the assets and properties of the Transferor Company which are
immovable in nature, including rights, interest and easements in relation thereto, the
same shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company with effect from the
Appointed Date, without any act or deed or conveyance being required to be done or
executed by the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee Company.

12.2.4 For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of Clause 12.2.3
above and Clause 12.2.5 below, it is clarified that, with respect to the immovable
properties of the Transferor Company in the nature of land and buildings, the
Transferor Company and/ or the Transferee Company shall register the true copy of
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12.2.5

12.2.6

12.2.7

12.2.8

the orders of the Authority approving the Scheme with the offices of the relevant sub-
registrar of Assurances or similar registering authority having jurisdiction over the
location of such immovable property and shall also execute and register, as required,
such other documents as may be necessary in this regard. For the avoidance of doubt,
it is clarified that any document executed pursuant to this Clause 12.2.4 or Clause
12.2.5 below will be for the limited purpose of meeting regulatory requirements and
shall not be deemed to be a document under which the transfer of any property of
the Transferor Company takes place and the assets and liabilities of the Transferor
Company shall be transferred solely pursuant to and in terms of this Scheme and the
order of the Appropriate Authority sanctioning this Scheme.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, with respect to the immovable
properties of the Transferor Company in the nature of land and buildings situated in
states other than the state of Maharashtra, whether owned or leased, for the purpose
of, inter alia, payment of stamp duty and vesting in the Transferee Company, if the
Transferee Company so decides, the Transferor Company and/ or the Transferee
Company, whether before or after the Effective Date, may execute and register or
cause to be executed and registered, separate deeds of conveyance or deeds of
assignment of lease, as the case may be, in favour of the Transferee Company in
respect of such immovable properties. Each of the immovable properties, only for the
purposes of the payment of stamp duty (if required under Applicable Law), shall be
deemed to be conveyed at a value determined by the relevant authorities in
accordance with the applicable circle rates. The transfer of such immovable properties
shall form an integral part of this Scheme.

All debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company shall, without
any further act, instrument or deed be transferred to, and vested in, and/ or deemed
to have been transferred to, and vested in, the Transferee Company, so as to become
on and from the Appointed Date, the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the
Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions as were applicable to the
Transferor Company, and it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any Person
who is a party to contract or arrangement by virtue of which such liabilities have
arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause 12.

On and from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank accounts
of the Transferor Company has been replaced with that of the Transferee Company,
the Transferee Company shall be entitled to maintain and operate the bank accounts
of the Transferor Company in the name of the Transferor Company and for such time
as may be determined to be necessary by the Transferee Company. All cheques and
other negotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment
which are in the name of the Transferor Company after the Effective Date shall be
accepted by the bankers of the Transferee Company and credited to the account of
the Transferee Company, if presented by the Transferee Company.

Unless otherwise agreed between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, the vesting of all the assets of the Transferor Company, as aforesaid, shall
be along with the Encumbrances, if any, over or in respect of any of the assets or any
part thereof, provided however that such Encumbrances shall be confined only to the
relevant assets of the Transferor Company or part thereof on or over which they are
subsisting prior to the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company, and no such Encumbrances shall extend over or apply to any other asset(s)
of the Transferee Company.
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12.3

12.2.9 Unless otherwise stated in this Scheme, all Permits, including the benefits attached

thereto of the Transferor Company, shall be transferred to the Transferee Company
from the Appointed Date, without any further act, instrument or deed and shall be
appropriately mutated or endorsed by the Appropriate Authorities concerned
therewith in favour of the Transferee Company as if the same were originally given
by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferee Company and the Transferee
Company shall be bound by the terms, obligations and duties thereunder, and the
rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Transferee Company to
carry on the operations of the Transferor Company without any hindrance,
whatsoever.

12.2.10 Without prejudice to the provisions as stated above, all trade and service names and

marks, patents, copyrights, designs, goodwill which includes the positive reputation
that the Transferor Company were enjoying to retain its clients, statutory licenses,
infrastructural advantages, overall increase in market share, customer base, skilled
employees, business claims, business information, business contracts, trade style and
name, marketing and distribution channels, marketing or other commercial rights,
customer relationship, trade secrets, information on consumption pattern or habits
of the consumers in the territory, technical know-how, client records, KYC (know your
customer) records/ POAs (power of attorney), authorisations, client details and other
intellectual property rights of any nature whatsoever, books, records, files, papers,
engineering and process information, software licenses (whether proprietary or
otherwise), drawings, computer programs, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations,
sales and advertising material, lists of present and former customers and suppliers,
other customer information, customer credit information, customer pricing
information and all other records and documents, whether in physical or electronic
form relating to business activities and operations of the Transferor Company shall be
transferred to the Transferee Company from the Appointed Date, without any further
act, instrument or deed.

12.2.11 All contracts where the Transferor Company is a party, shall stand transferred to and

vested in the Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective. The
absence of any formal amendment which may be required by a third party to effect
such transfer and vesting shall not affect the operation of the foregoing sentence. The
Transferee Company shall, wherever necessary, enter into and/ or execute deeds,
writings, confirmations or novations to all such contracts, if necessary, in order to give
formal effect to the provisions of this Clause.

12.2.12 Provided that, upon this Scheme coming into effect, all inter-company transactions

including loans, contracts executed or entered into by or inter se between the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, if any, shall stand cancelled with
effect from the Effective Date and neither the Transferor Company and/ or Transferee
Company shall have any obligation or liability against the other party in relation
thereto.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing sub-clauses of Clause 12.2, the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company may execute any and all instruments or documents
and do all acts, deeds and things as may be required, including filing of necessary particulars
and/ or modification(s) of charge, necessary applications, notices, intimations or letters with
any Appropriate Authority or Person to give effect to the Scheme. Any procedural
requirements required to be fulfilled solely by the Transferor Company, shall be fulfilled by
the Transferee Company as if it were the duly constituted attorney of the Transferor Company.
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13.1

13.2

14.

15.

15.1

The Transferee Company shall take such actions as may be necessary and permissible to get
the assets, Permits and contracts of the Transferor Company transferred and/ or registered in
its name.

EMPLOYEES

Upon effectiveness of Part IV of the Scheme and with effect from the Effective Date, all
employees of the Transferor Company shall become employees of the Transferee Company,
without any interruption in service, on terms and conditions no less favourable than those on
which they are engaged by the Transferor Company. The Transferee Company undertakes to
continue to abide by any agreement/ settlement or arrangement, if any, entered into or
deemed to have been entered into by the Transferor Company with any Persons in relation to
the employees of the Transferor Company. The Transferee Company agrees that the services
of all such employees with the Transferor Company prior to the transfer shall be taken into
account for the purposes of all existing benefits to which the said employees may be eligible,
including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, leave balance,
gratuity and other retiral/ terminal benefits.

The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the aforesaid employees in the
existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members,
will be transferred respectively to such provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation
funds nominated by the Transferee Company and/ or such new provident fund, gratuity fund
and superannuation fund to be established by the Transferee Company, in accordance with
Applicable Law and caused to be recognized by the Appropriate Authorities.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon effectiveness of Part IV of the Scheme and with effect from the Effective Date, if any
suit, cause of action, appeal or other legal, quasi-judicial, arbitral or other administrative
proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor Company pending on the
Effective Date, the same shall not abate, be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially
affected by anything contained in this Scheme, but such proceedings of the Transferor
Company may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee Company
in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued,
prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been
made. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company may initiate any legal
proceeding for and on behalf of the Transferor Company.

TAXES/ DUTIES/ CESS

Upon effectiveness of Part IV of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, by
operation of law pursuant to the order of the Appropriate Authority:

All the profits or income taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, tax deducted at
source, tax collected at source, foreign tax credits, dividend distribution tax, minimum
alternate tax credit, any credit for dividend distribution tax on dividend received by the
Transferor Company), all input credit balances (including but not limited to CENVAT/
MODVAT, sales tax, applicable excise and customs duties, SGST, IGST and CGST credits under
the goods and service tax laws) or any costs, charges, expenditure accruing to the Transferor
Company in India and abroad or expenditure or losses arising or incurred or suffered by the
Transferor Company shall for all purpose be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the
profits, taxes (namely advance tax, Tax deducted at source, Tax collected at source, dividend
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15.2

15.3

15.4

16.

l6.1

16.2

17.

distribution tax & foreign tax credits), tax losses, minimum alternate tax credit, dividend
distribution tax credit, input credit balances (namely CENVAT/ MODVAT, sales tax, applicable
excise and customs duties, SGST, IGST and CGST credits under the goods and service tax laws,
income costs, charges, expenditure or losses of the Transferee Company, as the case may be.

If the Transferor Company is entitled to any benefits under incentive schemes and policies
under Tax Laws, such as tax deferrals, exemptions, benefits and subsidies, concessions, grants,
rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and all such benefits under all
such incentive schemes and policies as mentioned above shall be available and stand vested
in the Transferee Company and shall remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same
terms and conditions.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Transferee
Company shall have the right to revise its financial statements and returns along with
prescribed forms, filings and annexures under the Tax Laws and to claim refunds and/ or credit
for Taxes paid and for matters incidental thereto, if required, to give effect to the provisions
of the Scheme. The Transferee Company is expressly permitted to revise and file its income
tax returns and other statutory returns, even beyond the due date, if required, including tax
deducted/ collected at source returns, service tax returns, excise tax returns, sales tax/ value
added tax/ goods and service tax returns, as may be applicable and has expressly reserved the
right to make such provision in its returns and to claim refunds, advance tax credits, credit of
tax deducted at source, credit of foreign Taxes paid/ withheld, etc. if any, as may be required
for the purposes of implementation of the Scheme.

It is hereby clarified that in case of any refunds, benefits, incentives, grants, subsidies, etc.,
the Transferor Company, shall, if so required by the Transferee Company, issue notices in such
form as the Transferee Company may deem fit and proper stating that pursuant to the
Appropriate Authority having sanctioned this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act,
the relevant refund, benefit, incentive, grant, subsidies, be paid or made good or held on
account of the Transferee Company, as the Person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that
the right of the Transferor Company, to recover or realise the same, stands transferred to the
Transferee Company.

CONSIDERATION

Immediately upon effectiveness of Part Ill of the Scheme, the Transferor Company will
become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and the entire paid-up share
capital of the Transferor Company will be held by the Transferee Company. Accordingly, upon
amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, there shall be no
issue of shares as consideration for the said amalgamation.

Immediately upon effectiveness of Part IV of the Scheme, all equity shares of the Transferor
Company held by the Transferee Company along with its nominees, shall stand cancelled
without any further application, act, or deed.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Transferee Company shall comply with generally accepted accounting practices in India,
provisions of the Act and accounting standards as notified by Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, in relation to the transactions in the
Scheme including but not limited, to the following:
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18.

19.

19.1

19.2

Upon Part IV of this Scheme coming into effect and after giving effect to the accounting
treatment specified in the aforementioned Clause 9 of Part Ill of the Scheme and with effect
from Appointed Date, the Transferee Company shall account for the amalgamation of the
Transferor Company in accordance with “Pooling of Interest Method” laid down by Appendix
C of Indian Accounting Standard 103 (Ind AS 103): (Business combinations of entities under
common control), notified under the Act and/ or any other applicable Indian Accounting
Standard as the case may be.

17.1.1 On and from the Appointed Date and subject to the provisions hereof, all assets,
liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company shall be recorded in the books of
account of the Transferee Company at their existing carrying amounts and in the same
form.

17.1.2 All equity shares of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company shall
stand cancelled without any further application, act or deed.

17.1.3 The difference, if any, between the investments held by the Transferee Company and
all assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company, will be transferred to
capital reserve.

17.1.4 To the extent that there are inter-company loans, advances, deposits, balances or
other obligations as between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company,
the obligation in respect thereof will come to an end and corresponding effect shall
be given in the books of accounts and records of the Transferee Company for the
reduction of any assets or liabilities as the case maybe and there would be no accrual
of interest or any other charges in respect of such inter-company loans, deposits or
balances, with effect from the Appointed Date.

17.1.5 In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company, the impact of the same till the Appointed Date will be
quantified and adjusted to the capital reserves, in the books of the Transferee
Company to ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect
the financial position on the basis of consistent accounting policy.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Immediately upon the effectiveness of Part IV of this Scheme, the Transferor Company shall
stand dissolved without winding up and the Board and any committees thereof of the
Transferor Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed be and stand
discharged. On and from the Effective Date, the name of the Transferor Company shall be
struck off from the records of the concerned RoC.

COMBINATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon Part IV of this Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the Transferor
Company as on the Effective Date will be combined with the authorised share capital of the
Transferee Company and accordingly the authorised share capital of the Transferee Company
shall stand increased without any further act, instrument or deed on the part of Transferee
Company including payment of stamp duty and fees to RoC.

The memorandum of association and articles of association of the Transferee Company
(relating to the authorized share capital) shall, without any further act, instrument or deed,

be and stand altered, modified and amended, and the consent of the shareholders of the
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19.5

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of
effecting this amendment, and no further resolution(s) under the applicable provisions of the
Act would be required to be separately passed, as the case may be, and for this purpose the
stamp duty and fees paid on the authorized capital of the Transferor Company shall be utilized
and applied to the increased authorized share capital of the Transferee Company.

Consequentially, Clause V of the memorandum of association of the Transferee Company shall
without any act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended, to reflect
the increased combined authorised share capital as per Clause 19.1 above, pursuant to
Sections 13, 61, 64, and other applicable provisions of the Act.

It is clarified that the approval of the shareholders of the Transferee Company to the Scheme
shall be deemed to be their consent/ approval also to the alteration of the memorandum and
articles of association of the Transferee Company as may be required under the Act.

The Transferee Company shall file with the RoC, all requisite forms and complete the
compliance and procedural requirements under the Act, if any.

PART V

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS
REMAINING BUSINESS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY

The Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and all the assets, investments, liabilities
and obligations of the Demerged Company, shall continue to belong to and be vested in and
be managed by the Demerged Company. With effect from the Effective Date, only the
Demerged Company shall be liable to perform and discharge all liabilities and obligations in
relation to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company shall not have any liability or obligation in relation to the Remaining
Business of the Demerged Company.

All legal, Tax and/ or other proceedings by or against the Demerged Company under any
statute, whether pending on the Effective Date or which may be instituted at any time
thereafter, and relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company (including those
relating to any property, right, power, liability, obligation or duties of the Demerged Company
in respect of the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company) shall be continued and
enforced against the Demerged Company. The Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall
in no event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal, Tax or other proceedings in
relation to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company.

If the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company is in receipt of any demand, claim, notice and/
or is impleaded as a party in any proceedings before any Appropriate Authority, in each case
in relation to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company shall, in view of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking,
pursuant to this Scheme, take all such steps in the proceedings before the Appropriate
Authority to substitute the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company with the Demerged
Company. However, if the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company, is unable to get the
Demerged Company so substituted in such proceedings, it shall defend the same or deal with
such demand in accordance with the advice of the Demerged Company and at the cost of the
Demerged Company and the latter shall reimburse the Resulting Company/ Transferee
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23.
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Company, against all liabilities and obligations incurred by or against the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company, in respect thereof.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ETC.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the resolutions/ power of attorney of/ executed
by the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking and the Transferor
Company, as the case may be, as considered necessary by the Board of the Demerged
Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking and the Transferor Company, as the case
may be, and that are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall continue to be valid and
subsisting and be considered as resolutions and power of attorney passed/ executed by the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company and if any such resolutions have any monetary limits
approved under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory provisions, then
said limits as are considered necessary by the Board of the Demerged Company and/ or the
Transferor Company, as the case may be, shall be added to the limits, if any, under like
resolutions passed by the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company, and shall constitute the
aggregate of the said limits in Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

DIVIDENDS

The Parties shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends to their respective shareholders in
the ordinary course of business, whether interim or final.

It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends (whether
interim or final) are enabling provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on
any shareholder of any of the Parties, as the case may be, to demand or claim or be entitled
to any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the Act, shall be entirely at the discretion
of the Board of respective Parties, and subject to approval, if required, of the shareholders of
the respective Parties.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UPTO THE EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the date of approval of the Scheme by the Board of the Parties and up to and
including the Appointed Date, the Demerged Company with respect to Demerged
Undertaking and the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on and shall
carry on its business and activities and shall be deemed to have held and stood possessed of
and shall hold and stand possessed of the assets for and on account of, and in trust for the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

23.2.1 The Transferor Company and the Demerged Company with respect to the Demerged
Undertaking, shall carry on their respective businesses with reasonable diligence and
business prudence and in the same manner as the Transferor Company and the
Demerged Company had been doing hitherto;

23.2.2 The Transferor Company and the Demerged Company with respect to the Demerged
Undertaking, shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the
Appropriate Authorities concerned as necessary under Applicable Law for such
consents, approvals and sanctions which the Resulting Company/ Transferee
Company may respectively require to carry on the relevant business of the Transferor
Company or the Demerged Company and to give effect to the Scheme.
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25.

25.1

25.2

23.2.3 For the purpose of giving effect to the order passed under Sections 230 to 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Act in respect of this Scheme by the Tribunal, the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall, at any time pursuant to the orders
approving this Scheme, be entitled to get the recordal of the change in the legal
right(s) upon demerger of the Demerged Undertaking and amalgamation of the
Transferor Company, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the
Act. The Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall always be deemed to have
been authorized to execute any pleadings, applications, forms, etc., as may be
required to remove any difficulties and facilitate and carry out any formalities or
compliances as are necessary for the implementation of this Scheme. For the purpose
of giving effect to the vesting order passed under Section 232 of the Act in respect of
this Scheme, the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall be entitled to
exercise all rights and privileges, and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil
all its obligations, in relation to or applicable to all immovable properties, including
mutation and/ or substitution of the ownership or the title to, or interest in the
immovable properties which shall be made and duly recorded by the Appropriate
Authority(ies) in favour of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company pursuant to
the sanction of the Scheme by the Tribunal and upon the effectiveness of this Scheme
in accordance with the terms hereof, without any further act or deed to be done or
executed by the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company. It is clarified that the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall be entitled to engage in such
correspondence and make such representations, as may be necessary, for the
purposes of the aforesaid mutation and/ or substitution.

PROPERTY IN TRUST

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, on or after Effective Date, until any
property, asset, license, approval, permission, contract, agreement and rights and benefits
arising therefrom pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking are transferred, vested, recorded,
effected and/ or perfected, in the records of any Appropriate Authority, regulatory bodies,
any third party, or otherwise, in favour of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company, the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company is deemed to be authorized to enjoy the property,
asset or the rights and benefits arising from the license, approval, permission, contract or
agreement as if it were the owner of the property or asset or as if it were the original party to
the license, approval, permission, contract or agreement. It is clarified that till entry is made
in the records of the Appropriate Authorities and till such time as may be mutually agreed by
the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company, the Demerged Company will continue to hold
the property and/ or the asset, license, permission, approval, contract or agreement and rights
and benefits arising therefrom, as the case may be, in trust for and on behalf of, the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company.

FACILITATION PROVISIONS

Immediately upon the Scheme being effective, the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company shall enter into agreements as may be necessary, inter alia in
relation to use of office space, land, building, manufacturing facilities, infrastructure facilities,
information technology services, security personnel, trademarks and other intellectual
property rights, legal, administrative and other services, etc. on such terms and conditions
that may be mutually agreed between them.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing Clause 25.1 above, immediately upon the
Scheme being effective, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company/ Transferee
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26.

26.1

26.2

27.

27.1

27.2

Company shall enter into necessary agreements whereby, the Demerged Company shall
provide shared services viz. accounting, tax, human resources, legal, secretarial, research and
development etc. to the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company on such terms and
conditions that may be mutually agreed between them.

Immediately upon the Scheme being effective, all brands, trademarks, logos, trade and
corporate name and such intellectual property rights common to the Scientific and Industrial
Products Business and the Remaining Business, shall be made available by the Demerged
Company for the use of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company, for such period as may
be mutually decided by the Boards of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company, without any charges/ fees/ levies/ costs.

The transactions of sale and purchase of products between the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company from the Appointed Date and until the Effective
Date, shall be recorded on an arm’s length basis in their respective books of accounts.

Immediately upon the Scheme being effective, the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company shall enter into necessary agreement(s) on mutually agreed
terms, for purchase and sale of the consumer products manufactured by the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company at Bharuch facility.

It is clarified that approval of the Scheme by the shareholders of the Parties under Sections
230 to 232 of the Act shall be deemed to have their approval under Section 188 and other
applicable provisions of the Act and Regulation 23 and other applicable regulations of SEBI
LODR Regulations and that no separate approval of the Board or audit committee or
shareholders shall be required to be sought by the Parties.

It is clarified that all guarantees provided by the Demerged Company in respect of the
Demerged Undertaking and the Transferor Company shall be valid and subsisting till adequate
arrangements/ guarantees have been provided in respect of the same by the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company.

APPLICATIONS/ PETITIONS TO THE TRIBUNAL

The Parties shall make and file all applications and petitions under sections 230 to 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Act before the Tribunal, for sanction of this Scheme under
the provisions of the Act.

The Parties shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to any Appropriate
Authority, if required, under any Applicable Law for such consents and approvals which the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company may require to own the assets and/ or liabilities of
the Transferor Company or the Demerged Undertaking, as the case may be, and to carry on
the business of the Transferor Company and the Demerged Undertaking, as the case may be.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THIS SCHEME

The Board of the Parties may make any modifications or amendments to this Scheme at any
time and for any reason whatsoever, or which may otherwise be considered necessary,
desirable or appropriate. The Board of the Parties may consent to any conditions or limitations
that the Tribunal or any other Appropriate Authority may impose.

For the purposes of giving effect to this Scheme, the Board of the Parties may give such
directions including directions for settling any question or difficulty that may arise and such
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28.1
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29.

29.1

29.2

29.3

directions shall be binding on all Parties as if the same were specifically incorporated in this
Scheme.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

Unless otherwise decided (or waived) by the relevant Parties, the Scheme is conditional upon
and subject to the following conditions precedent:

28.1.1 obtaining no-objection letter from Stock Exchanges in relation to the Scheme under
Regulation 37 of the SEBI LODR Regulations;

28.1.2 approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of each class of shareholders and
such other classes of persons of the Parties, as applicable or as may be required under
the Act and as may be directed by the Tribunal;

28.1.3 the sanctions and orders of the Tribunal, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act being
obtained by the Parties; and

28.1.4 certified/ authenticated copies of the orders of the Tribunal, sanctioning the Scheme,
being filed with the RoC having jurisdiction over the Parties.

Without prejudice to Clause 28.1 and subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions
mentioned in Clause 28.1 above, the Scheme shall be made effective in the order as
contemplated below:

28.2.1 Part Il of the Scheme shall be made effective;

28.2.2 Immediately upon effectiveness of Part Il of the Scheme, Part Il of the Scheme shall
be made effective; and

28.2.3 Immediately thereafter, Part IV of the Scheme shall be made effective.

It is hereby clarified that submission of this Scheme to the Tribunal and to the Appropriate
Authorities for their respective approvals is without prejudice to all rights, interests, titles or
defences that the respective Parties may have under or pursuant to all Applicable Laws.

On the approval of this Scheme by the shareholders and such other classes of Persons of the
said Parties, if any, the shareholders and classes of Persons shall also be deemed to have
resolved and accorded all relevant consents under the Act or otherwise to the same extent
applicable in relation to the demerger, amalgamation, capital reduction set out in this Scheme,
related matters and this Scheme itself.

WITHDRAWAL OF THIS SCHEME AND NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

Parties, acting jointly, shall be at liberty to withdraw the Scheme, any time before the Scheme
is effective.

In the event of withdrawal of the Scheme under Clause 29.1 above, no rights and liabilities
whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the Parties or their respective shareholders
or creditors or employees or any other Person.

In the event of any of the requisite sanctions and approvals not being obtained on or before
such date as may be agreed to by the Parties, this Scheme or relevant part(s) of this Scheme

52



30.

shall become null and void and each Party shall bear and pay its respective costs, charges and
expenses for and/ or in connection with this Scheme.

COSTS AND TAXES

All costs, charges and expenses (including, but not limited to, any taxes and duties, registration
charges, etc.) of the Parties, respectively in relation to carrying out, implementing and
completing the terms and provisions of this Scheme and/ or incidental to the completion of
this Scheme shall be paid by the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company.
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1 ANNEXUREII

a
CHATURVEDI [ESHAH ..,

Chartered Accountants
i}

m

Independent Auditor's Review Report on Unaudited Standalone Financial Results of the
Company Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,

The Board of Directors of
Borosil Limited

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited standalone financial results
of Borosil Limited (“the Company”) for the quarter ended 30" September, 2022 and for
the period from 1% April, 2022 to 30" September, 2022 (‘the statement”), attached
herewith, being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the
Listing Regulation”), as amended.

2. This statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's management and approved
by the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34,
Interim Financial Reporting (Ind AS 34) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to issue a report on the statement based
On our review.

3. We conducted our review of the statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagement (SRE) 2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the statement is free of material misstatement. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of Company personnel and an analytical procedure applied to
financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an
audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Head Otfice: 714-715, Tulsiani Chambers, 212, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel : +91 22 4163 8500 » Fax*
URL : www.cas.ind.in s 22 e pess

Branch : Bengaluru
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]

CHATURVEDI [ SHAH .»

Chartered Accountanls

|

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited standalone financial results,
prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and other recognized
accounting practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be
disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, including the
manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registrafion No. (D 1720W/W100355

AnujB
Partner
Membership No. 122179
UDIN No. 22122179BCUYRO7029

Place: Nagpur
Date: 11" November, 2022

Continuation sheet...
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BOROSIL LIMITED
CiIN: L36100MH2010PLC292722

Regd. Office : 1104, Crescenzo, G-Block, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Tel.No,(022) 67406300 Fax No.(022) 67406514 Website : www.borosil.com Email : borosil@borosil.com

UNAUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022
(Rs. in lakhs excepl as stated)

Standalone
$. No. |Particulars Quarter ended Half Year ended Year ended
(30/09/2022) | (30/06/2022) | (30/09/2021) | (30/09/2022)| (30/09/2021) [(31/03/2022)
Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Audited
L|income:
Revenue From Operalions 25,718.18 19,781.79 19,817.55 | 45489.97 31,532.08 75,041.45
Other Income 365.85 148.51 396.13 514.36 1,176.45 2,368.90
Total Income (1) 26,084.03 19,930.30 20,313.68 | 46,014.33 | 32,708.51 77,410.35
Il.|Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 3.757.69 227474 1.846.43 6,032.43 3.325.44 7.928.11
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 9,834.90 7,898.42 7.000.74 17,733.32 11,498.93 | 25613.96
Changes in Inventories of Waork-in-progress, (2,248.34) (2,620.84) (1,838.67)| (4,869.18) (4134,20)|  (5,202.28)
Finished Goods-and Stock-in-trade
Employee Benefits Expense 2,481.39 2,488.54 2,128.15 4,949.93 4,041.18 8,686.36
Finance Cosls 25.65 12.09 B.96 37.74 21.23 BO.52
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 623,61 620.56 696.52 1,244.17 1.382.63 2,713.49
Other Expenses 8,120.89° 7.147.71 §,508.75 15.268.60 11,229.17 2530247
Total Expenses (I) 22,575.79 17,821.22 | 16,350.88 | 40,397.01 | 27,364.38| 65,122.33
lll.|Profit Before exceptional items and Tax (I - 11) 3,508.24 2,109.08 3,962.80 5,617.32 5,344.13 12,288.02
IV, |Exceptional Items (Refer Note 2) - (508.06) 43.53 (508.08) 646.50 112117
V.|Profit Before Tax (lll - IV) 3,508.24 2,617.14 3,919.27 6,125.38 4,697.63 | 11,166.85
VI.|Tax Expense: )
(1) Current Tax 843.46 607.25 1,169.11 1,550.71 1,290.28 2 B27 57
(2) Deferred Tax {109.49) 3264 241.52 (76.85) 1,307.02 591.67
Total Tax Expenses 833.97 639.89 1.410.63 1.473.86 2,557.30 3.419.24
VI, | Profit for the Period [ Year (V - VI) 2,674.27 1,977.25 2,508.64 4,651.52 2,100.33 7,747.61
VIIl,|Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss:
a) Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined {7.03) (5.81) 2030 (12.84) 29.79 (24.83)
benefil plans
b) Incomie tax effect on above 1,77 1.49 {7.09) 3.26 (10.41) 825
Total Other Comprehensive Income (5.26) (4.42) 13.21 (9.68) 19.38 (18.58)
IX.| Total Comprehensive Income for the Period / 2,669.01 1,972.83. 2,5621.85 4,641.84 2.119.71 7.729.03
Year (VI + VIII)
X.|Paid-up Equity Share Capital (Face value of Re. 1,143.31 1,142.21 1,141,189 1,143.31 1,141.18 1,141 83
1l-each fully paid up) (Refer Note3)
XL [Other Equity excluding Revaluation Reserve 75,610.31
XIl.|Earning per equity share (in Rs,) (Face value of
Re. 1/- each)
Basic (Not Annualised)* 234" 1.73* 220" 407" 184" 679
Diluted (Not Annualised)® 234" 1.73"° 220" 407" 1.84° 679
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BOROSIL LIMITED
UNAUDITED STANDALONE SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022

(Rs. in lakhs)
Standalone
8. No.|Particuiars Quarter ended Half Year ended Year ended
(30/09/2022) | (30/06/2022) | (30/09/2021)|(30/05/2022)| (30/09/2021)|(31/03/2022)
Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Audited
1 |Segment Revenue : ) )
a. Sclentificware 4,786,44 4,909.00 4,203.20 9,695.44 7.444.27 17.741.30
b, Consumerware 20.931.74 14.872.79 15,714 35 35,804.53 24 087.79 57,300.15
Total 25,718.18 19,781.79 19,917.55 45,499.97 31,532.06 75,041.45
Less : inter Segment Revenue - - - - - -
Revenue from operations 25,718.18 19,781.79 19,917.55 45,499.97 31,532.06 75,041.45
2 |Segment Results (Profit before tax):
2. Sclentificware 830.57 827.88 1,243.18 1,758.45 1.656.61 397832
b. Consumerware 2,578.84 1,403.31 2,718,185 398215 3,274 46 7.280.61
¢ Invesimenis 128.22 7.85 90.72 136.07 54210 1,375.04
Totai 3,637.63 2.239.04 4,052.06 5,876.67 5473.17 12,643.97
Less:- Finance Cost 25.65 12,08 B.98 3774 21.23 80.52
Less:- Exceplional ltems (Refer Note 2) - (508.06) 43.53 (508.06) 646.50 112117
Less:- Other unallocable expenditure (net of income) 103.74 117.87 80.30 22161 107.81 27543
Profit before Tax 3,508.24 2,617.14 3.919.27 6,125.38 4,697.63 11,166.85
3 |Segment Assets
a.. Scientificware 11.388.66 10,324,88 9,102.41 11,388.66 9,102.41 10,669.38
b. Consumerware 57,700.13 44,023.64 32,921.36 §7,700.13 32,921.36 33,547.02
c. Invesiments 17.731.26 26,233.31 26,127.44 17.731.26 26,127 .44 29,509.13
d, Un-allocated 16,772.82 16,393.25 20,611.89 16,772.82 20.611.89 1B,454.90
Total 1,03,592.87 96,975.08 88,763.10 | 1,03,592.87 B8,763.10 | 92,180.43
4 [Segment Liabilities
a. Scientificware 3,280.60 3,286.01 3,056.76 3,280.60 3,056.76 349632
b. Consumernware 11,148.22 10,550.77 11,130.21 11,148.22 11,130.21 9,163.08
¢ Invesiments 87.79 60.27 78.01 87.79 78.01 54.92
d. Un-allocated 7,296.62 4,202 48 3,491.13 7.296.62 3.491.13 271417
Total 21,813.23 18,099.53 17,756.11 21,613.23 17,756.11 15,428.49
Note :

As per Indian Accounting Standard 108 on 'Operating Segment’ (Ind-AS 108), the Company has reporled "Segmenl Information”. as described

below:

Scientificware:- Comprising of manufacturing and trading ltems used in Laboratories and Scientific ware.
Consumerware:- Comprising of manufacturing and lrading items for Domeslic use.

Investments:- Comprising of Investment activities. As the investments are not held as slock in trade, the income fram invesiment activilies hHas not
been considered as segment revenue and accordingly not disclosed.

Unallocated:- Consists of income, expenses, assels and liabilities which can not be directly identified to any of the above segmenis.
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BOROSIL LIMITED

UNAUDITED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 30TH SEPTEMBER,

2022
(Rs. in lakhs)
Standalone
Particulars As at As at
(30/09/2022) | (31/03/2022)
Unaudited | - Audited
l. ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipmant 15,977.64 14,797.30
{b) Capilal work-In-progress 11,529.86 223185
(c) investment Property 105.46 10559
(d) Gooawill on Amalgamation 5,931.84 593184
(e) Other Intangible assets 26.50 2225
(f). Financial Assels
(i) Investments 12,967.11 13,121.86
(i) 'Loans 470.27 22.90
(iii} Others 682.96 45667
(0) ArtWorks 240.80 240.80
{h) Non Current Tax Assets (net) 645.06 645.02
() Othernon current assets 6.789.16 3,735.75
Total non current assets 55,366.66 41,311.83 |
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 23.126.77 1721111
(b) Financial Assels
(i) Investments 4,288.96 14,613.41
(i) Trade Receivables 10,744 44 6,032.63
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 557.25 2,235.83
(Iv) Bank Balances other than (jil) above 116.43 529.12
(v) Loans 36.01 1,538.47
(vl) Otners 408 48 408.24
(c) Other current assels 2,810.89 1,862.29
(d) Assets held for Sale 6.137.50 6.137.50
Total current assets 48,226.21 50,868.60
TOTAL ASSETS 1,03,592.87 92,180.43
ll. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 1,143.31 1,141.63
(b) Other Equity B0,636.33 76,610.31
Total equity §1,779.64 | 76,751.94
LIABILITIES
1 Non current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabililies
() Borrowings 183571 -
(i) Lease Liabllities 43951 118.41
(b} Deferred Tax Liabillties (net) 2,008.54 2,088.65
Total non eurrent liabillties 4,283.76 2,207.06
2 Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabllites
() Barrowings 1,699.86 -
(il) Lease Liabllities 62.69 0.65
(iil) Trade Payables )
A) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 2,475.82 1,491.14
B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 3,380.66 3,392.55
small enterprises
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 6,733.35 6.425.92
{b) Other current liabilities g72.50 640.37
(¢} Provisions 975.09 785.10
{d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 1,229.20 485.70
Total current liabilities 17,529.47 13,221.43
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1.03,592.87 92,180.43
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BOROSIL LIMITED

UNAUDITED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30TH

SEPTEMBER, 2022

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe Half | For the Half
Year Ended | Year Ended
(30/09/2022) | (30/08/2021)
Unaudited | Unaudited
A. | Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 6,125.38 4,697.63
Adjusted for: _ )
Depreciation and Amorfisation Expense 124417 1.382.63
Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions (net) (4.32) (11.25)
Gain on Financial Instruments measured at fair value through profit (17.51) (629.15)
or loss (net)
Loss / (Gain) on Sale of Investments (net) (113.24) 7
Dividend Income - (0.07)
Interest Income (99.63) (83.11)
Loss on Sale / discarding of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 2334 15.92
Investment Advisory Charges 0.87 16.28
Share Based Payment Expense 11661 '50.50
Finance Cosls 37.74 21.23
Sundry Balances / Excess provision Written Back (net) (26.96) (186.99)
Loss due to Fire and Flood (related to Property, plant and - 646.50
Eguipments)
Insurance Claim Received (508.06) ]
Bad Debts ) 0.28 295
Provision / (reversal) for Credit Impaired / doubtful advances (net) (122.49) 21.03
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 6,656.18 6,040.72
Adjusted for ;
Trade & Olher Receivables (5,682.20) (6,828.92)
Inveritories {5,915.66) (2,235:35)
Trade & Other Payables 1,160.94 4,285.39
Cash generated from operations (3,780.74) 1,261.84
Direct taxes paid (net) (807 25) (1,243.03)
Net Cash from / (Used in) Operating Activities (4,587.99) 18.81 |
B. |Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plantand Equipment (13,783.45) (1,520.07)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 11.24 14.84
Investments in Subsidiaries - (463.40)
Purchase of Investments (2,734 24)| (15,180.08)
Sale of Investments 13,535.66 21,321.72
Movement in Loans (net) 1.051.00 (1.285.23)
Invesiment Advisory Charges Paid (0.87) (23.48)
Income / Interest on Investment/Loans 186.02 $1.27
Insurance Claim Received 590.00 -
Dividend Received - 0.07
Net Cash From/ (used in) Invesling Activities {1,144.64) 2,915.66
C.|Cash Flow frem Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital 257.69 -
Praceeds of Non-current Borrowings 1,980.03 -
Movemenl in Current Borrowings (nef) 1,555.54 -
Lease Payments (20.59) ~(8.37)
Margin Money (net) 310,00 (1,107:23)
Dividend Paid - (1,141.19)
Interest Paid {28.64) (25.70)
Net Cash From / {used in) Financing Activities 4,054.03 (2,279.49)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (1,678.60) 654.98
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,235.83 564.72
Unrealised Gain/(loss) on Foreign Currency Transactions (net) (0.02) -
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,235.85 564.72
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 557.25

Unrealised Gain/(loss) an Foreign Currency Transactions (net)
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

1.218.70

1.219.70
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1. The above results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of
Directors at their respective meetings held on 11" November, 2022. The Statutory Auditors of
the Company have carried out a Limited Review of the above results.

2.  Exceptional items:

As reported earlier, Exceptional items (i) for the quarter ended 30" June, 2022 and for the half
year ended 30" September, 2022 represents receipt of claim amount of Rs.508.06 lakhs (net of
WDV), as a part settlement, from the Insurance Company in respect of fixed assets. i) for the
guarter and half year ended 30" September, 2021 pertains to loss of properties due to fire / flood
at the Company’s warehouse. (iii) for the year ended 31% March, 2022 represents provision for
impairment in respect of Capital work in progress & Investment Properties and loss of properties
due to fire / flood at the Company’s warehouses.

3.  Pursuant to exercise of the options under "Borosil Limited - Special Purpose Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020" and “Borosil Limited - Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2020", during the
quarter and half year ended 30" September, 2022, the Company has allotted 1,09,700 Equity
Shares and 1,68,140 Equity Shares respectively of the face value of Re. 1 each, which has
resulted into increase of paid up Equity Share Capital by Rs. 1.10 lakhs and Rs. 1.68 lakhs
respectively and Securities Premium by Rs. 260.43 lakhs and Rs. 387.47 lakhs respectively.

4.  The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 7" February, 2022, had approved a Composite
Scheme of Arrangement amongst the Company and Klass Pack Ltd (“KPL"), a subsidiary of the
Company, and Borosil Technologies Ltd ("BTL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
("Scheme’) inter alia for: (a) reduction and reorganization of share capital of KPL; (b) demerger
of Scientific and Industrial Product Business from the Company into KPL and consequent issue
of shares by KPL; and (c) amalgamation of BTL with KPL. The Appointed Date for the Scheme
is 1st April, 2022. Subsequent to receipt of Observation Letters from BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited conveying “no adverse observations / no-objection” on the
Scheme, the Company has filed Scheme Application with the National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench for necessary directions.

5. The figures for the previous period / year have been rearranged / regrouped, wherever
necessary, to make them comparable.

For Borosil Limited

Place: Mumbai (/V\/\v;\\r;;a/rgheruka

Date :11" November, 2022 Managing Director and CEO
(DIN 01802416)
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Independent Auditor's Review Report on Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results of the
Company Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,

The Board of Directors of
Borosil Limited

I.  We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited consolidated financial results
of Borosil Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the holding Company
and its subsidiaries together refer to as “the Group") for the quarter ended 30" September,
2022 and for the period from 1%t April, 2022 to 30" September, 2022 (‘the statement’),
attached herewith, being submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the requirement
of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2015 (“the Listing Regulation”), as amended.

e

This statement, which is the responsibility of the Holding Company's management and
approved by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard
34, Interim Financial Reporting (Ind AS 34) as prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the
statement based on our review.

). We conducted our review of the statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagement (SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. A review of interim financial information consists of making enquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and
other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that mlght be identified in
an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Head Office: 714-715, Tulsiani Chambers, 212, Nariman Point, Mumbal - 400 021, India. Tel ; +91 22 4163 8500 » Fax:+91 22 4163 8595
URL : www.cas.ind.in

Branch : Bengalury
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We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular no.
CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 issued by the Securilies and Exchange Board of India under
Regulation 33 (8) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, to the extent applicable

The statement includes the results of the entities listed as per below:
List of subsidiaries:

1. Klass Pack Limited

2, Borosil Technologies Limited

3. Acalypha Realty Limited

Based on our review conducted as above and procedures performed as stated in
paragraph 3 above and based on the consideration of the review reports of the other
auditors referred to in paragraph 6 below, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited consolidated financial results,
prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the
aforesaid Indian Accounting Standard and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation
33 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, including the manner in which it is to be
disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

We did not review the interim financial information/financial results of 3 subsidiaries
included in the unaudited consolidated financial results, whose interim financial
information/financial results reflect total assets of Rs. 12,578.38 Lakhs as at 30"
September, 2022, total revenue of Rs. 2,304.36 Lakhs and Rs. 5,122.26 Lakhs, net
profit/(loss) after tax Rs. (138.71) Lakhs and Rs. (167.91) Lakhs and total comprehensive
income of Rs. (136.51) Lakhs and Rs.(163.49) Lakhs for the quarter ended 30th
September, 2022 and for the period from 1st April, 2022 to 30th September, 2022
respectively, and cash inflow (net) of Rs. 22.29 Lakhs for the period from 1st April, 2022 to
30th September, 2022, as considered in the unaudited consolidated financial results.
These interim financial information/financial results have been reviewed by other auditors,
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our conclusion on the
statement, in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors and procedures performed

by us as stated in paragraph 3 above.

Continuation sheet...
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Our conclusion on the statement Is nol modified In respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of other auditors.

For Chaturved| & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration Nq. 101720W/W100355

Membership No. 122179
UDIN No. 22122179BCUZBE7625

Place: Nagpur
Date: 11" November, 2022

Continuation sheet...
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BOROSIL LIMITED

CIN: L36100MH2010PLC292722

Regd. Office : 1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051
Tel.No.(022) 67406300 Fax No.(022) 67406514 Website : www.borosil.com Email : borosil@borosil.com

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022
(Rs. in lakhs except as stated)

S. |Particulars Quarter ended Half Year ended Year ended
No. (30/09/2022)| (30/06/2022) | (30/09/2021)| (30/09/2022) | (30/09/2021) | (31/03/2022)
Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited Audited
I.{income:
Revenue From Operations 27,142.43 21,622.56 22,183.34 48,764.99 3597164 B83,886.16
Other Income 402.55 175.49 424.54 578.04 1,205.88 2,457 48
Total Income (1) 27,544.98 21,798.05 | 22,607.88 49,343.03 37,177.52 86,443.64
Il.|Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 4,787.61 3,443.14 3,212.97 8,230.75 5,800.01 13227.47
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 9,046.83 7.183.62 6,384.95 16,230.45 10,306.60 22,767.04
Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress, Finished (2,377.67) (2,711.34) (1,967.99) (5,089.01) (4,128.39) (5,202.35)
Goods and Stock-in-Trade
Employee Benefits Expense 2,916.11 291712 2,525.81 5,833.23 477577 10,277.36
Finance Costs 3123 1427 16.95 45.50 40.42 11183
Depreciation and Amoriization Expense 821,72 800.87 B859.03 1,822.59 1,707.93 3,383.47
Other Expenses 8,945.32 8,049.16 7.339.93 16,994 .48 12,735.88 28,556.57
Total Expenses (II) 24,171.15 19,696.84 | 18,341.65| 43,867,899 | 31,238.22 | 73,121.19
11| Profit before share of profit in associate, 3,373.83 2101.21 4,266.23 5,475.04 5,939.30 13,322.45
exceptional items and tax (I - 1I)
V.| Share of profit in associates - - - - - -
V.| Profit before exceptional items and tax (Il + V) 3,373.83 210121 4,266.23 5475.04 5,939.30 13,322.45
V. |Exceptional items (Refer Note 2) - (508.06) 43.53 (508.08) 646.50 112197
Vil.|Profit before tax (V - Vi) 3,373.83 2,609.27 4,222.70 5§,983.10 5,252.80 12,201.28
Vill.{ Tax Expense : _ _
(1) Current Tax 952.96 633.63 1,220.08 1,586.59 1.341.25 2,962,068
(2) Deferred Tax (104.84 34.19 27413 (70.65) 1,413.04 716.17
Total Tax Expenses 848,12 667.82 1,494.21 1,515.94 2,754.29 3,678.23
IX.| Profit for the period / Year (VII - VIII) 2,525.71 1,941.45 2,728.49 4,467.16 2,538.51 B,523.05
X.|Other Comprehensive Income’
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
a) Re-measuremenit gains / (losses) on defined (3.97) (2.83) 20.84 (6.80) 30.88 (12.54)
benefil plans
b) Income tax on above 0.91 063 (7:23) 1.54 (10.68) 2.81
Total Other Comprehensive Income (3.08) {2.20) 13.61 (5.26) 20.19 [9.73)
X1, | Total Comprehensive Income for the period / year 2,522.65 1,939.25 2,74210 4,461.90 2,558,70 8,513.32
{1X.+ X)
XII.| Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 2517.24 1,825.43 2,680.20 4,44267 2.443.98 8,373.03
Non-controlling interest B.4AT 16.02 48.29 24.49 94.53 150.02
Xill.|Other Comprehensive Income attributable to: _
Owners of the Company (3.49) (2.63) 13.53 (6.12) 20,03 (11.45)
Non-cantroliing Interest 043 043 0.08 0.86 0.16 1.72
XIV.|Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 251375 1,822.80 269373 4,436.55 2464.01 B,361.58
Non-controlling interest B.90 16.45 4837 25.35 94,89 151.74
XV.|Paid up Equity Share Capital (Face value of Re. 1/- 1,143.31 114221 1,141.19 1,143.31 1,141.19 1,141.63
each fully paid up) (Refer Note 3)
XVI.|Other Equity excluding revaluation reserve 75,581 17
XVIl.|Earning per Equity Share (Face value of Re. 1/-
each) (in Rs.) _
Basic (Not Annualised)* 2.20° 1.69* 235 389" 2.14* 7.34
Diluted {Not Annualised)* 220" 1.689* 2.35°* 388" 214 * 7.34
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BOROSIL LIMITED
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED 30TH SEPTEMEBER, 2022

= {Rs. in lakhs)
S. (Particulars arter e Half Yearended | Year ended |
No. (30/09/2022)| (30/06/2022) | {30/09/2021)| (30/09/2022) | (30/09/2021) | (31/03/2022)
Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited Audited
1|Segment Revenue :
a. Scientificware B,210.69 6,749.77 6,468.99 12,960.46 11,863.85 26,686.01
b. Consumerware 20,931.74 14,872.79 15,714.35 35,804.53 24,087.79 57,300.15
Total 27,142.43 21,622.56 22,183.34 48,764.99 35,971.64 83,986.16
Less : Inter Segment Revenue - - - - - -
Revenue from operations 27,142.43 21,622.56 22,183.34 48,764.99 35,971.64 83,986.16
2|Segment Results (Profit before tax and non-controlling interests):
a. Scientificware 807.51 822.51 1.557.62 1.630.02 2,280.24 5,053.50
b. Consumerware 2,578.84 1,403.31 2.718.15 3,982.15 3,274.46 7,290.61
c. Investmenits 122.45 7.53 87.71 129.98 532.83 1,365.40
Total 3,508.80 2,233.35 4,363.48 5,742.15 6,087.53 13,709.51
Less:- Finance cost 31.23 1427 16.95 45.50 40.42 111.63
Less:- Exceptional ltem (Refer Note 2) - (508.08) ‘43,53 (508.08) 546.50 1,121.17
Less:- Other unallocable expenditure (net of income) 103.74 117.87 80.30 221,61 107.81 27543
Profit before Tax 3,373.83 2,609.27 4,222.70 5.983.10 5,292.80 12,201.28
3|Segment Assets
a. Scientificwara 23,311.01 22,108.44 18,792.27 23,311.01 18,792.27 22,264.00
b. Consumerware 57,700.13 44,023.84 32,921,386 57,700:13 32,921.36 33,547.02
c. Investments 8.121.65 16,958.69 18,965.08 8,121.65 18,965.08 20,354.69
d. Un-allocated 17.964.53 17,560.02 21,730.31 17.964 53 21.730.34 19,523 80
Total 1,07,097.32 | 1,00,650.79 92,409.02 | 1,07,097.32 92,409.02 95,689.51
4|Segment Liabilities
a, Scientificware 5,295.42 5,164.35 5,032.72 5,295.42 5,032,72 543212
b. Consumerware 11.148.22 10.550.77 11.130.21 11.148.22 11.130.21 8.163.08
c. Invesimenis 87.79 6027 78.01 87.79 78.01 54 92
d. Un-allocated 7.393.07 4,460.31 393220 7,393.07 3,932.20 2,714.33
Total 23,924.50 20,235.70 20,173.14 23,924.50 20,173.14 17,364.45
Note

As per Indian Accounting Standard 108 on ‘Operating Seament’ (Ind-AS 108), (he Company has reported "Segment information”, as described

below:

Scientificware:- Comprising of manufacturing and trading of items used in Laborataries, Scientific ware and pharmaceutical packaging.
Consumerware:- Comprising of manufacturing and trading of items for Domestic use.
Investments:- Comprising of Investment activities. As the investments are not held as stock in trade, the income from investment activities has not
been considered as segment revenue and accordingly not disclosed.

Unallocated:- Consisls of Income, expenses, assets and liabilities which can nol be directly identified to any of the above segments.
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BOROSIL LIMITED

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 30TH

SEPTEMBER, 2022

(Rs. in lakhs)
Consolidated
Particulars As at As at
(30/09/2022) | (31/03/2022)
Unaudited Audited
l. ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets
(a) Proparty, Plant and Equipment 2216552 20,699.21
{b) Capital work-in-progress 12,128.01 2,497.76
(c) Investment Praperty 105.46 105.59
(d) Gooduwill 6,767.07 8,767.07
(e) Other Intangible assets 43,13 37.20
(f) Financial Assets )
(I} Investments 3.811.20 3.965.95
(i) Loans 2127 23.44
(iiiy Others 791.73 508,66
(g) Defarred Tax Assets (net) 21819 22611
(h) Art Works 240.80 240.80
(i) Non-current lax assets (net) 78224 65147
{i) Other non-current assets 7,542.37 4.199.30
Total non-current assets 54,617.99 39,922.56
2 Current Assefs
(a) Inventories 25431.24 19,333.50
(b) Financial Assets
I Investments: 4,869.15 15,726.55
(i) Trade Receivables 11,575.15 7.430.91
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 597,78 2,254.07
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 203.29 609.80
(v) Loans 44.80 1,547.99
(vl) Others 577.50 58591
(c) Other current assets 3,042.92 2,140.72
(d) Assets held for sale 6.137.50 6,137.50
Total current assets 52,479.33 55,766.95
TOTAL ASSETS 1I0?!097..32 95,689.51
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 1,143.31 1,141.63
(b) Other Equity 80,401.90 75.581.17
Equity attributable to the owners 81,545.21 76,722.80
Non-controlling interest 1,627.61 1.602.26
Total Equity 83,172.82 | 78,325.06
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabliities
(i) Borrowings 1,835.71 -
fii) Lease Liabilities 600.16 118.41
(b) Provisions 285.67 280.35
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 2,008.54 2.088.65
Total non-currant liabilities 4,740.08 2,487.41
2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities )
() Borrowings 1.796.22 -
(i) Lease Liabilitles 14121 D.65
{iil) Trade Payables
A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 2,563.70 1,466.01
entemprises
B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 3,881.92 424377
enterprises and small enterprises
~ (iv) Other Financial Liabllities 7,300.38 6,951,45
(b) Other current liabilities 1,030.88 796.14
(c) Provisions 1,140.91 933.32
(d). Currenl Tax Liabililies (Nat) 1,228.20 485.70
Total current liabilities 19,184.42 14,877.04 |
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,07,097.32 95,689.51
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BOROSIL LIMITED

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE HALF YEAR

ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Half | For the Half
Year Ended | Year Ended
(30/09/2022) | (30/08/2021)
Unaudited Unaudited
A.| Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax as per Consolidated Statement of Profil and Loss 5,983.10 5.292.80
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 1,622.59 1,707.93
Gain on Forelgn Currency Transactions (net) (10:91) (13.49)
Dividend Income - (0.07)
Interest Income (99.00) {57.58)
Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Investiments (net) (120.23) 7781
Gain on Financial Instruments measured at fair value through profit o (27.57) (629.15)
loss (net)
Loss on Sale / discarding of Property, Plant and 23.64 15.92
Equipment (net)
Investmenl Advisory Charges- 0.87 16,29
Share Based Payment Expense 128.16 56.75
Finance Costs 45.50 40.42
Sundry Balances / Excess Provision Written Back (net) (26.53) (186.99)
Loss due to Fire and Flood (related to Property, plant and Equipments - 646.50
Insurance Claim Received (508.08) -
Bad Debts 0,36 295
Provision / (reversal) for Credit Impaired / Doubtful Advances (net) (122.49) 33.26
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 6,889.43 7,002.85
Adjusted for :
Trade and Other Receivables (5,247.16) (6,913.92)
Inventories (6,097.74) (2,152.40)
Trade and Other Payables 965.11 4.008.14
Cash generated from Operations (3,490.36) 1,844.67
Direct Taxes Paid (net) (973:886) (1.324.80)
Net Cash from / (Used in) Operating Activities (4,464.22) 619.77
B.[Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (14,784.81) (2,099.21)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 31.69 14.84
Purchase of Invesiments (2,734.24)|  (15,180.08)
Sale of Investments 13,885.66 21.321.72
Movement in Loans (net) 1,500.00 (1,500.00)
Investment Advisory Charges Paid (0.87) (23.48)
Income / Interest on Investment / Loans 195.77 47.44
Insurance Claim Received 590.00 -
Dividend Received - 0.07
Net Cash from / (Used in) Investing Activities (1,316.80) 2,581.32
C.|Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 257,69 -
Proceeds from Non-current Borrowings 1,980.03 -
Repayment of Non-current Borrowings - (126.96)
Movement in Current Borrowings (net) 1,651.90 (160.10)
Margin Money (net) 303.82 (1:108.90)
Lease Payments (36.34) (10.09)
Dividend Paid a (1,141.19)
Interest Paid (32.38) (46.28)
Net Cash From / (used in) Financing Activities 412472 (2,593.52)
Net Increase | {Decrease) in Cash and Cash (1,656.30) B07.57
Equivalents (A+B+C)
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,254.07 652.30
Unrealised Gain / (loss) on Foreign Currency Transactions {nef) (0.08) -
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,25413 652.30
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 597.78 1,259.87
Unrealised Gain / (loss) on Foreign Currency Transactions (net): (0.05) -
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 597.83 1,259.87
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1.  The above results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of
Directors at their respective meetings held on 11" November, 2022. The Statutory Auditors of
the Company have carried out a Limited Review of the above results.

2.  Exceptional items:

As reported earlier, Exceptional items (i) for the quarter ended 30" June, 2022 and for the half
year ended 30" September, 2022 represents receipt of claim amount of Rs.508.06 Iakhs (net of
WDV), as a part settlement, from the Insurance Company in respect of fixed assets. ii) for the
quarter and half year ended 30" September, 2021 pertains to loss of properties due to fire / flood
at the Company's warehouse. (iii) for the year ended 31" March, 2022 represents provision for
impairment in respect of Capital work in progress & Investment Properties and loss of properties
due to fire / flood at the Company's warehouses.

3. Pursuant to exercise of the options under “Borosil Limited - Special Purpose Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020" and “Borosil Limited - Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2020", during the
quarter and half year ended 30" September, 2022, the Company has allotted 1,09,700 Equity
Shares and 1,68,140 Equity Shares respectively of the face value of Re. 1 each, which has
resulted into increase of paid up Equity Share Capital by Rs. 1.10 lakhs and Rs. 1.68 lakhs
respectively and Securities Premium by Rs. 260.43 lakhs and Rs. 387.47 lakhs respectively.

4.  The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 7" February, 2022, had approved a Composite
Scheme of Arrangement amongst the Company and Klass Pack Ltd (“KPL"), a subsidiary of the
Company, and Borosil Technologies Ltd (“BTL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(‘Scheme’) inter alia for: (a) reduction and reorganization of share capital of KPL; (b) demerger
of Scientific and Industrial Product Business from the Company into KPL and consequent issue
of shares by KPL; and (c) amalgamation of BTL with KPL. The Appointed Date for the Scheme
is 1st April, 2022. Subsequent to receipt of Observation Letters from BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited conveying “no adverse observations / no-objection” on the
Scheme, the Company has filed Scheme Application with the National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench for necessary directions.

5. The figures for the previous period / year have been rearranged / regrouped, wherever
necessary, to make them comparable.

For Borosil Limited

a

Place: Mumbai Shreevar Kheruka
Date :11" November, 2022 Managing Director and CEO
(DIN 01802416)
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ANNEXURE I

Pathak H.D. f Associatesup

~" Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONDENSED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
To,

The Board of Directors
Klass Pack Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Condensed Financial Statements of KLASS PACK LIMITED
(‘the Company”), which comprise the Condensed Balance Sheet as at 30" September, 2022 and
the Condensed Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Condensed Statement of Changes in Equity and the Condensed Statement of Cash Flows for the
six months period then ended, and notes to the Condensed Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information thereon (collectively
hereinafter referred to as “Condensed Financial Statements’). The Condensed Financial
Statements have been prepared by the Management of the Company in connection with proposed
Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (‘Demerged Company”), Klass Pack
Limited (*Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company”) and Borosil Technologies Limited
("Transferor Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Condensed Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 30" September, 2022 and its profit including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and its cash flows for the six months period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Condensed Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Condensed Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAT’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Condensed
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on the Condensed Financial Statements.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Condensed Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Condensed Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the recognition and measurements
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34, ‘Interim Financial Reporting’
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Head Office: ¢ 711, [ulsiani Chambers, 212, Nariman Point, Mumb
URL: www.phd.ind.in

+ 91 22 4603 2839 to 41
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" Chartered Accountants

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Condensed Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Condensed Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Condensed Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Condensed Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Condensed Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Condensed
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
.~ However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
- | congern.

/ ¥
/|
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Condensed Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Condensed Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

*  We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 46 and Note 47 to the Condensed
Financial Statements, which describe the purpose and basis of preparation. The Condensed
Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company’s Management solely for the purpose as
mentioned in the ‘Opinion’ paragraph above and accordingly, the Condensed Financial Statements
may not be suitable for any another purpose. It should not be used by parties other than the
Company or the Transferor Company or the Demerged Company. It should not be distributed for
any purpose other than to meet the legal/regulatory requirements. We do not accept or assume
any liability or duty of care to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other Matter

Attention is drawn to the fact that the figures for the period ended 30t September, 2021 are based

on previous financial results that were reviewed by us. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 107783W/ W100593

Pt

Mukesh Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 043495 I3 (
UDIN: 22043495BFRTO09951| =

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13.12.2022

72 Continuation sheet.



KLASE PACK LIMITED

CONDENSED BALANGE SHEET AS AT 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Note As at As at
Mo. 30th Septembar 2022 31st March, 2022
L. ASSETS
1 Non-curront Assots
(a) Prapedy, Plant and Equipment L] 5,630.87 §,586.11
(b) Capitel Woik-in-progress 5 467 49 20691
{c) Other Intangible Assats 8 . =
(d) Financal Assetls
) Investments 7 111 1,11
i}  Other Financial Assats 8 77.70 32.08
(&) Defened Tax Assels (nef) 8 166.96 183.01
{) Non-Current Tax Assels (nel) 13577 534
{3) Other Non-cument Assels 10 753.21 743347 462,62 6,5847.08
2 Current Assets
(2} Inventories 11 1,802.39 1,851,088
{b) FinangalAssele
iy Investments 12 580,19 913,14
(i}  Trade Recelvables 13 95006 1,490.45
(i}  Cash and Cash Equivalenis 14 2577 1297
() Bank Balances Qher [han (i) above 16 86.86 BD.68
{v} Loans 16 621 6.08
{vi}  Otlher Financial Assels 17 107.75 100,34
{c) Other Cument Assels 18 160.66 4,000.18 147,27 4,692.61
TOTAL ASSETS 11,133.35 11,239.62
Ik EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(2} Equity Share Capital 19 1.632.95 1,632.85
{b) Gther Equity 20 7.602.38 9,208,34 7.517.60 9,160.58
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current Liabllides .
fa) Frovisions - i o 18 277.02 28539 26529
2 Gurrent Liabiiitles
{8) Financial Liabjitiss
(i  Bomowings 22 96.36 -
{8}  Tiede Payables 23
A} Due to Micre end Small Enterprises 118,75 128.10
£) Due ta Other than Micre end Small 715.02 879.40
Enterprises
834,77 1.008.60
(i)}  Ofher Finencial Liabilities 24 441,37 538,80
{b) Other Current Liablitles 25 4943 148.48
{&) Provisions 26 13008 1,560.99 125.60 1,8232.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,133,365 —11,239.89
Significant Actounting Paoticies and Notos 11048
to Financial Slatementls
As per our Repont of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Dizeciors
For PATHAK H.D, & ASSOCIATES LLP !
Charlered Asesuntanis &\ !
(Firm Reglsiration No. 107783W /W100803) VWA —~—F( S ot
Shreevar Kheruka Pr
M/J—’_:‘i«-’ Direclor Managing Director
{DIN 01802416) {DIN 00826078)
Mukesh hehia ;
Parner
Membarship No. 43495 272 & AGS CH %
NSO An Chaltanya Chauhan
Place - Mumbai & "’;\n Chiaf Financlal Officer Company Secratary
Date :13.12.2022 ML 3 o {Membership No. ACS-51896)

¢

=
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KLASS PACK LIMITED

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022

Note Forthe For the
Particulars No. Feriod Ended Parlod Endod
8s h 021
L Income
Reavenue from Operations 27 4,850.55 5,149.24
Cither Income 28 66. 41.95
Total Ineome (1) 3,716,891 519147
Il Expenses;
Cosl of Raw Materials Consumed 2,250.92 228556
Changes in Invenlones of Work-In-Progress and Finished goods 28 (271.13) 18.15
Employee Benefits Expense 30 857.72 574,23
Finance Costs 31 4.42 19.24
Depreciation end Amorisation Expensa 32 338.10 296,64
Ofther Expansas 33 1,539.88 1,378.64
Total Expenses (i) 4,627.00 4,672.46
lil. Profit Bolore Tax (1 - i) 189.91 618,71
IV. Tax Exponse: 9
{1) Cutrent Tax 35.88 50.97
(2) Deferred Tax e AR I
v' P'ﬂﬂt hr lhg W'lOd ,,aaf (m . M HI=M tlw
Vi, Other Compighenslve Income (OCH)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement galns / (losses) on Defined Benefit Plans 6,81 1.06
fncome Tax effeci on above (1.89) (0.28)
Vil Total comprnhnnuln tncoma for the Mod !ycar IV i Vl’ =l_%&l m&
VIl Earnings per Equity Sharo of Re.100/- each {in Rs.) (Hot 34
Annualizod)
- Basic 857 33.06
- Diluted 857 33.08
Significant Accounting Policies and Noles ilo48
to Financig! Statemenis
For PATHAK H.D. & ASSOCIATES LLP
Crarlered Accountants lL !
{Firm Registration No, 107783W I W100583) R
Shreevar Kheruka in
Y\ﬁ’wf&’J Direclor Managing Director
(DI 01802418) (DIN 00626079)
Mukesh Mahta
Pariner
Mernbership No, 43495 al
" o e
Anurag Jain Chaltanya Chauhan
Placa : Mumbai (Chief Financial m} cdﬂwm Secretary

Date :13.42.2022
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KLASS PACK LIMITED
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022

(Rs. in lakhs)
For the period ended
30th September, 2021

For the period ended
30th September, 2022

PARTICULARS
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss

189.91 618.71
Ad]usted for:
Depreciation and Amoriisation Expense 336.19 206.64
Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions (net) (6.54) 1.54
Gain on Sale of Investments (net) (6.99) E
Loss / (Gain) on Financlal Instruments measured at fair value through (10.08) -
profit or loss (net)
Prouision for Credit Impaired / Doubtful Advances (net) - 12.23
Bad Debts 0.08 -
Guarantee Commission - 1.23
Finance Cost- 4.42 19.24
Share Based Payment Expense 6.88 323.08 518 305.06
Operating Profit bofore Working Capital Changes 513.89 854.77
Adjusted for :
Trade and Other Receivables 472.80 (60.52)
Inventaries (140.71) 163.56
Trade and Other Payables (329.23) 245.83
Cash generated from Operations 516.75 811.98
Direct Taxes Paid (net) (166.31) 82.53
Net Cash Flow From | (used in) Operating Activiiles 350.44 729.45
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (774.03) (485.07)
Sale of Investments 350.00 (0.12)
Net Cash Flow From | (used in) Invasting Activities !454.03! £4B's.19]
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activilies

Repayment of Non-current Borrowings - (126.96)
Movements in Current Borrowings (net) 96.36 (160.10)
Margin Money (net) (6.18) (1.687)
Guarantee Commission Paid = (1.23)
Finance Cost Paid B 2058
et Cash Flow From I (used in) Financing Actlvities See— e SiEEA 310.54
Net Incroase / (Decrease) in Cash and Gash Equivalents (A+B+C) 12.85 (66.28)
Opening Balance of Gash and Cash Equivalents 12.97 7347
Unrealised Loss / (Gain) on Foreign Currency Transactions (net) - -
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 12.87 7347
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 26.77 6.89
Unrealised Loss / (Gain) on Foreign Currency Transactions (net) (0.05) -
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 26.82 6.89
Notes :

1 Ghanges in liabilities arising from financing activities on account of Non-current and Gurrent Borrowings: (Rs. In Elgg\?_
Particulars rlod For the Peria

ended 30th ended 30th
September, 2022 September, 2021

Opening balance of liabilities arising from financing activities . 726,96
Add: Changes from financing cash flows 096.36 (287.06)
Closing balance of liabilities arising from finaneing activities 06.36 439.€0

2 Bracket Indicates cash outflow.

3 Previous period figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
4 The above statement cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirgct Method" as set oul in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flow".

As per our Report of even date

For PATHAK H.D. & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 107783W / W100593)

pra—
Mukesh Nehta

Pariner ;
Membership No. 43495

Place : Mumbai
Date :13.12.2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A
Shreevar Kheruka

Dirgclor
(DIN 01802416)

*-’A“-r'!_ﬁi's;; Jain
(Chief Financial Officer)
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A"
Chaitanya Chauhan

Company Secretary
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KLASS PACK LIMITED
Notes to the Condensed Financlal Statements for the Period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Klass Pack Limited ("the Company") (CIN U74299MH1991PLC061851) is & public limited Company domiclled and
incorporated in India. It is 2 unlisted Company. The ragistered office of the Company Is situated at 1101, 11ih Floor,
Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra {East), Mumbai, India - 400 051.

The Company is a leading manufaciurer of Glass Ampoules and Tabular Glass Vials used 88 primary packaging
materials by pharmaceulical companies.

The Financlal Statements of the Company for the period ended 30th September, 2022 were approved and adopted by
Board of Directors in their meeting held on 13.12.2022.

Note 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The Financlal Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Actounting Standards (Ind
Asl). as nofified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

The Financlal Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain finencial assets and
liabilities, which are measured at feir value / amortised cost,

The Financial Statemenls are presented in Indlan Rupees (Rs.), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency and ali values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Note 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
3.4 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, net of recoverable faxes, frade discount and rebates less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost Includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly
attributable to the bringing the assets 1o its working condition for its intended use. In case of Propery, Plent end
Equipment, the Company has avalled the carrying value as deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided using straight line method over the useful life of assels as
specified in schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment which are added /
dispesed off during the period Is provided on pro-rata baals with reference to the date of addition / deletion. Freehold
land iz not depreciated.

The assets' residual values, useful fives and method of depreclation are reviewed at each financial year end and are
adjusted prospectively, if appropriale.

Capilal work-in-progress inciudles cost of property. plent and equipment under installation / under development as at the
balance sheaet date.

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, élther on digsposal or when reflred from active
use. Profits / losses arising in the case of retirement / disposal of propery, plant and equipment are recognised in the
statement of profit and 1035 in the year/period of occurrence.

Leasehold land is emortised over the period of lease. Bulldings constructed on leasehold land are depreciated based on
the useful life specified in schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, where the lease period of land Is beyond the life of
the buliding. In other cases, buildings ¢onstructed on leasehold land is amortised aver the primary lease period of the
land.

3.2 Intangible Assets :
intangible assets are carried at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated amoriisation
and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attibutable to the acquisition of the intangible
assels. In case of intengible Assets, the Company has availed the camying value as deemed cost on the date of
transition i.e. 1st April, 2016.
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when It is probable thal future economic benefits attributed to the asset will
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured,
Computer softwarss are capitalised at the amounts paid to scquire the respective license for use and are amertised over
the period of useful lives or period of three years, whichever is less. The assets' useful lives and method of amortisation
are reviewed at each financlal year end and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,
Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured ag the difference between the nel
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and ere recognised in the slatement of profit and loss when the
essel is derecognised, it
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KLASS PACK LIMITED
Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements for the Period ended 30th September, 2022

3.3 Leases:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies fo be s lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. identification of

a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the Jease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the appl

icable discount rate. The Gompany determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a |ease, together with both periods covered by an options to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that options; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company Is reasonably
ceriain not 1o exercise that options. In assessing whether the company is reasonably certain lo exercise an option to
extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all refevant facts and circumstances that
crate an sconomic incentive for the Company o exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to
lerminate the lease. The Company revises the lsase term If there Is a change in the non-cancellable perled of a lease,

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being svaluated or for a
portfolio of leaseas with similar characteristics.

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primaiily consist of leases for land and buildings, The Cornpany assesses whether
a contract containg & fease, at inception of a contract, A contract is, or contains, 8 lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a perlod of time In exchange for consideration. To assess whether a centract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the peviod of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU" and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is @ lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value lesses, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-ling basis over the temm of the [ease.

Certain lease arrangements Includes the options to extend or terminats the lease belore the end of the lease term. ROU
assels and lease liabilites includes these options when it Is reasonably certaln that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease fiablfity adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any inilial direct costs less any
tease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assels are depreciated from the commencement date on a siraight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underying asset. Right of use assels are evalualed for recoverabllity whenever events or
changes In circumstances Indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assels. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The !gase Hlability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabiliies are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right of use assel If the Company changes its assessment If whether it will exercise an
extension or a termination oplion.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Lease liablity and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operaling lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease,
Al otner Izases ara classified a5 operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate {essor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately.
The sublease Is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right- of-use asse! arising from the head
lemse.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

288
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3.4 inventorles:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable vaiue except scrap (cullet), which is valued at net realizable

value, r?at realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completior: and the estimated costs necessary (0 make the sele. The cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the Inventories to their res;

pective present location and condition,
Cost of raw materials, stores, spares and consumables and packing materials

! are computed on the weighted average
basis. Cost of work in progress and finished goods Is determined on absorption costing method.

3.6 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance shest comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an
origlnal maturlty of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vaive.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short

~-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management,

3.6 Impalrment of non-financial assets - property, plant and equipment and intangible assats:

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any Indication that any property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets or group of assets, called cash generating units (CGU) may be impaired, If any such
indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any.
When It is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impalrment loss Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss o the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is based on the estimated fulure cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and rigk specific to the assels.

The impairment 108§ racognised in prior accounting perlod is reversed if there has been a change In the estimate of
recoverable amount,

3.7 Discontinued operation and non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sala:
Discontlhued operation:
A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed off or is classified as held for sale and
that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, Is part of a single co-ordinated plan
1o dispose off such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exelusively with a view to resale,
The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit or loss,

Non-current assets {or disposal groups) held for sale;

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when a sale is highly probable
from the date of classification, management are committed to the sale and the asset is avaifable for immediate sale inits
present condition. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale from the dete these conditions are met and are
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value lase cost to sell. Any resulting impairment loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss &s a separate ling item. On classification as held for sale, the assets are no longer

depreciated. Assats and liabifities classified as held for sale are prasented separately as current tems in the Balance
Sheet.
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3.8 Financial instruments - Initial recognition
A finsncial instrument is any contract that
Instrument of another entity.

» subsequent measutement and Impairment:
glves rise ta a financial asset of one entity and a flnancial limbility or equity

l) Financlal agsets -Initial recognition and meagurement:
All financial assets are inilially recognized at fair value. Transaciion costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition
or |ssug of financlal assets, which are nat at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial

recognition. Financial assels are classified, at inftial recognition, as financial assels measured at fair value or as firancial
assats measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad calegories:-
a) Financial assels at fair value

b) Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, geins and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and

loss (i.e fair value through profit or 10ss), or recognisad in other comprahensive Income {i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive income)

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions Is measured at amortised cast (net of any write down for
impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option,

a} Business model test: The objeclive of the Company’s business mode!l is to hold the financial asset to collect the
contractual cash flow.

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dales to cash flow
that are solely paymenits of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanging,

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
Income unless the assel is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the falr value option,

a) Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
colleating contractual cash flow and seliing financial asssts.

b} Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow
that are solely payments of principal and inlerest on the principal amount outstanding,

All other financial asset Is measured at fair value through profit or 1053,

Financial assets - Derecognitlon:

A financial assels (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assels) is
primarily derecognlsed {i.e. removed form the Company's statement of financial position) when;

a) The rights o recejve cash flows from the asset have expired, of

b) The Company has transferred Its rights to receive cash flow from the asset,

Impalrment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company uses 'Expecled Credif Loss’ (ECL) mode!, for evaluating impaltment of
financial assets other than those measured at fair valus through profit and loss {(FVTPL),

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount egual to:

a) The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that resull from those default events on the financial
Instrurent that are possible within 12 months sfter the reporiing date); or

b) Full lilatime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of
the financlal Instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach® which requires expecled |ifetime 10sses to be recognised
frominitial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the
portfolio of trade receivables. At every reparting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the
forward looking estimates are analysed.

For other assels, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant

increase in credit risk. If there Is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.
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11} Financial liabilltles - Initial recognition and measurement:

The financial liabilities are recognised Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly atiributable transaction costs,

Financlal liabliities - Subsequent measurement:
Financial liablfities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective Interest method. For trade and

other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, thes carying amounts approxirnate falt value due
to the short maturity of these Insiruments.

Financial Liabllties - Financial gitarantes contracts:

Financlal guarantes contracts issued by the Company are those confracte that require a payment to be made to
relmburse the hoider for @ l0ss 1t incurs because the specified debtor falls to make a payment when due in accordance
with the tarms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a fiability &t falr valug,
adjusted for fransaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee, Subsequently, the liability is

measured at the higher of the amount of loss sllowance determined and the amount recognised less cumulative
amorisation.

Financial Liabilities - Darecagnition:

A financial liabllity is derecognised wnen the obligation under the liabiity is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liabliity Is replaced by ancther, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liabllily are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognition of the

original hability and the recognition of a new liabliity, The difference in the respective carrying amounts |s recagnised in
the statement of profit and loss.

3.9 Provislons, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) &s a result of a past evert,
Itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, If the effect of the time valug of money Is material,
provisions are discounted using equivalent period government securilies interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 25 a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Gonlingent liabllities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from pasl evenis, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-ccourrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where It Is either not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required fo settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on cortingent
liability Is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets ara not recognised. However, when the
reatisation of incotne is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an
assel,

3.0 Dividend Distribution:
Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the petiod in which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Diregtors. Dividend
payable and correésponding tax on dividend distibution is recognised direclly in other edquity.
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3,11 Revenue recognition and other income:
Sale of goods and Services:
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of products comprising of Glass Ampoules and Tabular Glass Vials
used as primary packaging materials by pharmaceautical companies.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are (rapsferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitied in exchange for those goods or services. Generally,
control Is transfer upan shipment of goods fo the customer or when the goods is made available to the customer,
provided transfer of title lo the customer occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or
fulure obligations with respect to the goods shipped.
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over the lime by measuing the progress towards complete
satisfaction of perfermance obligations at the reporting period,
Revenue i$ measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitied to in exchange for
iransferring distinct goods or gervices to a cusiomer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts coliected on behalf
of third parties (for example taxes and dutles collected on behalf of the government). Conslderation Is generally due
upon satisfaction of performance obligalions and a recelvable is recognized when it becomes unconditional,

The Company does not have any contracts where the period between the iransfer of the promised goods or senvices to
the cusiomer and paymeni by the customer exceeds one year. As a conssquence, it does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts,

perfarmance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue
also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract balances

Trade receivables:

A raceivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration thal is unconditional,

Contract liabilities:

A confract liabllity is the obligation to {rensfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 2 contract liabllity Is recognised when the payment (8 made.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Gompany performs under the contract.

Other Income

Incentives on exports and other Government incentives related to operatinns are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss after due consideration of certainty of utilizationfreceipt of such incentives.

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when It is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
GCompany and the amount of incoma can be measured reliably. Interest ncome Is acerued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal culstanding and al the effective interest rate applicable, which Is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend lncome .
Dividend Income is recognised when the right o recelve the payment is established.

Rental Incoime

Rental income arising from oparating leases is aceounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and Is
included as othar income in the statement of profit or loss.
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.12 Foreign currency reinstatement and translation:

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rale prevailing on the date of transaction, Monelary
assets and liabilittes denominated in forelon currencies are transialed at the functional currency closing rates of
exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differsnces arising on seltiement or translation of manetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss excepl to he extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign
currency borrowings that are direclly attributable to the acquisition or conslruction of qualifying essels, are capitalized as
cost of assels,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histarical costin a forelgn currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the detes of the transaclion. Non-menetary itlems carried at fair value that are denominated in forsign currencies
are irenslated al the exchange rates prevailing et the date when the fair vaiue was determined. The gain of loss arlsing
on transtation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or lass on
the change in falr value of the item (L., translation differences on items whose fair valus gain or foss is récognised In
QCl or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Faorelgn exchange differences regarded s an adjustment to bomawing costs are presented in the statement of profit and
loss, within finance costs. All other finance gains / losses are presenied in the statement of profit and loss on a net
In case of an asset, expense or income where a non-monetary advance is paidireceived, the date of transaction is the
dale on which the advance was inilially recognlzed. If there were multiple payments or receipts In advance, multiple
dates of lransactions are determined for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

3.13 Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year/period in
which the related sefvices are rendered.

Leave encashment Is accountad as Shertterm employse benelits and is determined based on projected unit credit
method, on the basls of acluarial valuatfons carrled out by third parly actuaries at each Balance Sheet date.

Contribution to Provident Fund, @ defined contribution plan, is made in accordence with the statule, and is recoghised as
anexpense in tha year/period in which employees have rendered serviges.

The cost of providing graluity, a defined benefil plans, is determined based on Projected Unit Credit Method, on the
basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Shest date. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions are charged or crediled to other
comprehensive Income In the period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and olher long term bengfits are charged to the
other comprehensive inceme in the year/peried in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement
of profit and loss In subsequenl periods.

3.14 Share-based payments;-

Certsin employses of the company receive part of their remuneration in the form of share-based payment trangactions,
whereby employees render seivices in exchange for shares or rights over shares of hotding company ('equity-settled
transactions’).

The cost of ;quitynsatﬂed transactions with employees Is measured at fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value of share awards are determined with the assistance of an external valuer and the fair value al the grant
date is expensed on a proportionate basis over the vesting perlod based on the Company's estimate of shares that will
evenlually vest. The estimate of the number of awards likely to vesl is reviewed at each balance shest date up to the
vesting date at which point the estimate is adjusted to reflect the current expectations. Amounts charged by the holding
company In respect of awards granted to employees of the Company are recognised as payable under current financial
liabililies - other until pald to the Holding Company.
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3.15 Taxes on Income;

Income tax expense represents the sum of current iax (including MAT and income tax for eardier vears) and deferred tax
. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it reiates to items recognised directly in
equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the tex is also recognised direclly in equity or in other
comprehensive income. Any subsequent change in direct tax on items inifially recognised i equity or other
comprehensive income is also recogrised in €quity or other comprehensive income,

Curcent tax provision is computed for Incoms caloulated after considering allowances and exemptions under the
provisions of the applicable Income Tax Laws. Current lax assets and current {ax liabilities are off set, and presented as
net. '

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of zsseis and liabllities in the Balance sheet
and the carresponding tax bases used in the computation of texable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all laxable temporary differences, and deferred tax asseis are generally recognised for all deductisle
lemporary differences, carry forward ax fosses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be
utiised, Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates thal are expected to apply in the period in which
the liablllly is setled or the asset realised. based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax lisbiities and assels are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period.

Where Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is applicable, eredit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the
extent there is convinelng evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which MAT credit is aliowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognised as an asset, the said asset is croatad by way of a credit o the profit and loss accaunt and shown as MAT
credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer cenvincing evidence to the effect thal the Company will pay
normal inceme tex during the specified period,

3.16 Borrowing Cosis:

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a
subslantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporarily deployment of
funds) as part of the cost of such assats. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs In
connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowing usad for the purpose of obtalning a qualifying assel, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Company that are outslanding during the perlod, other than barrowings made specifically for the purpose of pbtalning a
qualiiying aeset. The amourit of borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing
cost incurred during that period, All other borrowing costs are expensed In the perlod in which they occur.

3.17 Earnings per share:

Baslc eamnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year/period atiributable to the sharehalders' and
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted earinge per share Is computed using the net profil or loss for the year/period attributable to the shareholders’
and welghted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during the year including share options,
convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result would be anU-dilutive. Potential equity shares
that are converted during the year are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the beginning of the
year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversion.
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3,18 Current and non-current clagsification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on cumentnon-current
classification.

The Company has p‘rese‘ntad non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liabilities and current
liabilities In accordance vith Schedule I, Division 1l of Companies Act, 2013 nofified by Minlatry of Corporate Affaire.

An asset is classifled as eurrent when itis;

&) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle,
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve menths aiter the reporting period. or

d) Gash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged of used to setile a liability for al ieast lwelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability Is classified as current when it is:

a) Expecled to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Due 1o be settlad within twelve montns after the reporiing period, or

d) There is no unconditional right (o defer the setliement of the liabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other llabilities are classified as non~current.

The operating cycle Is the fime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash or cash
equivalents. Deferred tax assets / liabilities are classified as non-current assets / liabilities. The Company has Identified
twetve months as its normal operating cycle.

3.19 Fair value measuremant:
The Company measures financial Instruments at falr value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value s the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability in an orderly transaciion
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sall lhe asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
2) Inthe principal market for the asset or liabllity, or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the mast advantageous market for the asset or liability,
A fait value measuremant of a non-financial a2sset takes into account 2 market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
gsselin its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the clrcumstances and for which sufficient data are
gvailable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevani cbservable inputs and minimising the use of
unobsarvable inputs.
All assets and llabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the flnancial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy.

3.20 Government Grant
Government grants are recognized only if there is reasonable assurance as to its rsceipt and that the conditions
aitached there 1o shall be complied with and are recognised and shown under the head "Other Incoms",

3.21 Offsetting financial instruments:
Financial aseeis and liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reponed in the balance sheet where there Is a legally
enforceable rights to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis or realise the asset
and zeftle the liabllity simultaneously. The legally enforceable rights must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceabie in the normal course of business and In the event of default, Insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or
colntermarty,
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Note 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

The preparation of the financial statements requires managsment to make
affect l[w reported amounls of revenues, expenses, assets, |iabllitias, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure

4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets:
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually In order to determine the
amount of depreciation to be recorded durlng any reporling perlod. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule

It of the Companies Act, 2013 or are based on the Company's historical experience with similar assels and taking inlo
account anticipated technalogical changes, whichever is more appropriale,

4.2 Income Tax;

The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carnying amount of deferred tax assets, The factors used In

eslimates may differ from actual oulcome which could lead to an adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements.

4.3 Contingencles:

Management has estimated the possible outfiow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/itigations against the Company as itis not possible to predict the outcome of pending
matters with accuracy.

4.4 Impairment of financlal assets:
The impairment provisions for financial assels are based on assumptions about risk of default end expected cash loss,
The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impaiment calculation,
based on Company's past hislory, existing market condilions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

4.5 Impalrment of non-financlal assets;

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an Indication that an assel may be Impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amounl. An assal's recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset's or Gash Generating Units (CGU) fair
value less cosls of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an Individual assel, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other assets or graups of assets. Where (he carrying
amount of an assel or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impalired and is wrilten down to its
recoverable amount,

In assessing valus in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speclfic to the asset. In
dstermining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken Into account. If no such transactions

can be identified, an appropriate valuation model Is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or
other available fair value indicators,
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4.6 Defined heneflts plans:

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benslits and the present value of such obligation are
determined using actuanial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary Increases, mortality
rales and allrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valustion and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation Is highly sensilive lo changes In these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

4.7 Racoverabllity of trade recelvable;

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a
provision against those recelvables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the: counterparty, the

amount and liming of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-
payment.

4.8 Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow ¢an be reliably estimated. The timing of
recagnition and quantificafion of the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstences,
which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the camying amounts
of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularty and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

4.9 Fajr value measurement of financial instruments :
When the falr value of financial assets and finsncial liapilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value Is measured ysing valuation techniques including the Discounted
Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inpuls to these models are iaken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include censiderations of inputs

such as liquidity risk, eredit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptlions about these factors could affect the reporied falr
value of financia! instruments.
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KLASS FACK LIMITED

Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements for the Pariod ended 30th Septambar,

Note & - Other Intangible Assets

Parliculars otrini?_i;h—“ﬁ%
assets

GROSBS BLOGK:
As at st April, 2021 2.33
Additiong -
Disposals .
As at 315t March, 2022 2.33
Additions -
Dispasals L
As at 30th Seplember, 2022 2,33
AMORTISATION;
As at 1st April, 2021 2.14
Amortisation 0.1e
Disposals »
As at 31st March, 2022 __ 288
Amgriisation .
Disposals -
As ai 30th September, 2022 2.33

NET BLOCK:

Asat 31st March, 20272

Ag st 30th September, 2112__2r

6.1 Other Inlanglble assels represents Computer Software other than self generated.

2022

Note 7 = Non-Current Investments
e S S I s

Particulars As at As at 31at Face Value As at As at 31st
30th September, March, {in Rs.} 30th September, #arch,
2022 2022 2022 2022
Quantity (Nos)  Quantity (Nos) {Rs.InLakhs)  (Rs.In Lakhs)
Investmenis carried at fair value through profit or loss
(a) Equity Instruments:
Unquotad Fully Paid-Up
Others
Bharat Co-gperative Bank Lid. 2900 2900 10 i1 11
Total Non Cumrent Investments 149 1.11

7.1 Aggregate value of unqualed rfon current Investment Is Rs. 1.11 fakhs (Previous Year Rs, 1.11 lakhs)
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KLASS PACK LIMITED

Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements for tha Pariod ended 30th Saptember, 2022

Note & - Non-current Financial Assets - Othars

i ({Rs. In lakhs}
Particulars As at 30th As at 315t
Seplember, 2022 March, 2022
Un=acured, Considerad Good:
Security Deposits 77.76 32.88
Total 17.76 32.98

91



KLASS PACK LIMITED

Notes to the Gondensed Financial Statements for the Porled ended 30th Septembar, 2022

Noto 8 income Tax

84 The major eomponents of Incams Tax Expenses for the period ended 30th Septembar, 2022 and 30th Seplember, 2021 are as foliows:

— —_{R&, In lakhs)
Pariiculars Forthe Feriod  For the Perlod

Ended 30th Endad 30th
Seplomber, 2022 Soptembar, 2024

Reeognisad in Statoment In Profit and Loas :

Curront Ingomie Tax 35,88 5097
Deferred Tax - Relating (o originalion and reversal of lemporary differences 14.18 105.02
Total Tax Expenses ___50.04 166.80

9.2 Reconciiiation between tax expensas and aceounting profit multiplied by tx rate for the period ended 301h Saptamber, 2022 and 30th Seplember 2021

—_{Rs in lskhs)
Particulars Forthe Parlod For the Pariod
Ended 30th Ended 30th
Soptomber, 2022 Seplomber, 2021
Actounling Profit befora lax 189.91 618.71
Applicable tax rale ar.e2v 26.00%
Computed Tax Expensos 5283 160.86
Tax effoct on account of:
Lower tax rale and Indexation (3.80) (4.19)
Dedutlonon payment basks 0.83 -
Expenses not allowsd 023 D.22
Other deductions / allowances (0.05) -
Income tax expenses recognised In statomont of profit and loss 50,04 156.89
9.3 Daferrad tax assels relates to the followlng:
In lakhs
Particulars Balance Sheot Statamant of Profit and Loss and

Other Comprehonsiva Income
Asatdoth  Asatdist  Forihe Peried  For the Perlod

Septamber, March, Ended 30th Ended 30th
2022 2022 Seplamber, 2022 September, 2021
Property, Plant end Equipment (96.09) (119.93) (23.80) (0.54)
Invastimans {4.79) {2.00) 278 0.01
Trade and Othat Receivable 35.99 441 381z 11.95
Invanlorios 2077 (9.18) (38.85) 4.83
Unabsorbed Depraciation Loss - - . {173.24)
Other Assels 2.26 2.04 {0.22) 208
Olner Liatilities and Provision 163.12 139.18 (23.96) (2.27)
MAT Credi Enitlemenis 3685 9881 82,18 50.97
Total feeer  _ssel 1804 _fj09.201
9.4 Reconcilislion of deferred tax asseia (net): -
Particulan As at 30th As at 31st
s September, 2022 March,
2022
Opaning balance ae at 16t April 183.01 327,56

Deferred Tax cradit racognised In Statement of Profit and Loss

(140.76)
Deterred Tex credit recognised in OCI (3.79)
Closing batance as at 31st March / 30th September 183.01

9.8 Unused tax lossas for which no deferred lax assels has been recognised is Re. Nil (Previous year Rs. NIl
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KLASS PACK LIMITED

Notaes to the Condensed Financial Statements for the Period ended 30th Ssplember, 2022

Note 10 - Other Non=current Assets

. (Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, 2022 Marech, 2022
Unsecured, Considered Gooad:
Capital Advances 747.04 457,75
Prepald Expensas 617 A4.87
Tolal 753.21 482.62
Note 11 - Inventories
T _ (s, 1n lakhe)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, 2022 March, 2022
Raw Malarial 80383 895,34
Work-in-Piogress 27 68.94
Finished Goods
Stock-In-transiht 111,86 233.55
Qthers 720.87 83273 307.04 540,59
Slores, Spares and Consumables 21051 185.21
Packing Material 10713 70.34
Scrap{Culiet) 1.82 0,28

Total %Eggggg% 1,851.68
11.4 The amoun! of wiils-down of Inventories recognised for the peériod ended 30th September, 2022 I Rg. 18.25 lakhs (Pravipus yeair-am_amt

March, 2022 - Rs.24.28 fakhs), These are included in "Cost of Raw Material Cansymed and [ Changes in Inventoies of work in progress and
finished goods” in the statemant of profit and loss.
11.2 For moda ofVaiyation, Pls refer note no 3.4
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KLASS PACK LIMITED
Notes to the Condensed Financlal Statements for the Period ended 30th Septomber, 2022

Note 12 - Guirent Investments

Particulars As at As at " Face Value As at Asat
10ih September,  31st March, (in Ra.) 30th Soptember,  31st March,
2022 2022 2022 2022
Quantity (Nes)  Quantity {Nos) {Rs. In Lakhs)  {Rs.InLakhs}
In Mutual Fund

Unquoted Fully Pald-Up
Carried at fair value through profit and loss

HOFC Liquid Fund Dirgct Plan Growth 13,553.40 21,820.67 10 580.19 013.14
Option
Total Currant Investments 580.1 913.14
12.1 Aggregale value of unquoted current invesiment is Rs. 580.18 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 913.14 Lakhs)
12.2 Category-wise Current Investment - (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
30th September,  31st March,
2022 2022
Financial assels measured at fair value through Profit and Loss §80.18 313.14
Total Eﬂgﬂg 343.14
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KLASS PACK LIMITED

Netes to the Condansed Financial Stalamants for the Period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 13 - Current Financial Assets - Trade Recelvables

_{(Rs. In lakhs]
Farticulars AS at 30th As at 3ist
e mbar, 2022 tdarch, 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated:
Gnnsidurad_Bood 080.06 1'490_45
Credit Impaied 37.27 31.27
987.33 1527.72
Less ! Pravision for Credit Impaired {Refer note no an 37.27 950.08 37.27 148045
Total 950.06 145045
13.1 Trade Receivablos Agelng as at 30th September, 2022 and 31st March, 2022 are as below !
{A) Trade Recelvable Aging &5 at 30th September, 2022: _(Rs.inlakhs
Particularg Not Due Qut: Ing from due date of ni as at 30th Septembar, 2022 Be:In lokhe)
Upto& @& Months-1-2Years 2-3Years More than Total
3 3
Undisputed trade recaivables ~ 47477 438.13 3223 4.93 - m 950.06
Considered good
Undisputed trade recsivalies — which - - = . 5 5
have significant increasa in credit fisk
Undisputed trade receivablas ~ credit . . “ " i 5 =
impaired
Digpuled (rade recelvables ~ Considered - - - . W ! £
good
Disputed rade receivebias - which have . . = = 4 . .
significan increase in cradit risk
Dispuled trade recaivablas ~ cradit - . - - - 3727 37.27
impaired
Sub Total 474.77 438.13 32.23 493 - 37.27 987.33
Less: Allowanoe for credit impaired - . = - = 3727 3ﬁ;"
Total 47471 43843 _ 3223 4.93 - - _950.08
(B) Trade Receivable Aging as at 31st March, 2022: [Rs. in {akhs)
Pasticulars Not Ous Outsta from date of entas gt 31st M
Upto & 6 Monihs - 1 -2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
r 3years
Undisputed trade receivables - 1.042 48 44258 489 . - - 1,480.45
considered good
Undisputed Irade recsivables — which - - - - - - -
have =ignificant incroase In credit risk
Undispuled Irade recelvables — cradit - . . - - -
impairad
Disputed trade receivables — Considered . 4 - . - . -
good
Digputed irade receivables - which have . . = . - - -
slgnificant increase In credi risk
Disputed trade receivables ~ credit - . - . - 37.27 az.er
impalred
Sub Total 1,04248 44298 4088 - - 37.27 1,627.72
Less: Allowance for ciedit impaired = - . - - _37.27 . 3727
Total 1,042.48 442.98 4.99 - - 1,490.45
Note 14 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
h September, 2022 March, 2022
Balances with Banks in current accounts 19.26 7.00
Cash on Hand 6.51 5.97
Total Y e VEOL
141 For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the followings:
Partlculars As at 30th As at3ist
== r, 2022 arch, 2022
Balanees with Banks in current actounts 18.26 7.00
Cash on Hand 8.51 6.07
Total lu=_l2=5=;’lLl 1287




KLASS PACK LIMITED

Holas to the Condensed Financial Statements for the Pecicd anded 30th Septembat, 2022

Note 15 - Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

18,1 Others includes license in hand and other receivablas.

926

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 338t
—— Septembar, 2022 , 202;
Barmarked Balances with bank: Mareh, 2922
Fixed deposits pledged with a Bank against Bank Guarantea 66,85 80.68
Total = 86.86 S Y}
Note 16 - Current Finane¢lal Assots - Loans
{Rs. in lakhs
Particulais As at 30th Aé':?tﬁ%%"—]
Salli 8 September, 2022 March, 2022
Unsecured, Considerad Good ;
Loan {o Employess 6.21 6.08
Total 6.21 0B
Note 17 - Current Financial Assels - Others
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th Asat 31st
September, 2022 March, 2022
Unsecured, Considered Geod:
Interest Re<eivatles 1.84 141
Otheis 185.91 188.93
Total ig!!_z_ﬁ 19&%
417.1 Others includes discount recelvable etc.
Note 18 - Other Currant Assels
(Rs. In Iakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, 2022 March, 2022
Unsesured, Considered Good, unless othanwise stated:
Export Incentives Recsivable 19.08 2277
Advances against supplles
Gongidered Goot §7.29 35,25
Considerad Doubtful 8O0 6.00
7328 4.2
Less’ Provision for Doubtful Advances (Refer nole ne 37) 6.00 ér2e _ _ 6.00 35.25
Balance with Goods and Senvice Tex Authorities 18,73 31.43
Prepald Expenses 51.69 88.75
Others 415 Cln o DUIOT
Total 160.98 ST 5



KLASS PACK LIMITED
Noltos to the Condensad Finartcial Statements far the Period ended 30th Soplombar, 2022

Note 19 - Equity Share Capital

4 (s, inlakhg)
Partleulnrs As &t 30th As gt 3181

Sepernber, March,
)+

2022
Authorised
20,00,000 (Previcus Year 20.00.000) Equity Shares of Re, 100/ sach 2.000.00 2,000.00
—_— S
2,000.00 2,000.03
Isaued, Subscribed & Fully Pald up
18,32.940 (Previous Yoar 16,32,848) Equity Shares of Rs, 100/ each fufly pald up 1,632.95 1,632.96

Total 1833

19.1 Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares oulstanding at the beginning and at the end of the years f pariod:

Partlculars As 8l 30th September 2022 Ag ait 31st March, 2022

{InK n lak In Nos. Al

"~ Shéres culstanding al e beginning of the year 1.33:.!‘ aqTﬂ II-.Ltm_'ﬂl.“ = 1.@"5.733 '11.1&!21',14
Add: Equily Sheres jssued end Fully paid up (Rafer Nola 19.2) . . 236,214 238.21
Shares outstanding at the end of the perlod 1632949 169295 1.633940 5

19,2 Ouring the previous year, on 3rd January, 2022, the Company had issued 2,28 241 fully pald up equily sharas of Rs, 100/ each a8 premium of Rs. 748.70/- per
share onight issve basis and recaivad amount of Rs. 2,080.00 lakhe These sharea have bewn issued to ig Holding Company, Borost Limded,

19.3 TermsiRights attsched to Equity Shares :

The Gompany kas only cne ciass of shares ralerrad to as equily shares having 3 par value of Re. 100/ per share, Holders of equily shares are entitied lo ane vote per
share. The dividend proposed by the Baard of Direglods, if any, will be subject la the approval of the sharehsidars ia tha annual generel maeting, except In casa of
imerim Gividend. In the even! of liquidation of the Company, the helders of equily shares will bo enited i raceive any of the remalning assats of the Company, afier
distibution of &l preferental amounts. The distrbition wif ba in the same proportion as the capitel peid-up on the eqully sharas heid by them boars Lo the totel paid-
up share capial of tha company.

res held H oL
Name of holding Company

Lor Asa M 2023
No. ofShares % ofHolding MNo.of Shares % of Halding

1d held
Borosi Limiled 1,346,967 b2.49%% 1,346,967 B2.4f
tahol ing m zn 6% of Equl ital ;
Rame of Shareholdar MMBLMMLEL
0. cf Shares %oofHolding No.ofShares % of Halding
hald held
Borosil Limited 1,346,087 82.48% 1,348,987 82.49%
Shiv Ganga Calerers Private Limited 25400 5.84% 85400 5.04%
Wrs. Pramila G, Amin 80525 4.93% 80525 4.83%
Mr. Prashant G. Amin 101,068 6.18% 101,088 6.16%
Detail ares h rom Com|
Name of Promoterns A5 at g
No. of ofHolding No. of % ofHalding % Change
Shares Shares fram 3ist
March, 2022
to 30th
Seplember,
*——-A_,
Boroal] Limited 1,348,887 B249% 1,346,867 82.49% 0.00%
Shiv Ganga Caterors Privata Limited 85,400 $.84% 95,400 5.84% 0.00%
Wrs. Pramila G. Amin 80,926 4.93% §0,525 4.63% 0.00%
Mr. Prashan! G. Amin 101,068 6.18% 101,088 6.19% 0.00%
Mrs. Shwela Amin 1 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%
Mr, Pravesh Amin 1 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%
e, Gangadhar Amin 8687 0.54% £887 0.84% 0.60%

19.7 There are no shares reserved for Issve undar oplons and confracts / commitments for the sala of shanss | disinvestmaent.

S 8

18.8 Thore is no dividend paid of propased during the period and during the pravious year, e
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KLASS PACK LIMITED
Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements for the Period anded 30th Septomber, 2072

Naote 20 - Other Equity

__(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 30th As at 31st

. Septamber, 2022 March, 2022
Retainad Eamings
As por Lasi Balance Sheel (72.99) (929.74)
Add: Proht for the pariodiyesr 13967 65.88 856.75 {72.99)
Sesurities Pramiom
As per Lest Balance Sheel 6,468.33 4,704,64
Add: Equily Share Issued (Refer Note 19.2) . 6,458.33 1.763.79 5,468.33
Other Comprehensgive Income {OCH
As per Lest Balance Sheet 1,122.26 1,112,443
Add: Movements in OC! (ne¥) during the periodiyear 452 1,127.18 9.83 1,122.26

Tolal 7,662.39 7,517.60
20.1 Nature and Purpose of Reserve

1 Securitlos Premium:

Securities Premium is created on Issue of equily share capital, The reserve will be ulilsed in sccordance with provisions of ine Companies Act,
2018,

2 Other Comprehensive Income (OGH
OCl includes Revaluation Reserve and Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans.
3 Revaluation Reserve {Part of OCI):

Revaluatonrezeve is erealed on reveluation of fixed assets. The reserve will be ulilised in accordance with provisions of the Gompanies Act, 2013.

4 Retained Earnings:
Retained eamings rapresents the accumulatod profils / {osses made by the Company aver the yaars,

Note 21 - Non-current Finanglal Liabilities - Pravisions

(Rs. in Jakhs)
Particulars AS at 30th As at 315t
September, 2022 March, 2022
Provistons for Employae Benefits:
Gratuity (Unfunded) 277.02 265.29
Total 2E!££ 2§E.29
Note 22 - Current Financlal Liahilities - Borrowings
(Rs. in Jakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 315t
_ Soplomber, 2022 00 March 2022
Secured Loam:
Woking Capital Loan From Bank 86,350 -
Total g 38 e

22,1 Waorking Capitzl Loan from bank is secured by way of hypolhecation of all existing and fulurs current assels and movabla fixed assats. The Rale of
Interast of Working capltal Loan was MCLR + Spread (Currently @ 7.25% p.a.)
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KLASS PACK LIMITED
Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements for the Peried ended 10th September, 2022

Note 23 - Current Financlal Llabllitles - Trade Payables

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
—_September, 2022 March, 2022
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises i21.21 130,98
Othets 713.56 877.
Total 834.77 1!2[)8.@

23.1 Micro, Smal and Medlum Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterp

fises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED 2006) have heen
delermined based on Ihe Infofmation avaiiable with tha Company and the details of am

ount outstanding due 1o them are as given balow:

(As. In lakhs
Particulars As at 30th As aﬁiﬂt_l
. September, 2022 March, 2022
a) the principal amount snd the inferest due therson (to be shown separalely)
remaining unpzid 1o any supplier al the end of each 2ceounting year;
i} Principal amount oulstanding 121.21 130,08
i} Interast thereon 0.81 0.13
b) the amount of inlerest pald by the buyer In terms of section 15 of the Micro, = -
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Agt, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appolnted day
duing each accounling year,
€) tne smount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay In making = &
payment (which has been paid but beyand ihe appointed day during the year)
bui without adding the interest specified undar the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterorises Develonmeat Acl. 2006,
d) the amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each 0.81 0.13
accounling year;
e} the amount of fudhar Inlerest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succeading years, unfil such dale when Ihe interest duss above are aclually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disaliowance of a deductinia
expendilure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisas
Devalopment Act, 2006,
23.2 Trade Payable Ageing are as below:
(Rs. In lakhs}
Particulars Outstanding from due date of payment as at 30th September, 2022 Total
Not Dua Upto1 1-2Yeurs 2-3Years More than
Year 3 years
Tolal outstanding dues of micro, small & medium 101.39 18.55 127 - - 12121
Enterprises
Total oulstanding duee of Creditors other than micro, 688.45 24.58 053 - 2 713.55
smaill & medium Enterprises
Disputed dues of micro, small and ‘medium - - . - - -
eénferprises
Disputed duss of credilore other than micre, small - - - - 5 -
—end mediumenteprises
Total 789.84 4343 1.80 - - 834.77
Particulars Qutstanding from due date of payiment as at 31st March, 2022 Total
Not Due Uptot 1-2Years 2-3Years More than
Year 3 yoars
Total outstanding duss of micro, =mall & medium 11709 13.89 . - - 130.98
Entarprises
Total outstanding dues of Creditors oiher than micro, 84246 35.08 . B - 877.52
small & mediumn Enterprises
Dlsputed dues of micro, small and medium - & - - - -
enlerprises
Dhsputed dues of creditors other than micro, small - " . s = &
_and medium enterprises
Total 95955  4B9S . - - 1,008.50
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Note 24 - Current Financisi Lisbilities - Othars

IR, (Rs, in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at st
-]
Inlerast accruad and due on Others 081 0.13
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 139.00 157.81
Olher Payables 301.56 361,08
Tatal g:lﬂ 538,90
24.1 Other payables includes outstanding Liabiities for Salarles, Wages, Bonus, Other Provision for Expenses elc.
Note 26 - Other Current Liabifitles
. {Rs, In lakhs)
Partlgulars As at 30th As ai st
I, 2 ar
Advance from Customeis 3400 129.91
Statutory fiabiities 15.43 ; 19,55
Note 26 - Current Provisions
{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 3ist
c— September, 2022 __March, 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Unfunded) 19.39 18.39
Leave Encashment {Unfunded) 119.67 108.60
Total Am 126.99
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Nate 27 - Revenues from Operations

= (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Pariod For the Period
Endad 30th Ended 30th
Se ber, 2022 5 21
Sale of Pradueis 4.650.55 5,149.21
Revenue from Qperations 4,650.5g 5148.21
27,1 Disagaregated Revenue:
(i) Revenue based on Geography:
TR | [Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Pariod For the Pertod
Ended 30th Ended 30th
Seplember, 2022 September, 2021
Domeslic 3,831.65 4,380.37
Export 818.00 760.84
Revenue from Operations 4,660.85 __5,148.21
(li} Revenue by Buginess Sagment
: (Rs. in [akhs)
Particulars For the Perlod For the Perlod
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September, 2022 Septembar, 202
Sclenlificware 4,650,855 5,149.21
e e —— e e e ——
Raevenue from Operations 4,650.55 5,149.21
(i1} Reconciliation of Revenue from Operatlen with contract price:
(Rs. in lakhs)
Partlculars For the Period For the Period
Endad 30th Endod 30th
September, 2022 Saptember, 2021
Contract Prica 4,650.55 5,149.21
Reduction lowards variables - %
Revenus from Opaerations — 4,850.55 _—: _5,149.21
Note 26 = Other Income
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Porlod For the Parled
Ended 30th Ended 30th

Septembar, 2022

Interest Incoma frem financiel assels measured al amortised cost:

- Fixed Deposits with banks

- Others
Gala on Sale of Invesimants (nst)

- Current Invastmenis
Galn on Financial Inslruments measured at fair value Mrough profit or ioss (net)
Exporl Incentive
Gain on foreign currancy transactions (nef)
Miseallansous Income®

Total

™ Includes govarnmaent subsidy under Maharashiia Industrial Policy and Packaga Scheme of Re. 1,50 Iakne (Pravious Year Rs.
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6.99
10.06
14.88
14.12
16.92
56.36
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Septerber, 2021

1.83
1.03

10.50
14.58
1402
41.96

e
4.05 lakhs i.
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Hote 28 - Changes In Inventories of Wark-in-Progress and Finished Goods

i {Re. In lak
Particulars For ths Perlod For mﬁﬁ]
Ended 30th Ended 30th
Septemnber, 2022 September, 2024
Althe end of the Period
Work- In- Prograss 3§.37 a7.40
Finished Goods 83273 518.36
Serap (Guliet) 1.82 0.17
670,92 R
At the beginning of the Year
Wark- In- Pragress £8.04 42.84
Finished Gogds 540,68 550,92
Sarap (Culet) 026 0.22
599,79 £94.08
Changes inInventarles of Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods (27113 18.35
Nota 30 - Employee Benefits Exponse
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Period For the Paried
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September, 2022 Septemnber, 2021
Salaries, Wages and allowantes 529,08 A68.43
Caontribution la Provident and Other Funds 28.98 26.25
Share Dased Paymenls (Refer Note 36) 6,68 5.18
Staim Wellare Expanses 67.30 §7.02
Gratulty (Unfunded) o SBERD PR
Note 31 - Finance Casls
{Bs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Peried For the Perlod
Ended 30th Ended 30th
Septem 22 tambar, 2021
Interest Expenses on financial liablities messured at amodised cos! 4.42 19.24
Total mé‘-& u:n-::%
Note 32 - Depreclationand Amortisation Expense .
{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars For the Period For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September 2022 Septomber, 2021
Deprecialion of Property, Piant and Equipmant (Refer nste 5} 336.19 206,45
Amortsation of intangible Assets (Refer note B) - 0.19
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Note 33 - Other Expenses

Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars For the Period Fu‘r the Petiod
Endad 30th Ended 30th
: 3 ) eptember, 2021,
Manufacturing and Other Expenses entember, 2022 Seplomber, 2021
S10res, Spares and Consumabla 14732 12433
Pawer and Fuel & Water Charges 540.76 448,52
Contract Labour Expenses 33813 277.89
Packing Materials Consumed 21763 231,65
Repairs to Plant & Machinary 1478 12.78
Repairs o Bulidings - 1.39
Seiling anel Distribution Expenses
Sales Promotion and Advertisement Expenses 1367 19.08
Discount and Gommission 3.05 6.68
Frelght Qutward 113.87 160,50
Adminlstrative and General Expenses
Rent 33.11 6.44
Rates and Taxos 185 481
Clher Repairs 2.87 1.50
Insurance 34.06 20.64
Legal and Piofessional Fees 14.83 4.92
Directors Sitting Fees 340 1.56
Travelling 19.99 B.80
Bad Debls
Lass: Provision / (Reversal) of Provision for Credit impairad D08 12.23
Guaranlee Commission % 123
Payment to Auditors 4.44 4.00
Donation - 002
Miscellaneous Expensss 36.18 32.60
Total N Y] — 131861
33,1 Delsils of Payment to Auditors
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Far the Pariod For the Perlod
Ended 30th Ended 30th
Septembar, 2022 Septamber, 2021
Payments to Auditor as:
For Statutory Audit 3326 3.00
For Tax Audil 1,13 1.00
For Taxation Matiers = .
For Company Law Matters = .
Far Other Service o :
For Reimbursement of Expenses 0.03 -
Total 4.41 4,00
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Note 34 - Earnings Per Equity share (EPS)

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Far tho Parlod For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
Seplember, 2022 Seplgmber, 2021
Net Profit after tax aliributable to Equity Sharsholders for Basic and Diluted 138.87 461,82
EPS (Rs. in lakhs)
Welghted average number of Equity Shares oulstanding during the pericd / 1,632 949 1.385,738
yaar for Basic EPS (in Nos.)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the périod / 1,632,949 1,396,738
year for Diisted EPS (in Nos.)
Eanings per share of Rs. 100/- each (in Rs.) (Not Annuvalized)
- Basic 8.57 33.08
- Diluted _ 8,57 33.06

Face Value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 100.00 100,00
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Note 35 - Contingant Liabilitles and Commitmants

35.1 Contingont Liabllitles (To the exient not provided for) Claims against the Company not acknowlodged as debts

: (Rs. In fakhe)
Farticulars As at 30th As at3ist
September,  March 2022
2

Bank Guaraniee

11813 7120
5.2 Commitments

{Rs. In lakhs}
Particulars Asat 30th Asat31st

Seplember,  March 2022
2022

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining (o be exseuted on Capital Account nat provided for (cash cutliow Is expected
on execution of such capital contracts)

— Reioled to Properiy, Plant and Equipment 1,070.78 1,0872.72
~ Relaled Lo Infangible Assels - 617

36.3 Management is of the view thal sbove conlingent liabilitias will not have impact on the financial posiion of the company,

Noto 36 - Employea Stock Option Scheme of Borosil Limited {BL)
The Company has recognized tolal expenses of Rs. 8.88 lakh (Pravipus Pericd Re.5.18 fakh) relsling lo equily setlied share-based payment lransaclions
for he period ended 30th September 2022 in respect of 8,860 oplians (Previous Year 43,000} granted by Borosll Limited ('BLY), the holding campany,

under he ‘Borosil Limiled Employes Stack Options Scheme 2020°. The liaviiity recognised on account of this will be pald 10 BL upen axercise of oplions by
the aption grantees,

Note 37 « Provisions

Disclosures as requlrod by Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingant Assels:
Movement In provislons:

{Rs. In lakhs}

Nature of provision Provision Provision for ofal

Against Credit

Doubtful Impaired

Advances
As at 31st March, 2021 : 61,83 61.83
Provision during the year §.00 - 6.00
Revarsal of Provislon (24.56) {24.58)
As at 315t Mareh, 2022 _6.00 37.27 4327
Provislon duing the period - - -
Raversal of Provision n i =
As 81 30th Saptamber, 2022 5.00 3727 4337

Note 38 - Segment Informatlon

38,1 The company Is primarily engaged in tha business of manufaciuring of packaging materials used In pharmaceulical companies, which is 8 single segment
interms of Ind AS 108 "Operating Sepmants®.
38.2 Revanue From Extornal Sales

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars

For the period For the period
ended 30th ented 30th
September, Soptomber,

2022 2021
india 383155 438837
Outzide Indla §10.00 750.84
Total Revenue as per statement of profi or loss 4,650.65 5,149.21

38.3 Revenue of Rs. 1,818.46 ikhs (Previous partod Re. 1,206 43 lakhs) from customers represents mara than 10% of the company revenue for the period
anded 30th Saptembar, 2022,
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Note 39 - Related party disclosurg

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24
puistanding balancas including commilments where

38,9 Lis tated

"Related Parly Disclosures™, name of the relaled garly, related party ralationship, transactions and

canlrol exits and with whom transactions have taken place during reporied periods, are as delall below:

Name of the related party

{a) Holding Company
Borosil Umited

(b} Key Management Personngl
Mr. Prashan! Amin - Managing Direclor
Mrs, Shwata Amin - While-timeé Director

Counlry of % of equity Intsrest
incorporation Ag at 30eh As at st
Soptember,  March 2022
2022
India 682.49% B2.49%

Mr. Anurag Jaln « Chief Financial Officer (w.c.f. 24.08.2021)

Mr. Chailanya Chauhan - Company Secrélary {w.e.f. 10.11.2021)
Wr. Omkar Vaychal - Chief Financial Officer (Upto 20,08.2021)
Mr. Vinod Pamar - Company Secretary {upto 08,10.2021)

(e} Rofative of Key Management Personnel

Mr. Gengadhar Amin - Relative of Mr, Prashant Amin and Mrs. Shwela Amin

(d) Emerprisos over which persons described In (b) and (g}

sbove aro able to exerclse signlficant inflvence {Other Related Parties) or Kay

Managament Personnel of Holding Company or thelr relatives having significant Influonce and with whom transactlans have taken place:-

Shlv Ganga Calecers Privale Limlted
G.P. {Nashik) Farm Privale Limited
Keehar Sweels

38.2 Transsctions with Related Partles:

{Rs. I lakhs)
Nama of Transactions Name of the Ralated Party For the Period For the Pariod
Ended 30¢h Ended 30th
Soptember,  Seplembor,
022 2021
~ Transactions with holding ¢company
Sale of Goods Boraslt Limited 1,102.08 €08.38
Purchase of Goods Berosit Limited 275.40 77.29
Guarantee Commission Expence Borosil Limiteg 2 1.23
Reimbursement of Expanses 1o Borasil Limiled 22,80 15,08
Tranaactions with othec related parties:
Rent Expenses Mr. Gangadhar Amin 21.00 1.08
Rermuneration of Key Managemant Patsonne! Mr. Prashan{ Amin 31.91 28,35
Mrs, Bhweta Amin 8.38 872
Mr. Vinod Parmar - 388
Mr. Omkar Vaychal - 7.05
Mr. Anurag Jaln 9.92 170
Mr. Chaitanya Chauhan 2.90 -
Purchase of Goods / Services Shiv Ganga Galerars Private Limiled 38.83 28.59
G.P, (Nashik) Farm Private Limited 4.76 048
In lakhs
Name of Transaclions Name of the Related Parly As 81300 As at 3ist
SBoptember,  March, 2022
2
Balan¢es with holding company
Trade Receivable Borosil Limited 140.606 9za7
Current Financial Liabilities - Others Borosit Limited 18.15 1267
Balanees with Other related Partles
Trade Payable Shiv Ganga Calerers Privale Limited 8.23 1383
Mr. Gangadhar Amin 378 are

49.3 Outstanding balances st year/period-end are unsecured, unless specified and sotllement octurs in cash. This assessment Is underteken gach financial

year/psiiod theough examining the financial pesition of the related party and the markel In which the relaled pary operstes.
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Note 40 - Fair Values

40.1 FinanclalInstrumants by category:

Set ot below i3 a comparison by class of the camylng amounts and fair value of the Company's financial assols and (fabilties thal are recogniced in the
finaneial sialements.

a) Financial Assets moasurad ot falr value:

Particulars As ot 3020 (Rs, In lakhs)
Seplembe; e
B 3022 * March, 2022
Financlal Ass01s:
Financial Asscls deslgnated at fair value through profit and loss:-
— Investmant 581.30 814.25
b} Elnaneial Aseats | Linkilities measured at amortised cost: Re, In laikhs
Partlaulars 30th September, 20 As at 31st March, 202
Carrying  FalrValuo Carrying Value  Fair Valus
— Value
Financial Assets deeignated at amortised cost:
- Trade Recaivables §50.04 850.06 1,490.45 1.490.45
- Cash and cash equivatents 26.77 25.77 12.97 12.87
- Bank Balances othar than ¢ash and cash equivalionis 86.86 B6.66 80.68 B0.68
- Loans 6.21 6.2 6.08 808
- Others 275.51 275.51 223,32 223,32
Tolal 1,844.41 134841 1,813.50 1,813,560
____(Rs. In Iakhs)
Farticulars _Ae o1 3000 Seplomber, 2022 My ol 34t March, 2022
Garrying Falrvalue Carrying Value  Falr Value
i Valug
Finangial Liabiiities deslpgnated at amortised cost:
- Gumen borowings 98,38 95.48 - N
= Trade Payables 83477 834.77 1,008.50 1,008.50
- Othar Flaanclal Lisbilities 44137 44137 530.80 /53880
Total 131280 157280 15440 154840

40.2 Falr Valuatlan tachnlques ysed to determine fale valug

The Gompany mantains procedures (0 value financhal asszls or financial liabllities Using the best and mosl relevant dala available. The falr valies of 1ha
fingnciaj assels and Babililes are incluged Bl the amount thal would be recefvad ta sl on esset or paid to trensfer a tiabllity in an ordedy Iransaction
bebween market perficipants at the measurement date.
Tha foliewing methods and assumplions viere used to eatimale the fair values;

1) Fair value of rade receiveble, cash and cash equivelenls, olher bank balances, irade payables, bonowings, dopasits and other financial assels and
Rabilites aie spproximale al their camying amounts largely dus lo tha short-lerm maturitias of thesa Inslruments.

il} The falr values of security deposits are approximate a thelr carrying amount due to Intarag) bearing features of thess instuments.

fil) The Company uees valuglion technigues thal are approprisle In the clreumetances and for wiich sufficient data are avallable to meéssure fair valus,
maximising the use of relévant observable Inpuls and minimising the vse of unobservable Inputs.

iv) Falr values of quoled financlal inslruments sre dedved from quoted markel prices In active markets.

v) The fair value for level 2 Instruments is vaiued using Inpute based on [nformallon aboul markst parlicipants assumplions and olher data that are available.

40,3 Fair value higrarchy
The Company uses the lofowing higrarghy for determining and disclosing (he fair valuo of inandal instruments by valuation techniques;

i) Level 1 ;- Quoted prices / published NAV {unadjustad) in active markets far ldealleal sssels o labilites. Il Includes fairvalua of finencial instrumenls traded
in active markels and are based on quoted markal prices at the batanca sheat dalé and finandal Instruments lixe mutual funds for which nel assets value
{NAV) I3 published by mutual fund operators at tha balancs sheet dale.

iy Laval 2 :- inpus, elher than quoted prices Included within level 1, that gre observable for the 8:54t or liabilily, elher direclly (that Is, as prices) or indireclly
{that s, derlved from prices), It includes fair vélue of the financlal instrumenls that are nol iraded in an aclive market (for exarmple, over-the-counte:
derlvatives) it determined by using valuation lechniques. Thase valuation lechniques maximise the use of cbservable merkel data where it is available snd
raly as litle 3 possivle on the Company specific eslimales. If alf significanl Inputs required fo fair value an Inslrument are observable then Instrument Is
Included in level 2.

li) Level 3= Inpuls for tha asset or labllity {hal are nol based on observable markel data {ihat is. unobsavable inputa). I ana or more of the significant inpute
is nol based on obsanvable markel data, the instrument is included in lavel 3.

The foliowing table provides hierarchy of the fair valuo measwiement of Company’s asset and lisbilios, grauped into Level 1 (Quoled prices In aclive
markels), Level 2 (Slgnificant observable inputs) and Level 3 (Significan! unobservable inputs) as dasciibed below,

{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars 30th September, 2022
Level 4 Level 2 Laval 3

580.19 -

Financlal Assels designated at fair value through profit or loss:
- Mutpal funds
« Untisted equity Investments
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404

0.5

0.8

lote

{Rs. ln lakhs)
Particulars — _ StatMagh 202
Loveld  Level2 Loval &
Financlal Assets designated at falr value through profit or logs:
« Mutual funds 913,14 - .
— Unfisted equity Investments - . 141
913.14 < 1.41

There wera no lransfers belwsen Leval | and Level 2 during the year.

Dazeription of the [nputs used in the falr value measurement;

Following table deserbes the valuallon techniques used end key inputs 1o valvation far level 3 of the fair value hlerarchy 8s at 30th September, 2022 and
31st March, 2022 respeciively.

e ___{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars At 2t 30th Valuallon Inputs used Sensitivity
Seplember, Tachnique
2022
Financlal Assats dosignated at faly vaiue through
-- Unlisted equity investments 1.41 Book Valu Financial statamanis No matarial impac on fair
valuation
_{Rs, In Iakhs)
Particulars As 8t 318t Valuation Inputs used Sensitivity
March, 2022 Tachnigue
Finanglal Assets deslgnated at fair value thraugh
- Uniisied equlty invasiments 1.11 Buok Value Financtal stalements No matesial impact on falr
valuation

Reconciliation ol fair value measuremant eslagorised within level 3 of the falr valug hisrarchy:

Financial Asse1s designaled 8t fair value through profit or loss - Investments.

Particulars _[Rs, In lakhs)
Fair valua as at 18t April, 2021 1.18
Loss on financial inslruments maasured at fair value through profil or loss (net) .07
Purchase / (Sale) of financial instruments .
Amouni iransfemed to / from Level 3
Fair value ey st 31t March, 2022 111
Loss on financial insiruments measured at fair valug through profit or loss {nat) -
Purchase 1 (5aie) of financial instruments -
Amount transierred to { from Level 3 e
Falr valus as at 30th September, 3022 11

Daseriptlon of the valuation processes used by the Gompany for falr value measurement categorizad within lavel 3:

Al each repoiting dele, the Company analyses the movements in the values of financlal assets and Vabiitles which are required to be remeasured or
reassessad as pec (he accounling policies. For this analysis, the Company verlfes the major inpuls appied In the latesi valuation by agresing ihe
information in the valualion computalion fo conlracis and athet ralevant documents.

The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each finencial asset and Hablity with retevant external soutces to determine whether the
change ks reascnable. The Company also discusses of the major assumptions used In the valuations,

For the purpose of fair valve disclosurss, the Company has defermined classes of financial assels and lianiities on the basis of tho nature, cheracteriatics
and risks of e as&e4 or fability and tha lavel of the fair value hierarchy as explalned above.

41 :~ Finmncial Risk Managemoent: - Objeotives and Policies:

The Company I exposed to market risk, credlt risk and liquidity risk. Risk management is carried out by the company under policias approved by the board
of tiraclars. This Rigk menagement plan defines how fisks associaled with the Company wil be identified, analysed, and managed. it oulines how risk
manzgement acivities will be performed, recordad, and monitored by the Company. The basic objeciive of rigk management plan Is 7) lo implement an
integrated risk management approach to ensure all sionificant areas of risks ere Identified, understoed and effectively managed, H) ta promele s shared
viston of risk managemant and encourage discussipn on risks al ell levels of Lhe arganization 1o provide a dear understanding of risk/benefi rade-offs, i)
lo deploy appropriata risk management methodologies and foals for use in identifylng, assessing, managing and repariing on risks, and (o delermine the
appropriata balenca heiwsen cost and conirol of risk and deploy appropriate Tesoulces 1o manage/oplimize kay risks, Activifes are daveloped to provida
feedback to management and other inlerested parties (e.g. Board etc). The resulls of these activilies enswe that dsk maragement plan is sffective in the
long lem.

Market rigk

Market rigk is lhe rlsk that the fair velue or fufure cash flows of a financial instrument wiE fuctuste becsuse of changes n market prices. Markel prices
comprise thres types of ask: forelgn curmency rate tisk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as commodity risk.

The sensifivity 2nalyses givin s ratale ta the position as at 30th Seplember, 2022 ard 31sl March 2022.

The senslivity snalysis exciudes the impac! of movements in markel variables on the carnying valus of poat-employment baneflil obiigations, provisions and
on the non-financial assels and liabifiies, The sensilivity of the relevant slalement of profil and loss llem is he affact of the assumed changes in the
respective markat rigks. The Company's activies oxpose (1t to @ veriely of finandial risks, intiuding the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates and Interest rates. This is based on tha financial assels and financial liabllities held as &t 301h Seplember, 2022 and 31st March, 2022,
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(=) Forelgn exchange risk and sonsitivity

Foreign currensy risk is the risk that the fair value or fiduee cagh flows of a financial Instrument vill flucluste because of changes in forslgn exchanga rates.
Tne Company's expasure 1o the risk of changes In foraign exchange rales relates primarily to the Company's operaling atliviies. The Company transacts
forelgn business primarly in EURD and USD. The Company has forelgn currency irade payables and IS therefore, exposad Io forelgn exchange risk. The
Company ls regulariy reviews and evaluaies sxchange rale exposure adsing from Toreign currency transaciions.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivily in the USD, EURO o tha Indian Rupes with oll olher varlables heid constant,

The impagt on the Company's

piofit/ loss before tax due to changas In the fair vakies of monetary assets and Gablitles is given below: o
Unhedned Forelgn 5%;;52 Sxposure as al 30th September, 2022 Curtency Amountin FC _ Rs. In lakhs

Trada and Other Paya EURO 11,845.48 §.99
COrher Curent Flnandial Liablitias EURQ 144,140,889 118.57
Trade Reteivable usb 33.748.98 27.11
Trade Receivable EURGQ 36,678.02 28.08
Unhedged Foreign currency OXDOBUND as at 31st March, 2022 Curren Amoy c 3

Trade and Other Payable EURD 36,904,82 31.56
Other Current Finanelal Liatlities EUROD 147.688.00 126.23
Trade Recsivable UsD 117,807 .40 88.78

Forglgn currency senshivity
1% increasa or decresse n forelgn exchange ralas wiil have (he following impact on profit before tax {FBT) i

{Rs. In iakhs)}
Particulars 2022-23 2122
1% increase % 1% Ingrease 1% Decreaso
_Docrease
EURD 0.87 (0.97) 1.58 {1.58)
usp (@.27) 0.27 (0.69) 0.83
Decrease / (increass) in Profil Belore {ax — 070 (070 0,69 —_{0.89)

b} intorest rats rick and sensitivity :-
Inferast rale risk is the risk that the falr valug or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument wil flucluate bocause of changes In market inlerest rates. The
Gompany does nol have any exposura with respect Lo the term loan. Furthar, the company has short term barrowings in the form of Overdrafi facliity 7

viorking capital Foan from bank, During the peried, Ihe Company has exposad 1o Inlerest rate risk as<ociated wilh bank overdrafl facillly ) working capial
loan dye o floaling raie of interesl.

The fatle baiow liustrales the impact of 8 2% increase in Inlerest rales on interest on financial fisbilities assuming that the changes oceur at the reporting

dale 3¢ nas been calcuialed based on risk exposure outslanding as of dete. The year end balances are not necesearily rapresentative of the average debt
outstanding during the year. This analysis also assumns thal ali sther varisbles, in particular forelgn curtency rates, remaln constanl.

g% In !Ekgaf
Partizulars 2022-23 .
2% Increase 2% Incréase 2% Decreaze

. —Docrsags

Term Loan - 3 = 2
Working Capital Loan 1.93 (1.03) - .
Docreaso ! (increase) In Profit before Tax 1.93 {1.93) . .

The assumed movermant in basis points for inierest rato sensitivily anatysis is based on the currently observable markat envitonment at that time.

&) Commedity price risk:-

The Company conllnues its dependence on single suppller of primary raw malerial due to excalient preduct Quality and un-maiched servica. Supplier is
muinlaining & stable pricing stnscture for s producis. The Company has 3 1obust framewok and govemance mechanism In placa lo ensura thal the
organisalion is inedequately protecled from the market volatilty in terms of prices and availabilly.

44.2 Credit sk
Credil risk Is the sk thal & counter party will not meet lts obligalions under a financial Instumen! or customer contract, legding fo a financial loss. The
Company Is exposed to credit risk from ils operating activitles (pimariy irade receivables) and from its financing activitles, including deposits with banks
and other financial Instuments.
The Campary considers the prababillty of defavit upon initia] recognition of asset ang whether there has beeq a significant Increase in credit gk on an
ongeing basis lhwough aach reporting pariad, To assess whether thora Is a significant incresse In creoit sk the Company compares ihe risk of default
occurring on sssel as at the reporting date vilh the risk of defaull as at the date of inltial recogrillon, 1l considers reasonable and supporiive forwarding-
togking informalion such as:
i) Aciual or expecled significant adverse changes in buslness,
il) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating resulls of the counterparty,
iif) Flnanclal or economic conditions (hat are expecled to cause 8 signiicant change 1o the Counterparly’s abifity lo meet ils obligations,
iv) Significant Increase In credil risk on other fingnclal instruments of the same countarpany,
v) Significant changes in ihe value of the collateral supporting the obligation of In tha quallty of the third-parly guarantees or eredit enhancaments,
Financial assels ase writlen off whan thera Is no reasonable expactalion of tecovery, such as a debler failing to engaga in a repayment plan with the
Company, Where loane or receivables have been wrilten off, the Company continues fo engage in enforcement activily to atlempt 10 recover the recefvabie
due, Where recaveries are mads, these are recognized as Income In the stalement of profit and loss. The Company measures the expecled credit loss of
{rade recelvables based on historical rend, ndustry practices and the business environment [n which the enlity operales. Loss rales are based on actual
credit loss experience and past rends. Based on (he histenical data, loss on collection of receivable is not materlal-hence no additlonal provision
considered. " ; o ¥
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KLASS PAGK LMITED
Nolss to the Gondenged Fingnciel Statements for the Paried ended 30th September, 2022

a) Trade Racolvables:

The Company extends credit to customers In normal cowrse of business. The Company considers factors swuch as credil biack record in tha matket and past
deelings wilh Ihe Compsny for extension of credit to custemers. The Company monitors the payment ratk record of s custernars, Oulstanding tustomaor

recelvabies are reguiaily monifored, The Company evaluates tha cencartrelion of fisk With raspect 10 (rade receivebles as low, as its customers are localed
in savaral jurlsdictions and induslies and operate In largaly Indapendent markels. For & customar aceounting for 10% or more of revenus In any of the
years presented, refer note 38.3 . The Campany does nol expect any matatial risk on aceoual ol non performance by any of the Company's countarganies.

b) Flnantlal lastruments and ¢ash deposits;
The Cempany considers faclors such as lrack record, size of the Institulion,
balances are malntalned. Gredit risk from balsnces with bank Is managed by
managed by fnance deparimant. The Company does not maintain significant
uay operstions is deposiled into the bark.

For other financial instruments, the financs depariment assesses and manage credit risk based o intemnal sesessment. Internal assassment is performed
for each dats of financial instrument wlth different characlaristics.

markel repulation and service slandards 10 selacl the banks with whick
the Company's inanca dapadment, Investment of surplus funds 3re also
cash In hand. Excess balance of cash other than thosa required for lis day to

41.3 Liguldity risk
Liguidily flak is the risk thal the Gompany may not be abie to meet it present
tosses. Tha Company's objective 15 to, al all imes, malntaln optimum leveis of i
operating cash fiows and shori {erm borrowings in the form of bank overdraf] facis
breach any covenants (wheee appilcable) on any of Its barrowing faclities. The
requirement. The Company has also the sanclioned fmit from the banks.

The {able below provides undiscounted cash flows towsrds financial liabllities In

and futura cash and coBateral obligations without incuming unaccepiabie
quidity to meet Its cash ant Gollateral requirements. The Company refles
ly and woiking capltal oan o meet its needs for funds, Company does not
Company hes access 10 a sufficient varisty of sources of funding s per

Io refevant malurily based cn tha remalning period st the balanca sheet 1o

the contraclual malurity date.

_— _(Rs. In laighs)

Particulars Qn demand url Total
0 - 3 Manths 3-6Months 5-12 months More than 1
yBAr

As at 30th September, 2022
Current borrowings 98.36 . . " - 95.36
Trade Payables - 834,77 - . - 834.77
Other Finencigl Lisbilities - 421,51 - 10.88 - 441.37
Total 96.35 1,258.28 - 19,86 - _ 1,372.50
As at st March, 2022
Trade Fayables - 1.008,50 - - - 1.008.50
Othar Financlal Liablities . SDE. 18 . 31,72 . 539,80
Tatal N 1,516.68 - 3172 - 1,848.40

41.4 Competitionand price riak

The Company faces compalillon from logzl and foreign competitors. Meveriheless, it believes 1hal [t has compatlitive advantage in terms of high quatity
predusls and by continuously upgrading Iis experise fo mes! the naeds of its cuslomers,

; Capi sgement
s -?:th:::r;a‘}’:f:::‘ gﬂ?rgonwany's capital management, capilal includes issued capital, afl olher equit)_' reserves and debls. The primary objective of the
Company’s caplial managsment is to moximise sharehoiders value, The Company manages its capila! Slructura and makes adjustmanis & the fight of
changes in economle environmen! énd the requirements of the financial covenanis.
The Company monitors capital using geating ralio, which is nel debl divided by total capital (aquify plus net debl). Nel debt are non-cument and curiant
debts 25 reduced by cash and cash equivalenis and current invesiments. Equity comprises all components Including olher comprehensive income,

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Ag at 10th As at 31st

September,  March, 2022
2022

Tolat Debt 06,356 -
Less:+ Cash and cash equivalent 25,77 12097
Net Dobt 70.59 {12,87)
Total Equity (Equity Share Capital plus Olher Equity) 9,255,34 8,150.55
Tota) Capital { Total Equlty plus net debt) 9,365,923 9,137.58
Searinaraio 0.75% 0447,
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KLASS PACK LIMITED
Notss to tho Condensed Finaneial Statements for the Feilod ended 30th September, 2022

Note 43: Ratle Anzlysis and its components

Ralio
Particulars 30th 30th Septombear, % change from Reasons for deviations
Septembor, 2021 30th Beplembor
022 2021 to 30th
Saplamber, 2072
Current raug 2.56 142 78.98% Primenly due o intraass ininv A
Dedt- Equity Ratio 0.q1 0,07 0.00% 4 R
Debt Senvica Caverage Ralo 106.45 5.32 1801.12% Primarily due fo no Long term borowing In this
period
Relurn on Equily Ratio 1.823% 7.00% -78.60% Primarily due to ingrease in Share capitat and
3 decreass in earnings
lnventory Turnaver Ratio 2.42 373 -35,16% Primarily duo to decrease in Revenue and
incregse in Invenlory.
Trade Recaivabla Tumover Ratle 3.81 3.89 3.25%
Trada P?yab!a Tumaover Ratio 245 1.82 95.04% Primarily dua lo decrease in trade payable.
Nat Capital Tumover Ratia 191 5.65 -65.63% Primarily due lo increase In working capital
Mot Profil Ratlo 3.01% BA7% -66.47% Primarily dua (o decrease In Eamings.
Return on Capltal Employed 2.07% A a8% -76,69% Primarily dus lo decrezse in Eamings.
Roturn on Investinent _3.06% 3.56% -14.07%
Gomponents of Ratio
Ratiog Numerator Danaminator
Currentratln Current Assels Current Lisbllities
Debt- Equity Ratlo Tolal Debis

Total Equily (Equity Shara Gapital + Other

Equity)
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Eamings avalable for Dabl Service (Net Profit aftar Finance cost + Principle repayment of long tem

Taxes + Dapacialion & Amodization + Flnance cost+ borrowings during the year

Non Cash Operaling itsms + Olier adjustment)
Retum on Equity Ratio Net Profi #fier Tax Average Tolal Equily [(Opening Equily Share
capltal + Opaning Other EquilysCiosing Equily
Sharo CapllakClasing Other Equily)i2]

Average Invaniory (Qpening batance+ Closing
talanca)2

Average Trade Receivable {Opening balance +
Claging balance)/2

Inventoy Tumover Ralio Revenus from Operations

Trade Receivable Tumover Ralle  Revanue from Operalions

Trade Payable Tumover Ratio Cost of Malerial Consumed Average Trade Payable (Opening balance +
Closing baiznce)/2

Nel Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue from Operalions Working Capilal (Curent assa! - Curent
llabiiltiag)

Ne! Profit Ratio Net Profit after Tax Revernue from Opeorations

Raturn en Capital Employed Frofit Before Interest & Tax Total Equily = Tolal Debls + Defened Tax
Liablifies

Raturit en Irveslmerit Inferest Incoma on Fixed Degosits + Profil on Sale of Current Invesimenls + Non curran! Invesiments

Investmenis + Income of invésiment - Impairment on + Fixed Daposiis with Bank

value of investmoenl

Note 44: Disclosurs on bankiFinanclal Institutions Compliances

The quaery stalements including fevision (hereon of Inventeries and teade receivables filed by lhe Company with benks/nancial instilutions are In
agreement with the books of actaunts.

Summary of reconciliation of quarterly slalements of curren! assels fled by the Company wilh Banks ara as batow:

(Rs, In lakhs)
Amountas por Amount sg
Partlzulars For 'h: d:l:sm“ boaks of reperied to 3";::?;’
b acgount Banks
Inventeries & Trade Recelvable Jun:22 3454.96 3454.96 Y

Sep22 2942.45 2842 45 =
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KLASS PACK LIMITED
Notes (o the Candensed Financial Statemonts far the Period endad 30th September, 2022

Neto 45 Othar Statutory laformation;

i) There are no balance outstanding on account of any transaclion with eompanles siruck off under saction 248 of the Companles Act, 2013 or section 560
of Companies Acl, 1955,

i) The Company hes not advanced or loanad or Invested fund to any olhes persons or entiies Incuding foreign entities (Irvarmediary) vith the
underslanding (whelher recorded In wiiting or othervdse) that Intermsdiary shall :

a) directly or indirectly lond or Invest In ¢thsr persons or entifes Ideniified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimale beneficlary)
of

b) provide any guarantee, securlly or the like to or on behalf of tha ullimate beneficiades.

iiY) The Compeny has not received any fund from any peraon or anlifes Ineluding foreign entities {funding party) with the understanding (whelher recorded In
wriling or otherwise) Inat the Company shall

&) dir;gy of indieclly lend or invest in cther persons cr entitles identified in any mannar whalseaver by or on behalf of the funding pady (vitimate
beneficiaras) or

b} provide any gusrantee, security or the ke on behall of the ullimata benefigianies,

iv) The Company does not hava any such Iransaclion which i3 not recorded In the books of accounts thal has been surrendered or disclosed as ingome
duing the yesr in lhe lax sssessments under the Income tex Acl, 1861

v) The Compeny is not declared wiliul defaulter by sny bank or financial instilutien or other lenger.

vl) There are na charges of salisfaction theraof which aro yet 1o be regislered with ROG beyand the stalutory perlod.

Nots 46:
The accounts for the perlod ended 30t Seplember 2022 has been prepared In actordance wilh the recognition and measurement principles taid down In
the Indisn Acoounling Standard 84 ( Ind AS - 34) Inlerim Financial Reporting as nofifled under sectlon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companios (Indlan Ascounting Standards) Ruies, 2015, The disclosure required by ofher indisn Accounting Standard zre not given as Company’s interim
finsncials includes orly candensed financial statements 2nd selecled explanatory notes rathar than a completo sat af financial statements.

Note 47 Disclosure on Compasite Scheme of Arrangemont and accounting »5 per Ind AS 103
The Board of Direclors at fls meating held on 7th February 2022, has approved a Composite Schema of Arrangement between the Boroshi Limited {"BL"
and the Company and Borsil Technologles Lid {8TL7, & wholly cwned subsidiary of BL {'Schema’} Inter 2lia for; {8) reduclion and rectganization of share
capilal of the Campany; (b) demarger of Scienlific and Industrial Product Busingss from BL into the Company and consequen lssue of shares by the
Company; #nd (c) smalgamation of BTL with the Company, Tne Appointed Dale for the Scheme I3 18t Apil 2022, Pursuantto the dirzclions of National
Company Law Tribural, Mumbai Bench (WGLT), the Company s in the process of convening meeting of lts unsecured creditors on 6th February 2023 for
thelr gpproval on e Scheme, The requirement of convening meelings of sharenciders and secured craditors of the Cornpany has been alspented with by

NCLT. The Company has prepared inlerim condensed financial statements for the period ended 30ih Seplember 2022 s special purpose financial
statements In conneclion with the above Scheme,

Noto 48

Previaus yearlperiod igures have been regrouped and rearranged wheraver necessary, The figures for he period ended 30th Seplember, 2021 are based
on previcus unaudited financial resulls.

As per our Report of even date Far and on behalf ofthe Board of Dirsttors

For PATHAK H.D. & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regislration No. 107753 W/ W100593) Y

Shresver Khoruka & it Amin
Direcior Managing Director
et e (OIN 018024 16) (DI 00B26075)

Mukesh Mehta ot Mﬂl‘g_/
P:n::; RS '?é’ C;Y\'d"\ /

Membershin No. 43408 < o
. > Anurag Jain Chaltanya Chauhan
Placa : Mumbai Chief Financlal Officer Company Sscretary

Date :13.12.2022 (Mambarehip No. ACS-518¢5)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONDENSED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

To,
The Board of Directors
Borosil Technologies Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Condensed Financial Statements of BOROSIL
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (‘the Company”), which comprise the Condensed Balance Sheet as at
30™ September, 2022, and the Condensed Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Condensed Statement of Changes in Equity and the Condensed
Statement of Cash Flows for the six months period then ended, and notes to the Condensed
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information thereon (collectively hereinafter referred to as “Condensed Financial Statements”). The
Condensed Financial Statements have been prepared by the Management of the Company in
connection with proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“Demerged
Company”), Klass Pack Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company”) and Borosil
Technologies Limited (“Transferor Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors
(‘Scheme’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Condensed Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 30" September, 2022 and its loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and its cash flows for the six months period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Condensed Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Condensed Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(1CAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Condensed
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on the Condensed Financial Statements.

Head Office: 711, Tulsiani Chambers, 212, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.. + 91 22 460328391041
URL: www.phd.ind.in
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Condensed Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Condensed Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the recognition and measurements
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34, ‘Interim Financial Reporting’
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Condensed Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Condensed Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Condensed Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Condensed Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Condensed Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

30, ,‘Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Condensed
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Condensed Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Condensed Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

» We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 43 and Note 44 to the Condensed
Financial Statements, which describe the purpose and basis of preparation. The Condensed
Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company’s Management solely for the purpose as
mentioned in the ‘Opinion’ paragraph above and accordingly, the Condensed Financial Statements
may not be suitable for any another purpose. It should not be used by parties other than the
Company or the Transferee Company or the Demerged Company. It should not be distributed for
any purpose other than to meet the legallregulatory requirements. We do not accept or assume
any liability or duty of care to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

 ASs,

P
17390 20

- f
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Other Matter

Attention is drawn to the fact that the figures for the period ended 30" September, 2021 are based

on previous financial results that were reviewed by us. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 107783W/ W100593

Mukesh Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 043495
UDIN: 22043495BFRZYM5946

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14.12.2022
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BOROSIL TECHNOLQGIES LIMITED

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022

(Rs. in lakhs}
Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31st 2022
{. ASSETS
1 Non-cumrent Assets ;
(8) Propery, Plant and Equipment 5 657.01 305.60
{b) Capital work-in-progress 5 131,66 -
(c} Other Intangible assets & 16.63 14.95
(d) Financial Asseis
(i) Loans g - 0.54
{iiy  Others Financlal Assats 8 30.81 18.81
(e) Deferred taX assels (net) 9 5123 43,10
{f) Non-current Tax Assels {nel) 141 1.11
(g) Other non-current asseis 10 - 8BB.75 0.93 38524
2 Curment Assets
{a) Invenioties 11 383.64 326.02
(b) Financial Assets
(11 Trade Recaivable 12 2417 209.12
() ~ Cash and cash equivalenis 13 12.66 2.89
(i) Loans 14 258 3.44
(c) Otherqurrent assels 15 6073 §53.98 30.56 §72.03
TOTAL ASSETS 1.442.73 957.27
il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capitai 16 958.40 958,40
{b) Other Equity 17 (469.23) 489.17 (161.15) 797.26
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current Liabliitles
(a) Financlal Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 449.00 -
(i)  Lease Liabllities 10 160.65 y
{b} Provisions 20 18.65 628.30 15.06 15.08
2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(M Lease Liabilities 78.22 -
(il  Trade Payable 21
A) Due to Micro and Small Enlerprises 34.36 5459
B) Due to Other than Micro and Small 20.58 18.12
Enterprises
54.94 72.71
(i)  Other Financial Liabilities 22 156,39 43.71
(b) Olher currant liabilitles 23 8.95 631
(e} Provisions 24 26.76 325.26 22.23 144.96
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 144273 ——BBT27
Significant accounting policies and notes 11045
to financial siatements
As per ous report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
For PATHAK H.D. & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W [ W100593) £
Sreejith Kumar Palekudy Sukumaran
Whole time Direclor
{DIN D5530184)
Mukesh Mehta CAd
Rartner ’T‘:\ ? }J‘ M at
Membership n, 43498 :
Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary nayak Patankar
Place : Mumbal Director Director
Dale :14.12.2022 (DIN 07425111) (DIN 07534225)
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER 2022

(Rs. in lakhs)
Note For the For the
Particulars No, Period Ended Period Ended
30th September, 30th September,
2022 2021
l. Income:
Revenue from Operations 25 400.81 583.95
Other Income 26 4,54 1.53
Total Income (1) 405.35 585.48
Il. Expenses:
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 221.87 290.26
Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress and Finished goods 27 34.85 (36.07)
Employee Benefits Expense 2B 225.58 160.38
Finance Costs 29 9.23 9.07
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 30 4223 28,66
Other Expenses 31 187.13 132.86
Total Expenses (1) 720.89 £85.14
lll. Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (] - 11) (315.54) 0.34
IV. Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax # -
(2) Deferred tax 9 (7.98) Q.10
V. Profit/ (Loss) For The Period (lil - IV) (307.58) 0.24
VI, Other Comprehensive Income
i) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (0.67) 0.03
Income tax effect on above 0A7 .
Total Other Comprehensive Income (0.50) _0.03
Vil. Total Comprehensive Income for the period (V + VI) (308.08) _g8.2r
VIIl, Earnings per Equity Share of Rs.10 each (Basic and Diluted) (Not 3z (3.21) 0.00

Annualized)

Significant accounting policies and notes
to financial slatements

110 45

As per our report of even date

For PATHAK H.D. & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W / W100593)

et
NMukesh Mehta
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF GASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022

_(Rs. in lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Period ended
30th September, 2022

For the Period ended
30th September, 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (Loss) before tax as per statement of profit and loss (315.54) 0.34
Adjusted for :
Dapreciation and amortisation expense 4223 28.66
Loss / {profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.30 -
Share Based Payment Expense 4.67 107
Finance cost 9.23 907
Interest income {1.87) (0.73)
54.56 38.07
Operating Profit / {Loss) before Working Capital Changes (260.98) 38.41
Adjusted for:
Trade and other receivables 66.48 (32.56)
Inventories (57.82) (104.34)
Trade and other payables 34.65 26.35
Cash flow (used in) operations (217.87) (124.84)
Direct laxes paid (0.30) !0_25!
Neot Cash Flow from / (used in) Operating Activities !217.972 pzs.usl
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {227.33) (94.07)
Sale of properly, plant and equipment 20.45 -
Interesi income 155 0.56
Net Gash Flow from / (used in) Investing Activities (205.33) (93.51)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 463.40
Proceeds from Non-current Borrowings 448.00 167.00
Repayment of Non-current Borrowings - (361.77)
Lease Paymenis (15.75) (4.72)
Finance cost paid (0.18) 6.22
Net Cash Flow from [ {used in) Financing Activities 433.07 23769
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 9.77 19.09
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.89 11.52
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 12.66 30.61
Noies ;
1 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities on account of Non-current and Current Borrowings: (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Period or the Perio
ended 30th ended 30th
September, 2022 September, 2021
Opening balance of liabilities arising from financing activities - 21477
Changes from financing cash flows 449.00 (214.77)
Closing balance of liabilities arising from financing aclivities 449.00 -
2 Bracket indicates cash outfiow.
3 Previous Period figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
4 The above statement cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flow.

As per our report of even date

For PATHAK H.D. & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration no. 107783W / W100593}

Mukesh Mehta
Partner
Mambership no. 43495

Place : Mumbai
Date : 14.12.2022
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Rajech Kumar Chaudhary
Director
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

[Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at 1st April, Changes As at 31st Changes during As at 30th
2021 during 2021-22 March, 2022 2022.23 September, 2022
Equity Share Capital 485,00 463.40 958.40 - 958.40
B. Other Equity _{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Other Reserves and Surplus
Comprehensive
Income
Remeasuremen Share Based Retained Earnings AN PRSIy,
ts of Defined  Payment Reserve
Benefit Plans
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 (0.43) 429 {113.41) (109.55)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (0.98) . {50.62) {51.60)
Opticn cancelled during the year (Refer note 36) {4.28) 4,29 -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 (1.41) (159.74) (161.15)
Total Comprehensive income for the period (0.50% - (307.58) (308.08)
Balance as at 30th September, 2022 11.91) (467.32) _(468.23)
As per our repont of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For PATHAK H.D. & ASSDCIATES LLP
Chartered Aceountants
[Firm Registration no. 107783aW / W100583)
Sreejith Kumar PaleKudy Sukumaran
Whole time Director
/ (DIN 06550184)
Mukesh Mehta jx | 3 o,
Partner . L
Membership no, 43495 T
Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary ~"Vinayak Pat:ankar
Place : Mumbai T Diractar Director
Dale : 14.12.2022 {DIN 07425111) (DIN D7534225)
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BOROSIL TECHNOLQGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 1 CORPORATE INFOMRATION:
Borosil Technologies Limited ("the Company")(CIN U36999MH2009PLC1 87226) is a public limited Company domiciled
and incorporated in India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Opp. MCA
Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051,

The Company Is a manufacturer of Sclentific Instruments.

The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 30th September, 2022 were approved and adopted by
the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 14th December, 2022,

Note 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION:
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS).
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liakilities,
which are measured at fair value / amortised cost.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Note 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided using straight line method over the useful life of assets
as specified in schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, Depreciation on property, plant and equipment which are added
/ disposed off during the period is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / deletion. Freehold
land is not depreciated.
The assets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and are
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the
balance sheet date.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from active
use. Profits / losses arising in the case of retirement / disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period of occurrence.
Leasehold lands are amortised over the period of lease. Buildings constructed on leasehold land are depreciated based
on the useful life specified in scheduie |1 to the Companies Act, 2013, where the lease period of land is beyond the life
of the building. In other cases, buildings constructed on leasehold lands are amortised over the primary lease period of
the lands.

3.2 Intangible Assets ;
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the intangible assets.
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset wil
flow to the Company and the cost of the zsset can be reliably measured.
Computer softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised
over the period of useful lives or period of three years, whichever is less. The assets' useful lives and method of
amortisation are reviewed at each financial year end.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognised.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

3.3 Leases:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement quelifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 118. Identification
of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an options to extend the lease ¥t the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise that options; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that options. In assessing whether the company is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that crate an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to
exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the Incremental borrowing rate specific to the
lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of fime in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right fo control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whather: (i) the confract involves the
use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
tne pericd of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment lcsses.,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the sharter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes In circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assels. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate Implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether i will exercise an
extension or a termination option.

Tne discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for 2
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease, Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases,

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right- of-use asset arising from
the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on & straight line basis over the term of the relevant leass.

122



BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

3.4 Inventories:

35

3.6

8.7

purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective preseant location and
condition. Cost is computed on the weighted average basis.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management.

Impairment of assets:

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet, there are indications of impairment and the
carrying amount of the asset, or where applicable, the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the net assat selling price and value in use).The carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the statement of profit and loss. The
impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset over
its remaining useful life.

Discontinued operation and non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale:

Discontinued operation:

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed off or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose off such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale, The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit or loss.

Held for Sale;

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when a sale is highly probable
from the date of classification, management are committed to the sale and the asset is available for immediate sale in
its present condition. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale from the date these conditions are met and are
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any resulting impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss as a separate line item. On classification as held for sale, the assets are no longer
depreciated. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the Balance
Sheet.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

3.8 Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

1) Financial assets -Initial recognition and measurement:
All financial assets are initially recognized a: fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial
recognition. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as
financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-

a) Financlal assets at fair value

b) Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and
loss (i.e fair value through profit or loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive income)

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for
impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option,

a) Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the
contractual cash fiow.

b) Gash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a) Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flow and selling firancial assets,

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial agsets - Derecognition:

A financial assets (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed form the Company's statement of financial position) when;

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset.

Il Financial liabilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial liabilities are recognised Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and

other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due
to the shorl maturity of these instruments,

Financial Liabilities - Financial guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes fo the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Financial Liabilities - Derecognition:

A financial lizbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the

3.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

3.10

3.1

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event. It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econemic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provigions are discounted using equivalent period govemnment securities interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 2 finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent ligblities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
eontrol of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it ie either not probable thal an
outfiow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on
contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Confingent assets are not reccgnised.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it
is recognised as an asset.

Dividend Distribution:

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend
payable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised directly in other equity.

Revenue recognition and other income:

Sale of goods:

The Company derives revenuas primarily from sale of Scientific Instruments.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligaton upon transfer of control of promised products or

services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange

for those products or services.

Revenue Is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and claims, if
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is also net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and
loss.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of
performance obligations at the reporting period.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of produets and services, geography and
timing of revenue recognition.

Other Income:

Incentives on exports and other Government incentives related to operations are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss after due consideration of certainty of utilization/receipt of such incentives,

Interest Income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured relizbly. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend Income:

Dividend Income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

Rental income:

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included as other income in the statement of profit or loss.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

3.12 Foreign currency reinstatement and translation:

313

Transactions in foreign currencies are intially recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Subsequently monetary items are translated at closing exchange rates as on balance sheet date and the
resulting exchange difference recognised in statement of profit and loss. Differences arising on settlement of monetary
items are also recognised in statement of profit and loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the transaction. Nen-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or
ioss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., transiation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or |oss, respectively).

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustement to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit
and loss, within finance costs. All other finance gains / losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net
basis.

In case of an asset, expense or income where a non-monetary advance is paidireceived, the date of transaction is the
date on which the advance was initially recognized. If there were multiple payments or receipts in advance, multiple
dates of transactions are determined for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.,

Employee Benefits;

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense In the statement of profit and loss of the period in which
the related services are rendered,

Leave encashmentis accounted as Short-term employee benefits and is determined based on projected unit credit
method, on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date.

Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made in accordance with the statule, and is recognised
as an expense in the period in which employees have rendered services.

The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the
basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and |losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the
other comprehensive income in the period in which they ocecur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of
profit and loss in subsequent periods.

3.14 Share-based payments:

Certain employees of the company receive part of their remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity-settled transactions’).

The resultant increase in equity is recorded in share based payment reserve.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured at fair value at the date at which they are granted,
The fair value of share awards are determined with the assistance of an extemnal valuer and the fair value at the grant
date is expensed on a proportionate basis over the vesting period based on the Company's estimate of shares that will
eventually vest, The estimate of the number of awards likely to vest is reviewed at each balance sheet date up to the
vesting date at which point the estimate is adjusted to reflect the current expectations,
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period anded 30th September, 2022

3.15 Taxes on Income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax (including income tax for earlier years) and deferred
tax{Including MAT credit entitlement) . Tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is also recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. Any subsequent change in direct tax on items initially recognised in
equity or other comprehensive income is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax provision Is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and exemplions under the

provisions of the applicable Income Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as
net.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally

temporary differences, carry forward tax losses, unused tax credit and allowances to the extent that it Is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses,
unused tax credit and allowances can be utilised. Deferred lax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax
rates. The carrying amount of deferred tax gssets(Including MAT credit entitlement) is reviewed at each balance shest
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

3.16 Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acguisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporarily deployment of
funds) as part of the cost of such assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds, For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures
on that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obteining a
qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not excead the amount of borrowing
cost incurred during that period. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they ocour.

3.17 Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the pericd attributable to the shareholders' and
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted eamings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the shareholders’ and
weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during the period including share options,
convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. Potential equity shares
that are converted during the period are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the beginning of
the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversion.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

3.18 Current and non-current classification:

3.18

The Company presents assets and liablities in statement of financial postion based on current/non-current
classification.

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liabilities and curnent
liabllities in accordance with Schedule 111, Division Il of Companies Act, 2013 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The Company has
identified twelve months as its normal cperating cycle.

Fair value measurement;

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between markst participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the prasumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilty takes place either:

2) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial zsset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy.

3.20 Offsetting financial instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable rights to offset the recagnised amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis or realise the asset
and seitle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable rights must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptoy of the Company
or counterparty.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

41

4.2

4.3

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates ang assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in outcomes that
require & material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or labilities affected in future pericds. The key

reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets:

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the
amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 or are based on the Company's historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.

Income Tax:

The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including Mat credit
entitlement). The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to an adjustment to the
amounts reported in the financial statements.The Company has carry forward tax losses that are available for offset
against future taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax lossss or tax credits can be utilised. This involves an assessment of
when those assets are likely to reverse, and a Judgement as to whether or not there will be sufficient taxable profits
available fo offset the assets. This requires assumptions regarding future profitability, which is inherently uncertain. To
the extent assumptions regarding future profitability change, there can be an increase or decrease In the amounts
recognised in respect of deferred tax assets and consequential impact in the statement of profit and loge.

Contingencies:

Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending
matters with accuracy.

4.4 Impairment of financial assets:

4.5

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss.
The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generale cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market fransactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Thesa caleulations are cotroborated by valuation multiples or
other available fair value indicators,
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

4.6 Defined benefits plans:

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and other posl-employment benefits and the present vaiue of such obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined

benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviswed at each reporting

4.7 Recoverability of trade recelvable:

4.8

4.9

4.10

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a
provision against those receivables s required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the
amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be teken to mitigate the risk of non-
payment,

Provisions:
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds resuiting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be rellably estimated. The timing of

Fair value measurement of financial instruments :

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices In active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the Discounted
Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial Instruments,

Classification of Leases

cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an options to extend the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise that options; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that options, In assessing whether the company is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that crate an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to
exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
canceliable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the
lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 6 - Other Intangible Assets

: (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Other Infangible
assets

Gross Block:
As at "1st April, 2021 30.08

Additions 13.69

Disposals / transfers e

As at 31st March, 2022 43.77
Additions 5.56

Disposals / transfers id

As at 30th September, 2022 49.33
AMORTISATION:

As at 1st April, 2021 ? 21.49
Amortisation during the year 7.32
Disposals )
As at 31st March, 2022 28.82
Amortisation during the period 388
Disposals -
As at 30th September, 2022 32.70
NET BLOCK :

As at 31st March, 2022 14.95
As at 30th September, 2022 16.63

6.1 Other Intangible assets represents software other than self generated.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notas to the condensed finaneial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 7 - Non-current financial assets - Loans

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
Septemb 22 March, 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good !
Loan to Employess 054
Total — SERRENE -
Mote 8 - Non-current financial assets - Others
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31ist
Saptember, 2022 March, 2022
Unseeured, Considered Good :
Security Deposits 30.81 18.81
Total 30.81 18.81
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 9 Income Tax

9.1 The major compenents of Income Tax Expenses / (Income) for the Period ended 30th September, 2022 and 30th September, 2021

are as follows:
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars For the Period For the Period
ended 30th ended 30th
2022 September, 2021
Recognised in Statement in Profit and Loss !
Current Tax " 5
Deferred Tax - Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (7.96) 0.10
Total Tax Expenses / {income) 7.96 0.10

9.2 Recongciliation between tax expenses / (income) and accounting profit multiplied by tax rate for the Periad ended 30th September,
2022 and period ended 30th September, 2021 :

9.4

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Perlod For the Period
ended 30th ended 30th
tember Se ber, 2021
Accounting profit [ (loss) before tax {315.54) 0.34
Applicable tex rate 26.00% 26.00%
Computed Tax Expenses | {incame) (82.04) 0.09
Tax effect on account of;
Tax losses for which no deferred tax recognised 72.41 -
Expenses not allowed 0.01 (0.03)
Other deduclions f allowances 1.88 0.04
Income tax expenses / (income) recognised in statement of profit and loss (7.96) 0.10
9.3 Deferred tax assels relates o the following:
(Rs. in lakhs)
Balance Shaat Statement of profit and losslether
comprehensive incorme
Particulars Asat30th Asat3ist For the For the
September, March, Period Ended Period Ended
2022 2022 30th September, 20th September,
] 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment {(19.87) {(14.69) 5.18 2.29
Investmants - - - -
Unabsorbed Depreclation Loss 58.57 47.08 (12.49) 0.14
Lease Liabllites (1.61) - 1.61 0.21
Disallowance Under Section 43B of the Income 13.14 10.71 (2.43) (2.54)
Tax Act, 1961
Total 51.23 43.10 {8.13) 0.10
Reconcilialion of deferred 1ax assets (net):
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 30th As at 31st
s September, 2022 March, 2022
Opening balance 43.10 26.49
Deferred Tax cradit recognised in statement of profit and loss 7.86 16.26
Deferred Tax credit recognised In QCI 047 0.35
Closing balance 51.23 43.10
9.5 Amount and expiry date of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 30th As at 31st
Particulars s March. 2022
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assais has been recognised 3641 3005

Unused tax losses are available for set off for 8 years from the year in which losses aiuse. Above mentioned losses pertains to the
Financial Year 2018-18, 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes ta the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 10 - Other Non-current assets

Particulars

As at 30th
September, 2022

Unsecured, Considered Good ©
Capital Advances
Prepaid Expenses

Total

Note 11 « Inventories

(RS, in lakhs)
As at 31st

March, 2022

0.75
0.18

0.93

[Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars As at 30th As at 3ist
September, 2022 March, 2022
Raw Material 314.82 22107
Woik-in-Progress 17.87 7777
Finished Goods 44.07 i8.52
Slores, Spares and Consumables 0.25 048
Packing Material 7.32 817
Total 383.84 326.02
11.1 For method of valuation, refer note no. 3.4.
Note 12 - Current financial assets - Trade Receivable
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 20th Asat 3st
September, 2022 March, 2022
Unsecured;
Considered Good 024,17 208,12
Total 94,17 209,12

12,1  Trade Receivables Ageing Schedula are as below :-
. k. B (Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Nat Due Outstanding from due date of payment as at 30th September, 2022 —_'J'\
Upto & | 6 Months - More than 3
Months 1 Year 1-2Years _ ;aars I Total
Undispuizd trade receivables — considered good - 94,17 - - - 94,17
Total = 8417 - - 94.17
_(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Not Oue Qutstanding from due date of payment as at 31st March, 2022
Upto 6 | 6 Months - Wiore than 3
Months | 1 YearJ- 2-3 Years l l years Total
Undisputed trade receivables — considered goed - 209.12 - - - - 209.12
Total - 209.12 - - . - 208142
Note 13 - Cash and cash equivalent
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 3st
September, 2022 March, 2022
Balances with Banks in current accounts 11.02 270
Gash on Hand 1.84 .18
Total 12.66 2.89
3.4 For the purpose of the staterment of caeh fiow, cash and cgsh eauivalents comprise the followings: (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, 2022 _March, 2022
Balances with Banks in current accounts 11.02 270
Cash on Hand 1.64 D18
Total 412.66 289
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes 1o the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 14 « Current financial assets - Loans

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 30th
September, 2022
unsetured, Considered Good :

As at 31st

March, 2022

Loan lo Employees 2.58

Total 2.58

= ——————

Note 15 - Other Cusrent Asset

344

3.44

————

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at 31st
March, 2022

Particulars As at 30th
September, 2022

Unsecured, Considered Good:

Advances against supplies 16.38

Balanee with Goods and Service Tax Autharilies 3341

Unamortised Portion - Loan To Employees 002

Others 10,92
Total 60.73

181 Othersincludes mainly prepaid expenses.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 16 - Equity Share Capital

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, March, 2022
2022
Authorised
1,00,00,000 (Previous year 1,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 1,000.00 1,000.00
Issuad, Subscribed & Fully Paid up e
95,84,043(Pravious year 95,84,043) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up 958.40 956.40
Total 955.40 958.40
16.1 Reconciliation of number of Eguity Shares ouistanding at the beginning and at the end of the year [ period :
Particulars As at 30th September, 2022 As at 31st March, 2022
(in Nos.) {In lakhs) (in Nos.} (In lakhs))
Shares outstanding st the beginning of the year 95,84,043 958.40 49,50,000 485,00
Add: Issue of equity share capital [Refer note - - 46,34,043 463,40
16.2)
Shares outstanding at the end of the year/ 95,684,043 958.40 95,84,043 058,40
period
16.2 During the previous year, the Company has issued 46,34,043 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on a right Issue basis to its
Holding Company, Barosil Limited.
16.3 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares :
The Company has only one class of shares referred 1o as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Holders of equity shares are
entitied 1o one vole per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, If
any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining asseis of the Company, afier distribution of all
preferential amounts. The disiribution will be in the same properticn as the capital paid-up on the equity shares held by them bears ta the tatal paid-
up squity share capifal of the Company.
16.4 Shares held by Holding Company
Name of holding Company As at 30th September, 2022 As at 31st March, 2022
No. of % of Haolding  No, of Shares % of Holding
Shares held held
Borosil Limited (including equity shares held 95,84,043 100.00% 95,84,043 100.00%
jolntly with the nomineas)
16.5 Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% of Equity Shars Capital :
Name of Shareholder As at 30th September, 2022 As at 31st March, 2022
No. of 9 of Holding  No. of Shares % of Holding
Shares held held
Barosil Limited (including equity shares held jointly with ihe nominees) 95,684,043 100.00% 95,84,043 100.00%
16.6_Details of shares held by Promoter in the Company”:
Name of Promoters As at 30th September, 2022 As at 31st March, 2022
No. of % of Holding  MNo. of Shares % of Holding
Shares held held
Borosil Limited (including equity shares held jointly with the nominees) 95,684,043 100.00% 85,684,043 100.00%
*There is no change in pramalers share holding during the pericd ended 30th September, 2022
16.7 There Is no dividend paid or proposed during the period and during the previous vear.
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Nates to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30t

Note 17 « Other Equity

h September, 2022

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 30th As at 31st

Sy P September, 2022 March, 2022

As per Last Balanca Sheet (159.74) (113.41)

Add: Oplion canceled during the period | year (Refer note 36) - 4 .25

Add: Profil/ (Loss) for the period ! year (307 .58) (487.32) (50.82) (159.74)

Share Based Payment Reserve

As per Lasi Balance Sheet - 4.28

Less . Option cancelied during the period / yeer (Refer note 38) - - (4.29) -

Other Comprehensive Income (OC1)

As per Last Balance Sheet (141) {0.43)

Add: Movements in OCI (net) during the period / year (0.50) (1.81) (0.98) (1.41)
Total (489.23) 115

Nature and Purpose of Reserve:
1. Retained Earnings:

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings represents the accumulated profits / losses made by the Gompany over the years.

2. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) :
QC| includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans.

Note 18 - Non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, 2022 March, 2022
Unsecured Loan
Loan from a related party (Refer nole 35) 449.00 -
Total 449.00 -

Loan from a related party of Rs. 449.00 lakhs (Previous Year
pa.

Mote 12 - Nen-current financial llabilities - Lease liabilities

Nil) Is repayable within 2 years from the date of said loan and it is carrying interest at the rate of 8%

: (Rs. n iakns)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
Seplember, 2022 iarch, 2022
Lease fiabilites 160.65 -
Total 152.55 -
Note 20 - Non-current Liabilities - Provislons
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
Sep , 2022 March, 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits:
Gratuity (Unfunded) 18.85 15.08
Total 18.65 e T
MNote 21 - Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, 2022 March, 2022
Mizro, Small and Medium Enterprises 37.68 56,49
Ofhers 17.06 16.22
Total 54,94 72.71
214  Trade Payables Ageing Schedule are as below -
__(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Unbilied Dusa Qutstanding from due date of payment as at 30th September, 2022
More than 3
Not Due I Upto 1 Year | 1 -2 Years i 2-3 Years __years ] Total
Total oulstanding dues of micro,small & medium
Enterprises - 16.38 21.50 4 2 37.86
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than
micro,small & medium Enterprises 7.30 9.76 - - 17.06
Total - 23.68 31.25 - - - 54.94
{Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Unbilled Due Outstanding from due date of payment as at 31st March, 2022
| More than 3 L
Not Due | Upto1 Year | 1-2 Years 2-3Years ___years Total
Total oulstanding dues of micro,small & medium
Enterprises - 43,32 13.147 - - - 56.49
Total putstanding dues of Creditors other than e——w7
micro small & mediym Enterprises ﬁf SO 6.13 6.03 0.0 & = 16.24
Total 7S ffﬂ\‘_'jd}%\ 51.45 24.20 0.06 - - 72.71
3

iy
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

21.2  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED 20086) have been determined based on
the information as available with the Company and the details of amount outstanding due to them are as given below:
Rs. in lakhs
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
) September, 2022 March, 2022
a) the principal amount and the interest due
thereon (o be shown ssparately) remaining
unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year,;
i) Principal amount oulstanding 37.B8 56.48
i) Intarest theraon 0.08 0.06
b)  the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of sectien 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium . -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting vear:
c) the amount of interest due and payable far the perind of delay in making payment (which has been . =
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified undsr the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008;
d) tha amount of interest acerusd and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting year; 0.08 0.06
) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, until such - "
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
Note 22 - Current financial liabilities - Others
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
Scptember, 2022 =~ 00 March 2032
Craditors for Capital Expenditure §9.95 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowing 5.90 -
Interest accrued and due on Others 0.08 0.06
Other Payables 90.46 43.65
Total 156.39 43.71
22.1  Dther payables includes outstanding Liabilities for Salaries, Bonus, Other Provision for Expenses efc.
Note 23 - Other Current Liabilities
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
Soptember, 2022 March, 2022
Statutory liabilities 8.85 6.3
Mote 24 - Current Pravisions
__(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, 2022 March, 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Unfunded) 0.03 0.03
Leave Encashment 26.73 22.20
Total —— 22723

139



BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 25 - Revenues from Operations

¢ (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Period For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September, 2022 September, 2021
Sale of Products 400.81 583.06
Net Revenue from Operations 400.81 583.95
281 Disaggregated Revenue:
(i) Revenue based cn Geography:
' (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Period For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September, 2022 September, 2021
Domestic 400.81 583.95
Export A L B
Revenue from Operations 400.81 - GH308

(i} Revanue by Business Segment:

The company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of Sclentific Instruments, which is a single segmentin terms of Ind A8 108 *Qperating
Segments® and hencs, the requirement of disaggregation by type of goots and services is not applicable,

(i) Reconclliation of Revenue from Operation with contract price:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars For the Pariod For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September, 2022 September, 2021
Contrac! Price 400.81 583.95
Reduction towards variables considerations companenis - -
Revenue from Operations 400.81 583.95
Note 26 - Other lncome
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Period For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th

September, 2022

September, 2021

Interest Income from financlal assets measured at amortised cost

- Others 1.87 0.73
Rert income 0.68 0.80
Miscellaneous income 1.99 b
Total 4.54 1.53
Note 27 - Changes in lnventories of Work-in-Progress and Finished Geods
[Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Perlod For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th

September, 2022

September, 2021

At the end of the Period | Year
Work-in-Progress
Finished Goods

At the beginning of the Year

Work-in-Progress
Finished Goods

Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Pregress and Finished Goods
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17.87
44.07
61.44

77.77
18,52
96,29

— AN,

B5.12
2271
107,83

56.87

14.89
71.76
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 28 - Employee Benefits Expense

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Period For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September 2022 September, 2021
Salaries, Wages & allowances 195,69 141,93
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 11.08 8.01
Share Based Payments (Refer Note 38) 487 1.07
Staff Welfara Expenses 7.21 6.16
Gratuity (Unfunded) 293 318
Total 226,58 160.36
Note 29 - Finance Cost
. (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Period For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
___September. 2022 =~ = September, 2021
Interest Expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 592 9.01
Interest Expenses on Finance lease liabilties 331 0.06
Total 9.23 9.07

Note 30 - Depreciation and amortisation expenses

_{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the Period For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September, 2022 September, 2021
Depreoiation of Property, Plent and Equipment (Refer nate 5) 38.35 24.29
Amortisation of intangitle assets (Refer note 6) 3.88 447
Total 42.23 28.66
Note 31 - Other Expenses
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Perlod For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th
September, 2022 September, 2021
Manufacturing Expenses
Stores, Spares and Consumable 2.04 0.0
Packing Materials Consumed 9.02 7.71
Processing Charges 17.35 24.75
Contract Labour Expenses 30.92 21.91
Product Development Expenses 22,49 12.97
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Sales Promotion and Advertisement Expenses = 485
Administrative and General Expenses
Rent 17.63 25.23
Rales and Taxes 0.03 Q.03
Other Repairs 12.95 6.04
Insurance 5.92 3.10
Legal & Professional Fees 10.98 9.37
Travelling 22.12 518
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note 31.1) 1.75 1.38
Loss on Sale of Property plant and eguipmants 0.30 -
Miscellanecus Expenses 24,75 14.28
Total 132.86
31.1  Details of Payment fo Auditors
{Rs. in lakhs)
Far the Perlod For the Period
Particulars Ended 30th Ended 30th
__ September, 2022 _ September, 2021
Payments to the auditor as:
For Statutory Audit ;gg 1.38
For Tax Audit T T

Total
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period endad 30th September, 2022

Note 32 - Earninge Per Equity share

Particulars For the Period For the Period
Ended 30th Ended 30th

September, 2022 September, 2021

Net profit/ {loss) after tax attributable to Equity Sharsholders for Basic EPS and Diluted EPS (Rs. In (307.58) 0.24

Lakhs)

Share based payment - 0.79

Net profit/ {loss) after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders for Diluted EPS (307.58) 1.03

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for Basic EPS and Oiluted 05,84,043 64,44,036

EPS (in Nos.)

Basic and Diluted Earning per share of Rs. 10 each (in Rs.) (not annualised) (3.21) 0.00

Face Value per Equity Share (in Rs) 10.00 10.00
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Notes to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 33 - Contingent Liabiiities and Commitments

334

332

333

There is no contingent liability as at 30th September, 2022 and as at 31st March, 2022,

Commitments
__(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th As at 31st
September, Warch, 2022
Estimated amount of Coniracts remaining lo be executed on Capital ACcount no!l provided for (cash outiiow is
expected on execulion of such capilal contracts)
-- Related to property, plant and equipmeant 4.65 7.10

Management is of the view that above commitments will not have impact on the financial position of the company.

Note 34 - Segment Information

The company is primarily engaged in menufacturing of Saientific Insiruments used In laboratory. As there is one reporiable segment, the disclosure as required as per
accounting slandard on "Segment Reporting” (lnd AS — 108) s not given,

34.1 Revenue from operation from outside india is Re. NIl
34.2 Revenue of Rs. 400.81 Lakhs {Previous period Rs. 583,95 Lakhs) from a customer represents mare than 10% of the company's ravenua for the pariod ended 30th

September, 2022,

Note 35 - Related party disclosure

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24, on related parly disclesures, name of the related parly, related party relationship, transactions and outstanding
balances Including commitments where control exits and with whom transactions have taken placa during reported periods, are as delail below:

351 List of Related Partles :
Name of the related party Country of % of equity interest held by
Incorporation holding company
Asg at 30th As at 31st
September, March, 2022
2032
{a) Holding Company
Borosil Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
(b)  Key Management Personnel
Mr, Sreefith Palekudy Sukumaran Kumar - Whole time Director
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary - Director
Mr. Vinayak Palankar - Direclor
352 Transactions with Related Partles :
__(Rs. in lakhs)
Name of Transactions Name of the Related Party April to April to Sep.'21
Sep.'22
Transactions with holding company
Sale of Goods Borasil Limited 400,81 583.95
Rent Income Borosli Limited 0.68 0.80
Interest Expenses Borosil Limited 580 Q.12
Purchase Of Goads Borosil Limited 8.07 28.24
Rent Expanses Borosll Limited 0.66 D.66
Unsecurad Loan Taken Borosi! Limited 44900 167.00
Unsecured Loan repaid Borosil Limited - 381.77
|asue of Equily Ehares to Borasil Limited - 463.40
Transactions with other related parties:
Directors Remuneration Mr. Sresjith Palekudy Sukumaran Kumar 39.81 28.95
[Rs. in lakhs)
MName of Transactions Name of the Related Party As at 31st  As at 31st March,
March 2022 2021
Balances with holding company
Trade Recelvable Barosil Limited 69.14 209.12
Nen-current financial liabilities - Borrowings Borosil Limited 448.00 -
Interast accrued but not due Borosil Limited 5,90 =
Current financial liabilities - Dthers Barosil Limited 4,78 -
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BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Nates to the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022

Note 36

- Bhare Based Payments

Borosil Technologies Limites - Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018 ("ESOS 2019")

The Company hlad introduced Borosil Technologies Limited - Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019 (‘ESOS 201€"), which was approved by the shareholders of the
Cpmpamr in their mesting held on 28th Novemnber, 2018 to provide equity setiled tenure based stock opfions to spacific employees of the Tompany. The Board of
Directars of the Company had granted 3,15,957 options to an employee on 31st January, 2020 The exercise prica of the option was Rs. 10 per share and the Exgrcise
pariod was 5 years from the date of vesling of respective options. The vesting schedule of the options granted was 33%, 33% and 34% of the granted options after
completion of 1st year, 2nd year and 3rd year respectively from the date of grant of options.

During the previous year, the said employee has surrendered the option granted to him and the Company has withcrawn the scheme. Accordingly, the Comparny has
reversed ihe entire shars based payment reserve of Rs. 4,28 Lakhs and transferred it to retained earnings during the year ended 31st March, 2022,

Tha details of stock options for the period ended 30th September, 2022 and for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is presented below:

Particulars ESOS 2019
30th September,  31st March,
2022 2022
QOptions as at 1st April - 3,159,957
Options granted during the period / year - -
Optiens withdrawn during the period / year - {3,15,957)

QOptians forfeited during the period / year - -

Options exercised during the period / year " -
Options outstanding 3 &

Empioyee Stock Option Scheme of Borosil Limited (BL)

During the pericd, Barosil Limiled has granted 23,300 stock options (Previous period Nil) to the employees of the Company. With respect {o the same, the Compary has
recognized lolal expenses of fis. 4.67 lakhs (Previous period Rs. Nil) refated to equity settled share-based payment irensactions for the peficd ended 30th September,
2022, The liadility recognised on account of this will be paid io BL upon exarcise of the options by such employees of the Company.

Note 37 - Falr Values

374

il

ity

Sef out below is & comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company'a financial assets and liabiliies that are recognised in the financlal

Financial Assets [ Liabilities measured at amortisad Cost: (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th September, 2022 As at 31st March, 2022
Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Value Value

Financial Assets :

B 1al A e sl

i at amortised costi-

- Trade Receivable 84.17 24,17 209.12 208,12
- Cash and cash equivalents 1268 12,66 2,89 289
- Loans 2.58 2.58 .28 3.98
- Othera 30.81 30,81 18.81 18.81

140.22 140.22 234.80 234,80

Financlal Liabilities:

Financial Liabilities designated at amoriised cost:-

- Non Current Borrowings 449,00 449.00 - .

- Lease Llabilites 206.87 238,87 - -

- Trade Payable 54,84 54,89 72,71 7271

- Other Financial Liabilities 156.39 156.38 43,71 4371
898.20 899.20 116.42 116.42

Fair Valuation techninues ;
The Company maintains procedures 1o value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. The fair values of the financial assets

and liabiliies are inciudad at the amount that would be recaived lo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measuiemnent date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair value of trade recaivable, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities are approximate at thelr carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of Non-current Security Deposits are calculated based on discounted cash flow using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the
fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inpuls including credit risk. The fair values of Non-Current Secuity Deposils are approximate at their carrying
amount The fair values of loan to employees are approximate at thelr carying amount due to inlerest bearing features.

The Company usas valuation techniques that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available th measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and mininising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes (o the condensed financial statement for the period ended 30th September, 2022
37.3 Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hietarchy for determining and disclosing the falr value of financial instruments by valuation technigues:-

) Level 1 i~ Quoted prices / published NAV (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabiiities. It includes fair value of financial instrumernts traded in active
markels and are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date and financial instruments like mutual funds for which net assels value (NAV) s published by
mufual fund operators at the balance shee! date.

i) Level 2 :- Inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for he assel or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived

fiom prices). I includes fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation technigues maximisa the use of chservable market data where it is aveilable and rely as lttle as possible on the Group specific
estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrumant are cbsarvable then instrumeant is included in level 2.

lii) Level § i- Inpuls for the asset or fiability that are not based on observable marke! dala (that Is, unobservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inpuls is not based

on observable market data, the instrument is includad in level 3.

As per abave higrarchy, the sole investment of the Campany in mutual furd is grouped under Level 1.

Note 38 :- Financial Risk Management: - Objectives and Policies

384

38.2

38.3

The Company is exposed to market risk, cradit risk and liquidity riak.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices The company does not have price
risk as the investments in liquid mutual fund units.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed fo credit risk from s operating aclivities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing aclivities, including deposits with banks and other financial
The Company considers the probability of default upon inilist resognition of assel and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on 2n ongoing basis
through each repariing pariod. To assess whether thare is a significant increase In credit risk, the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the
reperting date with the risk of defaull as al the date of initial recogrition, It considers reasonable and supporiive forwarding-looking information such as:

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

i Actual or expescted significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

Iii} Financial or economie condilions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparly’s ability to meet its obligations,

Iv) Significant increasa in eredit riek on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,

) Significant changas in the value of the collateral supporiing the obligation or inthe quality of the third-party guarantees or cradit enhancements,

Financial assets are wiitten off when there is no reasonable expeciation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repeyment plan with the Company. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Company conlinues to engage in anforcament activity to attermpt to recover the receivable due, Where recoveriss are
made, lhese are recognized as income in the staternent of profit and loss. The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend,
induslry practices and the busil environment in which the enlity operates. Loss rates are based on aclual cradil loss experience and past rends. Based on that no
provision considered by the Company.

a) Trade Receivables:-

The Company exiends cradit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as credh track record in the market and past dealings with
the Company for extension of credit to customsrs. The Company monitors the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer receivables are regulary
monitorad. For a eustomer accounting for 10% or more of ravenue n any of the years presented. refer nata 34.2. The Company does not expect any material risk on
aceount of nen perfermance by any of the Company's counterparties.

b) Financial instruments and cash depasits:-

The Company considers faclors such as {rack record, size of the insfitution, markel rsputation and service standards to sefect the banks with which balances are
maintained. Credil risk from balances with bank is managed by the Company’s finance departiment. Invesiment of surplus funds are also managed by finance departmeant
The Company does no! maintain significant cash In hand. Excess balance of cash other than those required for its day 1o day operalions Is deposited into the bank and
For other financial instruments, the finance department assesses and manage credit risk based on internal as 1t Intemal 1ot is performed for each class
of financial instrument with different characteristics.

Liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk Is tha risk that the Company may not be able to meet ita prasent and future cash and cellateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
Company's objective Is to, at all imes, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to mest its cash and collateral requirements. The Company has access 10 a sufficient variety of
sources of funding as per requirement.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards financial liabilties into relevant maturily based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
raturity date,

{Bs. in lakhs)

Particulars Maturity Carrying Amount
On demand 0-3Months 3-6Months 6-12months More than 1
__Near
As at 31st March, 2022
Trade Payabla - 727 - - = 72.71
Other financial liabilities - 39,73 382 43.71
Tetal . 112,50 - 3.92 = 116.42
As at 30th September, 2022
Nan Current Borrowlngs - - - - 448,00 449.00
Trade Payable - 54,94 - - - 54.94
Lease Liabilities - 18.97 19.36 39.89 160.65 238.87
Other financial liabiites - 154.38 - 2.01 - 156.39
Total - 228.39 19.36 41.90 160.65 §99.20

38,4 Competition and price risk

The Company faces competition from local and forelgn compatilors. Nevertheless, it believes that ithas competitive advantage in terms of high quality products and by
continuously upgrading its expertise and range of preduets io meet the needs of its customers.
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Note 39: Lease
{i)  The disciosures under ind AS - 1716 * Leases’ has been given below:

(i) Following are the amounts recognised in Statament of Profit & Loss account:

_|Rs. In lakhs)
For the period  For the period
ended 30th ended 30th

Particulars September, September, 2021
022

Depreciation expense for right-of-use assets 14,42 408

Intarest expense on lease liabilites 381 0.08

Total amount recognised 17.73 4.32

(ili)  The following is the movement in lease liabllities during the period :
__(Rs. In lakhs)
Forthe period  For the period
ended 30th ended 30th

Particulars September, September, 2021
2022
Opening Balance - 4.84
Addition during the year (on adoption of IND AS 116) 251.31 R
Finance cost acorued during the perlod 3.3 0.06
Intzrest on security deposit - (0.86)
Payment of lease liabilities {158.75) (4.04)
Closing Balance ; 238.87 7
(v}  The following is the contractual miaturity profie of lease liabilities:
({Rs. In lakhs)
For the period  For the period
Particulars ended 30th ended 30th
September, September, 2021
2022
Less than one year 78.22 -
One year to five years 160.85 -

More than five years % -

Closing Balance 238,87 -
(v} Lease liabiliies carry an effective interest rate of 8.00%, The average |ease teim s 3 years.

Mote 40: Capital Management ;
For the purpose of Company's capital manag t, capital | iesued capital, all other equity reserves and debts. The primary oblective of the Company's capital
management is to maximise shareholders value. The Company manages ils capital structure and makes adjusiments in the light of changes in economic environment
and the requirements of the financial covenants.
The Company monitors capital using pearing ratie, which is net debt divided by tolal capital (equity plus net debt), Net debl are non-curent and current debts as reduced
by cash and cash aquivalents and currant invesiments, Equily comprises all components inciuding other comprehensive income.

[Rs. in lakhs)

Parficulars As at 30th  As at 31st March,
Sepiember, 2022
2022
Total Dabt 440,00 -
Less:- Cash and cash aquivalent 1266 2.89
Net Dabt 436.34 -
Total Equity (Equity Share Capital plus Other Equity) 43047 T9T.25
Total Capital (Total Equity plus net debt) 925.51 797.25
Gearing ratio 47.15% 0.00%
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Note 41: Ratio Analysis and its components

Ratio
Particulars 30th September, 30th % change Reasons for deviations
2022 September, from 30th
2021 September,
2021 to 30th
September,
2022
Current rafio 1.70 5.14 -66,84% Primarlly due lo increase in Lease liabilities and
creditors for Capital expenditures.
Debt- Equily Rafio 0.82 - - Due to Borrowings taken.
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (27.75) 0.10  -28862.76% Due to Borrowings taken and loss incurred during the
period
Return on Equity Ratio -47.8% 0.0% -123199.43% Dus to loss incurred during the period.
Inventory Turnover Ratio 1.13 1.46 2287%
Trade Recelvable Turnover Ratio 2.64 5.81 ~54.54% Primarily due 1o increase in rade receivable.
Trade Payablz Turnover Ratio 3.65 3.82 -6.99%
Net Capital Turnaver Ratio 1.75 1.14 53.89% Primarily due fo increase in Lease liabilties and
creditors for Capital expendilures,
Met Profit Ratio -76.7% 0.0% -186817.04% Due to loss incurred during the period.
Retum on Capitel Employed -32.6% 1.1% -3049.89% Due to less incurred during the peried.
Return on Invesiment - - 0.00%
Components of Ratlo
Ratios Numerator Denominator
Current rafio Current Assets Current Liabilities
Debt Equily Ralio Total Debts Tetal Equity (Equity Share capital + Other equity)

Debt Servica Coveraga Ratio

Earnings available for debt service (Net profit afier
taxes + depreciation & amortization + Finance cost +

Finance cost + principle repayment of long term
borrowings during the year

Mon cash operating items + other adjustment)

Return on Equity Ratio Met profit after tax Average Total Equity [(Qpening Equity Share capital
+ Opening Other equity+Closing Equity Share

Capital+Closing Other Equity)/2]

Inventory Tumover Ratio Revenue from sales of products Average | tory (opening balarce+ closing
balancef2)

Trads Receivable Turmover Ratio Revenue from operations Average trade receivable (Opening bal + clsing
balance /2)

Trade Fayable Turnover Ratio Cost of Malerials Censumed A ge trade payable (Cpening bal + closing
balance /2)

Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Working capital (Current asset - current liabilities)

Meat Profit Ratie Net profif affer tax Revenue from operations

Profit Befare interest & Tax Total Equity + Tetal Debis

Interest Income on fixed deposits + Profit on sale of  Current investments + Non current Investments +
Investments + Income of invesiment - impairment on Fixed deposits with bank

value of investment

Return on Capital Employed
Return on Invesiment

Mote 42 Other Statutary Information
i) Thare are nio balance outstanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Acl, 2013 or section 560 of Companies

Act, 1956,

il) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested fund to any other p or entitics including forsign entities (int y) with the under ling that
intermediary shall

a) directly or Indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities |dentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ullimate beneficiary) or

b} provided any guarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the ullimate beneficiaries.

iil) The Company has not received any fund from any persan or eniities including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
ofherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whetscever by or on behalf of the funding parly (ultimale beneficiaries) or

b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

iv} The Comapany doss not have any such traneaction which is not recorded in the books of aceounts that has baan surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax ts under the | tax Act, 1961,
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Note 43:

Mote 44:

Note 45:

The Board of Directors at ite moeting held on 7th February 2022, has approved a Composite Schame of Arangement between the Borasil Limited ("BL") and Kiass Pack
Limited ("KPL"). 2 subeidiary of BL, and the Company (‘Scheme’] inter alia for: (8) reduction and recrganization of share capital of KPL; (b) demerger of Scienlific and
Industrial Product Business from BL into KPL and consequent issue of shares by KPL; and (¢) amalgamation of the Company with KPL. The Appointed Date for the
Scheme is 15t April 2022, Pursuant to the direclions of National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Derich ("NCLT"), the Company is in the process of convening meeting of
ite unsecured craditars on 8th February 2023 for their approval on the Scheme. The requirement of convening meeting of shateholders of the Cemmpany has been
dispensed with by NGLT. The Company has prepared interim condensed financial statements for the period ended 30th September 2022 as special purpose financial
staternents in connection with the above Scheme.

The azcounts far the paried anded 30th Septambar 2022 has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles lald <own in the Indlan
Accounting Standard 34 ( Ind AS - 34) Interim Financial Reporiing as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indlan Accounling
Standards) Rules, 2015. The disclosure required by other Indian Accounting Standard are not given as Company’s interim financial includes only condensed financial
statements and selected explanatory notes rather than a complete set of financial statements.

Previous yearperiod figures have been regrouped and reaanged wherever necessary. The figures for the peried ended 30th Seplember, 2021 are based on previous
unaudiled financial results.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For PATHAK H.D. & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 107783W / W100583)

=t

Sreefith Kumar Palekudy Sukumaran
‘Whole time Director

(DIN 06590184)
Mukesh Mehta . ~
Partner ",(:\-. )r“wf‘)
Membership no. 43495 o
Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary ~~ Vinayak Patankar
Place : Mumbaf Director Diractar
Date : 14.12.2022 {DIN 07425114) (DIN 075342385)

148



ANNEXURE V

@ | Borosil Limited
BO ROSI L CIN : L3S IOIMA2010PLCI%2722

Registered & Comorate Office :

1101, Crescanmo, G-Block, Opp. MCA Cleb, Bandia Kurls Complex,
Bandra {E}. Mimbsai - 400 051, India

T #9122 640 &300

F #9122 6340 6574

E baomsi®birasl.com

W e borosloom

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BOROSIL LIMITED AT ITS MEETING
HELD ON FEBRUARY 07, 2022 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT AMONGST BOROSIL LIMITED AND KLASS PACK LIMITED AND BOROSIL
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ON THE
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER
SHAREHOLDERS

1. The Board of Directors (‘Board”) of Borosil Limited (“BL” or “Demerged Company” or “the
Company”) at its meeting held on Monday, February 07, 2022, approved the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement amongst the Company and Klass Pack Limited (“KPL” or “Resulting Company” or
“Transferee Company”) and Borosil Technologies Limited (“BTL" or “Transferor Company”) and
their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’) (“Scheme”).

2. Provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the Board of the Demerged Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel (‘KMPs”), promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company laying
out in particular the share exchange ratio and specifying any special valuation difficulties and the
same is required to be circulated as part of the notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the purpose of
approving the Scheme.

3. This report of the Board of the Demerged Company is accordingly being made in pursuance to the
requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

4. Scheme details in brief:
A. The Scheme inter alia provides for:

(i) reduction and reorganisation of share capital of the Resulting Company;

(i) demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from
the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis, the consequent
issue of shares by the Resulting Company and reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-
up share capital of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company; and

(i) amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company.
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B. Rationale for the Scheme

The rationale for the Scheme is as follows:

a. Given its diversified business, it has become imperative for the Demerged Company to reorient
and reorganize itself in a manner that allows imparting greater focus on each of its businesses.

With this repositioning, the Demerged Company is desirous of enhancing its operational efficiency
while it continues with its consumer products business.

b. The proposed demerger pursuant to this Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following
benefits:

(i)  value unlocking of scientific and industrial products business with ability to achieve
valuation based on respective-risk return profile and cash flows;

(i)  attracting business specific investors and potential strategic partners and providing better
flexibility in accessing capital, focused strategy and specialisation for sustained growth and
thereby enable de-leveraging of the respective businesses in the longer-term;

(i)  segregation and unbundling of the scientific and industrial products business of the
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, will enable enhanced focus on the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for exploring opportunities in their
respective business domains; and

(iv) focused management approach for pursuing the growth in the respective business’ verticals
and de-risk the businesses from each other.

c. As part of the restructuring exercise, it is proposed to consolidate the resources of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company. The said amalgamation will result in the following
benefits:

(i) Streamline the corporate structure and consolidation of resources within the Transferee
Company leading to greater synergies and operational synergy;

(i) Opportunities for employees of the Transferor Company to grow in a wider field of business;

(iii) Optimal utilisation of resources and better management and administration; and

(iv) Reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal and regulatory
compliances.

d. In order to achieve an optimum equity share capital base which will commensurate with business
activities of the Resulting Company subsequent to the demerger and merger as stated above, it is
proposed to reduce the face value of the equity shares and reorganise the equity share capital of
the Resulting Company prior to the said demerger and merger.

e. The proposed restructuring is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees, and other
stakeholders of the Parties (as defined in the Scheme).
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C. Consideration under the Scheme

(i)

(ii)

Consideration for demerger

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the
Scheme) from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, the Resulting
Company shall, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of
the depository as members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined
in the Scheme), as under:

“3 (Three) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/~ each of the Resulting Company (post
proposed re-organisation of share capital) credited as fully paid up, for every 4 (Four) fully
paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Demerged Company’.

Consideration for amalgamation

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking, the Transferor
Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and the entire
paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company will be held by the Transferee Company.
Accordingly, upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company,
there shall be no issue of shares as consideration for the said amalgamation and all equity
shares of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company along with its
nominees, shall stand cancelled.

5. The Board considered and took on record the following documents while approving the Scheme:

(v)

Draft Scheme;

Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. SSPA & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, Registered Valuer, determining the share exchange ratio in
connection with the Scheme;

Fairness Opinion dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. Keynote Financial Services Limited,
SEBI Registered (Category |I) Merchant Banker providing an opinion on the share exchange
ratio mentioned in the Share Entitlement Ratio Report;

Certificate dated February 07, 2022 of M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors of the Company, confirming that the accounting treatment prescribed in
the Scheme is in compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under the Act
and other generally accepted accounting principles;

Undertaking of the Company on non-applicability of conditions specified in Paragraph

(A)10(b) of Part | of the SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 (“SEBI Master
Circular’);

Certificate dated February 07, 2022 of M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors of the Company, in relation to non-applicability of conditions specified in
Paragraph (A)(10)(b) of Part | of the SEBI Master Circular; and
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(vii) Report of the Audit Committee and Committee of Independent Directors of the Company
dated February 07, 2022 recommending the Scheme.

6. Effect of the Scheme

A. Equity shareholders (promoters and non- promoters) of the Company

()  In consideration for demerger of the Demerged Undertaking, the Resulting Company shall
issue and allot its equity shares to the shareholders of the Demerged Company as specified
in Paragraph 4.C.(i) above.

(i)  The Registered Valuer has confirmed that no valuation difficulties were reported in
determining the share exchange ratio.

(i)  The equity shares of the Resulting Company will be listed on BSE Limited and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, pursuant to the Scheme and subject to the applicable laws
and receipt of requisite approvals.

(iv) The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders of the Demerged Company and will not
have any adverse impact on them.

B. Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

()  Pursuant to the Scheme, there shall be no impact on the existing KMPs of the Company not
forming part of the Demerged Undertaking. The KMPs, if any, forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking shall become employees of the Resulting Company upon effectiveness of the

Scheme.

(i)  Further, none of the KMPs, have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity
shares held by them, if any in the Demerged Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

/Y‘:\ :

Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary
Whole Time Director
DIN: 07425111

Date: February 07, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE VI

Glass Ampoules Klass Pack Limited
Tubular Glass Vials (A subsidiary of Borosil Ltd.)

CIN: U74999MH1991PLC061851

Registered Office : 1101, 11" Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block,
Plot No. C-38,0pp. MCA Club,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),

Mumbai - 400051, Maharashtra, India

T:+91226740 6300 /F : +91 22 6740 6514
Factory : H-27, MIDC, Ambad, Nashik- 422 010

Maharashtra, India

T:+91 253 2382 404 / +91 253 2952 404

pharmaceutical packaging ) F +91253 23§/907
E-mail : info.klasspack@borosil.com

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KLASS PACK LIMITED AT ITS MEETING
HELD ON FEBRUARY 07, 2022 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT AMONGST BOROSIL LIMITED AND KLASS PACK LIMITED AND BOROSIL
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND ITS RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ON THE
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER
SHAREHOLDERS

1. The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Klass Pack Limited (‘KPL” or “Resulting Company” or
“Transferee Company” or “Company”) at its meeting held on Monday, February 07, 2022,
approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (‘Demerged Company”)
and the Company and Borosil Technologies Limited (‘BTL" or “Transferor Company”) and their
respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (“Scheme”).

2. Provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the Board of the Resulting Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel (“KMPs"), promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Resulting Company laying out
in particular the share exchange ratio and specifying any special valuation difficulties and the same is
required to be circulated as part of the notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the purpose of
approving the Scheme.

3. This report of the Board of the Resulting Company is accordingly being made in pursuance to the
requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

4. Scheme details in brief:

A. The Scheme inter alia provides for:

() reduction and reorganisation of share capital of the Resulting Company;

(i) demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme)
from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis, the
consequent issue of shares by the Resulting Company and reduction and cancellation of
the existing paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged
Company; and

(iii) amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company.
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B. Rationale for the Scheme

The rationale for the Scheme is as under:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

Given its diversified business, it has become imperative for the Demerged Company to
reorient and reorganize itself in a manner that allows imparting greater focus on each of its
businesses. With this repositioning, the Demerged Company is desirous of enhancing its
operational efficiency while it continues with its consumer products business.

The proposed demerger pursuant to this Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following
benefits:

value unlocking of scientific and industrial products business with ability to achieve valuation
based on respective-risk return profile and cash flows;

attracting business specific investors and potential strategic partners and providing better
flexibility in accessing capital, focused strategy and specialisation for sustained growth and
thereby enable de-leveraging of the respective businesses in the longer-term;

segregation and unbundling of the scientific and industrial products business of the Demerged
Company into the Resulting Company, will enable enhanced focus on the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company for exploring opportunities in their respective business
domains; and

focused management approach for pursuing the growth in the respective business’ verticals
and de-risk the businesses from each other.

As part of the restructuring exercise, it is proposed to consolidate the resources of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. The said amalgamation will result in the
following benefits:

Streamline the corporate structure and consolidation of resources within the Transferee
Company leading to greater synergies and operational synergy;

Opportunities for employees of the Transferor Company to grow in a wider field of business;
Optimal utilisation of resources and better management and administration; and

Reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal and regulatory
compliances.

In order to achieve an optimum equity share capital base which will commensurate with
business activities of the Resulting Company subsequent to the demerger and merger as
stated above, it is proposed to reduce the face value of the equity shares and reorganise the
equity share capital of the Resulting Company prior to the said demerger and merger.

The proposed restructuring is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees, and
other stakeholders of the Parties (as defined in the Scheme).”
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C. Consideration under the Scheme

0] Consideration for demerger

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the
Scheme) from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company
shall, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of the depository
as members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme),
as under:

“3 (Three) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company (post
proposed re-organisation of share capital) credited as fully paid up, for every 4 (Four) fully
paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Demerged Company’.

(ii) Consideration for amalgamation

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking, the Transferor

Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and the entire

paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company will be held by the Transferee Company.

Accordingly, upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company,

there shall be no issue of shares as consideration for the said amalgamation and all equity

shares of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company along with its nominees,
/ shall stand cancelled.

5. The Board considered and took on record the following documents while approving the Scheme:

(i) Draft Scheme;

(i) Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Registered Valuer, determining the share exchange ratio in connection with the
Scheme;

(i) ~ Certificate dated February 07, 2022 of M/s. Pathak H.D. & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, confirming that the accounting treatment
prescribed in the Scheme is in compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified
under the Act and other generally accepted accounting principles.

6. Effect of the Scheme

A. Equity shareholders (promoters and non- promoters) of the Company

()  No consideration will be issued by the Resulting Company to its shareholders for reduction
and reorganisation of its equity share capital.

(i) In consideration for demerger of the Demerged Undertaking, the Resulting Company shall
issue and allot its equity shares to the shareholders of the Demerged Company as specified
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(iii)

(vi)

in Paragraph 4.C.(i) above.

Upon demerger of the Demerged Undertaking and allotment of New Equity Shares (as
defined in the Scheme) by the Resulting Company, the entire paid-up equity share capital of
the Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company shall stand cancelled and the
issued, subscribed and paid up equity capital of the Resulting Company to that effect shall
stand cancelled and reduced. Further, upon listing of equity shares of the Resulting Company
pursuant to the Scheme, the existing pre-scheme shareholders of the Company, except the
Demerged Company, shall be categorised as 'public' shareholders’.

The Registered Valuer has confirmed that no valuation difficulties were reported in
determining the share exchange ratio.

The equity shares of the Company will be listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited, pursuant to the Scheme and subject to the applicable laws and receipt of
requisite approvals.

The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders of the Resulting Company and will not have
any adverse effect on them.

B. Key Managerial Personnel of the Resulting Company

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the Scheme, there shall be no impact on the existing KMPs of the Resulting
Company. The KMPs forming part of the Demerged Undertaking, if any, shall become
employees of the Resulting Company upon effectiveness of the Scheme.

It is clarified that the KMPs of the Resulting Company may change by appointments,
retirements or resignations or to ensure compliance of the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing
Regulations and Memorandum and Atrticles of Association of such companies but the Scheme
itself does not affect the office of KMPs of the Resulting Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

o
Y
Vina/yak Patankar

Director

DIN: 07534225

Date: February 07, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE VII

BOROS| L" BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
| Formerly known as BOROSIL GLASS LIMITED

CIN No. : U36999MH2009PLC 197226
TECHNOLOGIES Registered Office :

1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex.

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051, India.

T :+91 226740 6300

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AT
ITS MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 07, 2022 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE COMPOSITE
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AMONGST BOROSIL LIMITED AND KLASS PACK LIMITED AND
BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND
CREDITORS ON THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS
AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Board of Directors (‘Board”) of Borosil Technologies Limited (“BTL” or “Transferor Company”
or “the Company”) at its meeting held on Monday, February 07, 2022, approved the Composite
Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“BL” or “Demerged Company”) and Klass Pack
Limited (“KPL” or “Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company”) and the Company and their
respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (“Scheme”).

Provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the Board of the Transferor Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel (“KMPs”), promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company laying out in
particular the share exchange ratio and specifying any special valuation difficulties and the same is
required to be circulated as part of the notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the purpose of
approving the Scheme.

This report of the Board of the Transferor Company is accordingly being made in pursuance to the
requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

4. Scheme details in brief:

A. The Scheme inter alia provides for:

() reduction and reorganisation of share capital of the Resulting Company;

(i) demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme)
from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis, the
consequent issue of shares by the Resulting Company and reduction and cancellation of
the existing paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged
Company; and

(iii) amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company.
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B. Rationale for the Scheme

The rationale for the Scheme is as under:

a. Given its diversified business, it has become imperative for the Demerged Company to reorient
and reorganize itself in a manner that allows imparting greater focus on each of its businesses.
With this repositioning, the Demerged Company is desirous of enhancing its operational
efficiency while it continues with its consumer products business.

b. The proposed demerger pursuant to this Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following
benefits: -

(i)  value unlocking of scientific and industrial products business with ability to achieve
valuation based on respective-risk return profile and cash flows;

(i)  attracting business specific investors and potential strategic partners and providing
better flexibility in accessing capital, focused strateqy and specialisation for sustained
growth and thereby enable de-leveraging of the respective businesses in the longer-
term;

(iii)  segregation and unbundling of the scientific and industrial products business of the
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, will enable enhanced focus on the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for exploring opportunities in their
respective business domains; and

(iv) focused management approach for pursuing the growth in the respective business’
verticals and de-risk the businesses from each other.

c. As part of the restructuring exercise, it is proposed to consolidate the resources of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. The said amalgamation will result in the
following benefits:

(i) Streamline the corporate structure and consolidation of resources within the Transferee
Company leading to greater synergies and operational synergy;

(i) Opportunities for employees of the Transferor Company to grow in a wider field of
business;

(i) Optimal utilisation of resources and better management and administratiorns; and

(iv) Reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal and regulatory
compliances.

d. In order to achieve an optimum equity share capital base which will commensurate with
business activities of the Resulting Company subsequent to the demerger and merger as
stated above, it is proposed to reduce the face value of the equity shares and reorganise the
equity share capital of the Resulting Company prior to the said demerger and merger.

e. The proposed restructuring is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees, and
other stakeholders of the Parties (as defined in the Scheme).”
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C. Consideration under the Scheme

(i) Consideration for demerger

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, issue
and allot, on a proportionate basis to the shareholders of the Demerged Company whose
name is recorded in the register of members and records of the depository as members of
the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), as under:

“3 (Three) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company (post
proposed re-organisation of share capital) credited as fully paid up, for every 4 (Four) fully

paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Demerged Company’.

(i)  Consideration for amalgamation

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the
Scheme), the Transferor Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company and the entire paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company will
be held by the Transferee Company. Accordingly, upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company, there shall be no issue of shares as
consideration for the said amalgamation and all equity shares of the Transferor Company
held by the Transferee Company along with its nominees, shall stand cancelled.

D. Dissolution of the Transferor Company pursuant to the Scheme

Upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, the Transferor
Company shall stand dissolved without winding up. On and from the Effective Date (as defined in
the Scheme), the name of the Transferor Company shall be struck off from the records of the
concerned Registrar of Companies.

5. The Board considered and took on record the following documents while approving the Scheme:
(i) Draft Scheme; and
(i)  Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Registered Valuer, determining the share exchange ratio in connection with the
Scheme.

6. Effect of the Scheme

A. Equity shareholders (promoters and non- promoters) of the Company

() Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking, the Company will
become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and the entire paid-up share
capital of the Company will be held by the Transferee Company. Accordingly, upon
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amalgamation of the Company with the Transferee Company, there shall be no issue of
shares as consideration for the said amalgamation and all equity shares of the Transferor
Company held by the Transferee Company along with its nominees, shall stand cancelled.

(i)  Upon amalgamation of the Company with the Transferee Company, the Company shall
stand dissolved without winding up. On and from the Effective Date (as defined in the
Scheme), the name of the Company shall be struck off from the records of the concerned
Registrar of Companies.

(i)  The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders of the Transferor Company and will not
have any adverse effect on them.

B. Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

The KMP of the Company shall become employee of the Transferee Company upon
effectiveness of the Scheme.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

.
Vinayak Patankar
Director

DIN: 07534225

Date: February 07, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE VIII

SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
1st Floor, “ Arjun®, Plot No. 6 A,
V. P. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbal - 400 058, INDIA,
Tel. ; 91 (22) 2670 4376
91 (22) 2670 3682
Fax : 91 (22) 2670 3916

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL Website : www.sspaiin
February 07, 2022

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

Borosil Limited Klass Pack Limited

1101, 11th Floor, Crescenza, G-Block, 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Bandra Kurla Complex; Bandra (East),
Mumbai —400 051, Mumbai —400 051.

The Board of Directors

Borosil Technologies Limited

1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex; Bandra (East),
Mumbai —400 051.

Dear Sir(s)/ Madam(s),

Re: Recommendation of:
(a) Fair equity share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of ‘Scientific and Industrial

Products’ Business of Borosil Limited into Klass Pack Limited;

(b) Proposed amalgamation of Borosil Technologies Limited with Klass Pack Limited (post
demerger of "Scientific and Industrial Products’ Business of Borosil Limited into Klass Pack
Limited)

We refer to the engagement letter dated December 07, 2021, whereby, SSPA & Co., Chartered
Accountants (hereinafter referred ta as ‘SSPA" or ‘Valuer” or “We’) have been appointed by the
Borosil Limited, Borosil Technologies Limited and Klass Pack Limited (hereinafter collectively
referred to as“the Companies’) to issue a report containing the recommendation of fair equity share
entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of Scientific and Industrial Products Business
(hereinafter referred to as ‘Demerged Undertaking’) of Borosil Limited (hereinafter referred to as
'BL’) into Klass Pack Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘KPL’ or Transferee Company’) (‘Proposed
Pemerger’) and proposed amalgamation of Borosil Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as
‘BTL" or “Transferor Company’) with KPL (post demerger of Demerged Undertaking) ("Proposed
Amalgamation’), Proposed Demerger and Proposed Amalgamation are hereinafter collectively
referred to as ‘Proposed Restructuring’. Further, management of BL, BTL and KPL are hereinafter

collectively referred to as the ‘Management’.

Page 10of 11
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13

1.4

15

2,
24

SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The Board of Directors of KPL, BL and BTL are considering a proposal for Proposed
Restructuring pursuant to a Compasite Scheme of Arrangement between the Companies and
their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 2(1B), section 2(19AA) and other
applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
‘Scheme’).

Subject to necessary approvals, Demerged Undertaking of BL (including investments in KPL
and BTL) would be demerged into KPL and subseguent to demerger; BTL would be
amalgamated with KPL with effect from the Appointed Date of April 01, 2022 (‘Appointed
Date’).

In consideration for the Proposed Demerger, equity shareholders of BL would be issued
equity shares of KPL,

In this regard, we have been appointed by the Companies to carry out the relative valuation
of equity shares of the Companies and to recommend the fair equity share entitlement ratio
for the proposed demerger of Demerged Undertaking of BL into KPL and recommendation
for proposed amalgamation of BTL with KPL (post demerger of Demerged Undertaking of
BL), The report is being furnished by SSPA in the capacity of Registered Valuer under Section
247 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For the purpose of this valuation, the bases of value is ‘Relative Value’ and the valuation is
based on the ‘Going Concern’ premise. For the purpose of this valuation, February 04, 2022,
has been considered as the 'Valuation Date’.

The report sets out our recommendations of the fair equity share entitlement ratio and
discusses the methodologies and approaches considered for arriving at the relative values
of the equity shares of the Companies for the purpose of recommendation of the share

entitlement ratio.

BRIEF BACKGROUND

BOROSIL LIMITED

BL has its registered office at 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, opposite MCA Club,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400051. BL presently has manufacturing
plants near Jaipur in Rajasthan, Bharuch District of Gujarat and Tarapur in Maharashtra. BL

curr‘entl_y operates the businesses through two divisions: manufacturing and trading of (i)

Page 2 of 11
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2.3.

24,

SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Scientific & Industrial Products and {ii) Consumer Products. The shares of BL are listed on BSE

Limited ('BSE’) and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited ('NSE’). BL holds 100% equity
stake in BTL and holds ~82.49% in KPL.

DEMERGED UNDERTAKING OF BOROSIL LIMITED

The Demerged Undertaking of BL consists of manufacturing and trading of scientific and
industrial products such as laboratory glassware, instruments, disposable plastics, liquid
handling systems, vials and explosion proof lighting glassware and other bench top
equipment used by the pharmaceutical industry, research and development, education and
healthcare segments of the market and the joint and inseparable manufacturing facility
located at Bharuch which produces scientific & industrial and consumer products. Demerged
Undertaking includes 100% equity stake in BTL and 82.49% equity stake in KPL.

BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

BTL is engaged in the business of manufacturing of scientific instruments.

BTL is-a wholly owned subsidiary of Borosil Limited.

The issued and paid-up equity share capital of Transferor Company as on March 31, 2021 is
INR 495 |lakhs comprising of 49,50,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each.

KLASS PACK LIMITED

KPL is engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of pharmaceutical vials and
ampoules to the pharmaceutical industry for over 15 years and has its manufacturing
facilities at Nashik, Maharashtra.

We have been informed that KPL is considering reduction and reorganization of its equity
share capital through a Scheme, wherein the face value of the equity shares of the KPL shall
be reduced from INR 100 each to INR 10 each such that, the issued, subscribed and paid up
equity share capital of KPL is reduced from the present amount of INR 16,32,94,900 divided
into 16,32,949 equity shares of INR 100 each fully paid to INR 1,63,29,490 divided into
16,32,949 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up:

Subsequently, upon reduction of face value of the equity shares of KPL, every 1 equity share
of KPL of face value of INR 10 each shall be further split into 10 equity shares of INR 1 each,
such that the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of KPL shall be INR
1,63,29,490 divided into 1,63,29,490 equity shares of INR 1 each fully paid up.

REGISTERED VALUER - SSPA & CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants, is a partnership firm, located at 1% Floar, "Arjun”, Plot
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SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
No. 6A, V. P. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400 058, India. SSPA is engaged in providing

various corporate consultancy services.

SSPA is a firm of practicing Chartered Accountants registered with The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAl’). SSPA is also registered with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Board of India (‘IBBI’), as a Registered Valuer for asset class — ‘Securities or Financial Assets’
with Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

The valuation exercise is based on the following information which has been received from

the Management and any information available in the public domain:

(a) Audited financial statements of BL, BTL and KPL for FY 2020-21.

(b) Management certified profitability statement for nine months period ended December
31, 2021 ("9ME Dec21’) and statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2021
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking of BL.

(c) Audited financial statements of BTL and KPL for 9ME Dec21.

(d) Financial Projections of Demerged Undertaking of BL, BTL and KPL for three months
period ended March 31, 2022 and from FY 2022-2023 to FY 2025-26.

(e) Draft Composite Scheme of Arrangement,

(f)  Discussions with the Management on various issues relevant to valuation including
prospects and outlook of the business, expected growth rate, and other relevant
information relating to future expected profitability, etc.

(g} Such other information and explanations as we required and which have been

provided by the Management including Management Representations.

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS, AND DISCLAIMERS
Qur report is subject to the scope and limitations detailed hereinafter. As such the report is
to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents referred
to herein and in the context of the purpose for which it is made. Further, our report on the
recommendation of fair equity share entitlement ratio and recommendation for the
Proposed Amalgamation for the Proposed Restructuring is in accordance with ICAl Valuation
Standards 2018 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

valuation is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at will be subjective and

dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. There is, therefore, no indisputable single
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5.4,

8.5,

5.6.

5.7.

SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

value. While we have provided an assessment of value by applying certain formulae which
are based on the information available, others may place a different value.

The report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise stated, and that the
Companies will be managed in a competent and responsible manner, Further, as specifically
stated to the contrary, this report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature,
including issues of legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigations and other
contingent liabilities that are not recorded/reflected in the balance sheet provided to us.
The draft of the present report was circulated to the Management (excluding the
recommended fair equity share entitlement ratio and recommendation for Proposed
Amalgamation) for confirming the facts stated in the report and to confirm that the
information or facts stated are not erroneous.

Valuation analysis and results are specific to the purpose of valuation and the Valuation Date
mentioned in the report and is as per agreed terms of our engagement.

For the purpose of this exercise, we were provided with both written and verbal informaticn
including information detailed hereinabove in para 'Sources of Information’. Further, the
responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the information provided to us by the
Companies / auditors / consultants, is that of the Companies. Also, with respect to
explanations and information sought from the Companies, we have been given to
understand by the Management that they have not omitted any relevant and material
information about the Companies. The Management have indicated to us that they have
understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or misstatements may materially affect our
valuation analysis/conclusions.

Our work does not constitute an audit, due diligence, ar certification of these information
referred toin this report including information sourced from public domain. Accordingly, we
are unable to and do not express an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any financial
information referred to in this report and consequential impact on the present exercise.
However, we have evalu_ated the information provided to us by the Companies through
broad inquiry, analysis, and review. However, nothing has come to our attention to indicate
that the information provided/ obtained was materially misstated / incorrect or would not
afford reasonable grounds upon which to base the repart.

Our recommendation is based on the estimates of future financial performance as projected

by the Management, which represents their view of reasonable expectation at the point of
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5.9.

5.10.

3.11%

5.12.

SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
time when they were prepared, after giving due considerations to commercial and financial

aspects of the Companies and the industry in which the Companies operate and taking into
account the current economic scenario and business disruptions caused on account of
spread of COVID-19 pandemic. But such information and estimates are not offered as
assurances that the particular level of income or profit will be achieved, or events will occur
as predicted. Actual results achieved during the period covered by the prospective financial
statements may vary from those contained in the statement and the variation may be
material. The fact that we have considered the projections in this exercise of valuation
should not be construed or taken as our being associated with or a party to such projections.
We have relied on data from external sources also to conclude the valuation. These sources
are believed to be reliable and therefore, we assume no liability for the truth or accuracy of
any data, opinions, or estimates furnished by others that have been used in this analysis.
Where we have relied on data, opinions, or estimates from external sources, reasonable care
has been taken to ensure that such data has been correctly extracted from those sources
and/or reproduced in its proper form and context.

A valuation of this nature involves consideration of various factors including those impacted
by prevailing market trends in general and industry trends in particular. This report is issued
on the understanding that the Management has drawn our attention to all the matters,
which they are aware of concerning the financial position of the Companies and any other
matter, which may have an impact on our opinion, on the value of the shares of the
Companies including any significant changes that have taken place or are likely to take place
in the financial position of the Companies. Events and transactions occurring after the date
of this repart may affect the report and assumptions used in preparing it and we do not
assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this report,

We are independent of the Companies and have no current or expected interest in the
Companies or its assets. The fee paid for our services in no way influenced the results of our
analysis.

Our report is not, nor should it be construed as our opining or certifying the compliance with
the provisions of any law including companies, competition, taxation, and capital
marketrelated laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising in India or abroad
from the Proposed Restructuring.

Any person/ party intending to provide finance/ divest/ invest in the shares/convertible

instruments/ business of the Companies shall do so after seeking their own professional
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5.16.

6.1.
6.2.

6.3.

SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
advice and after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are

making an informed decision.

The decision to carry out the Proposed Restructuring (including consideration thereof) lies
entirely with the parties concerned and our work and our finding shall not constitute a
recommendation as to whether or not the parties should carry out the Proposed
Restructuring.

Our Report is meant for the purpose mentioned in Para 1 only and should not be used for
any purpose other than the purpose mentioned therein. It is exclusively for the use of the
Companies and may be submitted to regulatory/ statutory authority for obtaining requisite
approvals. The Report should not be copied or reproduced without obtaining our prior
written approval for any purpose other than the purpose for which it is prepared. in no
event, regardless of whether consent has been provided, shall SSPA assume any
responsibility to any third party to whom the report is disclosed or otherwise made available.
SSPA nor its partners, managers, employees make any representation or warranty, express
or implied, as to the accuracy, reasonableness; or completeness of the information, based
on which the valuation is carried out. We owe responsibility only to the Companies that
have appointed us under the terms of the Engagement Letters. We will not be liable for any
losses, claims, damages, or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions, or advice
given by any other person. In no event shall we be liable for any loss, damages, cost, or
expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations, or wilful default on

part of the client or companies, their directors, employees, or agents.

PROPOSED DEMERGER OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING OF BL INTO KPL

VALUATION APPROACH AND METHODOLOGIES

For the purpose of valuation, generally following approaches can be considered, viz,

(a) the ‘Market’ approach

(b) the ‘Income’ approach; and

(c) the 'Cost’ approach;

Each of the aforesaid approaches proceeds on different fundamental assumptions which
have greater or lesser relevance and at times even no relevance, to a given situation. Thus,
the approach to be adopted for a particular valuation exercise must be judiciously chosen.
COST APPROACH

The Cost approach reflects the amount that would be required currently to replace the
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6.5.
6.5.1.

6.5.2.

SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
service capacity of an asset; often referred to as current replacement cost. In the present

case, the business of Demerged Undertaking of BL and business of KPL are intended to be
continued on a ‘going concern basis’ and there is no intention to dispose-off the assets,
therefore the ‘Cost’ approach is not adopted for the présent valuation exercise,
Considering the above, we have thought fit to consider a combination of ‘Market’ approach
and ‘Income’ approach for valuation of equity shares of Demerged Undertaking of BL and
KPL.

MARKET APPROACH

In the present case, the equity shares of Demerged Undertaking of BL are not separately
listed and equity shares of KPL are also not listed on any stock exchanges. Therefore, we
have thought fit to consider Comparable Companies’ Multiple (‘CCM’) Method for valuation
of equity shares of Demerged Undertaking of BL and KPL under the 'Market’ approach.
COMPARABLE COMPANIES’ MULTIPLE METHOD

Under CCM method, the value of Demerged Undertaking of BL and KPL is determined by
using multiples derived from valuations of listed comparable companies. This valuation is
based on the principle that market valuations, taking place between informed buyers and
informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be
chosen carefully and adjusted for material differences, if any.

In the present case, Enterprise Value (EV) to Earnings before Interest Tax Depreciation and
Amortization (EBITDA) multiples of comparable listed companies are used to arrive at EV of
Demerged Undertaking of BL and KPL.

To the value so arrived, appropriate adjustments have been made for cash & cash
equivalents, value of investments and amount to be received on exercise of ESOP’s to arrive
at the equity value.

The equity value as arrived above is divided by the diluted number of equity shares in case
of Demerged Undertaking of BL and revised number of equity shares after considering the
re-organisation of share capital (as mentioned in para 2.4 of this report) in case of KPL, to
arrive at the value per share of Demerged Undertaking of BL and KPL.

INCOME APPROACH

Under the ‘Income’ approach, Demerged Undertaking of BL and KPL are valued using the
‘Discounted Cash Flow' {'DCF’) Method.

. Under the DCF method, the projected free cash flows from business operations after

considering fund requirements for projected capital expenditure and incremental working
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SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

capital are discounted at the Weighted Average Cost of Capital {"WACC’). The sum of the
discounted value of such free cash flows and the discounted value of perpetuity is the value
of the business.

The free cash flows represent the cash available for distribution to both the owners and the
creditors of the business. The free cash flows are determined by adding back to profit before

tax (i) interest on loans, if any, (i) depreciation and amortizations (non-cash charge), and (iii)

any non-operating item. The cash flow is adjusted for outflows on account of (i) capital

expenditure, (ii) incremental working capital requirements and (jii) tax.

WACC is considered as the most appropriate discount rate in the DCF Method since it reflects
both the business and the financial risk of the company. In other words, WACC is the
weighted average of cost of equity and cost of debt.

To the value so arrived, appropriate adjustments have been made for cash & cash
equivalents, value of investments and amount to be received on exercise of ESOP’s to arrive
at the equity value.

The equity value as arrived above is divided by the diluted number of equity shares in case
of Demerged Undertaking of BL and revised number of equity shares after considering the
re-organisation of share capital (as mentioned in para 2.4 of this report) in case of KPL, to

arrive at the value pershare of Demerged Undertaking of BL and KPL.

RECOMMENDATION OF FAIR EQUITY SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO

The fair basis of demerger of Demerged Undertaking of BL into KPL would have to be
determined after taking into consideration all the factors and methodologies mentioned
hereinabove. Though different values have been arrived at under different methods, for the
purposes of recommending an entitlement ratio it is necessary to arrive at a single value for
the equity shares of Demerged Undertaking of BL and KPL. It is however important to note
that in doing so, we are not attempting to arrive at the absolute values of the shares of each
company. Our exercise is to work out relative value of shares of Demerged Undertaking of
BL and KPL to facilitate the determination of an entitlement ratio. For this purpose, it is
necessary to give appropriate weightage to the values arrived at under each approach.

As mentioned above; we have considered a combination of CCM Method under ‘Market’
approach and DCF Method under ‘Income” approach for arriving at the value per equity
share of Demerged Undertaking of BL and for KPL. The values under each of the approaches

is given in the table below:
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Demerged Undertaking
. KPL _ of BL
MR ATTEaE Value per Weights Value per Weights
Share (INR) Share (INR) '
Asset Approach * NA NA NA NA
Income Approach 151.66 50% 113.63 50%
Market Approach 150,02 50% 113.89 50%
Fair Value per Equity Share 150.84 113.76
Equity Share Entitlement Ratio 1.33

NA = Not Applied / Not Applicable

* Since, the business of Dermerged Undertaking of BL and the business of KPL are both
intended to be continued on a ‘going concern basis' and there is no intention to dispose-off
the assets, therefore the ‘Asset' approoch is not adopted for the present valuation exercise.

7.3.  The fair equity share entitlement ratio has been arrived on the basis of a relative valuation
of equity shares of Demerged Undertaking of BL and KPL based on the approaches explained
herein earlier and considering various qualitative factors relevant to the companies and the
business dynamics and growth potential of the businesses, having regard to information
base, management representation and perceptions, key underlying assumptions and
limitations.

7.4, Inthe ultimate analysis, valuation will have to involve the exercise of judicious discretion and
judgment taking into account all the relevant factors. There will always be several factors,
e.g. present and prospective competition, the yield on comparable securities and market
sentiments, etc., which are not evident from the face of the balance sheets but which will
strongly influence the worth of a share. This concept is also recognized in judicial decisions.
For example, Viscount Simon Bd in Gold Coast Selection Trust Ltd. vs. Humphrey reported in
30 TC 209 (House of Lords) and quoted with approval by the Supreme Court of India in the
case reported in 176 ITR 417 as under:

If the asset takes the form of fully paid shares, the valuation will take into account not only
the terms of the agreement but a number of other factors, such as prospective yield,
marketability, the genéral outlook for the type of businéss of the company which has allotted
the shares, the result of a contemporary prospectus offering similar shares for subscription,
the copital position of the company, se forth. There may also be an element of value in the
fact that the holding of the shares gives control of the company. If the asset is difficult to
value, but is nonetheless of @ money value, the best valuation possible must be made,
Valuation is an art, not an exact science. Mathematical certainty is not demanded, nor indeed

isit possible.’
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75. In light of the above and on consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as

discussed and outlined hereinabove earlier in this report, in our opinion:
The fair equity share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of Demerged Undertaking

of BL into KPL is as under:

3 (Three) equity shares of KPL of INR 1 each fully paid up (post proposed re-organisation
of share capital) for every 4 (Four) equity shares of BL of INR 1 each fully paid up.

8. PROPOSED AMALGAMATION OF BTL WITH KPL
On completion of proposed Demerger of Demerged Undertaking of BL into KPL, BTL will
become a wholly owned subsidiary of KPL i.e entire paid-up share capital of BTL will be held
by KPL.
Upon the effective date, pursuant to amalgamation of BTL with KPL, the entire shareholding
of KPL in BTL will be cancelled. Pursuant to the amalgamation, there would be no change in
the paid-up share capital of KPL. Since there is no impact on the shareholding pattern of KPL,
no valuation of KPL and of BTL is required.
Accordingly, valuation approaches as indicated in the format as prescribed by circular
number NSE/CML/2017/12 of NSE and LIST/COMP/02/2017-18 of BSE have not been
undertaken as they are not relevant in the instant case.
Thus, upon the proposed amalgamation of BTL with KPL, no equity shares shall be issued to

the shareholders of BTL.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

For SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 128851W

IBBI Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126

‘F?l'ﬁq_q & \‘"G'Q

Parag Ved, Partner
Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV/OE/ 2018/ 10092
ICAI Membership No. 102432

UDIN: 22102432AAPUUR4881
Place: Mumbai

Page 11 0f 11

171



ANNEXURE IX

Private and Confidential 25
—VYEARS—
OF CREATING
ALtk
KEYNOTE THROUGH

AND

TRUST

February 07, 2022
The Board of Directors irectors
'/ Borosil Limited ss Pack Limited
1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, 110%; 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), fandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai —400 051 Mumbai —400 051

1101, 11th'Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block,
a'Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),

Dear Sir{s)/Madam(s),

Reg: Fairness Opinion in connection with the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited
(“BL” or “Demerged Company”) and Klass Pack Limited (“KPL” or “Resulting Company” or “Transferee
Company”) and Borosil Technologies Limited (“BTL” or “Transferor Company”) and their respective
shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme’)

Keynote Financial Services Limited {“Keynote” or “we” or “us”) is a Category | Merchant Banker registered
with Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”). We understand that the Board of Directors of Borosil
Limited (“BL") is contemplating a demerger of its Scientific and Industrial Products Business (“Demerged
Undertaking”) (as defined in the Scheme) into Klass Pack Limited (“KPL”) (“Proposed Demerger”) and it is
also proposed to amalgamate Borosil Technologies Limited (“BTL”) with KPL (“Proposed Merger”) as part of
composite scheme of arrangement under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”).
Proposed Demerger and Proposed Merger are hereinafter referred to as “Proposed Restructuring”.

In connection with the aforesaid, we have been requested by the management of BL to issue a Fairness
Opinion, as to the fairness of the valuation of the Proposed Restructuring as on February 04, 2022
(“Valuation Date”). We have perused the documents / information provided by you in respect of the said
Scheme and the Valuation Report as issued by M/s, SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants dated February 07,
2022,
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Company Profile:
Borosil Limited

BL is a public company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. BL is engaged in the
business of manufacturing and trading of scientific and industrial products and consumer products. The
equity shares of BL are listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The Scientific and Industrial Products Business of BL means the business in relation to manufacturing and
trading of scientific and industrial products such as laboratory glassware, instruments, disposable plastics,
liquid handling systems, vials and explosion proof lighting glassware and other bench top equipment used
by the pharmaceutical industry, research and development, education and healthcare segments of the
market and the joint and inseparable manufacturing facility located at Bharuch which produces scientific &
industrial and consumer products.

Klass Pack Limited

KPL is a public company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, KPL is engaged in the
manufacture and supply of pharmaceutical vials and ampoules to the pharmaceutical industry for over 15
years and has its manufacturing facilities at Nashik, Maharashtra. BL holds ~82.49% of the issued, subscribed
and paid up equity share capital of KPL.

il Technologis '

BTL is a public company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. BTL is engaged in
the business of manufacturing of scientific instruments. BTL is a wholly owned subsidiary of BL:

Ra I Pro| Restructuring:

1. Given its diversified business, it has become imperative for the Demerged Company to reorient and
reorganize itself in a manner that allows imparting greater focus on each of its businesses. With this
repositioning, the Demerged Company is desirous of enhancing its operational efficiency while it
continues with its consumer products business..

2. The proposed demerger pursuant to this Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following
benefits:

(i) value unlocking of scientific and industrial products business with ability to achieve
valuation based on respective-risk return profile and cash flows;

(ii) attracting business specific investors and potential strategic partners and providing better

flexibility in accessing capital, focused strategy and utilization for sustained growth and
thereby enable de-leveraging of the respective businesses in the longer-term;
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(iii) segregation and unbundling of the scientific and industrial products business of the
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, will enable enhanced focus on the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for exploring opportunities in their
respective business domains; and

(iv) focused management approach for pursuing the growth in the respective business’ verticals
and de-risk the businesses from each other.

3. As part of the restructuring exercise, it is proposed to consolidate the resources of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company. The said amalgamation will resultin the following benefits:

(i) Streamline the corporate structure and consolidation of resources within the Transferee
Company leading to greater synergies and operational synergy;

(i) Opportunities for employees of the Transferor Company to grow in a wider field of business;
(i) Optimal utilization of resources and better management and administration; and

(iv) Reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal and regulatory
compliances.

4, In order to achieve an optimum equity share capital base which will commensurate with business
activities of the Resulting Company subsequent to the demerger and merger as stated above, it is
proposed to reduce the face value of the equity shares and reorganise the equity share capital of
the Resulting Company prior to the said demerger and merger.

5. The proposed restructuring is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees, and other
stakeholders of the Parties.

Our Recommendation:

As stated in the Valuation Report by M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants, they have recommended the
following equity share entitlement ratio for the Proposed Demerger:

“3 (Three) equity share of KPL of INR 1 each fully paid up (post proposed re-organisation of share capital)
for every 4 (Four) equity shares of BL of INR 1 each fully paid up.”

Further, as per the Scheme, the face value of Equity Shares of KPL will get reduced from the present amount
of INR 16,32,94,900 divided into 16,32,949 equity shares of INR 100 each fully paid to INR 1,63,29,490
divided into 16,32,949 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up. Immediately upon such reduction, every
1 equity share of KPL of face value of INR 10 each shall be further split into 10 equity shares of INR 1 each,
such that the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of KPL shall be INR 1,63,29,490 divided
into 1,63,29,490 equity shares of INR 1 each fully paid up, Hence, as part of this capital reduction and
reorganization, the number of equity shares shall change from 16,32,949 to 1,63,29,490.
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After the Proposed Demerger, BTL will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of KPL i.e. entire paid-up share
capital of BTL will be held by KPL. Upon the effective date, pursuant to merger of BTL with KPL, the entire
shareholding of KPL in BTL will be cancelled and no equity shares shall be issued to the shareholders of BTL
as consideration upon its merger with KPL.

The aforesaid shall be pursuant to the Scheme and shall be subject to receipt of approval from any
competent authority as may be applicable and other statutory approvals as may be required. The detailed
terms and conditions of the Proposed Restructuring are more fully set forth in the Scheme. Keynote has
issued the Fairness Opinion with the understanding that Scheme shall not be materially altered and the
parties hereto agree that the Fairness Opinion would not stand good in case the final Scheme alters the
Proposed Restructuring.

Based on the information, data made available to us, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Equity
Share Entitlement Ratio as recommended by M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants in relation to the
proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement is fair to the equity shareholders of BL, KPL and BTL in our
opinion.

Sources of Information:

For arriving at the Fairness Opinion set forth below, we have relied upon the following sources of
information:

Valuation Report by M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants dated February 07, 2022.

Composite Scheme of Arrangement between BL, BTL and KPL.

Annual reports for FY 2019-2020 and FY 2020-2021 of BL, KPL and BTL.

Audited Financial Statéments as at 31% December 2021 for KPL and BTL.

Limited Review Financial Statements for 9 months ended 31** December 2021 of BL.

Management Projections from FY 2021-2022 to FY 2025-2026 for Demerged Undertaking, BTL and KPL

In addition to the above, we have also obtained such other information and explanations, which were
considered relevant for the purpose of our Analysis from the management of BL.

ons Li ati

We have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of all
information that was publicly available or provided or otherwise made available to us by the companies for
the purpose of this opinion.. Our work does not constitute an audit or certification or due diligence of the
working results, financial statements, financial estimates or estimates of value to be realized for the assets
‘of the companies. We have solely relied upon the information provided to us by the companies, We have
not reviewed any books or records of the companies (other than those provided or made available to us).
We have not assumed any obligation to conduct, nor have we conducted any physical inspection or title
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verification of the properties or facilities of the companies and neither express any opinion with respect
thereto nor accept any responsibility therefore. We have not made any independent valuation or appraisal
of the assets or liabilities of the companies. We have not reviewed any internal management information
statements or any non-public reports, and, instead, with your consent we have relied upon information
which was publicly available or provided or otherwise made available to us by the companies for the
purpose of this opinion. We are not experts in the evaluation of litigation or other actual or threaten claims
and hence have not commented on the effect of such litigation or claims on this opinion. We are not legal,
tax, regulatory or actuarial advisors. We are financial advisors only and have relied upon, without
independent verification, the assessment of the companies with respect to these matters. In addition, we
have assumed that the Scheme will be approved by the regulatory authorities and that the Proposed
Restructuring will be consummated substantially in accordance with the terms set forth in the Scheme.

We understand that the management of the companies during our discussion with them would have drawn
our attention to all such information and matters which may have an impact on our analysis and opinion.
We have assumed that in the course of obtaining necessary regulatory or other consents or approvals, no
restrictions will be imposed that will have a material adverse effect on the benefits of the Proposed
Restructuring that the companies may have contemplated. Our opinion is necessarily based on financial,
economic, market and other conditions as they currently exist and on the information made available to us
as of the date hereof. It should be understood that although subsequent developments may affect this
opinion, we do not have any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this opinion. In arriving at our opinion,
we are not authorized to solicit, and did not solicit, interests for any party with respect to the acquisition,
business combination or other extra-ordinary transaction involving the companies or any of their assets,
nor did we negotiate with any other party in this regard.

We have acted as a financial advisor to the companies for providing a Fairness Opinion and will receive a
fee for our services,

In the ordinary course of business, Keynote is engaged in securities trading, securities brokerage and
Iinvestment activities, as well as providing investment banking and investment advisory services. In the
ordinary course of its trading, brokerage and financing activities, any member of Keynote may at any time
hold long or short positions, and may trade or otherwise effect transactions, for its own account or the
accounts of customers, in'debt or equity securities or senior loans of any company that may be involved in
the Proposed Restructuring.

The Fairness Opinion is addressed only to the Board of Directors of BL and is for the purpose of submission
to the Stock Exchanges under the SEBI Circular. Further, the Fairness Opinion may be disclosed on the
website of the companies and the Stock Exchanges and also be made part of the explanatory statement to
be circulated to the shareholders and / or creditors of the Company. The Fairness Opinion should be read
in totality and not in parts, The Fairness Opinion shall not otherwise be disclosed or referred to publicly or
to any other third party without Keynote's prior written consent. If this Fairness Opinion Is used by any
person other than whom it is addressed or for any purpose other than the purpose state hereinabove, then
we will not be liable for any consequences thereof.
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Private and Confidential 25
—YEARS—

OF CREATING

KEYNOTE e

TRUST

We express no opinion whatever and make no recommendation at all as to the companies’ underlying
decision to effect to the Proposed Restructuring or as to how the holders of equity shares or preference
shares or secured or unsecured creditors of the companies should vote at their respective meetings, if any,
held in connection with the Proposed Restructuring. We do not express and should not be deemed to have
expressed any views on any other terms of Proposed Restructuring. We also express no opinion and
accordingly accept no responsibility for or as to the prices at which the equity shares of the companies will
trade following the announcement of the Proposed Restructuring or as to the financial performance of the
companies following the consummation of the Proposed Restructuring.

In no circumstances however, will Keynote Financial Services Limited or its associates, directors or
employees accept any responsibility or liability to any third party and in the unforeseen event of any such
responsibility or liability being imposed on Keynote Financial Services Limited or its associates, directors or
employees by any third party, the companies and their affiliates shall indemnify them.

For Keynote Financial Services Limited

AACIAL
3 E- ‘5{10

o ¢ =
=! MUMBAI |©
pun Lodha G\ P4

Exec. Vice President and'Hi

Place: W\um & A—‘
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ANNEXURE X

APPLICABLE INFORMATION OF KLASS PACK LIMITED IN THE FORMAT SPECIFIED FOR
ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS

| ou may download the Scheme from the weoL .e., or the wsite of tha\stoc exangea |
where the equity shares of BL are listed i.e., BSE Limited (“BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(“NSE”) (BSE and NSE together hereinafter referred as the “Stock Exchanges”)

(Capitalised terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them under the Scheme)

KLASS PACK LIMITED
CIN: U74999MH1991PLC061851; Date of Incorporation: May 29, 1991

1101, 11"
Crescenzo, G
Block, Plot No. C -
38, Opp. MCA
Club, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra
(E), Mumbai — 400
051

(1101,

11
Crescenzo, G
Block, Plot No. C -
38, Opp. MCA
Club, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra
(E), Mumbai - 400
051

lr,

Chauhan

Cya

' Email: -

kpl.secretarial@borosil.com
Telephone: (022) 6740 6300

Nt sit
Applicable

NAMES OF PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY (KLASS PACK LIMITED): (i) Borosil Limited; (ii) Shiv Ganga
Caterers Private Limited; (iii) Mr. Prashant Amin; (iv) Mrs. Shweta Amin; (v) Mr. Gangadhar Amin; (vi) Mrs, Pramila
Amin; and (vii) Mr. Pravesh Amin

Details of Offer to Public

DETAILS OF THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRAN

The Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“Demerged Company™ or “BL”) and Klass
Pack Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “KPL” or “Company”) and Borosil
| Technologies Limited (“Transferor Company” or “BTL”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under
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Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) (hereinafter referred
to as the “Scheme”/ “Scheme of Arrangement”) provides for the (i) reduction and reorganisation of share capital
of the Resulting Company; (ii) the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the
Scheme) from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis, the consequent issue
of shares by the Resulting Company and reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-up share capital of the
Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company; and (iii) amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company. The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequent and incidental thereto. The
Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 01, 2022 or such other date as may be decided by the Board of Directors of
the companies involved in the Scheme.

Consideration for the demerger of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged
Company into the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of the
depository as members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), as under:

“3 (Three) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company (post proposed re-organisation of
share capital) credited as fully paid up, for every 4 (Four) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Demerged
Company”

Consideration for amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company:

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme), the Transferor
Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and the entire paid-up share capital of
the Transferor Company will be held by the Transferee Company. Accordingly, upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company, there shall be no issue of shares as consideration for the said amalgamation
and all equity shares of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company along with its nominees, shall
stand cancelled.

Dissolution of the Transferor Company

Upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, the Transferor Company shall stand
dissolved without winding up. On and from the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), the name of the Transferor
Company shall be struck off from the records of the concerned ROC.

Listing of Equity Shares of Resulting Company

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, pursuant to the Scheme and subject to the applicable laws and receipt of
requisite approvals, the equity shares of the Resulting Company will be listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Details of OFS by Promoter(s)/ Promoter Group/ Other Selling Shareholders (upto a maximum of 10 selling
shareholders)

No of Shares WACA in Rs No of Shares | WACA in
Name Type offered/ Equi Name Type offered/ Rs per
Amount in Rs pertany Amount in Rs| Equity
Not applicable

P: Promoter; PG: Promoter Group; OSS: Other Selling shareholder; WACA: Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition
shall be calculated on fully diluted basis.

Price Band, Minimum Bid Lot & Indicative Timelines

Price Band*
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Minimum Bid Lot Size Not applicable
Bid/Offer Open On

Bid/Closes Open On

Finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Initiation of Refunds

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees
Commencement of trading of Equity Shares

*For details of price band and basis of offer price, please refer to price band advertisement and page xx of RHP- Not
applicable

Details of WACA of all shares transacted over the trailing eighteen months from the date of RHP- Not applicable

Weighted Average Cost of Upper End of the Price] Range of acquisition price

Period Rk Band is ‘X’ times the | Lowest Price- Highest Price (in
Acquisition (in Rs.) WACA Rs.)
Trailing Eighteen Month Not applicable

from the date of RHP
WACA: Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition shall be calculated on a fully diluted basis for the trailing eighteen months
from the date of RHP

RISKS IN RELATION TO THE FIRST OFFER
The face value of the Equity Shares is ' x. The Floor Price, Cap Price and Offer Price are determined by our Company
and the Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the BRLMs, on the basis of the assessment of market demand for
the Equity Shares by way of the Book Building Process, as stated under “Basis for Offer Price” on page xx should
not be considered to be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after listing. No assurance can be given
regarding the frequency of trading in the Equity Shares nor regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be
traded after listing- Not applicable

GENERAL RISKS

Investment in equity & equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in
this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the risk
factors carefully before taking an investment decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must
rely on their own examination of the Issuer and this Issue, including the risks involved. The Equity Shares have not
been recommended or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), nor does, SEBI guarantee
the accuracy or adequacy of the contents of the Scheme of Amalgamation or Abridged Prospectus. — Not applicable
as the offer is not for the public at large and no investment by the public is required in the Company.

Specified attention of the investors is invited to the section titled “Internal Risk Factors™ on page 11 of this Abridged
Prospectus.

PROCEDURE
You may obtain a physical copy of the Bid-cum-Application Form and the RHP from the stock exchange, syndicate
members, registrar to the issue, share transfer agents, depository participants, stock brokers, underwriters, bankers to
the issue, investors’ associations or Self Certified Syndicate Banks - Not applicable as the issue of equity shares
by the Resulting Company is only to the shareholders of the Demerged Company pursuant to the Scheme.

If you wish to know about processes and procedures applicable to this issue, you may request for a copy of the RHP
and/or the General Information Document (GID) from the BRLM’s or download it from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. www.nseindia.com; www.bseindia.com; and the BRLMs (websites to be specified) - Not applicable
as the issue of equity shares by the Resulting Company is only to the shareholders of the Demerged Company
pursuant to the Scheme.
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PRICE INFORMATION OF BRLM’s*

+/- % change in

+/- % change in

+/- % change in

Name of | closing price, (+/- % | closing price, (+/- % | closing price, (+/- %
Issue Name Merchant change in closing change in closing change in closing
Banker benchmark)- 30th benchmark)- 90th benchmark) - 180th

calendar days from

calendar days from

calendar days from

+1% (+5%)

Not applicable
*Disclosures subject to recent 7 issues (initial public offerings) in current financial year and two preceding financial
years managed by each Merchant Banker with common issues disclosed once.

2% (-5%)

[Name of BRLM and contact details
(telephone and email id) of each BRLM
Name of Syndicate Members

In case of issues by Small and Medium Enterprises under Chapter IX, details of the market maker to be included- Not
applicable

INot applicable

Name of Registrar to the Issue and contact details (telephone and email id)
Name of Statutory Auditor

Name of Credit Rating Agency and the rating or grading obtained, if any
Name of Debenture trustee, if any.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

Non Syndicate Registered Brokers

Details regarding website address(es)/ link(s) from which the investor can
obtain list of registrar to issue and share transfer agents, depository participants
and stock brokers who can accept application from investor (as applicable)

Not applicable

PROMOTERS OF THE ISSUER COMPANY (KLASS PACK LIMITED)
Individual /
Corporate /

Trust

Body Corporate

Sr. No. Name Experience & Educational Qualification

1. Borosil Limited Experience:

Borosil Limited (“BL”) is a public company incorporated on
November 25, 2010 in India under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956. Its registered office is situated at 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo,
G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051, Maharashtra, India. It is registered
with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra bearing
Corporate Identification Number (CIN):
L36100MH2010PLC292722. The equity shares of BL are publicly
traded on the Stock Exchanges, namely, BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited. BL is the holding company of Klass
Pack Limited. BL is engaged in the business of manufacturing and
trading of Scientific and Industrial Products (SIP) and Consumer
Products (CP). SIP consists of laboratory glassware, instruments,
disposable plastics, liquid handling systems and explosion proof
lighting glassware. CP consists of microwavable and flameproof
kitchenware, glass tumblers, hydra bottles, tableware and dinner ware,
appliances, storage products and steel serve fresh.

Experience:

Shiv Ganga Caterers Private Limited (“SGCPL”) is a private limited
company incorporated on March 27, 1991 in India under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956. Its registered office is situated at
Hotel Shivsagar, Shree Mangal Apartment, Near. Grand Ashwin

2 Shiv Ganga
Caterers Private
Limited

Body Corporate
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Hotel, Agra Road, Ashwin Nagar, Nashik — 422 009, Maharashtra, .
India. It is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai,
Maharashtra bearing Corporate Identification Number (CIN):
U15100MH1991PTC060978. SGCPL is engaged in food and catering
/ hospitality business which spreads across restaurants, hotels, inns,
resorts, holiday homes, hostels, business and industries, corporate
catering, educational institutions, health care sectors and so on.

B Mr.  Prashant Individual | Experience and Educational Qualification:
Amin Mr. Prashant Amin, a Commerce Graduate and Post Graduate
DIN - Diploma in Family Business Management, has more than 22 years of
00626079 experience in the field of product development in Glass Ampoules and
Glass Vials. Mr. Prashant Amin is currently the Managing Director of
Klass Pack Limited.
4. Mrs.  Shweta Individual | Experience and Educational Qualification:
Amin Mrs. Shweta Amin, a Science Graduate and Post Graduate Diploma
DIN - in Human Resource and Industrial Relation, has more than 18 years
00651041 of experience in the field of product development in Glass Ampoules

and Glass Vials. Mrs. Shweta Amin is currently the Whole Time
Director of Klass Pack Limited.

5. Mr. Gangadhar Individual | Experience and Educational Qualification:
Amin Mr. Gangadhar Amin, an Art’s Graduate, has more than 25 years of
DIN - experience in pharmaceutical packaging industry. He also has more
00625847 than four decades of experience in the field of catering and hospitality

industry that spreads across resorts, hotels, guest houses and so on.

6. Mrs.  Pramila Individual Experience and Educational Qualification:
Amin Mrs. Pramila Amin with qualification of Higher Secondary
DIN - Education, is actively involved in the field of catering and hospitality
00626140 industry along with her husband Mr. Gangadhar Amin.

7 Mr. Pravesh Individual Experience and Educational Qualification:
Amin Mr. Pravesh Amin, a qualified Master of Business Administration
DIN - (MBA) in the field of Human Resource and Marketing, has more than
00626121 18 years of experience in the field of catering and hospitality industry

that spreads across resorts, hotels, guest houses and so on.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY OF KLASS PACK LIMITED

Company Overview

Klass Pack Limited (“KPL”) was incorporated on May 29, 1991 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
under the name of ‘Klass Pack Private Limited’. The name of ‘Klass Pack Private Limited” was changed to ‘Klass
Pack Limited” upon conversion of the company from private limited to public limited on June 19, 2018. The registered
office of the Company is situated at 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G Block, Plot No. C - 38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra
Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051. KPL is a subsidiary of Borosil Limited. The main objects of KPL
as per its Memorandum of Association are to do business as manufactures, importers, wholesalers, retailers, dealers,
etc. of scientific and laboratory glasswares, pharmaceutical glasswares, industrial glassware, pharmaceutical primary
tubular glass packaging ampoules and vials and all other scientific and industrial products used in laboratories,
industries, households, educational, research and healthcare institutes.

KPL is primarily engaged in pharma packaging business. It manufactures USP Type 1 tubular glass vials and
ampoules which are marketed and sold to pharma companies. Its products cater to packaging of Injectable
formulations, Ophthalmic, Dental products and sample carrier for Analytical Instruments. The products are
manufactured at Company’s own manufacturing facilities located in Nashik, Maharashtra, India. Apart from the
existing product range, the Company is also exploring new opportunities in pre-filled syringes, cartridges and
siliconised vials. The Company’s products are sold not only in domestic markets but also in many international
markets.
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Product/Service Offering:

The Company is primarily engaged in manufacturing of pharmaceutical Glass Ampoules and Tubular Glass Vials
that is widely used as primary packaging material by pharmaceuticals companies for their life saving drugs.

Revenue segmentation by product/service offering (based on financials as on September 30, 2022):
- Glass Ampoules: 41.54%
- Tubular Glass Vials: 58.46%

Geographies Served: Primarily North & Central America, South America, Europe, Middle East, Asia and North
Africa.

Revenue segmentation by geographies (based on financials as on September 30, 2022):
- Asia including India: 87.02%
- Europe: 8.87%
- Middle East & North Africa: 2.53%
- South America: 1.40%
- North & Central America: 0.18%

Key Performance Indicators

% x ‘ — (Rs. in lak)
Partiulars e Marh S5 caded areh
Revenue from Operations 4,650.55 | 10,619.97 | 6,519.45 4,905.73
Profit before finance costs, depreciation, amortization 530.52 1,780.47 732.23 281.03
expense and tax (“EBITDA™)
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax 189.91 1,132.00 148.51 (316.55)
Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax 139.87 856.75 122.74 (219.34)
EBITDA Margin (Note No. 1) 11.41% 16.77% 11.23% 5.73%
Net Profit Margin (Note No. 2) 3.01% 8.07% 1.88% (4.41)%
Return on Net worth (Note No. 3) 1.71% 10.67% 2.37% (4.34)%
Return on Capital Employed (Note No. 4) 2.07% 12.71% 3.02% (3.35)%
Return on Equity Ratio (Note No. 5) 1.52% 11.10% 1.97% (4.07)%

Notes:

1. EBITDA Margin % is calculated by applying formula: EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations and
multiplied by 100

2, Net Profit Margin % is calculated by applying formula: Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax divided by Revenue from
Operations and multiplied by 100

3. Return on Net worth % is calculated by applying formula : Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax divided by Net worth and
multiplied by 100

4. Return on Capital Employed % is calculated by applying formula : Profit before Interest and Tax divided by
aggregate of Total Equity plus Total Debts and multiplied by 100

5. Return on Equity Ratio is calculated by applying formula: Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax divided by Average Total
Equity [(Opening equity share capital plus Opening other equity plus Closing equity share capital plus Closing
other equity)/2] multiplied by 100

Client Profile or Industries Served; Mainly pharmaceutical industry

Revenue segmentation in terms of top 5/10 clients or Industries (based on financials as on September 30, 2022):
- Glass Ampoules: Top 10 customers contribute 31.18% of revenue.
- Tubular Glass Vials: Top 10 customers contribute 43.59% of revenue.

Intellectual Property, if any: Not Applicable

Market Share: 9.2% for FY 2021-22
(Above market share % is calculated based on the management assessment of the Tubular Glass Packaging market)
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Manufacturing plant, if any:

- H-27, MIDC, Ambad, Nashik — 422 010
- Gat. 277-279, 287-295 and 302, Village Gonde Dumala, Tal. Igatpuri, Dist. Nashik — 422 403

Employee Strength: 183 employees on payroll (as on October 31, 2022)

Note:

(1) The quantitative statements shall be substantiated with Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and other quantitative

factors.

(2) No qualitative statements shall be made which cannot be substantiated with KPIs.
(3) Information provided in the table should not exceed 1000 words.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KLASS PACK LIMITED

degree in Commerce. He has over five
decades of experience in the glass

industry in the areas of General
Management, Strategy & Business,
Governance, Finance & Risk. He

possesses multi-faceted experience in
strategy formulation and implementation,
setting up of projects, planning and
execution, etc. He has experience in
technical matters pertaining to soda lime,

Designation
Sr. (Indepen(.ient Experience and Educational i Leretiotin
No. Name / Whole time Qualification (as on December 31,
/ Executive / 2022)
Nominee)
1 Mr. Shreevar Non- Experience and Educational | Indian Companies:
Kheruka Executive | Qualification: e Borosil Limited
DIN - 01802416 Director - Mr. Shreevar Kheruka, Bachelor of | e Borosil Renewables
Chairman Science in Economics with Limited
concentrations in  Finance and | e Croton Trading
Entrepreneurship and Bachelor of Arts in Private Limited
International Relations, has more than 16 | ¢ Window Glass
years of corporate experience in the areas Limited
of General Management, Strategy & | ¢ Median Marketing
Business, Governance, Finance and Risk. Private Limited
Mr. Shreevar Kheruka is the Managing | ¢ Al India Glass
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Manofactipers®
Borosil Limited. Mr. Shreevar Kheruka Federation
has led Borosil Limited through a period
of substantial growth. Leveraging, a
business grisis Mr. Shreevar introsluced 2 | Foreign C 6mpanies:
new business model that relied on | | Laseriiag AG
Borosil’s brand equity, strong distribution
network and customer centricity. Under
Mr. Shreevar’s leadership, Borosil
Limited is evolving from a single product
and single brand organization to a multi-
product, multi-brand, multi-channel and
international consumer centric
organization.
2 | Mr. P. K. Kheruka Non- Experience and Educational | Indian Companies:
DIN - 00016909 Executive | Qualification: e Borosil Limited
Director Mr. P. K. Kheruka holds a bachelor’s | e Borosil Renewables

Limited

e Croton Trading
Private Limited

e Window Glass
Limited

e All India Glass
Manufacturers’
Federation

o CAPEXIL
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flat glass, as well as borosilicate drawn,
blown and pressed glass. He has deep
knowledge of glass marketing scenario in
domestic as well as international markets.
He is the Executive Chairman of Borosil
Renewables Limited and also Non-
Executive Chairman of Borosil Limited.

Foreign Companies:
NIL

Mr. Prashant Amin Managing Experience and Educational | Indian Companies:
DIN - 00626079 Director Qualification: NIL
Mr. Prashant Amin, a Commerce
Graduate and Post Graduate Diploma in | Foreign Companies:
Family Business Management, has more | NIL
than 22 years of experience in the field of
product development in Glass Ampoules
and Glass Vials.
Mrs. Shweta Amin | Whole Time | Experience and Educational | Indian Companies:
DIN - 00651041 Director Qualification: NIL
Mrs. Shweta Amin, a Science Graduate
and Post Graduate Diploma in Human | Foreign Companies:
Resource and Industrial Relation, has | NIL
more than 18 years of experience in the
field of product development in Glass
Ampoules and Glass Vials.
Mr. Vinayak Non- Experience and Educational | Indian Companies:
Patankar Executive Qualification: e Borosil
DIN - 07534225 Director Mr. Vinayak Patankar, M.Sc. in Technologies
Chemistry, has more than 29 years of Limited
experience particularly in the field of
Sales, Marketing and Operations. | Foreign Companies:
Currently, he is the Chief Operating | NIL
Officer of Scientific & Industrial
Products division of Borosil Limited.
Mr. Raj Kumar | Independent | Experience and Educational | Indian Companies:
Jain Director Qualification: e Welspun
DIN - 00026544 Mr. Raj Kumar Jain is a Practising Investments  And
Chartered  Accountant with wide Commercials
experience in Statutory Audit, Concurrent Limited
Audit, Revenue Audit, Stock Audit and | ¢ Welspun Steel
specialization in Investigation Audit. Limited
e Altius Finserv
Private Limited
e Borosil Renewables
Limited
Foreign Companies:
NIL
Mr. Rahul Dev Independent | Experience and Educational | Indian Companies:
DIN - 06400766 Director Qualification: e Datwyler Pharma
Mr. Rahul Dev holds Diploma in Packaging India

Hospitality Management and has done
IMD Advanced Management Program
from IIM  Bangalore (Executive
Certification Course). He started as a
trainee in 1994, working with his father at

Private Limited

Foreign Companies:
NIL
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Top Syringe Manufacturing Company in
Mumbai, India, a joint venture with Top
Japan. In 2003, he joined Kaisha
Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd, now Schott
Kaisha, a joint venture between Schott
Germany and Kaisha. As VP - Prefillable
Syringes and Cartridges, he was
instrumental in setting up India’s first and
only Sterile Prefill Syringe system (PFS)
plant; he also introduced the concept of
Sterile Ready to Use or Fill, Vials and
Cartridges to Indian pharma companies.
Mr. Rahul was also one of the three
members chosen as Global Specialists for
Schott Pharmaceutical systems
worldwide for Sterile Prefill Syringe
systems. Since 2011, Mr. Rahul has been
with Datwyler Sealing Solutions, as Site
Director responsible for the set-up and
operations of its new plant in MIDC SEZ,
Satara, India. After successfully setting
up / commissioning India operations, he
was responsible for Datwyler India as
Vice President India and Managing
Director. Since November 2019 he is
responsible for Datwyler Healthcare
Solution as Sr. VP. Global Operations
reporting to CEO of Datwyler Healthcare
Solutions. Since April 2022 he is also
responsible as Site Director of Belgium
plant in addition to his Global Operations
role.

[ OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE o

Details of means of finance — Not applicable

The fund requirements for each of the objects of the Issue are stated as follows: (Rs. in crores)

Sr. 7 Amount to be | Estimated Net Proceeds
No. Objects of the Issue Total Amount PR Utilization

estimate costiDeployed It} ) Prvcecds'l Biscal 20 | Fiscal 20

Not applicable

Details and reasons for non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or changes in utilization of issue
proceeds of past public issues/ rights issue, if any, of the Company in the preceding 10 years - Not applicable
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Name of monitoring agency, if any - Not applicable

Terms of Issuance of Convertible Security, if any

Convertible securities being offered by the Company

Face Value / Issue Price per Convertible securities

Issue Size

Interest on Convertible Securities

Conversion Period of Convertible Securities

Conversion Price for Convertible Securities

Conversion Date for Convertible Securities

Details of Security created for CCD

Not applicable

Rationale for the Scheme:

Given its diversified business, it has become imperative for the Demerged Company to reorient and reorganize
itself in a manner that allows imparting greater focus on each of its businesses. With this repositioning, the
Demerged Company is desirous of enhancing its operational efficiency while it continues with its consumer
products business.

The proposed demerger pursuant to this Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following benefits:

(i) value unlocking of scientific and industrial products business with ability to achieve valuation based on
respective-risk return profile and cash flows;

(ii) attracting business specific investors and potential strategic partners and providing better flexibility in
accessing capital, focused strategy and specialisation for sustained growth and thereby enable de-leveraging
of the respective businesses in the longer-term;

(iii) segregation and unbundling of the scientific and industrial products business of the Demerged Company into
the Resulting Company, will enable enhanced focus on the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company
for exploring opportunities in their respective business domains; and

(iv) focused management approach for pursuing the growth in the respective business’ verticals and de-risk the
businesses from each other.

As part of the restructuring exercise, it is proposed to consolidate the resources of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company. The said amalgamation will result in the following benefits:

(i) Streamline the corporate structure and consolidation of resources within the Transferee Company leading to
greater synergies and operational synergy;

(ii) Opportunities for employees of the Transferor Company to grow in a wider field of business;

(iii) Optimal utilisation of resources and better management and administration; and

(iv) Reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal and regulatory compliances.

In order to achieve an optimum equity share capital base which will commensurate with business activities of the
Resulting Company subsequent to the demerger and merger as stated above, it is proposed to reduce the face value
of the equity shares and reorganise the equity share capital of the Resulting Company prior to the said demerger
and merger.

The proposed restructuring is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees, and other stakeholders of
the Parties (as defined in the Scheme).
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Shareholding Pattern of Klass Pack Limited
(based on shareholding data of Klass Pack Limited and Borosil Limited as on December 31, 2022)

Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme (indicative)
Sr. : Number of shares INumber of shares
No. Ranitat ry (face value of Rs. |% Holding|(face value of Re.|% Holding
100 each) 1 each)
1. [Promoter and Promoter Group 16,32,949 100% 6,03,08,078 68.03
2. |Public - - 2,83,36,215 31.97
Total 16,32,949 100% 8,86,44,293 100%

Number/ amount of equity shares proposed to be sold by selling shareholders, if any- Not applicable

AUDITED FINANCIALS OF KLASS PACK LIMITED

(Rs. in lakh, except as stated otherwise)

Fz;:l;i::;f For the year For the year For the year
Particuliis Szp tember 30 ended March 31, | ended March 31, |ended March 31,
2022 ? 2022 2021 2020
STANDALONE

Total income from operations (Net) 4,650.55 10,619.97 6,519.45 4,905.73
(Note No. 1)
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax and 189.91 1,132.00 148.51 (316.55)
extraordinary items
INet Profit/ (Loss) after tax and extraordinary| 139.87 856.75 122.74 (219.34)
items
Equity Share Capital 1,632.95 1,632.95 1,396.74 1,396.74
Reserves and Surplus (Note no. 2) 6,535.21 6,395.34 3,774.80 3,652.06
INet worth (Note no. 3) 8,168.16 8,028.29 5,171.54 5,048.80
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (Note no. 4) 8.57 58.94 8.79 (17.30)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (Note no. 4) 8.57 58.94 8.79 (17.30)
Return on net worth (%) (Note no. 5) 1.71% 10.67% 2.37% (4.34)%
INet asset value per share (Rs.) (Note no. 6) 569.24 560.37 449.90 441.00

Notes:

1
2.
3.
4
5

divided by Net worth and multiplied by 100

6.
outstanding
i

‘Total Revenue from Operations’ is given under the head ‘Total income from operations (Net)’
Reserves and Surplus excludes Other Comprehensive Income.
Net worth is as per the definition of net worth given in Section 2(57) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Basic and Diluted earnings per share for the half year ended September 30, 2022 is not annualised.
Return on Net worth % is calculated by applying formula : Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items

Net asset value per share (Rs.) is calculated by applying formula : Net worth divided by Number of equity shares

Consolidated financial statements were not applicable, as Klass Pack Limited did not have any subsidiary.

[ INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

The below-mentioned risks are the top risk factors:

1. Supply Chain Management
Due to COVID there are many restrictions, hence sourcing of raw materials and export of goods to multiple
geographies become challenging. These factors also create risk of overstocking / building of inventories and working
capital blockages.

2. Our inability to effectively manage our growth or to successfully implement our business plan and growth

strategy could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition
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Our inability to manage our expansion effectively and execute our growth strategy in a timely manner, or within
budget estimates, or our inability to meet the expectations of our customers and other stakeholders could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Our future prospects will depend on
our ability to grow our business and operations further. The development of such future business could be affected
by many factors, including general political and economic conditions in India, government policies or strategies in
respect of specific industries, prevailing interest rates, price of equipment and construction materials, fuel supply
and currency exchange rates. Failure to manage growth effectively could have an adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.

Our services and operations are subject to operational risks such as breakdown of equipments, accidents,
and labour disputes

If any of these risks were to materialize, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected. Any
malfunction or break-down of our machinery or equipments may adversely affect our production capacity.
Consequently, this may result in breach of our contractual obligations to our customers. Any breach of our
obligations may result in termination of our contracts with our customers, which could have an adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our success depends in large part upon our management team and skilled personnel and our ability to attract
and retain such persons

The loss of key personnel may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
growth prospects. Our performance depends on the continued service of our management team and skilled
personnel. The loss of key personnel may have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations.

We are exposed to the risk of delays or non-payment by our customers, which may also result in cash flow
mismatches

The financial condition of our customers may be affected by the performance of their business which in turn may
affect our sales.

Compliance Risk
Any non-compliance with the regulatory and other laws of land may lead to penalties and fines.

Quality of goods sold
The Company is expected to maintain quality standard in its manufacturing operations. Any non-adherence to
approved quality practise and procedures may expose it to adverse consequences.

Our performance and growth are dependent on the factors affecting the Indian economy.

Our performance and the growth are dependent on the performance of the Indian economy, which, in turn, depends
on various factors. The Indian economy has been affected by global economic uncertainties, volatility in interest
rates, currency exchange rates, commodity and electricity prices, adverse conditions affecting agriculture and
various other macroeconomic factors as well as regulatory changes. Any downturn in the macroeconomic
environment in India could materially and adversely affect the business, prospects, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

Forex — Currency
The Company is exposed to risks arising out of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency exposure, if
not managed well can result in financial losses.
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SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION
(Status as on October 31, 2022)
A.  Total number of outstanding litigations against the company (i.e. Klass Pack Limited) and amount involved
Disciplinary
actions by Aggregate
Chitant Tax Statutory or [the SEBI or| Material | amount
Name of Entity Proceedings | Proceedings Regulatory Stock Civil involved
Proceedings | Exchanges | Litigations | (Rs in
against our crores)
Promoters

Company
By the Company Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Company Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors
By our Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Directors Nil 1! Nil Nil Nil 0.09!
Promoters
By Promoters 100 Nil Nil Nil 8 23.92
Against Promoters Nil 2 3 Nil 10° 67.24
Subsidiaries
By Subsidiaries NA NA NA NA NA NA
Against Subsidiaries NA NA NA NA NA NA
Notes:

1. Appeal preferred by Mr. Shreevar Kheruka before Commissioner of Income Tax Appeals against the order of Assistant
Commissioner of Income Tax disallowing dividend income exemption. Tax amount involved in the appeal is Rs. 0.09
crore

2. Includes one matter involving an amount of Rs. 60 crore which is an alternate relief to be awarded only if plaintiffs are
successful in their claim and primary relief cannot be granted to them. Borosil Limited is the second defendant in the
said matter and in case of adverse outcome, the amount is to be paid jointly or severally by the Defendants.

B.  Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against the company (i.e. Klass Pack Limited) and amount
involved — Nil

C. Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters in last 5
financial years including outstanding action, if any (200 - 300 word limit in total) - Nil

D.  Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters (200 - 300-word limit in total) — Nil (There
are no outstanding criminal proceedings filed against the Promoters of the Company)

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION AS PER BRLM / ISSUER COMPANY
The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of Klass Pack Limited at its meeting held on February 07,
2022. Following documents can be downloaded from the website of BL i.e., www.borosil.com.

e Composite Scheme of Arrangement

e Memorandum and Articles of Association of Klass Pack Limited

e Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm Registration No. 128851W) (Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126), Registered Valuer
recommending the share exchange ratio

e Fairness Opinion Report dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. Keynote Financial Services Limited, an
Independent SEBI Registered Merchant Banker on the share exchange ratio

e Audited financial statements of Klass Pack Limited for year ended March 31, 2022 .

e Audited Condensed Financial Statements of Klass Pack Limited for the half year ended September 30, 2022

e Certificate of the Statutory Auditor of Klass Pack Limited, confirming that the accounting treatment prescribed
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under the Scheme is in compliance with Section 133 of the Act and other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India

DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the-Companies-Aet;1956; the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/
regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may
be have been complied with and no statement made in the Abridged Prospectus is contrary to the provisions of the
CompaniesAect;1956; the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made
or guidelines or regulation issued there under, as the case may be.

We further certify that all statements in the Abridged Prospectus are true and correct.

For Klass Pack Limited

C.“-WW

Chaitanya Chauhan
Company Secretary
ACS-51896

Place: Mumbai
Date: January 03, 2023
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KEYNOTE

Private and Confidential

January 03, 2023

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

Borosil Limited Klass Pack Limited

1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, 1101, Crescenzo, G-Block,

Opp. MCA Club, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra East, Mumbai — 400 051. Bandra East, Mumbai — 400 051.

Dear Sir/Madam,

Ref: Abridged Prospectus of Klass Pack Limited
Sub: Due Diligence Certificate for the Abridged Prospectus of Klass Pack Limited

This has reference to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 amongst Borosil Limited (“Demerged Company” or “BL”) and Klass
Pack Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “KPL” or “Company”) and Borosil
Technologies Limited (“Transferor Company” or “BTL”) and their respective shareholders and creditors
(“Composite Scheme”).

This has further reference to our engagement with the Demerged Company for inter-alia certifying the
accuracy and adequacy of disclosures pertaining to the Resulting Company made in the abridged prospectus
dated January 03, 2023, prepared by the Resulting Company in terms of the requirement specified in the
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to time, read with
SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021, as
amended from time to time.

We, as SEBI registered Merchant Banker(s) state and confirm as follows in respect of above proposed
Composite Scheme:

) We have examined various documents including those relating to litigation, including outstanding
litigation, claims and regulatory actions and other material while finalizing the Abridged Prospectus
as mentioned above;

()] On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the Resulting Company, its directors and
other officers, other agencies, and independent verification of the statements concerning the
objects of the Composite Scheme and the contents of the documents and other papers furnished by
the Resulting Company, WE CONFIRM that:

(@) the Abridged Prospectus is in conformity with the documents, materials and papers relevant
to the Composite Scheme;
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all material legal requirements relating to the Composite Scheme as also the regulations,
guidelines, instructions, etc. framed / issued by the SEBI, the Central Government and any
other competent authority in this behalf have been duly complied with; and

the disclosures made in the Abridged Prospectus are true, fair and adequate to enable the
investors to make a well informed decision as to the proposed Composite Scheme and such
disclosures are in accordance with the requirements provided in SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 04, 2022 read with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, to
the extent applicable, the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions / legal
requirements.

The above confirmation is based on the information furnished and explanations provided to us by the
management of the Resulting Company assuming the same is complete and accurate in all material aspects
on an as is basis. We have relied upon financials, information and representations furnished to us on an as
is basis and have not carried out an audit of such information. Our scope of work does not constitute an
audit of financial information and accordingly we are unable to and do not express an opinion on the fairness
of any such financial information referred to in the Abridged Prospectus. This certificate is a specific purpose
certificate issued in terms of the SEBI requirements and hence, it should not be used for any other purpose
or transaction. The certificate is not, nor should it be construed to be, a certification of compliance of the
Scheme with the provisions of the applicable Law including company, taxation and securities markets
related laws or as regards to any legal implications or issues arising thereon, except for the purpose
expressly mentioned herein.

We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendation at all as to the Resulting Company’s
underlying decision to effect the Composite Scheme or as to how the equity shareholders of the Demerged
Company and the unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the
Transferor Company should vote at their respective meetings held in connection with the proposed
Composite Scheme. We do not express and should not be deemed to have expressed any views on any other
terms of the Composite Scheme or its success. We also express no opinion, and accordingly, accept no
responsibility for or as to the financial performance of the Resulting Company, the Transferor Company and
the Demerged Company following the consummation of the Composite Scheme. We express no opinion
whatsoever and make no recommendations at all (and accordingly take no responsibility) as to whether
shareholders / investors should buy, sell or hold any stake in the Demerged Company or the Resulting
Company or any of their related parties (holding company/ subsidiaries/ associates, etc.)

For Keynote Financial Services Limited

o’ .
Name: Uday S. Patil
Designation: Director — Investment Banking
SEBI Registration Number: INM000003606
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ANNEXURE XI

APPLICABLE INFORMATION OF BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED IN THE FORMAT
SPECIFIED FOR ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS

This is an abridged prospectus containing information pertaining to the unlisted company, Borosil
Technologies Limited (“Transferor Company” or “Company” or “BTL”), involved in the Composite Scheme
of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“Demerged Company” or “BL”) and Klass Pack Limited
(“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “KPL”) and Borosil Technologies Limited
(“Transferor Company” or “Company” or “BTL”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) (hereinafter
referred to as the “Scheme”) in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in SEBI Circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 04, 2022 read with Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

This Abridged Prospectus has been prepared in connection with the Scheme, pursuant to SEBI Master
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021. This Abridged
Prospectus should be read together with the Scheme.

THIS ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS CONTAINS 11 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE
RECEIVED ALL THE PAGES.

You may download the Scheme from the website of BL i.e., www.borosil.com or the website of the stock exchanges
where the equity shares of BL are listed i.e., BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(“NSE”) (BSE and NSE together hereinafter referred as the “Stock Exchanges”)

(Capitalised terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them under the Scheme)

BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
CIN: U36999MH2009PLC197226; Date of Incorporation: November 23, 2009

Registered office Corporate office Contact person Email and Telephone Website
1101, 11% Floor, | 1101, 11" Floor, | Mr. Rajesh Kumar | Email: Not
Crescenzo, G | Crescenzo, G | Chaudhary btl.secretarial@borosil.com Applicable
Block, Plot No. C - | Block, Plot No. C - Telephone: (022) 6740 6300
38, Opp. MCA |38, Opp. MCA
Club, Bandra Kurla | Club, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra | Complex, Bandra
(E), Mumbai — 400 | (E), Mumbai — 400
051 051

NAMES OF PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY (BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED): BOROSIL

LIMITED
Details of Offer to Public
Fresh Issue Size . Total Issue Size :
Type of Issue OFS Size (by no.
(I‘Z,l!’esh /OFs/ |(by no.of shares| o shares(oz by (by no. of shares| Issue Under BRALER i ion
Fresh & OFS) |0F by amountin| gpyoung ip Rs) |OF by amountin)  6(V6() | o | ~Nm | Rm
Not applicable

OFS: Offer for Sale

SCHEME DETAILS AND LISTING

DETAILS OF THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

The Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“Demerged Company” or “BL”) and Klass
Pack Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “KPL”) and Borosil Technologies Limited
(“Transferor Company” or “Company” or “BTL”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) (hereinafter referred to as the
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“Scheme”/ “Scheme of Arrangement”) provides for the (i) reduction and reorganisation of share capital of the
Resulting Company; (ii) the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme)
from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis, the consequent issue of shares
by the Resulting Company and reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-up share capital of the Resulting
Company held by the Demerged Company; and (iii) amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company. The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequent and incidental thereto. The Appointed
Date for the Scheme is April 01, 2022 or such other date as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the
companies involved in the Scheme.

Consideration for the demerger of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged
Company into the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of the
depository as members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), as under:

“3 (Three) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company (post proposed re-organisation of
share capital) credited as fully paid up, for every 4 (Four) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- each of the Demerged
Company”

Consideration for amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company:

Upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme), the Transferor
Company will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and the entire paid-up share capital of
the Transferor Company will be held by the Transferee Company. Accordingly, upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company, there shall be no issue of shares as consideration for the said amalgamation
and all equity shares of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company along with its nominees, shall
stand cancelled.

Dissolution of the Transferor Company

Upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, the Transferor Company shall stand
dissolved without winding up. On and from the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), the name of the Transferor
Company shall be struck off from the records of the concerned ROC.

Listing of Equity Shares of Resulting Company

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, pursuant to the Scheme and subject to the applicable laws and receipt of
requisite approvals, the equity shares of the Resulting Company will be listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Details of OFS by Promoter(s)/ Promoter Group/ Other Selling Shareholders (upto a maximum of 10 selling
shareholders)

No of Shares WACA in Rs No of Shares | WACA in
Name Type offered/ Equi Name Type offered/ Rs per
Amount in Rs Per Qi Amount in Rs| Equity
Not applicable

P: Promoter; PG: Promoter Group; OSS: Other Selling shareholder; WACA: Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition
shall be calculated on fully diluted basis.

Price Band, Minimum Bid Lot & Indicative Timelines

Not applicable

Price Band*
Minimum Bid Lot Size
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Bid/Offer Open On

Bid/Closes Open On

Finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Initiation of Refunds

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees
Commencement of trading of Equity Shares

*For details of price band and basis of offer price, please refer to price band advertisement and page xx of RHP- Not

applicable

Details of WACA of all shares transacted over the trailing eighteen months from the date of RHP- Not applicable

: Upper End of the Price] Range of acquisition price
Period Wef:t:(:s;:i‘::‘?ig; lgso ;t of Band is ‘X’ times the | Lowest Price- Highest Price (in
q : WACA Rs.)
Trailing Eighteen Month Notapplicahle

from the date of RHP
WACA: Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition shall be calculated on a fully diluted basis for the trailing eighteen months
from the date of RHP

RISKS IN RELATION TO THE FIRST OFFER
The face value of the Equity Shares is ' x. The Floor Price, Cap Price and Offer Price are determined by our Company
and the Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the BRLMs, on the basis of the assessment of market demand for
the Equity Shares by way of the Book Building Process, as stated under “Basis for Offer Price” on page xx should
not be considered to be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after listing. No assurance can be given
regarding the frequency of trading in the Equity Shares nor regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be
traded after listing- Not applicable

GENERAL RISKS
Investment in equity & equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in
this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the risk
factors carefully before taking an investment decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must
rely on their own examination of the Issuer and this Issue, including the risks involved. The Equity Shares have not
been recommended or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), nor does, SEBI guarantee
the accuracy or adequacy of the contents of the Scheme of Amalgamation or Abridged Prospectus. — Not applicable

Specified attention of the investors is invited to the section titled “Internal Risk Factors” on page 9 of this Abridged
Prospectus.

PROCEDURE
You may obtain a physical copy of the Bid-cum-Application Form and the RHP from the stock exchange, syndicate
members, registrar to the issue, share transfer agents, depository participants, stock brokers, underwriters, bankers to
the issue, investors’ associations or Self Certified Syndicate Banks - Not applicable

If you wish to know about processes and procedures applicable to this issue, you may request for a copy of the RHP
and/or the General Information Document (GID) from the BRLM’s or download it from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. www.nseindia.com; www.bseindia.com; and the BRLMs (websites to be specified) - Not applicable

PRICE INFORMATION OF BRLM’s*

196

+/- % change in +/- % change in +/- % change in
Name of | closing price, (+/- % | closing price, (+/- % | closing price, (+/- %

Issue Name Merchant change in closing change in closing change in closing
Banker benchmark)- 30th benchmark)- 90th benchmark) - 180th
calendar days from | calendar days from | calendar days from

+1% (+5%) -2% (-5%)
Not applicable
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*Disclosures subject to recent 7 issues (initial public offerings) in current financial year and two preceding financial
years managed by each Merchant Banker with common issues disclosed once.

Name of BRLM and contact details
(telephone and email id) of each BRLM  [Not applicable
IName of Syndicate Members
In case of issues by Small and Medium Enterprises under Chapter IX, details of the market maker to be included- Not
applicable

Name of Registrar to the Issue and contact details (telephone and email id)
Name of Statutory Auditor

Name of Credit Rating Agency and the rating or grading obtained, if any
Name of Debenture trustee, if any. Not licabl
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks ot appiicable
Non Syndicate Registered Brokers

Details regarding website address(es)/ link(s) from which the investor can
obtain list of registrar to issue and share transfer agents, depository participants
and stock brokers who can accept application from investor (as applicable)

PROMOTERS OF THE ISSUER COMPANY (BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED)

Individual /
Sr. No. Name Corporate / Experience & Educational Qualification
Trust
1. Borosil Limited |Body Corporate| Experience:

Borosil Limited (“BL”) is a public company incorporated on
November 25, 2010 in India under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956. Its registered office is situated at 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo,
G-Block, Plot No C-38, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051, Maharashtra, India. It is registered
with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra bearing
Corporate Identification Number (CIN):
L36100MH2010PLC292722. The equity shares of BL are publicly
traded on the Stock Exchanges, namely, BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited. BL is the holding company of
Borosil Technologies Limited. BL is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and trading of Scientific and Industrial Products (SIP)
and Consumer Products (CP). SIP consists of laboratory glassware,
instruments, disposable plastics, liquid handling systems and
explosion proof lighting glassware. CP consists of microwavable and
flameproof kitchenware, glass tumblers, hydra bottles, tableware and
dinner ware, appliances, storage products and steel serve fresh.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY OF BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Company Overview

Borosil Technologies Limited (“BTL”) was incorporated on November 23, 2009 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 under the name Borosil Glass Limited. Thereafter, the name of the Company was changed to
Borosil Technologies Limited with effect from March 15,2018. BTL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Borosil Limited.
The registered office of the Company is situated at 1101, 11th Floor, Crescenzo, G Block, Plot No. C - 38, Opp. MCA
Club, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051. The main objects of BTL as per its Memorandum of
Association are to carry on business of manufacturers, producers, exporters, importers, etc. of all types of glass used
in the laboratories, industries, households, educational, research and healthcare institutes.
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BTL is engaged in the business of manufacturing laboratory equipments / instruments. These equipment / instruments
are sold exclusively to Borosil Limited which markets the same under the brand ‘LabQuest’. BTL’s wide range of
equipments are useful to sectors such as nutrition & environment, Lab Essentials, Life Sciences and Process
Chemistry. BTL’s products offer customers the option of an indigenously designed and produced, value for money
instrumentation range which can be used as a substitute for imported equipments without any compromise in
performance or reliability. BTL has its own manufacturing facility in Pune.

Product/Service Offering:

BTL is engaged in the business of manufacturing laboratory equipment / instruments. The product portfolio of the
Company can be classified into four broad categories which are:

1. Nutrition & Environment
2. Lab Essentials

3. Life Science

4. Process Chemistry

Revenue segmentation by product/service offering:

1. Nutrition & Environment: 44%
2. Lab Essentials: 36%

3. Life Science: 8%

4. Process Chemistry: 12%

Geographies Served: India

Revenue segmentation by geographies: 100 % in India

Key Performance Indicators

( Rs in lakh)
Fox the Al For the year Yor e For the year
Particulars yesrended ended March|Y " e ended March
September 31.2022 March 31, 31. 2020
30, 2022 " 2021 g
Revenue from Operations 400.81 1;321.01 649.30 432.00
Profit before finance costs, depreciation, amortization (264.08) (5.14) 15:21 31.60
expense and tax (“EBITDA”)
Net Loss before tax (315.54) (66.88) (60.06) (31.41)
Net Loss after tax (307.58) (50.62) (46.28) (22.96)
EBITDA Margin (Note No. 1) (65.89)% (0.39)% 2.34% 7.31%
Net Profit Margin (Note No. 2) (76.74)% (3.83)% (7.13)% (5.31)%
Return on Net worth (Note No. 3) (62.63)% (6.34)% | (11.99)% (5.36)%
Return on Capital Employed (Note No. 4) (32.65)% (7.26)% (8.52)% (6.22)%
Return on Equity Ratio (Note No. 5) (47.82)% (8.56)% | (11.38)% (5.23)%

Notes:
1. EBITDA Margin % is calculated by applying formula: EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations and
multiplied by 100

2. Net Profit Margin % is calculated by applying formula: Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax divided by Revenue from
Operations and multiplied by 100

3. Return on Net worth % is calculated by applying formula : Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax divided by Net worth and
multiplied by 100

4. Return on Capital Employed % is calculated by applying formula : Profit before Interest and Tax divided by
aggregate of Total Equity plus Total Debts and multiplied by 100

5. Return on Equity Ratio is calculated by applying formula: Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax divided by Average Total

Equity [(Opening equity share capital plus Opening other equity plus Closing equity share capital plus Closing
other equity)/2] multiplied by 100
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Client Profile or Industries Served: BTL’s equipment / instruments are sold exclusively to Borosil Limited which
markets the same under the brand ‘LabQuest’.

Revenue segmentation in terms of top 5/10 clients or Industries: 100% revenue from sales to Borosil Limited

Intellectual Property, if any: Applied for Patent in Bottle Top Dispenser
Manufacturing plant, if any:

e Plot No. 7 Sr. No. 234,235, & 245, Indialand Global Industrial Park, Hinjewadi, Phase 1 Pune —411 057

Employee Strength: 51 employees on payroll (as on October 31, 2022)
Note:

(1) The quantitative statements shall be substantiated with Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and other quantitative
factors.

(2) No qualitative statements shall be made which cannot be substantiated with KPIs.
(3) Information provided in the table should not exceed 1000 words.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Designation Other
Sr (Independent Directorships
No. / Whole time Experience and Educational Qualification (as on
5 Name / Executive / December 31,
Nominee) 2022)

1 Mr. Sreejith Whole-time Experience and Educational Qualification: Indian
Kumar Palekudy Director Mr. Sreejith Kumar Sukumaran, B. Tech. in | Companies:
Sukumaran Mechanical Engineering and Post Graduate in | NIL
DIN - 06590184 Industrial Design, is a new product development

professional having led multi-disciplinary teams of | Foreign
professionals with global experience in market driven | Companies:
product development, industrial design, | NIL
electromechanical system integration, embedded and

plastics engineering. His experiences span product

categories of Medical & Scientific Devices, Industrial

Equipments, Consumer Electronics and

Automobiles.

2 Mr. Rajesh Non- Experience and Educational Qualification: Indian
Kumar Executive Mr. Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary, Chartered | Companies:
Chaudhary Director Accountant has around 24 years of rich experience | Borosil
DIN - 07425111 in Corporate Sector, mainly in areas of accounts, | Limited

finance, commercial management and general

management. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary is a

Whole-Time Director in Borosil Limited. Foreign
Companies:
Nil

3 Mr. Vinayak Non- Experience and Educational Qualification: Indian
Patankar Executive Mr. Vinayak Patankar, M.Sc. in Chemistry, has | Companies:
DIN - 07534225 Director more than 29 years of experience particularly in the | Klass Pack

field of Sales, Marketing and Operations. Currently, | Limited

he is the Chief Operating Officer of Scientific &

Industrial Products division of Borosil Limited. Foreign
Companies:
NIL
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R OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Details of means of finance — Not applicable

The fund requirements for each of the objects of the Issue are stated as follows: (Rs. in crores)

Sr. : Amount to be | Estimated Net Proceeds
No. Objects of the Issue Total Amount Eiie o oo Utilization

st con Boplors L Net Proceeds | Fiscal 20 | Fiscal 20

Not applicable

Details and reasons for non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or changes in utilization of issue
proceeds of past public issues/ rights issue, if any, of the Company in the preceding 10 years - Not applicable

Name of monitoring agency, if any - Not applicable

Terms of Issuance of Convertible Security, if any

Convertible securities being offered by the Company
Face Value / Issue Price per Convertible securities
Issue Size

Interest on Convertible Securities

Conversion Period of Convertible Securities
Conversion Price for Convertible Securities
Conversion Date for Convertible Securities

Details of Security created for CCD

Not applicable

Rationale for the Scheme:

1. Given its diversified business, it has become imperative for the Demerged Company to reorient and reorganize
itself in a manner that allows imparting greater focus on each of its businesses. With this repositioning, the
Demerged Company is desirous of enhancing its operational efficiency while it continues with its consumer
products business.

2. The proposed demerger pursuant to this Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following benefits:

(i) value unlocking of scientific and industrial products business with ability to achieve valuation based on
respective-risk return profile and cash flows;

(i) attracting business specific investors and potential strategic partners and providing better flexibility in
accessing capital, focused strategy and specialisation for sustained growth and thereby enable de-leveraging
of the respective businesses in the longer-term;

(i) ~ segregation and unbundling of the scientific and industrial products business of the Demerged Company into
the Resulting Company, will enable enhanced focus on the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company
for exploring opportunities in their respective business domains; and

(iv) focused management approach for pursuing the growth in the respective business’ verticals and de-risk the
businesses from each other.

3. As part of the restructuring exercise, it is proposed to consolidate the resources of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company. The said amalgamation will result in the following benefits:

()  Streamline the corporate structure and consolidation of resources within the Transferee Company leading

to greater synergies and operational synergy;

(i)  Opportunities for employees of the Transferor Company to grow in a wider field of business;

(iii)  Optimal utilisation of resources and better management and administration; and

(iv)  Reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal and regulatory compliances.

4. In order to achieve an optimum equity share capital base which will commensurate with business activities of the
Resulting Company subsequent to the demerger and merger as stated above, it is proposed to reduce the face value
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of the equity shares and reorganise the equity share capital of the Resulting Company prior to the said demerger
and merger.

5. The proposed restructuring is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees, and other stakeholders of
the Parties (as defined in the Scheme).

Shareholding Pattern of Borosil Technologies Limited:
(based on shareholding data as on December 31, 2022)

Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
Sr. 3 Number of shares
P 1
No. o (face value of Rs. |% Holding Number of shares|,, Holding
10/- each)
1. |Promoter and-Prometer Group 95,84,043* 100% * Not applicable
2. [Public - - (Post Scheme, Transferor
95,84,043 100% Company will be dissolved
Total i ; e
without winding up.)

* Includes 6 nominee individual shareholders holding 1 equity share each on behalf of Borosil Limited.
Number/ amount of equity shares proposed to be sold by selling shareholders, if any- Not applicable

AUDITED FINANCIALS OF BOROSIL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Rs in lakh, except as stated otherwise)

For the half year| For the year For the year For the year
Piticilive ended September| ended March 31, |ended March 31,| ended March
30, 2022 2022 2021 31, 2020
STANDALONE
Total income from operations (Net) 400.81 1,321.01 649.30 432.00
(Note no. 1)
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax and (315.54) (66.88) (60.06) (31.41)
extraordinary items
Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax and (307.58) (50.62) (46.28) (22.96)
extraordinary items
Equity Share Capital 958.40 958.40 495.00 495.00
Reserves and Surplus (Note no. 2) (467.32) (159.74) (109.55) (66.48)
Net worth (Note no. 3) 491.08 798.66 385.88 428.52
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (Note (3:21) (0.63) (0.93) (0.46)
no. 4)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (Note (3.21) (0.63) (0.93) (0.46)
no. 4)
Return on net worth (%) (Note no. 5) (62.63)% (6.34)% (11.99% (5.36)%
Net asset value per share (Rs.) (Note 5.10 8.32 7:79 8.65
no. 6)
Notes:

1. “Total Revenue from Operations’ is given under the head ‘Total income from operations (Net)’.

2. Reserves and Surplus excludes Other Comprehensive Income.

3. Net worth is as per the definition of net worth given in Section 2(57) of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Basic and Diluted earnings per share for the half year ended September 30, 2022 is not annualised.

5. Return on Net worth % is calculated by applying formula : Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items
divided by Net worth and multiplied by 100

6. Net asset value per share (Rs.) is calculated by applying formula : Net worth divided by Number of equity shares
outstanding

7. Consolidated financial statements were not applicable, as Borosil Technologies Limited did not have any
subsidiary.
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INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

The below-mentioned risks are the top risk factors:

1.

o

Our inability to effectively manage our growth or to successfully implement our business plan and growth
strategy could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition

Our inability to manage our expansion effectively and execute our growth strategy in a timely manner, or within
budget estimates, or our inability to meet the expectations of our customers and other stakeholders could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Failure to manage growth effectively
could have an adverse effect on the business and results of operations.

Our success depends in large part upon our management team and skilled personnel and our ability to
attract and retain such persons

The loss of key personnel may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
growth prospects. Our performance depends on the continued service of our management team and skilled
personnel. The loss of key personnel may have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations.

Compliance Risk
Any non-compliance with the regulatory and other laws of land may lead to penalties and fines.
Quality of products

The Company is expected to maintain quality standard in its manufacturing operations. Any non-adherence to
approved quality practise and procedures may expose it to adverse consequences.

Operational risks associated with manufacturing industry

Similar to other companies in the manufacturing sector, the Company is exposed to a number of operational risks
that can have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

SIMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION i
: (Statnsasonsl,mz) Sl

A.

Total number of outstanding litigations against the company ( i.e. Borosil Technologies Limited) and amount
involved

Company
By the Company Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Company Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors
By our Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil . Nil Nil
Against the Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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romoters :
By Promoters 100 Nil Nil Nil 8 23.92
Against Promoters Nil 2 3 Nil 10! 67.24!
Subsidiaries
By Subsidiaries NA NA NA NA NA NA
|Against Subsidiaries NA NA NA NA NA NA
Notes:

L

Includes one matter involving an amount of Rs. 60 crore which is an alternate relief to be awarded only if
plaintiffs are successful in their claim and primary relief cannot be granted to them. Borosil Limited is the second

defendant in the said matter and in case of adverse outcome, the amount is to be paid jointly or severally by the
Defendants.

Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against the company (i.e. Borosil Technologies Limited) and
amount involved — Nil

Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters in last 5
financial years including outstanding action, if any (200 - 300 word limit in total) - Nil

Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters (200 - 300-word limit in total) — Nil (There
are no outstanding criminal proceedings filed against the Promoter of the Company)

The Scheme has been approvedﬁby‘the Board of Dlrectoré of Borosil Technologles L1m1ted at its meetmg held kon
February 07, 2022. Following documents can be downloaded from the website of BL i.e., www.borosil.com.

* Memorandum and Articles of Association of Borosil Technologies Limited.

¢ Audited financial statements of Borosil Technologies Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Composite Scheme of Arrangement.

Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated February 07, 2022 issued by M/s. SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm Registration No. 128851W) (Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126), Registered Valuer
recommending the share exchange ratio

Audited Condensed Financial Statements of Borosil Technologies Limited for the half year ended September 30,
2022.
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DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the-Companies-Aet1956; the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/
regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may
be have been complied with and no statement made in the Abridged Prospectus is contrary to the provisions of the

Companies-Aet; 1956; the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made
or guidelines or regulation issued there under, as the case may be.

We further certify that all statements in the Abridged Prospectus are true and correct.

For Borosil Technologies Limited

/{L"x
| \-

Rajesh Kumar Chaudhary
Director (DIN: 07425111)

Place: Mumbai
Date: January 03, 2023
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KEYNOTE

Private and Confidential

January 03, 2023

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

Borosil Limited Borosil Technologies Limited

1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, 1101, Crescenzo, G-Block,

Opp. MCA Club, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra East, Mumbai — 400 051. Bandra East, Mumbai — 400 051.

Dear Sir/Madam,

Ref: Abridged Prospectus of Borosil Technologies Limited
Sub: Due Diligence Certificate for the Abridged Prospectus of Borosil Technologies Limited

This has reference to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 amongst Borosil Limited (“Demerged Company” or “BL”) and Klass
Pack Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “KPL”) and Borosil Technologies Limited
(“Transferor Company” or “Company” or “BTL”) and their respective shareholders and creditors
(“Composite Scheme”).

This has further reference to our engagement with the Demerged Company for inter-alia certifying the
accuracy and adequacy of disclosures pertaining to the Transferor Company made in the abridged
prospectus dated January 03, 2023, prepared by the Transferor Company in terms of the requirement
specified in the SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to
time, read with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23,
2021, as amended from time to time.

We, as SEBI registered Merchant Banker(s) state and confirm as follows in respect of above proposed
Composite Scheme:

)] We have examined various documents including those relating to litigation, including outstanding
litigation, claims and regulatory actions and other material while finalizing the Abridged Prospectus
as mentioned above;

(2 Onthe basis of such examination and the discussions with the Transferor Company, its directors and
other officers, other agencies, and independent verification of the statements concerning the
objects of the Composite Scheme and the contents of the documents and other papers furnished by
the Transferor Company, WE CONFIRM that:

(@) the Abridged Prospectus is in conformity with the documents, materials and papers relevant
to the Composite Scheme;

(b)  all material legal requirements relating to the Composite Scheme as also the regulations,
guidelines, instructions, etc. framed / issued by the SEBI, the Central Government and any
other competent authority in this behalf have been duly complied with; and
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the disclosures made in the Abridged Prospectus are true, fair and adequate to enable the
investors to make a well informed decision as to the proposed Composite Scheme and such
disclosures are in accordance with the requirements provided in SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 04, 2022 read with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, to
the extent applicable, the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions / legal
requirements.

The above confirmation is based on the information furnished and explanations provided to us by the
management of the Transferor Company assuming the same is complete and accurate in all material aspects
on an as is basis. We have relied upon financials, information and representations furnished to us on an as
is basis and have not carried out an audit of such information. Our scope of work does not constitute an
audit of financial information and accordingly we are unable to and do not express an opinion on the fairness
of any such financial information referred to in the Abridged Prospectus. This certificate is a specific purpose
certificate issued in terms of the SEBI requirements and hence, it should not be used for any other purpose
or transaction. The certificate is not, nor should it be construed to be, a certification of compliance of the
Scheme with the provisions of the applicable Law including company, taxation and securities markets
related laws or as regards to any legal implications or issues arising thereon, except for the purpose
expressly mentioned herein.

We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendation at all as to the Transferor Company’s
underlying decision to effect the Composite Scheme or as to how the equity shareholders of the Demerged
Company and the unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the
Transferor Company should vote at their respective meetings held in connection with the proposed
Composite Scheme. We do not express and should not be deemed to have expressed any views on any other
terms of the Composite Scheme or its success. We also express no opinion, and accordingly, accept no
responsibility for or as to the financial performance of the Resulting Company, the Transferor Company and
the Demerged Company following the consummation of the Composite Scheme. We express no opinion
whatsoever and make no recommendations at all (and accordingly take no responsibility) as to whether
shareholders / investors should buy, sell or hold any stake in the Demerged Company or the Resulting
Company ar any of their related parties (holding company/ subsidiaries/ associates, etc.)

For Keynote Financial Services Limited

-
Name: Uday S. Patil
Designation: Director — Investment Banking
SEBI Registration Number: INM000003606
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ANNEXURE XII

35&

DCS/AMAL/MIJ/IP/2430/2022-23 “E-Letter” August 01, 2022

The Company Secretary,

Borosil Ltd.

1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, 11th Floor,
Opp.MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East,, Mumbai- 400051.

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation letter regarding the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited and Klass Pack Limited
and Borosil Technologies Limited and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

We are in receipt of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement of Borosil Limited as required under SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated August 01, 2022 has inter alia given the following
comment(s) on the draft scheme of Arrangement:

a) “Company shall disclose all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution initiated and
all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its promoters and directors, before Hon'ble
NCLT and shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme.”

b) “Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company after filing the scheme
with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company
and the stock exchanges.”

c) “Company shall ensure compliance with the said circular issued from time to time.”

d) “The entities involved in the Scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular and ensure that
all the liabilities of the transferor Companies are transferred to the transferee Company.”

e) “Company is advised that the information pertaining to all the Unlisted Companies involved in the Scheme shall
be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the ICDR
Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed,
which is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval.”

f) “Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for valuation report are
not for period more than 6 months old.”

g) “Company is advised that the details of the proposed scheme under consideration as provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to the Shareholders.”

h) “Company is advised that the proposed equity shares to be issued in terms of the Scheme shall mandatorily be
in demat form only.”

i) “Company shall ensure that the “Scheme” shall be acted upon subject to the applicant complying with the
relevant clauses mentioned in the scheme document.”

j)  “No changes to the draft scheme except those mandated by the regulators/ authorities / tribunals shall be made
without specific written consent of SEBI.”
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k) “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the petition to be
filed before Hon’ble NCLT and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of Hon’ble NCLT."

) “Company is advised to comply with all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations
issued thereunder including obtaining the consent from the creditors for the proposed scheme.”

m) “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before Hon’ble NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock exchange. Hence, the company is not
required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
again for its comments / observations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

* To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the Exchange for
further dissemination on Exchange website.

*  Toensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents are disseminated
on their (company) website.

*  To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to those matters
having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to
enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT. Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the
notice to be sent by the company to the shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose Information
about unlisted companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated March
10, 2017.

However, the listing of equity shares of Klass Pack Limited shall be subject to SEBI granting relaxation under Rule 19(2)(b)
of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and compliance with the requirements of SEBI circular. No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017. Further, Klass Pack Limited shall comply with SEBI Act, Rules, Regulations,
directions of the SEBI and any other statutory authority and Rules, Byelaws, and Regulations of the Exchange.

The Company shall fulfill the Exchange’s criteria for listing the securities of such company and also comply with other
applicable statutory requirements. However, the listing of shares of Klass Pack Limited is at the discretion of the Exchange.
In addition to the above, the listing of Klass Pack Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be subject to SEBI
approval and the Company satisfying the following conditions:

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about Klass Pack Limited in line with the
disclosure requirements applicable for public issues with BSE, for making the same available to the public through the
website of the Exchange. Further, the company is also advised to make the same available to the public through its
website.

2. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing all Klass Pack Limited in line with the details required as per
the aforesaid SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017. The advertisement should draw a specific
reference to the aforesaid Information Memorandum available on the website of the company as well as BSE.

3. Todisclose all the material information about Klass Pack Limited on a continuous basis so as to make the same public,
in addition to the requirements if any, specified in Listing Agreement for disclosures about the subsidiaries.
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4. The following provisions shall be incorporated in the scheme:

. The shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depository system till listing/trading
permission is given by the designated stock exchange.”

Il “There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern of Klass Pack Limited between the record date and the
listing which may affect the status of this approval.”

Further you are also advised to bring the contents of this letter to the notice of your shareholders, all relevant authorities
as deemed fit, and also in your application for approval of the scheme of Arrangement.

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be Six Months from the date of this Letter, within which
the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information submitted to the
Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and
Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any other requirements.

Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, a
Notice of the proposed scheme of compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the
Companies Act 2013 as the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or objections

if any.

In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served upon the Exchange, the
Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice along with the relevant documents of the
proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre.

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking Exchange’s representations
or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be
accepted. You may please refer to circular dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company.

Yours faithfully,
Sd/-

Rupal Khandelwal
Assistant General Manager
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ANNEXURE XIII
irae : c
D NSE - ;’ :

National Stock Exchange Of India Limited

Ref: NSE/LIST/30179_11 August 01, 2022

The Company Secretary

Borosil Limited

1101, 11™ Floor, Crescenzo, G-Block, Plot No,
C-38, Opp. MCA Club. Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 40005.

Kind Attn.: Ms. Anshu Agarwal
Dear Madam,

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Composite scheme of arrangement amongst Borosil Limited
(“Demerged Company”) and Klass Pack Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee
Company”) and Borosil Technologies Limited (“Transferor Company”) and their respective
shareholders and Creditors.

We are in receipt of Draft Composite scheme of arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“Demerged
Company”) and Klass Pack Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company”) and Borosil
Technologies Limited (“Transferor Company”) and their respective shareholders and Creditors vide
application dated February 25, 2022.

Based on our letter reference no. NSE/LIST/30179 dated May 19, 2022, submitted to SEBI and
pursuant to SEBI Master circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated
November 23, 2021 and Regulation 94(2) SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, kindly find following
comments on the draft scheme:

a. Company shall ensure disclosure of all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings,
prosecution initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its
promoters and directors, before Hon'ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeking approval of the
scheme.

b. Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company after filing
the Scheme with the Stock Exchanges, from the date of receipt of this letter is displayed on the
websites of the listed company and the Stock Exchanges.

c¢. Company shall ensure compliance with the SEBI circulars issued from time to time.

d. The entities involved in the scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular and
ensure that all the liabilities of Transferor Company are transferred to the Transferee Company.

e. Company shall ensure that information pertaining to all the unlisted Companies involved in the
scheme, shall be included in the format specified for abridged-psaspeciissoas provided in Part E
of Schedule VI of the ICDR Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal

accompanying resolution to be passed, which is sent to fg vh"whol?'&?%@ié}g\ﬁ%wg%ﬁﬁroval.
NSE ocation:

National Stock Exchan ge of India Limited | Exchenge Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (El. Mumbei — 400 051,
India +91 22 26595100 | www.nesindia.com | CIN U67120MH1992PLCO69T769
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D N s E Continuation Sheet

f. Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for
valuation report are not for period more than 6 months old.

g. Company shall ensure that the details of the proposed scheme under consideration as provided
to the stock exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to the shareholders.

h. Company shall ensure that the proposed equity shares to be issued in terms of the ““scheme”
shall mandatorily be in a demat form only.

i. Company shall ensure that the ““scheme” shall be acted upon subject to the applicant complying
with the relevant clauses mentioned in the scheme document.

j- Company shall ensure that no changes to the draft scheme except those mandated by the
regulators/ tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBI.

k. Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the
petition to be filed before NCLT and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the
notice of NCLT.

I. Company to comply with the all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and
regulations issued thereunder including obtaining the consent from the creditors for the
proposed scheme.

m. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/ observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence,
the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5)
of Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/representations.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the Circular.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No
objection” in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT. This Documents Digtaly Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Mon, Aug 1, 2022 17:56:04 IST

‘3 NSE Location: NSE
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The Company should also fulfil the Exchange’s criteria for listing of such company and also comply
with other applicable statutory requirements. However, the listing of shares of Klass Pack Limited is
at the discretion of the Exchange.

The listing of Klass Pack Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be subject to SEBI
approval & Company satisfying the following conditions:

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about Klass Pack

Limited and its group companies in line with the disclosure requirements applicable for public
issues with National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) for making the same available
to the public through website of the companies. The following lines must be inserted as a
disclaimer clause in the Information Memorandum:

“The approval given by the NSE should not in any manner be deemed or construed that the
Scheme has been approved by NSE; and/ or NSE does not in any manner warrant, certify
or endorse the correctness or completeness of the details provided for the unlisted
Company; does not in any manner take any responsibility for the financial or other
soundness of the Resulting Company, its promoters, its management etc.”

. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing all the information about Klass
Pack Limited in line with the details required as per SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017. The advertisement should draw a specific
reference to the aforesaid Information Memorandum available on the website of the company
as well as NSE.

. To disclose all the material information about Klass Pack Limited to NSE on the continuous

basis so as to make the same public, in addition to the requirements, if any, specified in SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 for disclosures about the subsidiaries.

. The following provision shall be incorporated in the scheme:

(a) “The shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system
till listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.”

(b) “There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern or control in Klass Pack Limited
between the record date and the listing which may affect the status of this approval.”

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted
to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of
Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulations
issued by statutory authorities.

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Mon, Aug 1, 2022 17:56:04 IST

‘3 NSE Location: NSE
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The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from August 01, 2022 within which the
scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

Kindly note, this Exchange letter should not be construed as approval under any other Act
/Regulation/rule/bye laws (except as referred above) for which the Company may be required to
obtain approval from other department(s) of the Exchange. The Company is requested to separately
take up matter with the concerned departments for approval, if any.

The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each
point of Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path: NEAPS >
Issue > Scheme of arrangement > Reg 37(1) of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking Observation letter
to Compliance Status.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Dipti Chinchkhede
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL:
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/raising-capital-further-issues-main-sme-checklist

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Mon, Aug 1, 2022 17:56:04 IST

0 NSE Location: NSE
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ANNEXURE XIV

Bo ROSI L® Borosil Limited
CIN: L36100MH2010PLC292722
Registred & Corporite Offics:
1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051, India:
T +9122 6740 6300
F +9122 67406514

E borosil@boresil.com

W www.borosi.com

March 28, 2022

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001

Scrip Code: 543212
Dear Sirs,
Sub: Report on Complaints

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Composite Scheme of
Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“BL" or "the Company" or "Demerged
Company"”) and Klass Pack Limited (“KPL" or "Resulting Company" or
"Transferee Company") and Borosil Technologies Limited ("BTL" or "Transferor
Company") and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme") under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

This has reference to the subject application filed by the Company with the Stock Exchanges i.e.
BSE Limited & National Stock Exchange of India Limited on February 25, 2022. The Scheme and
other relevant documents were hosted by BSE Limited on its website on March 4, 2022,

No complaints relating to the Scheme have been received during the period from February 25,
2022 to March 25, 2022. As required by Para A(6) of Part | to the SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021, the "Report on
Complaints” is enclosed.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

For-BorosE_Lidﬁqéﬂ"

e
A% -
/" Anshu Agarwal N, /
Company Secretary & ComplidfreeOfficer

FCS-9921

Encl; As above
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Bo ROSI L® Borosil Limited
CIN: L36100MH2010PLC292722
Registered & Corporate Office :
1101, Crescenzo, G-Block, Opp. MCA Club, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051, India.
T #9122 6740 6300

F +91226740 6514
E borosil@borosil.com

W www.borosll.com
REPORT ON COMPLAINTS
(for the period from February 25, 2022 to March 25, 2022)
Part A
S Particulars | Number
No.
1. | Number of complaints received directly NIL
2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges / SEBI NIL
3. | Total number of complaints / comments received (1+2) NIL
4. | Number of complaints resolved NOT APPLICABLE
5. | Number of complaints pending NOT APPLICABLE
Part B

Sr. | Name of the complainant | Date of complaint | Status (Resolved/Pending)
No

NOT APPLICABLE

For Borosil Limited | LB
:./—
A

>

i
,/}JLL/ '/' ;
Ane.‘hu(?\ankal
mpany Secretary & Compliance Officer
CS-9921
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ANNEXURE XV

® | Borosil Limited
QN : L ZEIM-B0I0RLCI5722
&

Registered & Corporate Office :

1101, Cresoerso, G-Bled, Ogp. MTA Tluly, Bandsz Kurla Complex
Bandra {E}. Mambai - 400 03], Inda.

T #9122 600 &380

E bomsi@bsnesd.com
W wmme borpsloom

March 31, 2022

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block - G,

Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

Symbol: BOROLTD

Dear Sirs,
Sub: Report on Complaints

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Composite Scheme of
Arrangement amongst Borosil Limited (“BL” or "the Company" or "Demerged
Company"”) and Klass Pack Limited (“KPL” or "Resulting Company"” or
"Transferee Company") and Borosil Technologies Limited (“BTL” or "Transferor
Company") and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme") under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

This has reference to the subject application filed by the Company with the Stock Exchanges i.e.
BSE Limited & National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) on February 25, 2022. The
Scheme and other relevant documents were hosted by NSE on its website on March 8, 2022.

No complaints relating to the Scheme have been received during the period from February 25,
2022 to March 29, 2022. As required by Para A(6) of Part | to the SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated MNovember 23, 2021, the “Report on
Complaints” is enclosed.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

For Borosil Limited =
T

i S

,,/\J

Anshu Agarwal \ _
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer N
FCS-9921 ———

Encl: As above
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BOROSIL 2t

[ ON:IZ600MD010PL 292722

| Registered & Corporate Office -
[ 1101, Crescemm, G-Block, Opp. MCA Tlub, Bandsz Kurks Complex
[ T +91226M0&300
| F #51226M06514

E borssi@benssl.com
W e boroeloom

REPORT ON COMPLAINTS

(for the period from February 25, 2022 to March 29, 2022)

Part A

Number of complaints received directly

NIL

1

2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges / SEBI NIL

3. | Total number of complaints / comments received (1+2) NIL

4 Number of complaints resolved NOT APPLICABLE
5 Number of complaints pending NOT APPLICABLE

Part B

NOT APPLICABLE

For Borosil Limited

,/'"5"'/_/{/://@

N

Anshu Agarwal
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
FCS-9921
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ANNEXURE XVI

Details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution initiated, and all
other enforcement action taken, if any, against Borosil Limited (“Company”), its

promoters and directors

(Status as on October 31, 2022)

Sr. Court / Parties Brief Summary of case Current status Against Remarks
No Tribunal / (Company
Authority | Promoter
| Director)

1 Civil Judge | The The Postgraduate Institute | Written Statement | Company | This matter of
Senior Postgraduate of Medical Education & | was filed by the Borosil Glass
Division, Institute of | Research (“PGI”) had filed | Company in Works Limited has
Chandigarh Medical a suit in 2019 against | December 2021 and been transferred

Education & | Borosil  Glass  Works | same has been taken to the Company
Research Limited to claim the refund | on record by order pursuant to the
Vs of Rs. 21,113,958 with | dated 16" August, Composite
Borosil Glass | interest per annum for not | 2022. The Revision Scheme of
Works Limited giving benefit of discount / | application filed Amalgamation
difference of discount to | against the said order and Arrangement
PGl which Borosil had | is currently pending. approved by
given to other premiere National
institutes. Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench on 15
January 2020.
2 Bombay High | Tata Motors | The Arbitral Tribunal in | The Appeal has been | Company | This matter of
Court Limited Arbitration Petition filed by | admitted by Bombay Borosil Glass
Vs Tata  Motors  Limited | High Court and is Works Limited has
Borosil Glass | against Borosil Glass | pending for final been transferred
Works Limited Works Limited (“BGWL”) | hearing. to the Company

in 2009, for claiming
reimbursement of
depreciation amount
disallowed by the Deputy
Commissioner of Income
Tax in 2003 on the
equipment’'s leased by
Tata Motors Limited to
BGWL, had issued an
award in favour of Tata
Motors Limited, whereby
BGWL was directed to pay

Rs. 26,30,662/- with
interest and cost of
arbitration of Rs.
5,00,000/-.

Aggrieved by the said
award, BGWL had filed a
petition before the
Bombay High Court for
setting aside the said
award. The Bombay High
Court vide its order passed
in 2015, set aside the said
award. Tata Motors
Limited has filed an appeal
challenging the order

pursuant to the
Composite
Scheme of

Amalgamation
and Arrangement

approved by
National
Company Law

Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench on 15
January 2020.
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Sr. Court/ Parties Brief Summary of case Current status Against Remarks
No Tribunal / (Company
Authority | Promoter
|/ Director)
passed by the Bombay
High Court.

3 | District Kuldip Singh Kuldeep  Singh  ("the | BL and BRL have | Company
Commissioner | Vs Complainant") has filed | filed the  Written
Consumer 1. Borosil | the  Consumer Case | Statement in May
Disputes Limited | against the Company and | 2022 and now the
Redressal 2. Borosil | others to claim his lost | matter is pending for
Commission Ei:‘izéables holdings (shares), | further proceedings.

Chandigarh compensation and cost
3. Bombay Stock e
Exchange, towards litigation, a§ a
Mumbai resylt of unauthorised
4 Bombay Stock action on part of Karvy
Exchange, Stock Broking Limited.
Chandigarh
5. Karvy Stock
Broking Limited
6. Securities and
Exchange Board
of India

4 | Motor Accident | Ratheeshkumar | Mr. Ratheeshkumar | The matter is pending | Company
Claims Krishnankutty Krishanankutty Pillai while | before Motor
Tribunal, Pillai & others | riding his motor cycle at | Accident Claims
Thiruvanantha | V8 o high speed on the Sojat- | Tribunal.
puram Borosil Limited & | jodhpur road met with an

others accident  against the
Company’s car (which is
insured with Royal
Sundaram General
Insurance Co. Ltd.) and
succumbed to death due
to head injuries. Relatives
of late Mr. Ratheeshkumar
have approached the
Motor Accident Claims
Tribunal for compensation
of Rs. 2,00,00,000 from
the Company & others.

5 | Chief Judicial | As specified in | M. A. Parulekar, Sr. | These matters are | Company | These matters of
Magistrate, Brief Summary | Inspector  and S.A. | pending before the Borosil Glass
Thane of Case Bobade, Inspector, | respective authorities Works Limited

appointed under | for  hearing  and have been
Maharashtra Private | f,rther proceedings. transferred to the
Security Guards Act, have Company

filed cases in 2017 and pursuant to the
2020 before Chief Judicial Composite
Magistrate, Thane, for Scheme of
violations  of  Private Amalgamation

Security Guards Scheme
which provides that
Registered Principal
Employer should employ
only  those Security
Guards who are allotted as

and Arrangement

approved by
National

Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai
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Sr. Court/ Parties Brief Summary of case Current status Against Remarks
No Tribunal / (Company
Authority | Promoter
|/ Director)
per the provisions of the Bench, on 15
said Scheme. January 2020.

6 | As specified in | As specified in | Borosil Glass Works | These matters are | Company | These matters of
Brief Summary | Brief Summary | Limited (“BGWL”) had | pending before the Borosil Glass
of Case of Case conveyed certain | respective authorities Works Limited

properties located in | for hearing and have been
Marol, Mumbai to Ghatalia | further proceedings. transferred to the
family in exchange for Company
certain properties pursuant to the
conveyed in favour of Composite
BGWL as described in the Scheme of

registered Deed of
Exchange in April 1974
(“Ghatalia DOE”).

BGWL had also conveyed
certain properties located
in Marol, Mumbai to Lone

family in exchange for
certain properties
conveyed in favour of

BGWL as described in the
registered Deed of
Exchange (“LONE DOE”)
in April 1974.

Thereafter, BGWL
conveyed its property
(including the property

received in exchange from
Ghatalia Family and Lone
Family), located in Marol,
Mumbai, as described in
the Neepa DOC (as
defined hereinafter), to
Neepa Real Estate Private
Limited (“Neepa”) in 2010
vide a registered Deed of
Conveyance (“Neepa
DOC)".

In 2014, Viresh Ghatalia
and Shailesh Ghatalia
filed the suit before the
Bombay High  Court,
against Neepa, BGWL
and others, claiming right
over the property
conveyed to BGWL by
Ghatalia family through
the Ghatalia DOE which
was subsequently
conveyed by BGWL to
Neepa pursuant Neepa

Amalgamation
and Arrangement

approved by
National
Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench, on 15
January 2020.
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Sr.
No

Court/
Tribunal /
Authority

Parties

Brief Summary of case

Current status

Against
(Company
/ Promoter
| Director)

Remarks

DOC. The plaintiffs have
prayed for a declaration
that the conveyance to
Neepa be set aside to the
extent of suit property or in
the alternative if plaintiffs
are successful in their
ownership claim but for
any reason such
ownership  cannot be
granted then  decree
against Neepa and Borosil
jointly and severally for
payment of 60 crores
along with interest @18%
p.a. from the date of the
suit till payment and/or
realization thereof. Neepa
had made a statement
before the Bombay High
Court that Neepa will not
carry out any construction
on the said property or
create any third party
rights without prior notice.
The matter is sub-judice
and will be listed in due
course.

In 2021, Mr. Manish Lone
had preferred an appeal
before Sub- Divisional
Officer, to include his
name in 7/12 extract, as
the location of the plot
belonging to Mr. Lone as
per Lone DOE was
unclear and accordingly
prayed for determination
and demarcation. Neepa
has filed the intervening
application to include its
name in the appeal and
same was heard and
reserved for orders.

In 2015, Placidus D'Mello
(“D’'Mello”) had filed suit
against the BGWL and
Neepa, in the Dindoshi
Court claiming tenancy
rights over the certain
portion of property which
BGWL had conveyed to
Neepa in 2010 through
Neepa DOC. D’Mello

221




Sr.
No

Court/
Tribunal /
Authority

Parties

Brief Summary of case

Current status

Against
(Company
| Promoter
|/ Director)

Remarks

claimed that they were
cultivating the said land
without substantial
evidence. No adverse
orders have been passed
till date. D’Mello had also
filed application before the
Tahsildar to include his
name in under 7/12 extract
which was rejected vide
order dated 30 November
2015. Being aggrieved by
the order of Tabhisilar,
D'Mello had filed the
appeal before Sub-
Divisional Officer which
was also rejected vide
order dated 26 July 2017.
Being aggrieved by the
order of Sub- Divisional
Officer, D’'Mello filed
revision application before
Maharashtra Revenue
Tribunal which was
disposed of vide order
dated 5 October 2020 with
the direction for
remanding back  the
matter to Tahsilar to
decide the matter. The
matter is sub-judice and
will be listed in due course.

High Court of
Rajasthan

Borosil Limited
Vs

Assistant
Commissioner o
f Commercial

Taxes, Jaipur

The Rajasthan
Commercial Tax
Department has raised a
demand for F.Y.2011-12
to F.Y. 2014-15 of Entry
Tax on the Company
towards purchase of
transfer paper and
ceramic color brought to
the state of Rajasthan
(purchased from other
states).

The Company had filed
appeals against the above
demand before the
Rajasthan Tax Board,
wherein the said Board
decided to dispose of the
demand of entry tax raised
on ceramic color by the
Rajasthan Commercial
Tax Department.

The matters are
pending
Rajasthan High Court
for hearing

before

Company
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Sr.
No

Court/
Tribunal /
Authority

Parties

Brief Summary of case

Current status

Against
(Company
/ Promoter
| Director)

Remarks

The Company has filed
appeals before the
Rajasthan High Court
against the orders passed
by Rajasthan Tax
Board with  respect to
demand pertaining to
entry tax on transfer
paper. A claim amount of
Rs. 16,81,855 (aggregate
entry tax plus interest for
FY 2011-12 to 2014-15) is
involved in these appeals.
The said amount has
already been paid under
protest.

Commissioner
of Income Tax
(CIT) Appeals

Borosil Limited
Vs

Assessing
Officer Income

Tax

The Company has filed an
appeal with CIT Appeals
for the FY 2015-16 (AY
2016-17) against the order
of  Assessing  Officer
disallowing interest
expenses of Rs. 1.39 crore
on the unsecured loan, by
treating it as a ‘Prior
Period ltem’.

The matter is pending
before CIT Appeals.

Company

Commissioner
of Income Tax
(CIT) Appeals

Shreevar
Kheruka Vs
Assistant
Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Circle 29
Kolkata)

An appeal has been filed
by Mr. Shreevar Kheruka,
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, before CIT
Appeals, against the order
of Assistant
Commissioner of Income
Tax disallowing exemption
on his dividend income
under Income Tax Act in
respect of assessment
year 2018-19. An amount
of Rs.9,82,210 is involved
in this appeal.

Appeal is pending
before CIT Appeals
for hearing.

Promoter
and
Director

10

Commissioner
of Income Tax
(CIT) Appeals

Kiran  Kheruka
Vs Assistant
Commissioner

of Income Tax
CPC, Bengaluru

An appeal has been filed
by Mrs. Kiran Kheruka,
member of  promoter
group of the Company,
before CIT  Appeals
against the order of
Assistant Commissioner
of Income Tax CPC,
disallowing dividend
income exemption under
Income Tax Act in respect
of assessment year 2017-
18. An amount of
Rs.7,80,090 is involved in
this appeal.

Appeal is pending
before CIT Appeals
for hearing.

Member of
Promoter
Group
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Sr.
No

Court/
Tribunal /
Authority

Parties

Brief Summary of case

Current status

Against
(Company
| Promoter
|/ Director)

Remarks

11

Commissioner
of Income Tax
(CIT) Appeals

Kewal Handa
Vs
Income
Authority

Tax

The Assessing Officer of
the Income Tax
Department, had raised a
demand of Rs. 94,01,252
(plus interest) against Mr.
Kewal Handa, Director of
the  Company, under
Section 143(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 in
respect of capital gains
pertaining to AY 2016-17.
An Appeal has been filed
by Mr. Kewal Handa
against the said demand
raised by the Assessing
Officer.

The matter is pending
before CIT Appeals.

Director

12

Commissioner
of Income Tax
(CIT) Appeals

Kewal Handa
Vs
Income
Authority

Tax

The Assessing Officer of
the Income Tax
Department, had raised a
demand of Rs.
2,89,24,360 (plus interest)
against Mr. Kewal Handa,
Director of the Company,
under Section 143(3) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961
in respect of capital gains
pertaining to AY 2020-21.
An Appeal has been filed
by Mr. Kewal Handa
against the said demand
raised by the Assessing
Officer.

The matter is pending
before CIT Appeals.

Director

13

Appellate
Authority under
Building and
other
Construction
Workers
Welfare

Borosil Limited
Vs
Assessing
Authority
Regional
Labour
Commissioner

cum
Joint

In 2018-19, Borosil
Limited (earlier known as
Hopewell Tableware
Private  Limited) had
constructed a warehouse
at Jaipur within the factory
premises which is validly
registered under Factories
Act. The Assessing
Authority cum Regional
Commissioner, Jaipur had
issued notice no. 4365
dated 29.11.2019 under
section 7 read with rule 10
of the Cess Act, and
demanded to provide the
architecture drawings and
other construction related

papers  from Borosil
Limited (“Borosil’). The
said notice was duly

responded by Borosil vide
its letter dated 29.11.2020
stating that the Company

The matter is pending
before Appellate
Authority.

Company
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Sr.
No

Court/
Tribunal /
Authority

Parties

Brief Summary of case

Current status

Against
(Company
| Promoter
|/ Director)

Remarks

is covered under the
Factories Act and Cess
Act and/ or rules are not
applicable to Borosil.

The Assessing Authority
issued Hearing Notice
dated 29.01.2021 for
appearing before the
authority on 04.02.2021
which was received by
Borosil on 06.02.2021.
Resultantly, Borosil could
not appear for the hearing
and Assessing Authority
passed an exparte order
directing Borosil to pay
Cess of Rs. 5,49,120/- in
relation to construction of
warehouse for the period
2018-19. The said
impuged exparte order
has been challenged
before the  Appellate
Authority by Borosil.
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